
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a Phartneriaethol / 
Operational and Partnership Services
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 
643148/643147
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Iau, 14 Mehefin 2018

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

CYNGOR

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Cyngor yn Siambr y Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd Yr Angel, Penybont Ar 
Ogwr CF31 4WB ar Dydd Mercher, 20 Mehefin 2018 am 15:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  5 - 44
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 25/04/2018 a 16/05/2018

4. I dderbyn cyhoeddiadau oddi wrth:  
(i) Maer (neu’r person sy’n llywyddu)
(ii) Aelodau’r Cabinet
(iii) Prif Weithredwr

5. I dderbyn adroddiad yr Arweinydd 

6. I dderbyn y Cwestiwn Canlynol: Cynghorydd A Hussain i Aelod Cabinet 
Cymunedau  
All yr Aelod Cabinet roi gwybod i’r cyngor sut y mae disgwyl i ni breswylwyr Pen y Fai i 
deithio yn ac o amgylch Pen-y-bont? 

7. Prosiect Cyfalaf Ysgol Gynradd Cwmfelin 45 - 54

8. Adolygiad Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 55 - 144

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


9. Adolygiad Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr - Cytundeb Cyflawni 145 - 210

10. Diwygiad i'r Cyfansoddiad 211 - 226

11. Ail-ddyrannu Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau'r Cyngor yn Ymwneud â'r 
Gyfarwyddiaeth Weithredol a Gwasanaethau Partneriaeth 

227 - 228

12. Materion Brys  
I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

13. Gwahardd y Cyhoedd  
Nid oedd y cofnodion sy'n ymwneud â'r eitem canlynol yn cael eu cyhoeddi, gan fod eu bod 
yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffinnir ym Mharagraffau 12,13,14, 15 and 16 o 
Ran 4 a Pharagraff 21 o Ran 5, Atodlen 12A, Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, fel y'i 
newidiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2007 (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) 
(Amrywio).

Os, yn dilyn cymhwyso'r prawf budd y cyhoedd yn yr Is-Bwyllgor yn penderfynu yn unol â'r 
Ddeddf i ystyried yr eitem hwn yn breifat, bydd y cyhoedd yn cael eu gwahardd o'r cyfarfod 
yn ystod ystyriaeth o'r fath.  

14. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion wedi’u Eithrio  229 - 230
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion wedi’u eithrio cyfarfod y 25/04/2018 

Yn ddiffuant
P A Jolley
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a Phartneriaethol 

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
S Aspey
SE Baldwin
TH Beedle
JPD Blundell
NA Burnett
MC Clarke
N Clarke
RJ Collins
HJ David
P Davies
PA Davies
SK Dendy
DK Edwards
J Gebbie
T Giffard
RM Granville
CA Green
DG Howells

A Hussain
RM James
B Jones
M Jones
MJ Kearn
DRW Lewis
JE Lewis
JR McCarthy
DG Owen
D Patel
RL Penhale-Thomas
AA Pucella
JC Radcliffe
KL Rowlands
B Sedgebeer
RMI Shaw
CE Smith
SG Smith

JC Spanswick
RME Stirman
G Thomas
T Thomas
JH Tildesley MBE
E Venables
SR Vidal
MC Voisey
LM Walters
KJ Watts
CA Webster
DBF White
PJ White
A Williams
AJ Williams
HM Williams
JE Williams
RE Young



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

1

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - 
SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB DYDD 
MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018, AM 15:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd PA Davies – Cadeirydd 

S Aspey SE Baldwin TH Beedle JPD Blundell
NA Burnett MC Clarke N Clarke RJ Collins
HJ David P Davies SK Dendy DK Edwards
J Gebbie T Giffard CA Green DG Howells
A Hussain B Jones M Jones MJ Kearn
DRW Lewis JE Lewis JR McCarthy DG Owen
D Patel AA Pucella JC Radcliffe KL Rowlands
B Sedgebeer RMI Shaw CE Smith JC Spanswick
RME Stirman G Thomas T Thomas JH Tildesley MBE
E Venables SR Vidal LM Walters KJ Watts
CA Webster DBF White PJ White A Williams
AJ Williams HM Williams JE Williams RE Young

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

RM James, RL Penhale-Thomas, SG Smith a/ac MC Voisey

Swyddogion:

Susan Cooper Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 

(Dros Dro)
Andrew Jolley Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a 

Phartneriaethiol
Gary Jones Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
Susan Jones Rheolwr Cynllunio Datblygu
Gill Lewis Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog 151 Dros Dro
Jonathan Parsons Rheolwr Grŵp Datblygu
Andrew Rees Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Mark Shephard Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau
Kevin Stephens Cynorthwy-ydd Gwasanaethau Democataidd
Kelly Watson Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd

156. MUNUD O DAWELWCH

Â thristwch, cyfeiriodd y Maer at farwolaeth y cyn-gynghorydd  Colin Teesdale sef cyn-
Faer y Fwrdeistref Sirol, Aelod Cabinet a hefyd cyn aelod o Gyngor Tref Maesteg.  
Gofynnodd y Maer i’r aelodau ymuno mewn munud o dawelwch er cof amdano. 

Cododd pawb ar eu traed mewn teyrnged.     

157. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU

Datganwyd y Buddiannau canlynol:

Datganodd y Cynghorydd DG Owen fudd personol a rhagfarn o ran eitem 6 ar yr agenda 
- Sefydliad y Gweithiwr Nant-y-moel - gan ei fod yn Ymddiriedolwr Clwb Bechgyn a 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

2

Merched a Chanolfan Gymunedol Nant-y-moel a gadawodd y cyfarfod yn ystod y 
drafodaeth hon.
  
Datganodd y Cynghorydd JC Spanswick fudd personol a rhagfarn yn eitem 6 ar yr 
agenda - Sefydliad y Gweithiwr Nantymoel - gan ei fod yn Ymddiriedolwr Clwb Bechgyn 
a Merched a Chanolfan Gymunedol Nantymoel a gadawodd y cyfarfod yn ystod y gwaith 
o ystyried y mater hwn.

Datganodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - – Cyfreithiol fudd yn eitem 16 ar yr agenda - penodi 
Cyfreithiwr a Swyddog Monitro i’r Cyngor gadawodd y cyfarfod yn ystod y gwaith o 
ystyried y mater hwn.

158. CYMERADWYO COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo cofnodion y Cyngor ar 28 Mawrth 2018 fel cofnod  
gwir a chywiro’r cyfarfod.    

159. DERBYN CYHOEDDIADAU GAN:

Y Maer

Rhoddodd y Maer wybod i’r Cyngor am rai o'r achlysuron y bu'n bresennol ynddynt yn 
rhinwedd ei swydd yn ystod y mis. Roedd y rhain yn cynnwys y Ffair Lyfrau flynyddol 
yng Nghanolfan Westward, Cefn Glas ar y cyd â’r Lions a oedd wedi codi £180,000 tuag 
at elusennau  lleol.  Roedd y Maer hefyd yn bresennol mewn digwyddiadau i nodi 
Canmlwyddiant y RAF yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol, yn Abertawe ac ym Mro Morgannwg.   
Roedd y Maer hefyd wedi cael pleser o ymweld â Mr and Mrs Thomas a oedd yn dathlu 
eu 60ain Pen-blwydd Priodas.  Roedd y Maer a’i Chymar yn bresennol mewn noson 
gymdeithasol yn Heronston er budd ei helusennau.  Mae dau ddigwyddiad arall eto i'w 
cynnal er bud ei helusennau dewisedig gan gynnwys noson Teyrnged i Tom Jones ar 17 
Ebrill yn yr Hi Tide a'r Gala ar 28 Ebrill yn yr Heronston.

Hefyd cyhoeddodd y Maer mai hi agorodd y cyfleuster 'galw-heibio' i gyn- filwyr ar gyfer 
Cyn-filwyr a'u teuluoedd a gynhelir yn y  Parth.  Diolchodd i’r merched yn y Parth a 
deiliad masnachfraint Subway am yr arlwyaeth ac i Mr Gareth Evans a’r cyn-filwyr sy’n 
perthyn i elusen o’r enw ‘stepping out’, elusen ar gyfer y lluoedd arfog, am drefnu'r 
cyfan.  Diolchodd hefyd i’r AS Madeleine Moon ac aelodau’r Cabinet am eu presenoldeb 
yn y digwyddiad.   

Cyhoeddodd y Maer ei bod wedi bod yn y Senedd i ddathlu Canmlwyddiant Ambiwlans 
Sant Ioan.  Roedd hefyd wedi ymweld â Chanolfan Westward i’r dathliad 'Young at 
Heart’ ac roedd yn dymuno pob hwyl i’r grŵp i’r dyfodol.  Gofynnwyd i’r Maer gan 
Arglwydd Raglaw Morgannwg Ganol y Fonesig Kate Thomas os gallai feddwl am berson 
a oedd yn haeddu cael mynd i’r Briodas Frenhinol a’i bod hi yn awgrymu'r teulu Hodge o 
Bettws a enwebwyd gan y Cynghorydd Martin Jones.  Dywedodd bod y teulu wedi colli 
eu mab i Leukemia ddwy flynedd yn ôl a’u bod wedi codi mwy na £20,000 er budd 
Canser.  

Dirprwy Arweinydd

Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd bod bron iawn 10,000 o aelwydydd wedi cofrestru ar 
gyfer y casgliad cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol ers ei lansio ym mis Mehefin 2017.Cyn 
belled, mae 662 o dunelli o’r cynnyrch hwn wedi'i ddargyfeirio o safleoedd tirlenwi ac 
wedi'i anfon i'r gwaith Nappicycle yn Rhydaman sy’n cynhyrchu deunyddiau y gellir eu 
hailgylchu.  Gofynnodd i’r Aelodau ei helpu i atgoffa eu hetholwyr am gynllun lle gall 

Page 4



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

3

rhieni plant ifanc fanteisio ar ddisgownt arbennig drwy ddefnyddio cewynnau ‘go iawn’ y 
gellir eu hailddefnyddio.  

Cyhoeddodd hefyd bod cyfraddau cyflog newydd wedi’u cytuno ar gyfer holl staff NJC a 
fydd yn dod i rym o 1 Ebrill 2018. Caiff y cynnydd ei dalu o fis Mai 2018 ymlaen.  
Dywedodd y bydd yr isafswm cyflog felly yn £9 yr awr erbyn mis Ebrill 2019, sy’n cyd-
fynd â dymuniad y canghellor y dylai’r isafswm cyflog cenedlaethol fod yn £9 yr awr 
erbyn 2020. 

Aelod Cabinet Cymunedau      

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet Cymunedau wrth yr Aelodau bod y goeden tiwlipau sy’n 
union gyferbyn â’r Swyddfeydd Dinesig yn  
afiach a bod rhaid ei dymchwel er budd diogelwch.  Caiff y gwaith hwn ei wneud ar yr un 
adeg â'r gwaith sy’n mynd rhagddo ar y llwybr beicio ar hyn o bryd a bod coed newydd 
wedi cael eu plannu wrth ymyl safle’r goeden fel rhan o’r project hwnnw.  

Cyhoeddodd bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi dweud bod y cais am gyllid i wneud yr ystod 
lawn o welliannau diogelwch y ffordd ar hyd yr A48 rhwng cylchfannau Broadlands a 
Waterton wedi bod yn llwyddiannus.
Mae hyn yn dilyn rhywfaint o waith paratoadol a wnaed ar hyd y llwybr 5km y llynedd.  
Mae’r gwelliannau a gynigir yn amrywio o osod llochesi i gerddwyr mewn lleoliadau 
allweddol ar hyd y llwybr, gosod arwyneb newydd ar lwybrau cerdded ac estyn 
troedffyrdd cysylltiedig i godi arwyddion newydd, marciau ffordd newydd a gwneud 
gwaith i glirio llystyfiant.   Gellid hefyd rhoi cyfyngiad cyflymder 50mya ar waith rhwng 
cylchfannau Ewenni a Broadlands yn hytrach na’r cyfyngiad 50mya presennol. 

Aelod Cabinet Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet Gwasanaethau Cymdeithas a Chymorth Cynnar bod y 
cynllun pontio maethu newydd ar fin dechrau. Bwriad y cynllun yw cynnig lleoliadau 
arbenigol tymor hyr o hyd at 24 wythnos sy'n helpu plant a phobl ifanc ag amrywiaeth o 
anghenion cymhleth ac ymddygiad heriol.   Nod cyffredinol y cynllun yw symud y person 
ifanc ymlaen i drefniadau hirdymor, llwyddiannus sy’n cyd-fynd a’u hanghenion ac 
uchelgais a gofynnodd i’r Aelodau helpu drwy roi cyhoeddusrwydd i'r fenter.  

Hefyd rhoddodd yr Aelod Cabinet Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar y 
newyddion diweddaraf i Aelodau o ran cynnydd yr hyb diogelu amlasiantaethol (MASH).  
Dywedodd fod y cam cyntaf wedi dechrau yn gynharach yn ystod y mis pan symudodd 
12 o staff o Heddlu De Cymru, Gwasanaethau Plant, Cymorth Cynnar ac ABMU i’r 
swyddfeydd yn Ravens Court.  Bydd rhagor o gydweithwyr yn ymuno â nhw yn ystod y 
misoedd nesaf a bydd y gweithlu yn tyfu i bron 90 i gyd.

Cyhoeddodd hefyd yn dilyn cwestiwn a godwyd gan y Cynghorydd Alex Williams ac yng 
ngoleuni’r rhaglen deledu ddiweddar gyda Victoria Derbyshire, nifer y plant sy’n derbyn 
gofal ar hyn o bryd yw 375 ac o’r rhain mae 266 yn perthyn i grwpiau o frodyr a 
chwiorydd.  Roedd 103 mewn grwpiau o frodyr a chwiorydd sy'n cynnwys rhwng 2 a 6 o 
blant.  Mae’r datganiad bod ‘58% o'r plant sy’n derbyn gofal ym Mhenybont-ar-Ogwr 
wedi’u cael eu gwahanu oddi wrth eu brodyr a chwiorydd’ yn deillio o nifer y grwpiau o 
frodyr a chwiorydd (nid plant unigol) nas anfonwyd i leoliadau gyda'i gilydd.  Roedd yn 
cynnwys 60 o grwpiau o frodyr a chwiorydd (roedd 103 yn y boblogaeth gyfan o 388).

Petai’r ceisydd wedi defnyddio plant unigol yn sail i’r cyfrifiad yn hytrach nag 
‘aelwydydd/grwpiau’ byddai’r ffigwr wedi bod yn 43%.  Roedd hyn yn cynnwys 115 o 
unigolion (roedd 266 gyda brodyr a chwiorydd yn y boblogaeth gyfan o 388 sy’n derbyn 
gofal).  Dywedodd, o'i ddadansoddi ymhellach mae'n bwysig nodi bod 72 o'r 115 o’r 

Page 5



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

4

unigolion wedi’u ‘gwahanu’ gan yr awdurdod lleol ar unwaith neu’n fuan ar ôl iddynt ddod 
yn blant sy’n derbyn gofal ar yr un pryd.  Mae’r 72 o blant yn cynrychioli 18.5% o 
gyfanswm y boblogaeth plant sy'n derbyn gofal.  Dywedodd Aelod Cabinet 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar wrth yr Aelodau y byddai'r Cyngor bob 
amser yn gweithredu ar sail arfer dda ac yn ceisio cadw grŵp o frodyr a chwiorydd gyda'i 
gilydd pan fo'n bosib fel blaenoriaeth. Mae rhai achosion, fodd bynnag, pan fo asesiad 
yn nodi y byddai'r plant yn cael budd o fyw ar wahân.  Dywedodd bod Gofal Maeth Pen-
y-bont ar Ogwr yn gwneud pob ymdrech i gadw grwpiau o frodyr a chwiorydd gyda’i 
gilydd a’u bod mewn sefyllfa i fanteisio ar deuluoedd maeth estynedig h.y. teuluoedd 
sy’n cynnwys sawl aelwyd sy’n cynnig lleoliadau maeth.  Mewn un teulu mae 3 o frodyr a 
chwiorydd sy’n oedolion wedi’u cymeradwyo fel aelwydydd maeth a nawr mae un o’u 
plant eu hunain yn cynnig aelwyd maeth, gydag un arall wrthi’n cael ei asesu.  Yn 
ddiweddar mae hyn wedi galluogi un grŵp o frodyr a chwiorydd sy’n cynnwys 6 o blant i 
gael eu lleoli gyda’r rhwydwaith hwn o deuluoedd maeth gan wella’r cyswllt a'r cyfle 
iddynt  dreulio amser gyda'i gilydd. 

Aelod Cabinet Llesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet Llesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol wrth yr Aelodau bod 
holl ddefnyddwyr presennol hostel Brynmenyn wedi symud i lety arall tra bod gwaith 
atgyweirio brys yn cael ei wneud ar yr adeilad.   Mae’r gwaith yn cael ei wneud ar ôl i 
ddifrod ymddangos ar yr adeilad yn dilyn ymsuddiant.  Mae’r hostel yn chwarae rhan 
bwysig yn y gwaith o gynnig lloches i bobl sydd wedi cael eu gwneud yn ddigartref, ac 
yn eu galluogi i fanteisio ar wasanaethau eraill a gynlluniwyd i'w helpu i gael eu traed 
oddi tanynt a dod o hyd i lety parhaol.  Mae hefyd yn sicrhau nad oes rhaid i’r Cyngor 
ddefnyddio llety gwely a brecwast i gynnig cartref dros dro i deuluoedd â phlant.  

Cyhoeddodd yr Aelod Cabinet Llesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol bod digwyddiad ‘Step 
Out For Stroke' yn cael ei gynnal ar gyfer y mis nesaf.  Mae hwn yn debygol o gynnwys 
codi ymwybyddiaeth am strôc a sesiynau ymwybyddiaeth yn seiliedig ar ‘wybod am eich 
pwysau gwaed'.

Aelod Cabinet Addysg ac Adfywio
Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet Addysg ac Adfywio wrth Aelodau bod y cerbyd camera 
symudol sy’n gallu targedu pobl sy’n parcio’n anniogel neu anghyfreithlon y tu allan i 
ysgolion ar fin cychwyn ar ei waith.  Dywedodd bod y cerbyd yn defnyddio technoleg 
adnabod rhifau cofrestru cerbydau a’i fod yn canolbwyntio’n gyfan gwbl ar wella 
diogelwch y ffyrdd y tu allan i ysgolion lleol, a sicrhau bod plant yn ddiogel.  Dywedodd 
hefyd bod cynllun ‘Dim Pas, Dim Teithio’ wrthi’n cael ei dreialu ar  y bysus ysgol sy’n 
teithio yn ôl ac ymlaen o Ysgol Gyfun Brynteg gan fod contractwyr trafnidiaeth wedi rhoi 
gwybod bod nifer fawr o blant anghymwys yn ceisio defnyddio’r drafnidiaeth ysgol am 
ddim.   O ganlyniad, mae nifer o wasanaethau bellach yn orlawn, sydd wedi arwain at 
bryderon o ran diogelwch a phroblemau o ran ymddygiad ar rai llwybrau.  Ar ôl i'r treial 
ddod i ben, caiff y canlyniadau eu dadansoddi cyn y gwneir penderfyniad p'un ai a ddylid 
ymestyn y cynllun i gynnwys ysgolion uwchradd eraill. 

Cyhoeddodd hefyd bod y cynlluniau ar gyfer Gŵyl Ddysgu 2018 eisoes yn mynd 
rhagddynt, ac y dylai Aelodau dderbyn pecyn digwyddiadau a gwahoddiad i gymryd rhan 
cyn bo hir.  Mae ysgolion yn cydweithio’n glos a swyddogion i lunio ystod o weithdai a 
gweithgareddau ar gyfer y cylch trafod a diwrnod y dysgwyr, ac mae rhaglen o weithdai 
wedi’i hanfon i ysgolion yn amlinellu sut gallan nhw gymryd rhan a chael budd o'r 
digwyddiadau.

Prif Weithredwr

Page 6



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

5

Ar ran y Prif Weithredwr cyhoeddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Llesiant lansiad gwefan newydd y Cyngor a Fy Nghyfrif.  Mae trigolion 
yn cael eu hannog i fynd i weld y wefan newydd a chofrestru ar gyfer Fy Nghyfrif.  Gall y 
rheiny sy’n byw yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol fewngofnodi i gysylltu â'u cyfrif y dreth gyngor, 
gwneud taliadau ar-lein, trefnu a rheoli taliadau debyd uniongyrchol a helpu'r Cyngor i 
arbed arian drwy ddewis e-Filiau.   

160. DERBYN ADRODDIAD YR ARWEINYDD

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd ei fod wedi gofyn am gyfarfod gyda Gweinidog yr Economi 
Thrafnidiaeth i wneud cais am gynnydd y nifer y gwasanaethau trên i Faesteg.  Roedd 
hefyd wedi cyfarfod gyda Network Rail gyda golwg ar gael gwared o’r groesffordd 
drenau ym Mhencoed.  

Roedd ef, ynghyd a’r Aelod Cabinet Cymunedau a swyddogion wedi cyfarfod a 
chydweithwyr yng Nghyngor Bro Morgannwg i drafod y cysylltiadau gwell rhwng 
Cyffordd 34 traffordd yr M4 a’r A48 sydd wrthi’n cael eu hystyried.  Dywedodd bod 
swyddogion y Cyngor hwn yn ystyried gwella ardaloedd megis Cyffordd 36 Sarn.

Cyfeiriodd yr Arweinydd at y tân a gafodd ei gynnau yn y maes chwarae yn Heo Las, 
Cornelly, roedd cost y difrod a chyflwr y maes yn cael ei asesu ac ar hyn o bryd mae'r 
maes chwarae yn dal ar gau.  Diolchodd i’r Gwasanaeth Tân am ymateb yn brydlon i'r 
digwyddiad, ac roedd yn sicr y byddai eu cydweithwyr yn Heddlu De Cymru yn falch o 
glywed gan unrhyw un sydd â rhagor o wybodaeth a fydd yn helpu eu hymchwiliad.  Y 
rhif ffôn yw 101 a dylid dyfynnu’r cyfeirnod 1800 1300 11.

Roedd yr Arweinydd wrth ei fodd o weld y gymuned leol yn chwarae ei rhan yn y gwaith 
o fathu enw ar gyfer y dabtygiadau Gofal Ychwanegol sy'n mynd rhagddynt ym Maesteg 
ac Ynysawdre.  Bydd y cyfleuster gofal ychwanegol sy'n cael ei ddatblygu ym Maesteg 
yn ychwanegu cyfanswm o 45 o fflatiau i'r fenter sy'n mynd rhagddi ac mae wedi cael ei 
enwi yn 'Tŷ  Llwynderw’ gan un o’r trigolion Barry Walters er mwyn cydnabod ysgol 
uwchradd fodern Llwynderw gynt.  Caiff Tŷ Llwynderw ei leoli ar ‘Cae’r Ysgol’.  
Cyhoeddodd bod y cynllun yn Ynysawdre, sy’n cael ei adeiladu ar safle Ysgol yr 
Archesgob McGrath gynt ar dir wrth ymyl Coleg Cymunedol Y Dderwen a'r ysgol 
newydd, Ysgol Gynradd Brynmenyn, yn cynnig 25 o fflatiau Gofal Ychwanegol, 15 o 
ystafelloedd gofal preswyl ac ystod o gyfleusterau cymunedol. Ei enw fydd Tŷ 
Ynysawdre sef yr enw a gynigiwyd gan y trigolion Sally Hallet a Ann Szopsa. Mae’r 
ffordd newydd a lleoliad y datblygiad wedi cael ei enwi yn ‘Lôn Derw’ gan un o’r trigolion 
Jayne Taylor.

161. SEFYDLIAD Y GWEITHWYR NANTYMOEL

Gofynnodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau i’r Aelodau yn rhinwedd eu swydd fel 
Ymddiriedolwyr yr Elusen, Sefydliad y Gweithwyr Nantymoel, i gymeradwyo’r bwriad i 
gau a dirwyn yr elusen bresennol i ben ac arfer eu pwerau statudol dan adrannau 267-
274 Deddf Elusennau 2011 i drosglwyddo holl asedau’r elusen i sefydliad elusennol 
corfforedig a sefydlir gydag amcanion elusennol tebyg iawn, sef Clwb Bechgyn a 
Merched a Chanolfan Gymunedol Nantymoel.

Yn dilyn cau Canolfan Berwyn yn 2010, gofynnwyd i’r Comisiwn Etholiadol am ganiatâd i 
ddymchwel yr adeilad presennol, a dyweddodd y Comisiwn y byddai dymchwel yr 
adeilad yn arwain at broblemau hirdymor y byddai'n rhaid mynd i'r afael â nhw maes o 
law.   Dywedoddd bod Canolfan Berwyn dan ymddiriedolaeth gyda’r Cyngor, gyda phob 
un o’i aelodau etholedig yn gweithredu fel ymddiriedolwr o’r elusen sy’n gyfrifol amdano, 
sef Sefydliad y Gweithwyr Nantymoel.  Yn dilyn dymchwel y Ganolfan, ni fyddai’r Cyngor 
yn gallu bodloni diben elusennol y Sefydliad mwyach ac felly cynigiodd Comisiwn 

Page 7



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

6

Etholiadaol nifer o opsiynau i’w hystyried.  Dywedodd mai’r dewis a ffefrir yw 
trosglwyddo’r tir y saif Canolfan Berwyn arno (nid y tir ehangach sy'n ei amgylchynu) a'r 
arian a gedwir gan yr elusen bresennol i elusen leol arall gydag amcanion elusennol 
tebyg iawn.  At y diben hwnnw mae’r Cyngor yn cefnogi sefydlu Sefydliad Elusennol 
Corfforedig, Clwb Bechgyn a Merched a Chanolfan Gymunedol Nantymoel, a sefydlwyd 
at ddibenion elusennol tebyg iawn i holl ddibenion Sefydliad y Gweithwyr Nantymoel.  

Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau bod gwaith wedi bod yn mynd 
rhagddo yn lleol am nifer o flynyddoedd i lunio cynllun busnes a chynnig i wario'r cyfalaf 
o £200,000 a neilltuwyd yn y Rhaglen Cyfalaf pan fyddai Canolfan Berwyn yn cau, tuag 
at ddatblygu cyfleusterau eraill neu estynedig yn Nantymoel.  Dywedodd bod y Cabinet 
ym mis Tachwedd 2017 wedi cymeradwyo rhydau’r cyfalaf i Glwb Bechgyn a Merched 
Nantymoel yn seiliedig ar gynllun i ehangu a gwella’r cyfleusterau presennol i alluogi'r 
gymuned i'w ddefnyddio.    Dywedwyd wrth y Cabinet ar y pryd bod y grŵp cymunedol 
wedi gofyn i’r Cyngor ddilyn y broses sy’n angenrheidiol i ryddhau’r arian a gedwir mewn 
ymddiriedolaeth, er mwyn ychwanegu at yr £200,000 o arian cyfalaf a neilltuwyd.   
Dywedwyd wrth y Cabinet ar y pryd bod tua £46,000 wedi'i gadw ac mai gwerth cyfredol 
y gronfa yw £49,274.69 

Dywedodd y gofynnwyd am gyngor pellach gan y Comisiwn Elusennol ar y broses o 
drosglwyddo asedau'r elusen bresennol yn seiliedig ar y dewis hwn a ffefrir.  Cynahliwyd 
cyfarfod cyhoeddus at y diben o ofyn barn trigolion lleol ar ddirwyn yr elsuen bresennol, 
Sefydliad y Gweithwyr Nantymoel, a sefydlu corff ag amcanion elusenol tebyg iawn, 
Clwb Bechgyn a Merched a Chanolfan Gymunedol Nantymoel, ar 28 Mawrth 2018.  
Cadeiriwyd y cyfarfod gan y Dirprwy Arweinydd ac ynddo nodwyd y cynnig llawn gan 
roi’r cyfle i drigolion lleol ofyn unrhyw gwestiynau neu fynegi unrhyw bryderon.  Cafodd y 
cynnig ei gefnogi’n unfrydol yn y bleidlais ddilynol.

Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau y byddai dirwyn yr elusen bresennol i 
ben a throsglwyddo ei hasedau yn arwain at drosglwyddo £49,274.69 i Glwb Bechgyn a 
Merched a Chanolfan Gymunedol Nantymoel yn amodol ar gymeradwyaeth ffurfiol gan y 
Comisiwn Elusennol.   Yn ogystal, caiff y darn o dir yr oedd Canolfan Berwyn yn sefyll 
arno cyn ei ddymchwel ei drosglwyddo i’r sefydliad elusennol corfforedig a enwir uchod.  
Bydd amcanion yr elusen yn ei atal rhag cael ei werthu at ddibenion masnachol. 

Wrth gymeradwyo’r cynnig dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd ei fod yn gobeithio y byddai’r 
holl Aelodau yr un mor gefnogol. 

PENDERFYNWYD:       (1) Y byddai’r Cyngor yn cefnogi’r cynnig i ddirwyn i ben yr 
elusen bresennol, Sefydliad y Gweithwyr Nantymoel, a 
chymeradwyo penderfyniad trosglwyddo pŵer wrth arfer ei 
bwerau statudol dan adrannau 267-274 Deddf Elusennau 2011 i 
drosglwyddo holl asedau’r elusen i Sefydliad Elusennol 
Corfforedig a sefydlir at ddibenion elusennol sy'n debyg iawn i'w 
holl ddibenion elusennol, sef  Clwb Bechgyn a Merched a 
Chanolfan Gymunedol Nantymoel. 

(2)  Y byddai’r Cyngor yn cymeradwyo'r cynnig i gysylltu gyda’r 
Comisiwn Elusennol yn ffurfiol i gwblhau’r broses o ddiddymu’r 
elusen bresennol a throsglwyddo ei holl asedau fel y nodwyd 
uchod.                  

162. GWYRIAD CAIS CYNLLUNIO P/17/1083/FUL

Nododd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu fod y pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygu, yn ei gyfarfod ar 15 
Tachwedd 2018, o’r farn nad yw cais cynllunio P/17/1083/FUL yn cyd-fynd â’r Cynllun 

Page 8



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

7

Datblygu Lleol.  Dywedodd fod y Pwyllgor wedi penderfynu peidio â gwrthod caniatâd 
cynllunio a bod y cais wedi’i gyfeirio at y Cyngor gan ofyn iddo gymeradwyo’r cais yn 
amodol ar amodau.

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu bod y cais ar gyfer codi estyniad i’r is-orsaf grid 
yn Is-orsaf Grid Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, oddi ar Great Western Avenue, Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr.  Dywedodd y byddai’r estyniad arfaethedig i’r gorllewin o’r is-orsaf bresennol yn 
sicrhau lle i godi adeilad sy’n cynnig y cyfle i uwchraddio’r is-orsaf bresennol drwy 
drawsffurfio’r foltedd sy’n dod i mewn i’w ddosbarthu i’r rhwydwaith lleol a darparu pŵer 
ar gyfer ardal ehangach Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  Dywedodd wrth y Cyngor y bod angen 
uwchraddio a moderneiddio’r seilwaith presennol.  Mae safle’r cais yn y prif anheddiad 
ym Mhenybont-ar-Ogwr, fel y diffinir gan Gynllun Datblygu Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ac 
o fewn y Safle Datblygu Adfywio a Defnydd Cymysg - Seidins Coity Road, Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr fel y diffinir gan Bolisi PLA3 y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol.  Mae’r safle wedi’i neilltuo ar 
gyfer cynlluniau adfywio a defnydd cymysg sy’n cynnwys 140 o unedau preswyl 
(COM1(4)), swyddogaeth cyflogaeth (REG1(3) sydd eisoes wedi’i ddatblygu) a 
chyfleuster Parcio a Theithio i wasanaethu Gorsaf Rheilffordd Melin Ifan Ddu. 

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu fod y safle yn cynnig cyfleoedd datblygu dros 
gyfnod y cynllun gyda golwg ar helpu i gyflawni gweledigaeth ac amcanion y Cynllun 
Datblygu Lleol ac y byddai’r neilltuad yn arwain at sicrhau datblygiad preswyl, cyflogaeth 
a masnachol cynhwysfawr, wrth ddarparu cyfleusterau trafnidiaeth, cymunedol, addysg 
a hamdden i wasanaethu’r gymuned.
  
PENDERFYNWYD: Nad yw'r Cyngor am wrthod y datblygiad ac y dylid rhoi 

pwerau dirprwyedig i’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 
Cymunedau gyhoeddi hysbysiad o benderfyniad mewn 
perthynas â’r cynnig yn amodol ar yr amodau a nodwyd yn 
adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau.   

163. CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR (CDLL) – ADRODDIAD 
ADOLYGU DRAFFT

Gofynnodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu am gymeradwyaeth i gynnal ymgynghoriad 
targedig ar yr Adolygiad o Gynllun Datblygu Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  Dywedodd bod 
yr Adroddiad Adolygu drafft yn cyflwyno hyd a lled y newidiadau tebygol i’r CDLl (2006-
2021) presennol ac yn gofyn am gadarnhau y caiff y weithdrefn adolygu ei dilyn wrth 
baratoi CDLl newydd.   Dywedodd wrth y Cyngor y cynigir y byddai’r CDLl Newydd yn 
cwmpasu cyfnod hyd at 2033, sef diwedd cyfnod o 15 mlynedd a fydd yn dechrau yn 
2018.  

Dywedodd y cafodd y CDLl ei fabwysiadu ar 18 Medi 2013 a’i fod yn nodi amcanion y 
Cyngor ar gyfer datblygu a defnyddio tir ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr dros 
gyfnod o 15 mlynedd o 2006 i 2021, a’i bolisi o ran eu gweithredu.  Dywedodd bod CDLl 
ddiweddaredig yn rhan hanfodol o system gynllunio a arweinir gan gynllun yng 
Nghymru.  Er mwyn sicrhau yr asesir yn rheolaidd a chynhwysfawr p'un ai yw cynlluniau 
yn dal yn gyfredol, mae’n ofyniad statudol ar y Cyngor i gynnal adolygiad llawn o’r CDLl 
mabwysiedig yn ystod cyfnodau o ddim mwy na phob pedair blynedd o ddyddiad ei 
fabwysiadu.    Gan hynny, sbardunwyd adolygiad llawn o’r CDLl mabwysiedig ym mis 
Medi 2017.  Ers iddo gael ei fabwysiadu, mae’r CDLl wedi bod yn destun adolygiad 
blynyddol ac mae tri Adroddiad Monitro Blynyddol wedi'u cyhoeddi.  

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu cyn y gellir gwneud unrhyw adolygiad mewn 
cysylltiad â Chynllun Datblygu bod rhaid cynnal Adroddiad Adolygu i benderfynu ar y 
llwybr gweithdrefnol priodol a'r problemau allweddol i'w hystyried wrth fwrw ymlaen â'r 
CDLl.  Dywedodd bod yr Adroddiad Adolygu hefyd yn ystyried p’un ai a ddylai’r broses o 

Page 9



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

8

baratoi CDLl newydd gael ei gyflawni’n unigol neu ar y cyd ag Awdurdodau Cynllunio 
Lleol cyfagos.  Tynnodd sylw at brif ganlyniadau’r Adroddiad Adolygu drafft o ran 
Newidiadau Cyd-destunol; Asesu’r newidiadau tebygol sydd angen eu gwneud i’r CDLl 
presennol; Adolygu’r Opsiynau o ran Sail y Dystiolaeth ac Adolygu’r CDLl. 

Holodd Aelod o’r Cyngor ba drefniadau fyddai ar waith i Aelodau gymryd rhan yn yr 
ymgynghoriad ar y CDLl.  Dywedodd y Rheolwr Cynllunio Datblygu y caiff Grwpiau 
Pwnc eu sefydlu ac y caiff Aelodau lleol ac aelodau Cynghorau Tref a Chynghorau 
Cymuned eu gwahodd i gymryd rhan yn y broses ar y cam adolygu.  

Cyfeiriodd aelod o’r Cyngor at benderfyniad y Cyngor i fwrw ymlaen a’i gynllun ei hun 
gan ofyn p'un ai a yw'n bwriadu cydweithio gydag awdurdodau cyfagos megis Cyngor 
RhCT, yng ngoleuni cynigion ar gyfer datblygiad tai ar raddfa fawr yn RhCT sy’n agos 
iawn at ei ffin â Phenybont-ar-Ogwr.  Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu bod 
trefniadau cydweithio ar waith gydag awdurdodau lleol cyfagos yn enwedig pan fo 
ceisiadau cynllunio yn arwain at drafod materion trawsffiniol.  Dywedodd y byddai CDLl 
Cyngor RhCT yn dod i ben tua’r un adeg a CDLl y Cyngor hwn.  Dywedodd hefyd y 
byddai effaith y datblygiad mawr dan sylw ar Benybont-ar-Ogwr yn cael ei ystyried gan 
swyddogion.

Gofynnodd aelod o’r Cyngor p’un ai y gellir adolygu'r polisi ar dai fforddiadwy.  
Cyfeiriodd aelod o’r Cyngor at nifer yr adeiladau gwag yng nghanol trefi gan ofyn a ellid 
ystyried cynnwys Pencoed yn unol â’r trefi eraill yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol.  Dywedodd y 
Rheolwr Cynllunio Datblygu y byddai’n rhaid ystyried y polisi ar dai fforddiadwy a nifer yr 
adeiladau gwag mewn canol trefi yn fanwl yng nghyd-destun y CDLl.  

Cyfeiriodd aelod o’r Cyngor at yr angen i swyddogion roi sylw i’r effaith a gaiff 
datblygiadau tai newydd ar fodloni’r galw am leoedd ysgol.  Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr 
Cynllunio Datblygu y byddai swyddogion o’r Adran Addysg yn rhan o’r Gweithgor ac y 
caiff effaith datblygiadau tai ar addysg a gwasanaethau eraill y Cyngor ei hystyried.

PENDERFYNWYD:         (1)  Cymeradwyodd y Cyngor yr Adroddiad Adolygu at 
ddibenion ymgynghori targedig.

(2) Y byddai’r Cyngor yn awdurdodi’r Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu 
y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau i ymgynghori ar yr Adroddiad 
Adolygu drafft. 

(3)  Bod y Cyngor yn rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i Reolwr Grŵp 
Datblygu y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau i wneud unrhyw 
gywiriadau ffeithiol neu fân newidiadau i’r Adroddiad Adolygu 
drafft yn ôl yr angen.          

164. ADOLYGIAD CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR – CYTUNDEB 
CYFLAWNI DRAFFT

Gofynnodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu am gymeradwyaeth i gynnal ymgynghoriad 
targedig ar yr Adolygiad o Gynllun Datblygu Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.   Dywedodd bod 
y ddogfen drafft yn nodi sut a phryd y caiff y gymuned leol a rhanddeiliaid eraill gyfrannu 
at baratoi’r Cynllun Newydd ac amserlen ar gyfer ei baratoi.  Dywedodd wrth y Cyngor y 
cynigir y byddai’r CDLl Newydd yn cwmpasu cyfnod hyd at 2033, sef diwedd cyfnod o 15 
mlynedd a fydd yn dechrau yn 2018.

Dywedodd bod y Cytundeb Cyflawni yn cynnwys 2 ran, sef amserlen ar gyfer paratoi’r 
CDLl Newydd, a Chynllun Cynnwys y Gymuned.  Cyflwynodd amserlen sy’n nodi'r 
dyddiadau allweddol gan gynnwys cyfnodau ymgynghori statudol ar gyfer yr holl gamau 

Page 10



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

9

gwahanol sy'n gysylltiedig â pharatoi'r Cynllun a'i gyhoeddi.  Roedd hefyd yn cynnwys 
cyfnodau allweddol ar gyfer cynnal Arfarniad Cynaliadwyedd, sef proses ailadroddol a 
gyflawnir fel rhan hanfodol o'r broses o baratoi'r Cynllun. 

Dywedodd bod y Cynllun Cynnwys y Gymuned yn amlinellu egwyddorion ymgysylltu 
cymunedol yr Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol, ei ddull o ran â phwy, sut a phryd y mae'n 
bwriadu ymgysylltu a'r gymuned a rhanddeiliaid; sut y bydd yn ymateb i sylwadau a sut y 
bydd y sylwadau hyn yn llywio camau diweddaraf y gwaith o baratoi’r cynllun.  Yn dilyn 
ymgynghori ar y Cytundeb Cyflawni drafft cynigir ailgyflwyno'r Cytundeb Cyflawni 
terfynol gerbron y Cyngor i’w gymeradwyo.  Cynhelir yr ymgynghoriad ar y Cytundeb 
Cyflawni drafft ochr yn ochr a’r ymgynghoriad ar yr Adroddiad Adolygu drafft a 
chynigiwyd y dylid cyflwyno’r ddwy ddogfen i Lywodraeth Cymru cyn diwedd mis 
Mehefin.

PENDERFYNWYD:         (1)  Bod y Cyngoryr yn cymeradwyo’r Adroddiad Adolygu at 
ddibenion ymgynghori targedig.

(2) Y byddai’r Cyngor yn awdurdodi Rheolwr Grŵp - Datblygu 
y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau i ymgynghori ar yr Adroddiad 
Adolygu drafft. 

(3)  Bod y Cyngor yn rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i’r Reolwr 
Grŵp Datblygu y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau i wneud unrhyw 
gywiriadau ffeithiol neu fân newidiadau i’r Adroddiad Adolygu 
drafft yn ôl yr angen.     

165. ADRODDIAD PANEL ANNIBYNNOL CYMRU AR GYDNABYDDIAETH ARIANNOL

Rhoddodd Rheolwr Grŵp - Cyfreithiol adroddiad ar Adroddiad Blynyddol drafft Panel 
Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol mewn perthynas â lefel y 
gydnabyddiaeth ariannol y mae’n rhaid i’r Awdurdod sicrhau ei fod ar gael i Aelodau ar 
gyfer blwyddyn ddinesig 2018/19.  

Roedd cynrychiolwyr y Panel wedi cynnal ymweliadau â'r holl brif Gynghorau ym 2017 i 
drafod y fframwaith cydnabyddiaeth ariannol a sut y caiff ei gweithredu ym mhob 
Cyngor.  Roedd y Panel wedi gwneud 52 o gynigion yn ei Adroddiad Blynyddol ar gyfer 
2018/19.      

Arweiniodd Rheoliadau’r Awdurdodau Lleol (Lwfansau Aelodau) (Cymru) 2007 at 
sefydlu Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol. 

Penderfynodd y Panel i gynyddu Cyflog Sylfaenol aelodau etholedig gan £200, byddai’r 
cyflog ar gyfer aelodau etholedig y prif gynghorau ar gyfer 2018/19 yn £13,600. Nid 
oedd y Panel wedi newid ei benderfyniadau blaenorol mewn perthynas â'r cyflogau 
uwch a delir i ddeiliaid Swyddi Uwch sy'n cynnwys y cynnydd yn y Cyflog Sylfaenol.  
Mae Cyflog yr Arweinydd a’r Dirprwy Arweinydd yn seiliedig ar boblogaeth y Fwrdeistref 
Sirol (100,000 - 200,000), gyda’r Arweinydd yn cael £48,300 a’r Dirprwy Arweinydd yn 
cael £33,800.  Mae’r Panel wedi cael gwared y lefelau gwahanol o ran y taliadau a wneir 
i aelodau Cabinet ac mae pob un ohonynt bellach yn gallu hawlio'r cyflog uwch o 
£29,300.  Mae’r Panel hefyd wedi cael gwared ar y lefelau gwahanol o ran y taliadau a 
wneir i Gadeiryddion Pwyllgor a bydd pob Cadeirydd yn cael cyflog o £22,200.  Mae 
hefyd wedi ailadrodd mai mater i’r awdurdodau lleol yw penderfynu pa gadeiryddion a 
delir.    Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Cyfreithiol bod y Cyngor yn ei Adroddiad Blynyddol 
ym mis Mai 2017 wedi penderfynu talu'r Cadeiryddion Pwyllgor canlynol:

                Panel Apeliadau

Page 11



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

10

                Pwyllgor Archwilio 
                2.3.4 Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygiad 
                Trwyddedu/Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003
                Trosolwg Pwnc a Phwyllgor Craffu 1

Trosolwg Pwnc a Phwyllgor Craffu 2
Trololwg Pwnc a Phwyllgor Craffu 3
Aelod Annibynnol sy’n cadeirio’r Pwyllgor Safonau y telir £256 iddo am 
gyfarfod sy’n para mwy na 4 awr neu £128 am gyfarfod dan 4 awr.

Mae’r Pwyllgorau canlynol yn cael eu cadeirio gan aelodau sydd eisoes yn cael cyflog 
Uwch/Dinesig ac felly nid ydynt yn cael unrhyw dâl ychwanegol.

 Y Cyngor
  Pwyllgor Penodiadau
 Cadeiryddion Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu 
 Fforwm Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned
 Is-bwyllgor Hawliau Tramwy 
 Nid yw Cadeirydd Pwyllgor y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn cael 

tâl ar hyn o bryd.

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Cyfreithiol fod y Panel eisoes wedi penderfynu y dylai'r 
Cyngor sicrhau bod cyflog uwch o £22,300 ar gael i arweinydd yr wrthblaid fwyaf sy'n 
cynrychioli o leiaf 10% (6 Aelod) o’r Cyngor cyn bod yn gymwys i gael cyflog uwch.  
Mae’r Cyngor ar hyn o bryd yn sicrhau bod cyflog uwch ar gael i arweinydd grŵp y 
Gyngrhair Annibynnol.    Mae cyflog uwch o £17,300 hefyd ar gael i arweinydd unrhyw 
grŵp arall sy’n cynrychioli o leiaf 10% (6 Aelod) o’r Cyngor.  Mae’r Cyngor ar hyn o bryd 
yn sicrhau bod cyflog uwch ar gael i arweinydd grŵp y Ceidwadwyr.    Mae’r Panel wedi 
nodi na chaiff Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr dalu mwy nag 18 o swyddi Cyflogau Uwch ac yn ei 
Gyfarfod Blynyddol ym mis Mai 2017 penderfynodd mai dim ond 15 o gyflogau swyddi 
Uwch gaiff eu talu.   

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Cyfreithiol bod y Panel wedi penderfynu y gellir talu 
cyflogau dinesig ac y dylai lefel y cyflog gael ei benderfynu gan Gynghorau ar ôl rhoi 
ystyriaeth i lwyth gwaith a chyfrifoldebau'r rolau.

Lefel 2 Y Maer Dirprwy Faer
Lefel 1 £24,300 £18,300
Lefel 2 £21,800 £16,300
Lefel 3 £19,300 £14,300

Mae’r Maer a’r Dirprwy Faer presennol yn cael Cyflogau Dinesig a Chyngor Lefel 2 ar 
gyfer y flwyddyn ddinesig 2017-18.

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Cyfreithiol adroddiad ar benderfyniadau’r Panel mewn 
perthynas â chefnogi gwaith  aelodau etholedig awdurdodau lleol.  Mae Penderfyniad 17 
a wnaed gan y Panel yn gallu pob Cynghorydd yn yr Awdurdod i ymuno a Chynllun 
Pensiwn Llywodraeth Leol os ydynt yn dymuno gwneud hynny.  Penderfynodd y Panel 
bod hawl gan Aelod Etholedig i gael cyflog sylfaenol pan fydd yn cymryd absenoldeb 
teuluol dan Reoliadau Absenoldeb Teuluol ar gyfer Aelodau Awdurdodau Lleol (Cymru) 
2013 waeth beth fo’r cofnod o absenoldeb cyn dechrau’r absenoldeb teuluol.  Pan fydd 
uwch ddeiliad swydd yn gymwys i gael absenoldeb teuluol, byddai ef/hi yn parhau i 
dderbyn y cyflog drwy gydol yr absenoldeb.  Mater i’r Awdurdod oedd penderfynu p’un ai 
i benodi rhywun yn ei le/lle.  Byddai’r Aelod Etholedig sy’n cymryd lle uwch ddeiliad 
cyflog sy’n cymryd absenoldeb teuluol yn gymwys i dderbyn cyflog uwch, petai'r 
Awdurdod yn penderfynu talu hwnnw iddo.

Page 12



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

11

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Cyfreithiol fod y Cabinet wedi penodi'r Cynghorwyr CE 
Smith a DBF White i Awdurdod Tân ac Achub De Cymru. Ni fyddai unrhyw Arweinydd 
neu Aelod Cabinet gaiff ei bennod i’r gwasanaeth dan sylw yn cael cyflog ychwanegol 
ganddo.  Y Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub sy’n gyfrifol am dalu ei gynrychiolwyr a 
chyhoeddi manylion unrhyw daliadau a wneir ganddynt.  

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - – Cyfreithiol bod gan yr awdurdod y Cyfetholedigion 
canlynol gyda hawliau pleidleisio:

 Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Safonau
 3 Aelod Annibynnol ar Bwyllgor Safonau  
 2 Aelod Cyngor Tref a Chymuned Cyfetholedig ar y Pwyllgor Safonau 
 5 Cynrychiolydd cofrestredig (Llywodraethwyr Ysgolion Eglwysig ac Ysgolion)
 1 Person lleyg a benodwyd i’r Pwyllgor Archwilio

Roedd yr holl awdurdodau yn talu’r costau am ofalu am blant ac oedolion sy’n 
ddibynyddion (gan ofalwyr anffurfiol neu ffurfiol) ac am anghenion cymorth personol o 
hyd at £403 y mis.  Caiff y taliadau eu gwneud dim ond os cyflwynir derbynneb gan y 
gofalwr.  

Mae’r Rheoliadau Absenoldeb Teuluol ar gyfer Aelodau Awdurdodau Lleol (Cymru) 
2013 yn benodol iawn o ran yr hawliad sydd ond ar gael i Aelodau Etholedig y prif 
gynghorau.  Nid yw absenoldeb oherwydd afiechyd yn gynwysedig.  Codwyd achosion 
yn ymwneud ag uwch ddeiliaid cyflog sy'n absennol oherwydd salwch hirdymor gyda'r 
Panel ac annhegwch ymddangosiadol hyn o’i gymharu â’r trefniadau ar gyfer 
absenoldeb teuluol.  O ganlyniad, mae cynghorau’n wynebu’r broblem ganlynol sef: 

 Gweithredu heb yr aelod unigol gan barhau i dalu’r cyflog uwch iddo.
  Penodi rhywun yn lle’r aelod dan sylw a fydd yn colli'r cyflog uwch (ond yn 

cadw'r cyflog sylfaenol). 

Penderfynodd y Panel na fyddai’n newid y gyfradd milltiroedd y mae hawl gan yr 
aelodau i'w chael.

Er nad yw’r Cyngor yn gallu newid lefel y tâl a benderfynir gan y Panel, caniateir i 
aelodau unigol wrthod y cyfan neu unrhyw elfen o'r tâl y mae hawl ganddynt iddo drwy 
ysgrifennu at Swyddog Priodol yr Awdurdod.  

Y gyllideb gyfredol a bennwyd ar gyfer 2018/19 ar gyfer talu aelodau etholedig yw 
£1,104,140.

PENDERFYNWYD:            Cymeradwyodd y Cyngor: 

 y byddai’n mabwysiadau penderfyniadau perthnasol y Panel Taliadau 
Annibynnol yn Adroddiad Blynyddol mis Chwefror 2018 fel y dangosir yn 
Atodiad 1. 

 y swyddi hynny (fel y dangosir yn yr Atodlen Taliadau Aelodau diwygiedig 
yn Atodiad 2), a fydd yn derbyn cyflog uwch/dinesig.

 lefel y taliadau ar gyfer y Cyflogau Dinesig.

 yr Atodlen Taliadau Aelodau diwygiedig  yn Atodiad 2, ac iddi ddod i rym 
o 16 Mai 2018 (Cyfarfod Blynyddol y Cyngor).

Page 13



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

12

 y byddai  Atodlen Taliadau Aelodau yn cael ei diweddaru’n awtomatig 
gydag unrhyw newidiadau dilynol i swyddi â Chyflog Uwch/Dinesig a 
wneir gan y Cyngor yn ystod blwyddyn ddinesig 2018/19. 

   

166. I DDERBYN Y CWESTIYNAU DILYNOL I'R GWEITHREDIAETH:

Cwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain i’r Aelod Cabinet Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar
 
“All yr Aelod Cabinet - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ddweud wrth y Cyngor sawl 
asesiad gofal cymdeithasol ar gyfer adferiad preswyl sydd wedi’u cyflawni yn ystod y tair 
blynedd diwethaf ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Penybont-ar-Ogwr a sawl un o’r rheiny sydd wedi 
arwain at leoliadau mewn canolfannau adferiad preswyl a pha rai?

Ymateb:
Y Tîm Adnoddau Cymunedol ydy cyfuniad o Wasanaethau Gofal Canolraddol ym 
Mhenybont-ar-Ogwr mewn un gwasanaeth; un o’r gwasanaethau hyn yw Ail-alluogi 
Preswyl. Gwneir cyfeiriadau i’r Tîm drwy un pwynt cyswllt, y Pwynt Mynediad 
Cyffredinol, sy'n cael ei staffio gan staff trin galwadau profiadol a thîm Triage 
Amlddisgyblaethol sy'n sgrinio'r atgyfeiriadau gyda golwg ar nodi'r ymateb mwyaf priodol 
a'r flaenoriaeth. Mae hyn yn symleiddio’r broses gyfeirio pobl at y gwasanaeth gan 
sicrhau bod ymyriadau’n cael eu cyflawni gan yr elfen fwyaf priodol ac felly yn osgoi 
ailadrodd atgyfeiriadau.  Gan nad yw’r atgyfeiriadau’n cael eu gwneud ar gyfer elfennau 
penodol o’r adnoddau dan sylw nid ydym yn gallu darparu’r data y gofynnwyd amdano. 
Mae’r data canlynol yn dangos nifer yr atgyfeiriadau a wnaed i’r tîm yn ystod y tair 
blynedd olaf.

2015 – 2601 Atgyfeiriad ac Ail-atgyfeiriad i’r Tîm Adnoddau Cymunedol
2016 – 2404 Atgyfeiriad ac Ail-atgyfeiriad i’r Tîm Adnoddau Cymunedol
2017 – 2542 Atgyfeiriad ac Ail-atgyfeiriad i’r Tîm Adnoddau Cymunedol

Mae’r dirywiad bach yn y cyfraddau cyfeirio yn deillio’n bennaf o’r ffaith ein bod ni wedi 
bod yn gweithio ar lwybrau atgyfeirio a sicrhau eu bod oll yn cael eu cyfeirio drwy’r 
Pwynt Mynediad Cyffredinol.  Mae hyn wedi ein helpu i leihau unrhyw ailadrodd, h.y. 
gwneud cyfeiriadau i nifer o wasnanethau ac aros i’r cyntaf ymateb.

Mae Uned Ailalluogi Bryn y Cae yn addas ar gyfer unigolion sydd, am gyfnodau byr o 
amser, yn debygol o fod angen cymorth dwysach gyda gweithgareddau byw bob dydd 
na fyddai’n bosibl ei ddarparu yn y cartref. Mae’r Uned yn gallu cynnig lle i 6 o bobl ar 
unrhyw adeg a hyd yr arhosiad arferol yw hyd at 6 wythnos ond mae hyblygrwydd o ran 
hyn yn dibynnu ar gynnydd yr unigolyn.   Mae’r Uned Ail-alluogi mewn adain benodol 
yng Nghartref Gofal Preswyl Bryn y Cae, Brackla, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Yn y tabl isod, nodir nifer y lleoliadau a ddechreuodd yn Uned Ail-alluogi Preswyl Mryn y 
Cae am dair blynedd olaf ynghyd â’r cyfraddau deiliadaeth. 

Blwyd
dyn Nifer y lleoliadau newydd a ddechreuwyd

 % Deiliadaeth

2015 43 76%
2016 44 83%
2017 45 82%

Mae ychydig o ffactorau sy’n effeithio ar gyfraddau deiliadaeth:

Page 14



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

13

mae’r gwelyau dan sylw wedi’u neilltuo ar gyfer pobl sy’n cael eu rhyddhau o’r ysbyty 
sy’n golygu ein bod yn dibynnu ar un ffynhonnell atgyfeirio.
efallai y bydd gwelyau ar gael ond na fydd atgyfeiriadau yn dod i law
gall atgyfeiriadau ddod i law ond yna caiff y person ei anfon i’w gartref ei hun yn hytrach, 
i gyflawni’r gwaith ailalluogi
mae’n bosib y bydd yr atgyfeiriad yn amhriodol gan fod y person yn rhy wael, heb nodau 
neu â phroblemau gwybyddol sy’n golygu bod ail-alluogi yn amhriodol.

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Hussain wrth y Cyngor y byddai’n gofyn cwestiwn atodol i’r 
Aelod Cabinet - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar ar bapur.

Cwestiwn i’r Aelod Cabinet – Addysg ac Adfywio gan y Cynghorydd R Stirman

“O ystyried bod y Llywodraeth yn bwriadu gwahardd gwerthu ceir disel a phetrol yn y 
dyfodol agos, a oes gan y Cyngor gynlluniau i roi strategaeth ar waith ar gyfer cyflwyno 
mannau gwefru trydan drwy gydol y Sir? Ac os felly, pryd gaiff y polisi hwn ei gyflwyno? 
A fydd hwn yn rhywbeth gaiff ei ystyried yn y gwaith o lunio CDLlau y dyfodol?  Hefyd, 
pa ddarpariaeth fydd yn cael ei gwneud ar gyfer y cynnydd arfaethedig yn y galw am 
drydan ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Penybont-ar-Ogwr?”

Ymateb:

Diolch am eich cwestiwn ynghylch cyflwyno mannau gwefru trydan. Yn amlwg mae hwn 
yn ystyriaeth bwysig ac wrth i gerbydau trydan ddod yn fwy amlwg yn y dyfodol, bydd y 
galw am fanna gwefru mewn lleoliadau hygyrch neu yn y cartref yn cynyddu, er mai dim 
ond ychydig iawn sydd wedi cysylltu â’r Cyngor ynglŷn â hyn. 

O ran cynllunio, mae polisi cynllunio cenedlaethol newydd yn awgrymu y byddai gofyn i 
ddatblygiadau newydd ddarparu mannau gwefru ar gyfer cerbydau trydan – bydd hyn yn 
dod o dan y Rheoliadau Adeiladau maes o law.  

Felly ni fyddai’n briodol i ailadrodd polisi cenedlaethol mewn CDLlau.

Bydd y polisi hwn, fodd bynnag, ond yn berthnasol i ddatblygiadau newydd ond dylai’r 
cyngor ystyried polisïau gyda'r uchelgais honno mewn CDLl yn y dyfodol i annog y 
gwaith o ddarparu seilwaith gwefru ym Mhenybont-ar-Ogwr, nowch bod y CDLl wrthi'n 
cael ei adolygu ar hyn o bryd.  Nid yw hyn o reidrwydd yn sicrhau y caiff ei gyflawni 
oherwydd gallwn ofyn am gyfraniadau S106 dim ond i hwyluso datblygiad penodol  ac ni 
fyddai mannau gwefru yn cael eu hystyried fel ‘project seilwaith’ yn rheoliadau’r Ardoll 
Seilwaith Cymunedol. Er hynny, gallai helpu gyda cheisiadau am gyllid yn y dyfodol 
petai polisi i ategu hynny yn y cynllun datblygu yn yr un ffordd y mae gwella priffyrdd 
wedi’u nodi yn y cynllun cyfredol.  Bydd rhaid i ni edrych yn ofalus ar y mater hwn fel 
rhan o’r sail tystiolaeth.

Ar hyn o bryd mae’n amheus o ran p’un ai a yw man gwefru yn ‘ddatblygiad’ 
gwirioneddol, hynny yw, petai’r Cyngor yn penderfynu darparu mannau gwefru yn ei 
feysydd parcio ei hun [y bwriad yw gosod ychydig o fannau gwefru ym Maes Parcio y 
Rhiw fel treial] yna mae’n bosib na fyddai angen caniatâd cynllunio (mae rhai 
archfarchnadoedd hefyd yn ystyried darparu mannau gwefru yn rhai o'u meysydd parcio 
eu hunain ac mae mannau gwefru eisoes ar gael yng Ngwasanaethau Sarn).  Wrth 
gwrs, mater corfforaethol i’r Cyngor ei ystyried yw hwn, ond efallai nad yw’n bosibl i’w 
sicrhau’n uniongyrchol o dan y system gynllunio ac efallai y bydd yn gofyn am 
ymrwymiad ariannol.  Mae’n bosib y gall Llywodraeth Cymru gyflwyno newidiadau i’r 
ddeddfwriaeth yn y dyfodol agos i esbonio hyn. Mae nifer sylweddol o grantiau ar gael i 
ddarparu mannau gwefru o dan yr amgylchiadau priodol a lleoliadau priodol, a'r dull y 
mae llawer o Awdurdodau eraill wedi’i ddefnyddio yw ddibynnu ar gyfuniad o 

Page 15



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

14

ddarpariaeth sector preifat a mannau gwefru cyhoeddus a gaiff eu gosod mewn 
lleoliadau strategol. Hefyd, mae gwaith ymchwil wedi dangos pan fo Awdurdodau Lleol 
yn caniatáu darparu mannau gwefru EV mewn strydoedd preswyl, y cyflwynir proses  
sy’n golygu mai’r perchennog sydd fel arfer yn gyfrifol am dalu’r costau.  Fodd bynnag, 
mae’n debyg y gall hyn greu anhawsterau eraill o ran defnyddio’r offer gwefru penodol 
oni bai bod lle yn cael ei neilluto oherwydd gall pobl eraill ddewis parcio yn y lleoliad 
hwnnw. Mae’n amlwg felly bod llawer o ystyriaethau y byddai’n rhaid eu hystyried yn 
fanwl i lunio strategaeth gredadwy ac ymarferol. 

Er ei bod hefyd yn bosib ystyried y galw yn y farchnad o ran darparu'r seilwaith – wedi’r 
cyfan ni fu erioed polisiau cynllun datblygu yn gofyn am orsafoedd petrol, mae'n rhaid i 
ni ystyried ffurf y gwaith hwn yn ofalus.   Er enghraifft, mae cwmni cenedlaethol wrthi’n 
gofyn barn pobl am fannau gwefru EV y maen nhw’n fodlon eu darparu, er y bydd y 
rhain hefyd yn cynnwys hysbysebion, hynny yw, gallwn fod mewn sefyllfa lle bydd 
gennym fwy o hysbysebion gyda mannau gwefru’n gysylltiedig â nhw, gyda goblygiadau 
gweledol ac o ran diogelwch y ffyrdd. 

Byddai’n rhaid i hyn fod yn destun trafodaeth ehangach o ran cynllunio/adfywio/priffyrdd 
oherwydd gallwn fod yn sicr y bydd y nifer sy'n defnyddio ceir trydan yn debygol o 
gynyddu dros y ddegawd nesaf.

I grynhoi, mae gan y CDLl ran i’w chwarae, ond ni allwn ddibynnu arno’n llwyr i 
ddarparu’r seilwaith.  Gall mannau gwefru fod y tu allan i gwmpas rheoli cynllunio ac 
mae potensial i ddulliau newydd ac arloesol i'r sector cyhoeddus ymateb i'r galw.    Mae 
parhad y cyflenwad a’r galw am drydan wrth gwrs yn fater i’r diwydiant trydan a’r 
cwmnïau grid. 

Bydd rhaid ystyried yr holl faterion hyn yn llawn a’u deall er mwyn llunio strategaeth 
gredadwy ac ystyrlon. Bydd rhaid i’r Cabinet drafod sut mae hyn yn cydfynd â 
blaenoriaethau eraill y Cyngor ac felly pa mor gyflym y dylid rhoi blaenoriaeth. 

Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Stirman gwestiwn ategol o ran beth fydd yn digwydd yn y 
tymor byr pan fydd trigolion sydd wedi prynu ceir trydan yn gosod ceblau ar draws 
palmentydd  Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet – Cymunedau nad oes unrhyw ganllawiau clir 
eto mewn cysylltiad â mannau gwefru a phwy sy’n talu am eu gosod pan nad ydyn nhw 
ar dai trigolion.  Dywedodd y dylai Llywodraeth y UK ofyn i’r diwydiant ceir a 
manwerthwyr i gadarnhau’r cynlluniau ar gyfer gosod mannau gwefru yn y dyfodol.   

PENDERFYNWYD: Y byddai’r Aelod Cabinet - Cymunedau yn ysgrifennu at yr 
archfarchnadoedd lleol yn gofyn iddyn nhw ystyried gosod 
mannau gwefru ar gyfer cerbydau trydan a chadarnhau eu 
strategaeth ar gyfer gosod mannau gwefru.

    
167. HYSBYSIAD O GYNNIG GAN GRWP PLAID CYMRU PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR:

Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd T Thomas yr Hysbysiad o Benderfyniad canlynol ar ran Grŵp 
Plaid Cymru.

Sir Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr Ddi-blastig 

Mae’r Cyngor yn cydnabod                                                                 Pryderon y 
gymuned ehangach o ran llygredd gwastraff plastic a’i effaith andwyol ar fywyd gwyllt a’n 
harfordir                                                      Mae’r Cyngor yn cynnig                                                                                 
Fel rhan o’n cyfrifoldebau tuag at gynaliadwyedd byd-eang dan Ddeddf Llesiant 
Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol, rydym yn cefnogi'r cynnig i wneud Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn 
‘awdurdod di-blastig'.

Page 16



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

15

Dywed y Cyngor                                                                                       Byddwn yn 
gweithio tuag at hyn yn y ffyrdd canlynol:
1. Byddwn yn adolygu ein sefydliad ein hunain ac yn rhoi’r gorau i ddefnyddio eitemau 
plastig a ddefnyddir unwaith yn unig ac annog defnyddio eitemau  bioddiraddadwy yn 
hytrach nag eitemau plastig megis gwellt yfed, cwpanau coffi plastig . 
2. Byddwn yn cysylltu busnesau’r Fwrdeistref Sirol i’w hannog i roi’r gorau i ddefnyddio 
eitemau plastig a ddefnyddir unwaith yn unig, defnyddio llai o ddeunyddiau pacio a 
chymhwyso egwyddorion cynaliadwyedd yn eu busnes bob dydd. 
3. Rydym yn hyrwyddo ‘Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr di-blastig’ drwy'r cyfryngau cymdeithasol a 
dulliau marchnata a chyfathrebu priodol eraill. 
Byddwn yn parhau i gefnogi mentrau cymunedol er mwyn ‘Cadw Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn 
Daclus' gan gynnwys ein traethau, parciau a strydoedd, ac yn hyrwyddo deunyddiau 
amgen i ddeunyddiau tafladwy, yn unol ag egwyddorion yr economi gylchol a 
hierarchaeth gwaredu gwatraff.
5. Byddwn yn hyrwyddo polisïau masnach deg a chynllun siopa yn lleol. 
6. Byddwn yn ysgrifennu at Weinidogion Llywodraeth Cymru yn gofyn iddyn nhw 
ystyried ba fesurau, gan gynnwys cyfarwyddyd a deddfwriaeth, y y gellir eu cyflwyno i 
leihau gwastraff plastig ledled Cymru, yn unol â’r egwyddorion a amlinellwyd eisoes.

Cred y Cyngor     Dylid monitro effeithiolrwydd y polisi arfaethedig o leiaf bob blwyddyn i 
dynnu sylw aelodau at y cynnydd fel rhan o'r broses craffu.

Eiliwyd yr Hysbysiad o Gynnig gan y Cynghorydd A Williams.

Mynegodd yr Aelod Cabinet – Cymunedau rywfaint o gydymdeimlad ag egwyddorion yr 
Hysbysiad o Benderfyniad gan fod y Cyngor yn cefnogi targed dim gwastraff 
Llywodraeth Cymru a hyrwyddo’r ymgyrch ddi-blastig a’r Fenter Cadw Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr yn Daclus.  Nododd bod y Cyngor eisoes yn gwneud llawer iawn mewn cysylltiad 
ag ysbryd yr Hysbysiad o Benderfyniad a gofynnodd am dynnu’r Hysbysiad o Gynnig yn 
ôl, ac yn hytrach, cyfeirio’r mater at y Pwyllgor  Craffu a Throsolwg perthnasol fel y gall y 
Cyngor nodi beth mae’n ei wneud a nodi’r ble mae’r bylchau er mwyn ei alluogi i nodi'r 
camau nesaf.

Tynnodd y Cynghorydd T Thomas yr Hysbysiad o Gynnig yn ôl.

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd wrth y Cyngor ei fod ef a’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – 
Cymunedau wedi cwrdd â’r Gweinidog Cymunedau a oedd wedi cadarnhau bod y 
Cyngor wedi gwneud cynnydd sylweddol o ran ei dargedau ailgylchu.  Dywedodd yr 
Arweinydd ei fod wedi gofyn i’r Gweinidog beth oedd ei gynlluniau o ran dwyn perswâd 
ar fanwerthwyr i leihau faint o ddeunydd pacio plastig a ddefnyddir ganddynt a 
chadarnhaodd wrth y Cyngor y byddai'n gofyn am y cadarnhad hwnnw gan y Gweinidog 
yn ysgrifenedig.            

PENDERFYNWYD:   Y byddai’r Hysbysiad o Gynnig gwreiddiol yn cael ei dynnu’n ôl ac 
yn hytrach y byddai’r mater yn cael ei anfon gerbron y Pwyllgor 
Craffu a Throsolwg perthnasol fel y gall y Cyngor nodi beth mae’n 
ei wneud a nodi’r ble mae’r bylchau er mwyn ei alluogi i nodi'r 
camau nesaf.

168. EITEMAU BRYS

Cytunodd y maer i’r eitem ganlynol gael ei hystyried fel eitem frys yn unol â rhan 4 
(paragraff 4) o reolau gweithdrefnol y cyngor i alluogi’r gwaith o gymeradwyo 
benthyciadau darbodus a chynnwys y cynlluniau yn  y rhaglen gyfalaf ar unwaith ac er 
mwyn bwrw ymlaen â'r gwaith o gyflawni’r rhaglen datblygu hybiau menter heb oedi.

Page 17



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

16

169. RHAGLEN DATBLYGU CANOLFANNAU MENTER

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau  adroddiad ar y diweddaraf o ran 
datblygiad y Rhaglen Datblygu Hybiau Menter gan ofyn am gytundeb i gael benthyciad 
darbodus o £878,957 ar gyfer cyflawni dau gynllun gwahanol yn y rhaglen gyffredinol ym 
Mharc Gwyddoniaeth Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr sef £544,182 a Brocastle sef £334,775 a 
gofynnodd am gymeradwyaeth ar gyfer y cynlluniau dan sylw i'w cynnwys yn y rhaglen 
gyfalaf.    Dyma’r rhaglen datblygu eiddo busnes unigol mwyaf erioed i’w chyflawni gan y 
Cyngor.   

Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Cymunedau bod cymeradwyaeth wedi’i roi o’r 
blaen gan y Cabinet ar gyfer cais gan Fwrdeistref Sirol Cyngor Blaenau Gwent o ran 
cais i WEFO am Raglen Datblygu Hybiau Menter.  Ers hynny, mae WEFO wedi dweud 
wrth bob un o’r partneriaid y gallant fwrw ymlaen â’u projectau ar wahân.  

Dywedodd nad oedd unrhyw unedau dechrau busnes ar gael gan y Cyngor na Business 
in Focus ac mae rhestrau aros gan y ddau yn yr un modd a ddigwyddodd pan agoroedd 
yr  Unedau Dechrau Busnes ym Mhen-coed.  Dywedodd mai nod y Rhaglen Datblygu 
Hybiau Menter oedd cefnogi’r gwaith o adnewyddu a chreu eiddo busnes ym Mhentref 
Gwyddoniaeth Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, Ystâd Ddiwydiannol Village Farm a Brocastle.  

Gofynnodd aelod o’r Cyngor am fanylion rhifau’r busnesau sydd ar y rhestr aros ar gyfer 
unedau dechrau busnes, eu rhagolygon llif arian ac am fanylion o’r cyfraddau 
deiliadaeth.  Dywedodd aelod o’r Cyngor hefyd bod nifer o unedau nas y gellir eu gosod 
a bod angen dysgu gwersi er mwyn sicrhau fod gan yr unedau hyblygrwydd.  Dywedodd 
y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Cymunedau y byddai’n rhoi’r manylion y gofynnwyd 
amdanynt mewn perthynas â'r unedau dechrau busnes i'r aelodau.  

PENDERFYNWYD: Y byddai’r Cyngor yn cymeradwyo benthyca darbodus o £878,957 
gyda'r gwerthoedd benthyca neilltuedig o Ddatblygu Hyb Cymunedol (Parc 
Gwyddoniaeth Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ac Ystâd Ddiwydiannol Village Farm) (£544,182) a 
Datblygu Hyb Menter (Brocastle) (£334,775) a fydd, yn amodol ar gymeradwyaeth y 
Swyddog Adran 151, Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a 
Phartneriaeth, a WEFO yn galluogi’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau i fwrw 
ymlaen â’r gwaith o gyflawni’r Rhaglen Datblygu Hybiau Cymunedol.  Hefyd 
cymeradwyodd y Cyngor gynnwys y cynlluniau hyn yn y rhaglen gyfalaf i'w cyflawni 
unwaith y caiff yr holl ffynonellau nawdd eu cymeradwyo.           

170. GWAHARDD Y CYHOEDD

PENDERFYNWYD:           Dan Adran 100A(4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y’i 
diwygiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at 
Wybodaeth) (Amrywiad) (Cymru) 2007, fod y cyhoedd yn cael 
ei wahardd o’r cyfarfod tra bod yr eitemau busnes hyn yn cael 
eu hystyried gan eu bod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth wedi'i 
heithrio fel y diffinnir ym Mharagraff 12 o Ran 4 a/neu 
Baragraff 21 o Ran 5 o Atodlen 12A y Ddeddf hon.

 
Yn dilyn y  prawf o fuddiant y cyhoedd, penderfynwyd, yn unol 
â’r Ddeddf y cyfeirir ati uchod, ystyried yr eitemau canlynol 
mewn preifat, gyda’r cyhoedd wedi’i wahardd o’r cyfarfod, gan 
y ystyriwyd, ym mhob amgylchedd sy’n ymwneud â’r eitemau, 
y byddai buddiant y cyhoedd mewn cynnal yr eithriad yn drech 
na fuddiant y cyhoedd mewn datgelu’r wybodaeth, gan y 

Page 18



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 25 EBRILL 2018

17

byddai’r wybodaeth yn niweidiol i’r ymgeiswyr wedi sôn 
amdanynt.   

171. CYMERADWYAETH COFNODION WEDI’U EITHRIO

172. ADRODDIAD Y SWYDDOG MONITRO

173. CYHOEDDIAD GAN Y SWYDDOG MONITRO

 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 16:50

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

1

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - 
SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB AR 
DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018 AM 15:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd PA Davies – Cadeirydd

S Aspey SE Baldwin TH Beedle JPD Blundell
NA Burnett MC Clarke N Clarke RJ Collins
HJ David P Davies SK Dendy DK Edwards
J Gebbie T Giffard RM Granville CA Green
DG Howells A Hussain RM James B Jones
M Jones MJ Kearn DRW Lewis JE Lewis
JR McCarthy DG Owen D Patel RL Penhale-

Thomas
AA Pucella KL Rowlands RMI Shaw CE Smith
SG Smith JC Spanswick RME Stirman G Thomas
JH Tildesley MBE E Venables SR Vidal MC Voisey
LM Walters KJ Watts CA Webster DBF White
PJ White A Williams AJ Williams HM Williams
JE Williams RE Young

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

JC Radcliffe, B Sedgebeer a/ac T Thomas

Swyddogion:

Susan Cooper Cyfarwyddwr CorfO blaidaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
Lles

Mark Galvin Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr CorfO blaidaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 

(Dros Dro)
Andrew Jolley Cyfarwyddwr CorfO blaidaethol Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a 

Phartneriaethiol
Gary Jones Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
Mark Shephard Cyfarwyddwr CorfO blaidaethol - Cymunedau
Kelly Watson Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd

174. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Dim.

175. DERBYN UNRHYW GYHOEDDIADAU GAN Y MAER, Y CYNGHORYDD  P. A.  
DAVIES

Cyhoeddodd y Maer ei bod wedi mynychu'r Mosg lle roedd hi/ei chyfaill wedi cyfarfod â'r 
Imam a'r Henuriaid a soniodd wrthynt am eu crefydd a beth roedd yn ei olygu iddyn nhw. 
Cawsant daith o amgylch y Mosg a the a bisgedi gyda thrafodaeth dda i ddilyn.  
Fe wnaethon nhw hefyd fynd i noson ‘Teyrnged i Tom Jones' a fynychwyd gan 79 o bobl 
a chodwyd £1189 a £202 o'r raffl.

Cynhaliwyd Gala’r Maer yng Ngwesty Heronston ac roedd hi'n dymuno diolch i'r 
Cynghorwyr, ffrindiau a theulu a fynychodd, gan ei bod yn noson wych.

Page 21



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

2

Roedd hi hefyd wedi mynychu digwyddiad yng Ngorsaf Dân Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr i nodi 
nifer y Dynion Tân oedd wedi colli eu bywydau ers 1902. Gosodwyd carreg a phlannwyd 
helygen i gofio amdanyn nhw.  Cynhaliwyd gwasanaeth a chafwyd nifer o areithiau.  Yn 
dilyn hyn cyflwynodd darian gydag arfbais Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr arni i’r 
Pennaeth Tân.

Ymwelodd y Maer â Stadiwm Dinas Caerdydd hefyd a chyflwynodd Dystysgrifau i 
Gadetiaid y Fyddin. Roedd y Cadetiaid i gyd o Academi Filwrol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn 
bresennol ac fe wnaethant roi arddangosfa o orymdeithio, Ymarfer Dril  ac Ymarfer 
CorfO blaidol.

Yn ddiweddar, roedd hi a'i Chyfaill wedi mynychu Dawns Maer Tref Maesteg. Dymunodd 
yn dda i Faer /Maeres Cyngor Tref Maesteg ar gyfer y dyfodol nawr bod eu rôl wedi dod 
i ben. Roedd y Maer hefyd wedi mynychu Dawns y Maer yng Nghyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Rhondda Cynon Taf. Ychwanegodd fod Margaret Tegg yn ysbrydoliaeth, ac wedi ei 
chefnogi trwy gydol ei thymor fel maer. Roedd hi'n 82 mlwydd oed ar ddiwrnod y ddawns 
a derbyniodd gymeradwyaeth wresog gyda’r gynulleidfa ar eu traed yn diolch am ei 
gwasanaeth.

Roedd y Maer hefyd wedi mynychu Dydd Sul Dinesig y Maer Tref Pencoed, ac roedd 
hwn hefyd wedi bod yn ddigwyddiad arbennig. 

Yn anffodus, roedd y Maer wedi mynychu angladd y cyn Faer, Colin Teesdale, yn 
ddiweddar, a fu'n Faer mawr ei barch ar y Fwrdeistrefol Sirol a hefyd yn Faer Tref 
Maesteg.

Cadarnhaodd y Maer hefyd y byddai hi'n mynychu angladd Gareth Davies y dydd Iau 
canlynol. Yn aelod o dîm HART, roedd yn Barafeddyg mawr ei barch a oedd bob amser 
yn barod i deithio’r filltir ychwanegol. Bu'n gydweithiwr ac yn gyfaill am dros 30 mlynedd, 
a byddai pawb yn cael ei golli, a theimlai fod y Gymuned wedi colli gweithiwr proffesiynol 
ymroddedig.

Roedd y Maer / ei Chyfaill wedi mynychu Diwrnod Golff yng Nghlwb Golff Grove gyda 9 
o Dimau yn cymryd rhan. Diolchodd i bawb a gymerodd ran yn y digwyddiad hwn.

Roedd y Maer hefyd wedi mynychu Dawns Flynyddol y Llewod lle cyflwynwyd siec am 
£300 iddi hi a'i Chyfaill ar gyfer ei helusennau.

Cyhoeddodd y Maer ei bod yn mynd i gymryd rhan yn y 'Daith Strôc' ar 20  Mai yng 
Nghaeau Newbridge. Pe bai unrhyw un yn dymuno ei noddi, roedd amser o hyd i wneud 
hynny, ychwanegodd.

Yn olaf, cadarnhaodd fod ei blwyddyn yn ei swydd fel Maer wedi mynd yn eithriadol o 
dda, a diolchodd i'r Aelodau a'r Swyddogion am eu cefnogaeth barhaus yn ystod y 12 
mis diwethaf.

176. ETHOL Y MAER I’W ARWISGO YN Y SEREMONI DDINESIG AGORIADOL AR 23 MAI 
2018 A'R MAER (A ETHOLWYD) I GYHOEDDI ENW EI GYMAR/ HEBRYNGWR

Gwnaed cynnig a eiliwyd yn briodol ac a gefnogwyd yn unfrydol, y dylid penodi'r 
Cynghorydd J.R. McCarthy yn Faer ar gyfer 2018/19.

PENDERFYNWYD:     Ethol y Cynghorydd J. R. McCarthy fel Maer am y flwyddyn i 
ddod.

Page 22



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

3

Cyhoeddodd y Cynghorydd McCarthy mai ei Gymar am y flwyddyn i ddod fyddai ei wraig 
Mrs Judy McCarthy.

177. PENODI'R DIRPRWY FAER I'W ARWISGO YN Y SEREMONI DDINESIG AGORIADOL 
AR 23 MAI 2018 A'R DIRPRWY FAER (A ETHOLWYD) I GYHOEDDI ENW EI 
GYMAR/HEBRYNGWR

Gwnaed cynnig a eiliwyd yn briodol, y dylid penodi'r Cynghorydd E. E. Baldwin yn 
Ddirprwy Faer ar gyfer 2018/19.

Cynigiodd Aelod y dylid cynnal pleidlais wedi'i chofnodi ar benodi'r Dirprwy Faer, ac 
eiliwyd hyn yn briodol.

Felly, cynhaliwyd pleidlais electronig er mwyn sefydlu a ddylid cymryd pleidlais wedi'i 
chofnodi ynghylch y penodiad hwn, ac roedd y canlyniad fel a ganlyn: -

Dros                                 Yn erbyn                              Ymatal

50                                      1                                       0

Gan fod hyn wedi cael ei gytuno, cymerwyd pleidlais wedi’i chofnodi am benodi'r 
Cynghorydd Baldwin fel Dirprwy Faer am y cyfnod uchod, ac roedd y canlyniad fel a 
ganlyn: -

Ethol Dirprwy Maer (Penderfynwyd)
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey Ymatal
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Beedle Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell O blaid
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke Ymatal
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke Ymatal
Cynghorydd Richard Collins O blaid
Cynghorydd Huw David O blaid
Cynghorydd Paul Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Pam Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy Ymatal
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard Ymatal
Cynghorydd Richard Granville O blaid
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green Ymatal
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells O blaid
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain Ymatal
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones Ymatal
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn O blaid
Cynghorydd David Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd John McCarthy O blaid
Cynghorydd David Owen Ymatal
Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel O blaid
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas Ymatal

Page 23



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

4

Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella Ymatal
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands Ymatal
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw O blaid
Cynghorydd Charles Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd John Spanswick O blaid
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman O blaid
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE O blaid
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal Ymatal
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey Ymatal
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters Ymatal
Cynghorydd Ken Watts O blaid
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster Ymatal
Cynghorydd David White O blaid
Cynghorydd Philip White O blaid
Cynghorydd Alex Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Amanda Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Julia Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Young O blaid
Cariwyd

Dros                                 Yn erbyn                              Ymatal

31                                     1                                          19

PENDERFYNWYD:       Ethol y Cynghorydd S. E. Baldwin yn Ddirprwy Faer ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn 2018/19.

Cadarnhaodd y Cynghorydd Baldwin, o ganlyniad i lefel ymrwymiadau gwaith ei bartner, 
na fyddai'n cael Cymar am y flwyddyn i ddod.

178. DERBYN UNRHYW GYHOEDDIADAU GAN Y MAER OEDD NEWYDD EI ETHOL

Cadarnhaodd y Cynghorydd McCarthy ei fod yn teimlo ei bod yn anrhydedd mawr iddo 
gael ei ethol yn Faer a gwasanaethu Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr mewn 
swydd mor uchel ei pharch. Ychwanegodd fod ei dymor fel Dirprwy Faer wedi bod yn 
brysur iawn ond yn werth chweil, ac yn ystod y cyfnod hwn roedd wedi mynychu nifer 
sylweddol o ddigwyddiadau fel arweinydd allweddol dros yr Awdurdod. Ychwanegodd ei 
fod yn edrych ymlaen at gyfnod yr un mor brysur yn ystod y flwyddyn i ddod.  

179. Y MAER I GYHOEDDI'R MAER IEUENCTID A'R DIRPRWY FAER IEUENCTID

Cadarnhaodd y Maer y byddai enwau’r Maer Ieuenctid a'r Dirprwy Faer Ieuenctid yn cael 
eu cyhoeddi rywbryd yn y dyfodol agos.

180. ETHOL ARWEINYDD CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR

Gwnaed cynnig a eiliwyd yn briodol, y dylai'r Cynghorydd Huw David gael ei ethol yn 
Arweinydd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar gyfer 2018/19.

PENDERFYNWYD:          Ethol y Cynghorydd Huw David yn Arweinydd Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr am y flwyddyn i ddod.

Page 24



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

5

181. CYTUNO AR NIFER YR AELODAU I'W PENODI I'R CABINET

PENDERFYNWYD:         Bod y Cabinet ar gyfer 2018/19 yn cynnwys yr Arweinydd, y 
Dirprwy Arweinydd a phedwar Aelod Cabinet yn cefnogi 
portffolios.

182. DERBYN ADRODDIAD YR ARWEINYDD

Yn gyntaf, estynnodd yr Arweinydd ddiolch arbennig iawn i'r Maer, y Cynghorydd Pam 
Davies am gynrychioli'r awdurdod o fewn ein Bwrdeistref Sirol a chynrychioli Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr ar draws Cymru mor dda, gyda hyder a rhwyddineb, yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ddiwethaf hon. Estynnodd ei longyfarchiadau hefyd i'r Maer newydd, y Cynghorydd John 
McCarthy a'i gymar, a hefyd i Ddirprwy Faer newydd CBSP, sef y Cynghorydd Stuart 
Baldwin. 

Manteisiodd ar y cyfle i ddiolch i staff CBSC, gan mai dim ond oherwydd eu gwaith caled 
a'u gwasanaeth yr oedd y Cyngor yn parhau i ddarparu'r gwasanaethau hanfodol a 
wnâi, ac ymddengys bob blwyddyn y gofynnir mwy oddi wrth y staff, er bod llai a llai 
ohonynt. Roedd un swyddog yn arbennig y dymunai ddiolch iddo heddiw, sef Andrew 
Jolley a oedd yn ei gyfarfod olaf fel Cyfarwyddwr CorfO blaidaethol Gwasanaethau 
Gweithredol a  Phartneriaeth a Swyddog Monitro. Fel enghraifft o sut yr ydym yn parhau 
i ofyn mwy gan swyddogion, rhoddwyd cyfrifoldeb iddo ef dros Dai, TGCh, Adnoddau 
Dynol a Gwasanaethau Cwsmer. Roedd bob amser wedi ystyried bod Mr Jolley yn 
gadarn ond yn deg, ac roedd wedi bod yn ffyddlon iawn i'w staff, ac wedi credu yn yr 
athroniaeth o "dyfu eich pobl eich hun” ac wedi gwireddu hynny. Cyfrifoldeb allweddol y 
Swyddog Monitro yw hyrwyddo a chynnal llywodraeth dryloyw ac agored a safonau 
uchel o uniondeb, ac mae adroddiadau olynol gan Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru wedi 
dangos bod y safonau hynny ar waith o fewn CBSP. Diolchodd iddo am ei wasanaeth, a 
gobeithiai y byddai'n mwynhau ei ymddeoliad, gyda'i wyrion, ac yn trwsio hen geir.

Diolchodd Mr. Jolley i'r Arweinydd a'r holl Aelodau am y gefnogaeth a gafodd ers iddo 
fod yn gweithio i CBSP. Yn yr un modd diolchodd i'r Swyddogion am eu cefnogaeth 
hefyd. Roedd hyn, ychwanegodd, wedi gwneud ei swydd yn haws i'w chyflawni. 
Cadarnhaodd i ddiweddu ei fod wedi mwynhau ei amser yn fawr yn yr Awdurdod ers 
iddo ddechrau gweithio yma ryw 14 o flynyddoedd yn ôl.

Cadarnhaodd yr Arweinydd ei bod yn anrhydedd ac yn fraint iddo gael ei ailethol unwaith 
eto gan gyd-Aelodau fel Arweinydd, a diolchodd iddynt am eu cefnogaeth barhaus.

Ychwanegodd na allai wasanaethu fel Arweinydd heb gefnogaeth ei gydweithwyr yn y 
Cabinet.

Roedd yn hyderus y byddai'r tîm hwn yn parhau â'r gwaith da sydd eisoes wedi digwydd, 
ac fel bob amser, roedd yn ddiolchgar am eu hymrwymiad tuag at eu gwaith. 

Nid oedd gwasanaethu mewn unrhyw rôl fel Aelod etholedig yn waith hawdd, ac fel y 
gwyddom oll, mae'r blynyddoedd diwethaf wedi bod ymhlith y rhai anoddaf, os nad y rhai 
mwyaf anodd y mae'r Cyngor erioed wedi gorfod eu hwynebu.

Ond beth bynnag fo'r heriau sydd wedi codi, mae'r Awdurdod wedi wynebu pob un 
ohonynt, ac yn parhau i wneud hynny gyda phenderfyniad a phwrpas unedig ar draws y 
Siambr, i gefnogi ein cymunedau lleol hyd eithaf ein gallu. 

Page 25



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

6

Mae llymder cenedlaethol diddiwedd yn parhau, ac fel Cyngor, rydym yn parhau i 
ymdrechu i ddarparu gwasanaethau hanfodol yn erbyn cefndir o adnoddau sy'n lleihau’n 
barhaus.  

Gyda dros £30 miliwn i’w gynilo dros y 4 blynedd nesaf, bydd llawer o'r penderfyniadau y 
mae'n rhaid i ni eu gwneud yn amhoblogaidd, ond fe'u gwneir gyda ffocws cadarn ar 
realiti ein hamgylchedd newidiol, ac ar warchod ein gwasanaethau mwyaf hanfodol a’n 
dinasyddion mwyaf agored i niwed.

Pan ystyrid lle'r oeddem pan ddechreuon ni ar hyd y daith hon ac ystyried lle mae'r 
awdurdod bellach, mae'r Cyngor wedi dangos dro ar ôl tro ei fod yn gallu ymateb ac 
wynebu pa bynnag heriau newydd y mae'n rhaid eu hwynebu.

Yn hytrach na methu, roedd CBSP wedi datblygu ffyrdd newydd o ddiwallu anghenion ei 
gymunedau lleol, ac yr oedd yn falch o'r hyn a gyflawnodd gyda'i gilydd fel 'Un Cyngor.' 

Mae'r Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig, y Cynllun CorfO blaidaethol a Rhaglen 
Newid Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi eu sefydlu i'n tywys ni a sicrhau ein bod yn gallu addasu 
a diwallu anghenion lleol a hefyd sicrhau arbedion gwerth miliynau o bunnoedd sydd eu 
hangen i gyflawni cyllideb gytbwys.

Yn y broses hon, roedd CBSP yn sefydliad a oedd yn dal ati i ganfod ffyrdd newydd ac 
arloesol o weithio gyda phartneriaid a chymunedau eraill, yn uniongyrchol ac ochr yn 
ochr â hwy.

Mae ein hagenda trawsnewid eisoes wedi cyflawni arbedion mawr trwy adleoli staff, cau 
swyddfeydd, rhesymoli ystadau, rhannu gwasanaethau gyda'r heddlu, prosiectau 
cydweithredol, ail-negodi contractau a gweithio gyda sefydliadau partner llwyddiannus 
megis HALO ac Awen.

Mae'r bartneriaeth Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio gyda Chaerdydd a Bro Morgannwg 
bellach wedi'i hen sefydlu; Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd yw’r cynllun 
cydweithredu mwyaf ymhlith awdurdodau lleol erioed yng Nghymru, ac mae ein 
gwasanaeth gwastraff ac ailgylchu yn chwalu targedau a osodwyd gan Lywodraeth 
Cymru lai na blwyddyn ar ôl ei lansio.

Mae'r cyntaf o'r targedau hynny yn dechrau yn 2019 gyda Chynghorau lleol yn disgwyl 
ailgylchu 64 y cant o'r holl wastraff. O'r mis diwethaf, roedd ein cyfradd ailgylchu ein 
hunain yn 68.5 y cant, cynnydd o fwy na deg y cant o'i gymharu ag Ebrill 2017. 

Roedd hyn yn newyddion da, ac edrychir ymlaen at weld y gwasanaeth yn gwella hyd yn 
oed yn fwy yn ystod ei ail flwyddyn o weithredu. Diolchodd i'r trigolion am eu hamynedd 
yn enwedig yn ystod y dyddiau cynnar, am eu cefnogaeth a’u brwdfrydedd dros 
ailgylchu sydd wedi gwneud y cynnydd hwn yn llwyddiant. 

Roedd yr Arweinydd hefyd yn dymuno i GBSP allu cyflawni safon uchel gyson ar draws 
ei holl brosiectau partneriaeth, y rheiny a oedd eisoes wedi'u sefydlu, a'r rheiny a oedd 
yn dal i gael eu datblygu.

Ond rydym hefyd wedi gweld tystiolaeth o safonau uchel ar draws nifer o feysydd. Er 
enghraifft, cynhaliodd Arolygiaeth Gofal a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol Cymru arolygiad 
swyddogol a chadarnhaodd fod yr Awdurdod hwn yn cymryd camau prydlon i gadw plant 
yn ddiogel rhag niwed.

Mae diogelu plant yn fusnes i bawb felly roedd agor y MASH, sef canolfan diogelu aml-
asiantaeth leol yn Ravens Court y mis diwethaf gyda'r heddlu a phartneriaid allweddol yn 

Page 26



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

7

gam mawr ymlaen.  Dim ond un o ystod o fentrau oedd hwn i gadw plant yn ddiogel a 
chynorthwyo teuluoedd.  

Bydd datblygu gwasanaeth gofal maeth i rieni a phlant newydd yn fewnol eleni gyda 
phedwar gofalwr maeth newydd wedi'u recriwtio eisoes ac yn gweithio gyda mamau a'u 
babanod hefyd yn gwneud gwahaniaeth go iawn.  Roedd yn cynnig dewis arall i 
ddarpariaeth ddrud y tu allan i'r Sir ac yn Allanol.

Yn yr un modd, yr wythnos hon, lansiodd CBSP ei ymgyrch ar gyfer gofalwyr maeth 
arbenigol a all gynnig gofal seibiant brys a dewis amgen i ofal preswyl.  Roedd yr 
aelodau wedi rhoi eu cefnogaeth lawn i'r gwasanaeth newydd hwn ac maent yn 
buddsoddi mewn ail-fodelu ein dau gartref plant.

Mae'r ffigurau perfO blaidmiad cenedlaethol yn dangos, am y bedwaredd flwyddyn yn 
olynol, bod y Fwrdeistref Sirol wedi cael ei graddio'n gyntaf yng Nghymru am sicrhau na 
fydd unrhyw blant sy'n derbyn gofal yn gadael ysgol, hyfO blaidddiant na chynlluniau 
dysgu yn y gwaith heb ennill cymwysterau cymeradwy.

Roedd CBSP ymhlith y pum ardal uchaf yng Nghymru ar gyfer nifer y bobl leol sy'n 
ymweld â llyfrgelloedd neu’n gwneud ymarfer corff yn ein canolfannau chwaraeon a 
hamdden, a gallwn edrych ymlaen at ddatblygiadau cyffrous iawn yn y dyfodol a fydd yn 
manteisio ar y llwyddiant hwn ymhellach.

Parhaodd ein Rhaglen Moderneiddio Ysgolion yr 2lain ganrif flaenllaw i fynd ymlaen o 
nerth i nerth gydag agor ysgolion cynradd newydd ym Metws a Brynmenyn, a chyda 
gwaith ar y gweill ar gyfleusterau newydd sbon ym Mhencoed, roedd yr Adran Addysg 
yn barod i ddatgelu ysgol gynradd newydd yng Nghwm Garw y flwyddyn nesaf.  Cam A 
yn unig oedd hwn. Roedd yr Aelodau hefyd wedi ymrwymo i Gam B yn ystod y misoedd 
diwethaf ychwanegodd.

Mae ymdrechion i greu cymuned newydd o breswylwyr sy'n byw yng nghanol tref Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr wedi gweld datblygiad newydd Cwrt Ty Afon yn cael ei ddatblygu yn y 
Rhiw ynghyd â maes parcio newydd, ac mae adfywio Porthcawl wedi cymryd cam 
hanesyddol enfawr ymlaen gyda datgloi safle datblygu Salt Lake o'r diwedd.

Roedd hwn yn ddatblygiad hynod bwysig yn ein cynlluniau adfywio, a byddwn yn 
gweithio'n agos gydag Aelodau lleol, y Cyngor Tref, busnesau a phreswylwyr Porthcawl i 
wireddu'r cynlluniau. 

Roedd hyn yn ychwanegiad at ddatblygiadau diweddar fel y prosiect amddiffyn arO 
blaiddirol gwerth miliynau o bunnoedd a fydd yn diogelu cartrefi a busnesau ar lan y 
môr, ac Adeilad Jennings a adnewyddwyd yn ddiweddar ac sydd wedi ennill gwobrau.

Roedd cynlluniau i drawsnewid Neuadd y Dref Maesteg hefyd wedi symud ymlaen, ac 
rydym yn disgwyl canlyniad ein cais diweddaraf am arian a fydd yn gweld yr hen adeilad 
hanesyddol yn cynnig cyfleusterau cymunedol newydd i bobl leol.

Roedd CBSP yn arloesi hefyd gyda dull newydd, cyfeillgar i'r amgylchedd o wresogi 
cartrefi a grëwyd trwy brosiect Dŵr Pwll Glo Caerau.

Hwn fyddai'r cyntaf o gynlluniau ar raddfa fawr yn y DU, ac ar thema debyg, roeddem 
hefyd yn ystyried y posibilrwydd o rannu gwres dros ben a gynhyrchir yng Nghanolfan 
Bywyd Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a sicrhau ei fod ar gael i gartrefi lleol trwy Rwydwaith Gwres 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, y prosiect cyntaf o’i fath yng Nghymru.

Page 27



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

8

Datblygiad newydd arall yr oedd yr Arweinydd yn arbennig o gyffrous yn ei gylch oedd 
Rhaglen y Ganolfan Menter newydd yr oedd y Cyngor wedi ei chefnogi yn ddiweddar.

Roedd hyn yn mynd i gefnogi'r economi leol trwy sefydlu unedau busnes newydd sbon 
ym Mharc Pentref Brocastle, Stad Ddiwydiannol Fferm Pentref y Pîl yn y Pîl, a Pharc 
Gwyddoniaeth Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Roedd ein partneriaeth â Linc Cymru yn darparu cyfleusterau Gofal Ychwanegol newydd 
ar gyfer y Fwrdeistref Sirol gyda Thŷ Llwyn Derw ym Maesteg a Lôn Derw yn Ynysawdre 
wedi’u henwi yn ddiweddar.

Rhwng y rhain, byddent yn cynnig 40 o fflatiau Gofal Ychwanegol lle bydd pobl hŷn 
bregus yn gallu byw'n annibynnol ac yn cael mynediad at gefnogaeth 24 awr y dydd 
mewn amgylchedd diogel.

Fel rhan o'r cynllun, darperir pedwar ar bymtheg o dai fO blaidddiadwy i bobl hŷn hefyd.

Bu llawer o ddatblygiadau newydd eraill dros y flwyddyn ddiwethaf y gallai Aelodau fod 
yn falch ohonynt. Roedd hyn yn cynnwys y cynnig i roi cymorth sylfaenol i bobl ifanc sy'n 
gadael ein gofal trwy eu heithrio rhag gorfod talu treth y Cyngor, ein cefnogaeth i rieni a 
theuluoedd sy'n galaru trwy ddileu ffioedd claddu plant, lansio ein gwasanaeth Fy 
Nghyfrif newydd sy'n ei gwneud yn haws i bobl wneud busnes gyda'r Cyngor, a mwy, 
ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd. 

Roedd yn sicr fod y flwyddyn i ddod yn mynd i ddod â datblygiadau newydd pellach a 
fyddai o fudd i genedlaethau a chymunedau'r dyfodol. 

Er bod Aelodau o wahanol grwpiau neu bleidiau, teimlai eu bod i gyd yn unedig o ran 
pwrpas i weithio er lles pob cymuned leol.

Roedd am feithrin ac annog hyn, a gweld y Cyngor yn adeiladu ar ei lwyddiannau niferus 
a goresgyn pa bynnag anawsterau a oedd eto i'w hwynebu.

Roedd yr Arweinydd hefyd eisiau datblygu adnoddau'r Cyngor a sgiliau ei staff 
ymhellach, a pharhau i ddod o hyd i ffyrdd newydd o ddarparu gwasanaethau hanfodol 
wrth i ni edrych i'r dyfodol.

Gyda chefnogaeth barhaus Aelodau a Swyddogion, credai y gellid cyflawni hyn, ac y 
gallwn unwaith eto sicrhau bod Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn barod 
ac yn abl ar gyfer yr hyn sydd o'n blaenau.

 Yn olaf, ar ran yr Aelodau, estynnodd ei ddymuniadau gorau i’r Cynghorydd Gary 
Thomas a'i ddyweddi, Kay, a fydd yn priodi ddydd Sadwrn nesaf. Gobeithiai y byddent 
yn mwynhau bywyd hapus iawn gyda'i gilydd yn y dyfodol.

183. YR ARWEINYDD I BENODI AELODAU'R CABINET

PENDERFYNWYD:          Penododd yr Arweinydd yr Aelodau canlynol i'r Cabinet: -

                                         Y Cynghorydd HW Williams
                                         Y Cynghorydd D Patel
                                         Y Cynghorydd PJ White
                                         Y Cynghorydd CE Smith
                                         Y Cynghorydd RE Young

Page 28



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

9

184. GALLAI’R ARWEINYDD GYHOEDDI DIRPRWY ARWEINYDD CYNGOR 
BWRDEISTREF SIROL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR O BLITH YR AELODAU HYNNY A 
BENODWYD I'R CABINET A GALLAI GYHOEDDI PENODI AELODAU'R CABINET I 
BORTFFOLIOS.

PENDERFYNWYD:         Cyhoeddodd yr Arweinydd mai'r Dirprwy Arweinydd ar gyfer 
2018/19 fyddai’r Cynghorydd H.M. Williams, ac y byddai'n 
gyfrifol am Adnoddau.

                                         Ychwanegodd y byddai'r Aelodau Cabinet canlynol yn gyfrifol 
am y portffolios dan sylw: -

                          Y Cynghorydd D Patel - Lles a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol
                          Y Cynghorydd P J White - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth 

Cynnar
                          Y Cynghorydd R E Young - Cymunedau
                          Y Cynghorydd CE Smith - Addysg ac Adfywio

185. RHAGLEN ARFAETHEDIG O GYFARFODYDD CYFFREDIN Y CYNGOR A 
PHWYLLGORAU'R CYNGOR

Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Monitro adroddiad i gynnig rhaglen o gyfarfodydd cyffredin y 
Cyngor a Phwyllgorau'r Cyngor ar gyfer y flwyddyn drefol Mai 2018 - Ebrill 2019 i'w 
chymeradwyo (Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad), ac i nodi'r rhaglen o gyfarfodydd ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn drefol Mai 2019 - Ebrill 2020 (Atodiad 2 i'r adroddiad).

Roedd y rhain yn cynnwys cyfarfodydd y Cyngor, y Cabinet, Pwyllgorau’r Cabinet a 
Chyd-bwyllgor y Cabinet (Amlosgfa Llangrallwg).

Cyhoeddodd y Swyddog Monitro fod un newid i'r rhaglen o gyfarfodydd ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn 2018-2019 uchod, sef bod cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Trosolwg ar Bynciau a Chraffu 1 
dyddiedig 4 Gorffennaf 2018 i gael ei ddileu o'r amserlen, a bod dyddiad newydd yn 
mynd i gael ei drefnu ar gyfer y cyfarfod hwn, maes o law.

PENDERFYNWYD:                Bod y Cyngor yn: -

(1)      Cymeradwyo’r rhaglen arfaethedig o gyfarfodydd y Cyngor ar gyfer 
2018/19 fel y nodir ym mharagraff 4.1 yr adroddiad, yn amodol ar y newid 
uchod. 

(2)      Cymeradwyo’r rhaglen arfaethedig o gyfarfodydd Pwyllgorau'r Cyngor a 
nodir yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad hwn.

(3)      Nodi rhaglen dros dro cyfarfodydd y Cyngor a'r Pwyllgorau ar gyfer 
2019/20, a nodir yn Atodiad 2 yr adroddiad hwn.

(4)      Nodi dyddiadau Cabinet, Pwyllgorau'r Cabinet a Chyd-bwyllgor y Cabinet 
sydd hefyd wedi'u nodi yn Atodiadau 1 a 2 i'r adroddiad hwn, er 
gwybodaeth.

186. PENODIADAU I BWYLLGORAU'R CYNGOR A CHYRFF ERAILL Y CYNGOR YN 
UNOL Â DARPARIAETHAU DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972 A DEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000

Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Monitro adroddiad, a oedd yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth ar gyfer 
penodi Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu a pha bynnag Bwyllgorau, Is-bwyllgorau, Panelau 

Page 29



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

10

a chyrff eraill y mae'r Cyngor yn ystyried eu bod yn briodol, i ymdrin â materion nad 
ydynt wedi'u neilltuo i'r Cyngor llawn nac ychwaith. swyddogaethau gweithredol.

Mae Rhan 3 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor o dan y teitl Cyfrifoldeb am Swyddogaethau'r 
Cyngor, yn nodi Pwyllgorau, Is-bwyllgorau, Paneli a chyrff eraill y Cyngor sydd ar waith 
ar hyn o bryd.  Rhoddir manylion isod am rai Pwyllgorau, y mae rhai ohonynt yn cael eu 
llywodraethu gan ddarpariaethau Mesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2011, o ran eu 
cyfansoddiad a/neu benodi Cadeiryddion.  

Gwnaeth y Mesur nifer o ofynion mewn perthynas ag aelodaeth y Pwyllgor Archwilio, 
gan gynnwys Aelodaeth Leyg a phenodi’r Cadeirydd. Mae'n ofynnol i'r Cadeirydd dan y 
Mesur gael ei benodi gan y Pwyllgor Archwilio yn ei gyfarfod cyntaf sydd wedi'i drefnu ar 
gyfer 28 Mehefin 2018. O ran Aelodaeth Leyg y Pwyllgor hwn, cafodd yr Aelod Lleyg ar 
hyn o bryd Ms J Williams ei hailbenodi am dymor pellach yng Nghyfarfod Blynyddol y 
Cyngor ar 17  Mai 2017 ac yn unol â'r Mesur, mae ganddi hawl i wneud uchafswm o 
ddau dymor ar y Pwyllgor yn y rôl hon.  

 Mae'r Pwyllgor Safonau yn cynnwys wyth aelod, sef: -

Pedwar Aelod Annibynnol (Dim swyddi gwag ar hyn o bryd);
Dau Aelod o Gyngor y Fwrdeistref Sirol (Dwy swydd wag);
Dau Aelod Cynghorau Tref /Cymuned (Un swydd wag);

Ar hyn o bryd mae swydd wag ar gyfer Cynghorydd Tref a Chymuned ar y Pwyllgor 
Safonau, ac felly argymhellwyd y dylid rhoi pŵer dirprwyedig i'r Swyddog Monitro 
ymgymryd ag unrhyw brosesau angenrheidiol i hwyluso a phenodi cynrychiolydd Cyngor 
Tref a Chymuned i'r Pwyllgor Safonau.

Ar hyn o bryd mae gan y Cyngor Bwyllgor Penodi ar waith er mwyn cyfweld a phenodi 
staff lefel JNC, sy'n cynnwys swyddi dynodedig megis y Prif Weithredwr, Cyfarwyddwyr 
a Phenaethiaid Gwasanaeth.  Mae aelodaeth y Pwyllgor hwn fel y nodir isod: - 

 Arweinydd (Cadeirydd)
 Dirprwy Arweinydd
 Aelod Cabinet (o'r portffolio perthnasol i'r swydd)
 1 x Aelod Ceidwadol
 1 x Aelod Annibynnol
 1 x Aelod Plaid Cymru

Bydd y Pwyllgor Penodiadau hefyd yn hwyluso Panel Penderfynu JNC a Phaneli 
Apeliadau JNC.  Bydd y rhain yn cynnwys 3 aelod yr un gyda'r Arweinydd neu'r Dirprwy 
Arweinydd yn cadeirio'r panel, gyda chymorth 1 cynrychiolydd yr un o'r grwpiau 
Ceidwadol ac Annibynnol. Caniateir amnewid aelodau'r Pwyllgor Penodiadau ond dim 
ond ar gyfer y 
broses penodiadau gyfan. Ni ellir amnewid Paneli’r JNC a rhaid i’r aelodau ddod o blith 
aelodaeth wreiddiol y Pwyllgor Penodiadau.

Roedd y Mesur hefyd yn sefydlu gweithdrefnau lle mae Cadeiryddion y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu yn cael eu henwebu a'u penodi.  Mae'r Mesur yn mynnu bod 
Cadeiryddion y Pwyllgorau hyn yn cael eu penodi fel isafswm ar sail maint a 
chydbwysedd gwleidyddol pob un o'r grwpiau sy'n rhan o'r Cyngor.  Yn unol â 
chyfansoddiad gwleidyddol y Cyngor, a'r fO blaidmiwla a ddefnyddir o dan y Mesur 
Llywodraeth Leol mewn perthynas â dyrannu Cadeiryddion Trosolwg a Chraffu, dylai'r 
rhain gael eu dyrannu i'r grwpiau gwleidyddol canlynol:

 

Page 30



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

11

Grŵp Gwleidyddol Nifer y Cadeiryddion i'w 
dyrannu

Llafur 1 Cadeirydd
Ceidwadwyr 1 Cadeirydd
Cynghrair Annibynnol 1 Cadeirydd
Annibynwyr Llynfi 0 Cadeirydd
Plaid Cymru 0 Cadeirydd

Nid yw newid diweddar i gyfansoddiad gwleidyddol y Cyngor wedi effeithio ar ddyraniad 
Cadeiryddion Trosolwg a Chraffu fel uchod.

Nid yw swydd Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu CorfO blaidaethol wedi ei dyrannu ac felly yn 
unol â'r Mesur, bydd yn cael ei benodi gan aelodau'r Pwyllgor Craffu CorfO blaidaethol o 
blith un o Gadeiryddion y Pwyllgorau Craffu ar Bynciau ond ni all fod yn Gadeirydd sy'n 
cynrychioli'r Grŵp Gweithredol.

Roedd gweddill yr adroddiad yn rhoi manylion am Gynrychiolwyr Cofrestredig ar 
Bwyllgorau; sut y mae'n rhaid ffurfio cyfansoddiad y Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygu, ac na 
ddylai Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd fod yn Aelod o'r grŵp 
mwyafrifol.

Mae cylch gwaith a swyddogaethau presennol y Pwyllgorau a chyrff eraill y Cyngor yn 
parhau heb eu newid fel y manylir arnynt yn Rhan 3 y Cyfansoddiad - Cyfrifoldeb am 
Swyddogaethau'r Cyngor a chawsant eu hatodi yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad. 

Mae cydbwysedd gwleidyddol yn hanfodol i bennu dyraniad seddau ar Bwyllgorau. 
Dangosir cydbwysedd gwleidyddol presennol y Pwyllgorau a chyrff eraill yn Atodiad 2 yr 
adroddiad.

Dangosir strwythur y pwyllgorau presennol yn Atodiad 3 yr adroddiad . 

Mae aelodaeth bresennol y pwyllgorau a fydd yn sail i unrhyw newidiadau i aelodaeth y 
pwyllgorau ynghlwm yn Atodiad 4 yr adroddiad.  

Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod penodi Cadeiryddion rhai Pwyllgorau ac ati, (lle y nodir isod) 
yn cael ei gynnal trwy gyfres o bleidleisiau a gofnodwyd, ac felly cymerwyd pleidlais 
electronig ar hyn, ac roedd y canlyniad fel a ganlyn: -

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

51                                       0                                          0 

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

32                                       2                                         17     

186.1 Penodiad Cadeirydd Panel Apeliadau 
Penodiad Cadeirydd Panel Apeliadau (Penderfynwyd)  
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Beedle Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell O blaid
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke Ymatal
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke Ymatal

Page 31



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

12

Cynghorydd Richard Collins O blaid
Cynghorydd Huw David O blaid
Cynghorydd Paul Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Pam Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy Ymatal
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard Ymatal
Cynghorydd Richard Granville O blaid
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green Ymatal
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells O blaid
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones Ymatal
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn O blaid
Cynghorydd David Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd John McCarthy O blaid
Cynghorydd David Owen Ymatal
Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel O blaid
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas Ymatal
Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella O blaid
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands O blaid
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw O blaid
Cynghorydd Charles Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd John Spanswick O blaid
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman Ymatal
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE O blaid
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables O blaid
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal Ymatal
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey Ymatal
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters O blaid
Cynghorydd Ken Watts Ymatal
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster Ymatal
Cynghorydd David White O blaid
Cynghorydd Philip White O blaid
Cynghorydd Alex Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Amanda Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Julia Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Young O blaid
Cariwyd

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

21                                       0                                          26

186.2 Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd (Penderfynwyd) 
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey O blaid
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin Ymatal

Page 32



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

13

Cynghorydd Tom Beedle O blaid
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell Ymatal
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett Ymatal
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Collins Ymatal
Cynghorydd Huw David Ymatal
Cynghorydd Paul Davies Ymatal
Cynghorydd Pam Davies Ymatal
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy O blaid
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie Ymatal
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard Ymatal
Cynghorydd Richard Granville Ymatal
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green O blaid
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells Ymatal
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain O blaid
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn Ymatal
Cynghorydd David Lewis Ymatal
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis Ymatal
Cynghorydd John McCarthy Ymatal
Cynghorydd David Owen O blaid
Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella O blaid
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands O blaid
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw Ymatal
Cynghorydd Charles Smith Ymatal
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith Ymatal
Cynghorydd John Spanswick Ymatal
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman O blaid
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE O blaid
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables O blaid
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal Ymatal
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey O blaid
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters O blaid
Cynghorydd Ken Watts O blaid
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster Ymatal
Cynghorydd David White Ymatal
Cynghorydd Philip White Ymatal
Cynghorydd Alex Williams Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Amanda Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Julia Williams Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Richard Young Ymatal
Cariwyd

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

34                                       1                                         16

Page 33



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

14

186.3 Penodiad Cadierydd Pwyllgor Datblygiad a Rheoli 
Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Datblygiad a Rheoli (Penderfynwyd) 
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey O blaid
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Beedle Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell O blaid
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke Ymatal
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke Ymatal
Cynghorydd Richard Collins O blaid
Cynghorydd Huw David O blaid
Cynghorydd Paul Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Pam Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy Ymatal
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard Ymatal
Cynghorydd Richard Granville O blaid
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green Ymatal
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells O blaid
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain O blaid
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones Ymatal
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn O blaid
Cynghorydd David Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd John McCarthy O blaid
Cynghorydd David Owen O blaid
Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel O blaid
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas Ymatal
Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella O blaid
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands Ymatal
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw O blaid
Cynghorydd Charles Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd John Spanswick O blaid
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman O blaid
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE O blaid
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables Ymatal
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal Ymatal
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey O blaid
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters Ymatal
Cynghorydd Ken Watts Ymatal
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster Ymatal
Cynghorydd David White O blaid
Cynghorydd Philip White O blaid
Cynghorydd Alex Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Amanda Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Julia Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Young O blaid
Cariwyd

Page 34



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

15

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

32                                       2                                         17 

186.4 Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Trwyddedu / Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 
Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Trwyddedu / Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 
(Penderfynwyd)
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Beedle Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell O blaid
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke Ymatal
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke Ymatal
Cynghorydd Richard Collins O blaid
Cynghorydd Huw David O blaid
Cynghorydd Paul Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Pam Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy Ymatal
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard Ymatal
Cynghorydd Richard Granville O blaid
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green Ymatal
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells O blaid
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain O blaid
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones Ymatal
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn O blaid
Cynghorydd David Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd John McCarthy O blaid
Cynghorydd David Owen O blaid
Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel O blaid
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas Ymatal
Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella O blaid
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands Ymatal
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw O blaid
Cynghorydd Charles Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd John Spanswick O blaid
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman Ymatal
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE O blaid
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables Ymatal
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal Ymatal
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey Ymatal
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters O blaid
Cynghorydd Ken Watts Ymatal
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster Ymatal
Cynghorydd David White O blaid
Cynghorydd Philip White O blaid
Cynghorydd Alex Williams Ymatal

Page 35



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

16

Cynghorydd Amanda Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Julia Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Young O blaid
Cariwyd

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

32                                       2                                          15     

186.5 Penodiad Cadeirydd Fforwm Cyngor Tref a Chymuned 
Penodiad Cadeirydd Fforwm Cyngor Tref a Chymuned (Penderfynwyd)
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Beedle Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell O blaid
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke Ymatal
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Collins O blaid
Cynghorydd Huw David O blaid
Cynghorydd Paul Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Pam Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy Ymatal
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Richard Granville O blaid
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green O blaid
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells O blaid
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones Ymatal
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn O blaid
Cynghorydd David Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd John McCarthy O blaid
Cynghorydd David Owen Ymatal
Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel O blaid
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas Ymatal
Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella O blaid
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands Ymatal
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw O blaid
Cynghorydd Charles Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd John Spanswick O blaid
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman Ymatal
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE O blaid
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables Ymatal
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal Ymatal
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey O blaid
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters O blaid

Page 36



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

17

Cynghorydd Ken Watts Ymatal
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster Ymatal
Cynghorydd David White O blaid
Cynghorydd Philip White Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Alex Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Amanda Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Julia Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Young O blaid
Cariwyd

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

20                                       5                                         24

186.6 Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 1 
Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 1 (Penderfynwyd)
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey O blaid
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin Ymatal
Cynghorydd Tom Beedle Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell Ymatal
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Collins Ymatal
Cynghorydd Huw David Ymatal
Cynghorydd Paul Davies Ymatal
Cynghorydd Pam Davies Ymatal
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy O blaid
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie Ymatal
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Granville Ymatal
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green O blaid
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells Ymatal
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain O blaid
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones Ymatal
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn Ymatal
Cynghorydd David Lewis Ymatal
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis Ymatal
Cynghorydd John McCarthy Ymatal
Cynghorydd David Owen O blaid
Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas Ymatal
Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella O blaid
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands O blaid
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw Ymatal
Cynghorydd Charles Smith Ymatal
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith Ymatal
Cynghorydd John Spanswick Ymatal
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas O blaid

Page 37



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

18

Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE O blaid
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables Ymatal
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal O blaid
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey O blaid
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters O blaid
Cynghorydd Ken Watts Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster O blaid
Cynghorydd David White Ymatal
Cynghorydd Philip White Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Alex Williams Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Amanda Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Julia Williams Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Richard Young Ymatal
Cariwyd

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

28                                       1                                         20

186.7 Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 2 
Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 2 (Penderfynwyd)
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey O blaid
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin Ymatal
Cynghorydd Tom Beedle O blaid
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell Ymatal
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett Ymatal
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Collins Ymatal
Cynghorydd Huw David Ymatal
Cynghorydd Paul Davies Ymatal
Cynghorydd Pam Davies Ymatal
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy O blaid
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards O blaid
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie Ymatal
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Granville Ymatal
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green O blaid
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells Ymatal
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain O blaid
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn Ymatal
Cynghorydd David Lewis Ymatal
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis Ymatal
Cynghorydd John McCarthy Ymatal
Cynghorydd David Owen O blaid
Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella O blaid
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands O blaid
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw Ymatal

Page 38



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

19

Cynghorydd Charles Smith Ymatal
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd John Spanswick Ymatal
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman O blaid
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables O blaid
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal O blaid
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey O blaid
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters O blaid
Cynghorydd Ken Watts O blaid
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster O blaid
Cynghorydd David White Ymatal
Cynghorydd Philip White Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Alex Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Amanda Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Julia Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Young Ymatal
Cariwyd

Dros                                   Yn erbyn                             Ymatal

38                                       4                                          8

186.8 Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 3 
Penodiad Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 2 (Penderfynwyd)
Cynghorydd Sean Aspey O blaid
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Beedle Ymatal
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell O blaid
Cynghorydd Nicole Burnett O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Norah Clarke O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Collins O blaid
Cynghorydd Huw David O blaid
Cynghorydd Paul Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Pam Davies O blaid
Cynghorydd Sorrel Dendy Ymatal
Cynghorydd Keith Edwards Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie O blaid
Cynghorydd Tom Giffard Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Richard Granville O blaid
Cynghorydd Cheryl Green O blaid
Cynghorydd Gareth Howells O blaid
Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain O blaid
Cynghorydd Malcolm James O blaid
Cynghorydd Brian Jones Ymatal
Cynghorydd Martyn Jones O blaid
Cynghorydd Mike Kearn O blaid
Cynghorydd David Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd Janice Lewis O blaid
Cynghorydd John McCarthy O blaid
Cynghorydd David Owen Ymatal

Page 39



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

20

Cynghorydd Dhanisha Patel O blaid
Cynghorydd Ross Penhale-Thomas Ymatal
Cynghorydd Aniel Pucella Dim pleidlais
Cynghorydd Kay Rowlands Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Rod Shaw O blaid
Cynghorydd Charles Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd Stephen Smith O blaid
Cynghorydd John Spanswick O blaid
Cynghorydd Roz Stirman Ymatal
Cynghorydd Gary Thomas O blaid
Cynghorydd Jefferson Tildesley MBE O blaid
Cynghorydd  Elaine Venables Ymatal
Cynghorydd Sadie Vidal Yn erbyn
Cynghorydd Matthew Voisey O blaid
Cynghorydd Lyn Walters O blaid
Cynghorydd Ken Watts O blaid
Cynghorydd Carolyn Webster O blaid
Cynghorydd David White O blaid
Cynghorydd Philip White O blaid
Cynghorydd Alex Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Amanda Williams Ymatal
Cynghorydd Hywel Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Julia Williams O blaid
Cynghorydd Richard Young O blaid
Cariwyd

PENDERFYNWYD:                 Bod y Cyngor yn:-
 
(1) Penodi’r Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu ac unrhyw Bwyllgorau eraill y mae'r Cyngor 
yn ystyried sy’n briodol i ddelio â materion nad ydynt wedi'u neilltuo i'r Cyngor nac yn 
swyddogaethau gweithredol;

(2) Penderfynu ar faint a chylch gorchwyl y Pwyllgorau hynny fel y'u nodir yn Atodiad 1 
yr adroddiad;

(3) Penderfynu ar ddyrannu seddi i grwpiau gwleidyddol yn unol â'r rheolau cydbwysedd 
gwleidyddol fel y’u nodir yn Atodiad 2 yr adroddiad;

(4) Penderfynu pa grwpiau gwleidyddol a gynrychiolir yn y Cyngor sydd â'r hawl i wneud 
pa benodiadau o ran Cadeiryddion y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu; 

(5) Derbyn enwebiadau a phenodi Cynghorwyr i wasanaethu ar bob un o'r Pwyllgorau, 
Paneli a chyrff eraill (fel y nodir); 

 Panel Apeliadau 
 Pwyllgor Penodiadau (Cadeirydd - Yr Arweinydd)
 Pwyllgor Archwilio
 Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
 Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygu
 Pwyllgor Trwyddedu
 Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003
 FO blaidwm y Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned
 Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu ar Bynciau 1
 Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu ar Bynciau 2

Page 40



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

21

 Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu ar Bynciau 3 
 Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu CorfO blaidaethol 

         (6) Derbyn enwebiadau a phenodi Cadeiryddion ac Is-Gadeiryddion y Pwyllgorau, 
y Paneli a'r cyrff eraill canlynol (fel y nodwyd) gan nodi y bydd y Pwyllgor Archwilio yn ei 
gyfarfod cyntaf a drefnir yn penodi Cadeirydd ac Is-Gadeirydd:-

1) Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd yn briodol y dylid enwebu'r Cynghorydd J. E. 
Lewis yn Gadeirydd y Panel Apeliadau. Cynhaliwyd pleidlais a 
gofnodwyd ynghylch y penodiad hwn yn ogystal â gweddill y 
Cadeiryddion a benodwyd i'r cyrff a grybwyllir isod, a chafodd y 
canlyniadau eu cynnwys yn yr Atodiad i'r Cofnodion hyn:-

                      Felly penodwyd y Cynghorydd J. E. Lewis yn Gadeirydd y Panel Apeliadau 
(Manylion y bleidlais a gofnodwyd ynghlwm). 

                      Enwebwyd y Cynghorydd N. Burnett yn Is-Gadeirydd y Panel Apeliadau 
gan na chafwyd unrhyw enwebiadau pellach. Felly cafodd y penodiad hwn ei dderbyn 
trwy gytundeb.
                    

2) Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd yn briodol y dylid enwebu'r Cynghorydd E. 
Venables yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 

                      Penodwyd y Cynghorydd E. Venables yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd (Manylion y bleidlais a gofnodwyd ynghlwm.) Nid oedd Is-
Gadeirydd i’r Pwyllgor hwn.

3)  Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd yn briodol y dylid enwebu'r Cynghorydd G. 
Thomas yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygu:-

 
                      Felly, penodwyd y Cynghorydd G. Thomas yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Rheoli 
Datblygu. (Manylion y bleidlais a gofnodwyd ynghlwm.)

                      Enwebwyd y Cynghorydd R.M. Granville yn Is-Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Rheoli Datblygu ac ni chafwyd unrhyw enwebiadau pellach. Yna cafodd y penodiad hwn 
ei dderbyn trwy gytundeb.

4) Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd yn briodol y dylid enwebu'r Cynghorydd D. Lewis 
yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu / Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 
2003. (Manylion y bleidlais a gofnodwyd ynghlwm.)

                      Felly, penodwyd y Cynghorydd D. Lewis yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Trwyddedu / Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003.

                      Enwebwyd y Cynghorydd P.A. Davies yn Is-Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Trwyddedu / Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 gan nad oedd unrhyw enwebiadau 
pellach. Yna cafodd y penodiad hwn ei dderbyn trwy gytundeb.

5) Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd yn briodol y dylid enwebu'r Cynghorydd H.J. 
David yn Gadeirydd FO blaidwm y Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned. 
(Manylion y bleidlais a gofnodwyd ynghlwm.)

                      Felly, penodwyd y Cynghorydd H.J. David yn Gadeirydd FO blaidwm y 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned.

Page 41



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MAI 2018

22

                      Enwebwyd y Cynghorydd C.E. Smith yn Is-Gadeirydd FO blaidwm y 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned ac ni chafwyd unrhyw enwebiadau pellach. Yna cafodd y 
penodiad hwn ei dderbyn trwy gytundeb.

6) Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd yn briodol fod y Cynghorydd C.A. Webster yn 
cael ei enwebu'n Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg ar Bynciau a Chraffu 
1. (Manylion y bleidlais a gofnodwyd ynghlwm)

                      Felly, penodwyd y Cynghorydd C.A. Webster yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg ar Bynciau a Chraffu 1.

7) Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd yn briodol y dylid enwebu'r Cynghorydd C.A. 
Green yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg ar Bynciau a Chraffu 2. 
(Manylion y bleidlais a gofnodwyd ynghlwm) 

                      Felly, penodwyd y Cynghorydd C.A. Green yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg ar Bynciau a Chraffu 2.

8) Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd yn briodol y dylid enwebu'r Cynghorydd J.C. 
Spanswick, yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg ar Bynciau a Chraffu 3. 
(Manylion y bleidlais a gofnodwyd ynghlwm)

                      Felly, penodwyd y Cynghorydd J.C. Spanswick yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg ar Bynciau a Chraffu 3.

          (7)       Nodwyd na phenodwyd Is-Gadeirydd i'r Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu 
uchod.

          (8)       Cymeradwyo rhoi pŵer dirprwyedig i'r Swyddog Monitro i hwyluso a 
phenodi un cynrychiolydd Cynghorau Tref /Cymuned ar y Pwyllgor 
Safonau, yn unol â darpariaethau paragraff 4.3 yr adroddiad.

187. CYNRYCHIOLAETH AR GYRFF ALLANOL A PHWYLLGORAU ERAILL

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr CorfO blaidaethol - Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a 
Phartneriaeth adroddiad yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cyngor i benodi Aelodau i Banel 
Heddlu a Throseddau De Cymru, a Grŵp Cynllunio Strategol De Ddwyrain Cymru, fel y 
nodir yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD:       Bod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo’r enwebiadau canlynol i'r cyrff a 
restrir isod: - 

                                       Panel Heddlu a Throseddau De Cymru - Y Cynghorydd R.E. 
Young

                                       Grŵp Cynllunio Strategol De Ddwyrain Cymru - Cadeirydd y 
Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygu - Y Cynghorydd G. Thomas

188. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim.

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 15:55

Page 42



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

20 JUNE 2018

JOINT REPORT OF THE INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR – EDUCATION AND 
FAMILY SUPPORT AND THE INTERIM HEAD OF FINANCE AND SECTION 151 

OFFICER

CWMFELIN PRIMARY SCHOOL CAPITAL PROJECT

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval to revise the Capital 
Programme for 2018 to 2028 to include a budget of £165,000 for the build of a new 
classroom at Cwmfelin Primary School.

1.2 In their meeting on 19 June 2018, Cabinet was asked to approve a report to be 
submitted to Council for approval to amend the Capital Programme to include a 
budget of £165,000 to fund the new-build classroom space at Cwmfelin Primary 
School, to be met from earmarked reserves, the school and Education and Family 
Support Directorate budgets.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority/priorities:  

Supporting a successful economy - taking steps to make the county a good 
place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure that our 
schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions of all people 
in the county.
Smarter use of resources - ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the community that 
can help deliver the Council’s priorities.

3. Background

3.1 On 3 March 2015, Cabinet approval was received for the Council to adopt revised 
principles as a framework for school organisation in Bridgend.  Five key principles 
were set out to inform the organisation and modernisation of our schools.  These 
are:

 commitment to high standards and excellence in provision;
 equality of opportunity, so that all pupils can access quality learning 

opportunities, regardless of which school they attend;
 inclusive schools, which cater for the learning needs of all their pupils;
 community-focused schools, where the school actively engages with its local 

community; and
 value for money.

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



3.2 The Policy and Planning Framework sets out 17 areas where these principles 
should be applied in practice.

3.3 The principles which are particularly relevant are the size of primary schools (to 
ensure that “all Bridgend’s primary schools are large enough to make the full range 
of necessary provision”) and value for money, efficiency and effectiveness 
(“narrowing the gap between the most and the least expensive provision currently”).

4. Current situation/proposal

4.1 Despite staff making best use of the school premises, the insufficient size of 
classroom spaces at Cwmfelin Primary School is putting pressure on teaching and 
learning opportunities for the school.  

4.2 The local authority has recognised that the school needs additional space to aid the 
delivery of the foundation phase and undertake interventions.  

4.3 There have been a number of options considered to provide additional space at the 
school.  However, the options, which included the transfer of a mobile classroom 
from Betws Primary School, internal adaptations to an existing mobile classroom 
and a new-build single or double classroom, were all cost prohibitive.   

4.4 A scheme has since been developed for provision of accommodation suitable for 
groups of 20, which meets the school’s needs. It is proposed to proceed on the 
basis of providing this space as a new build on an area of land close to the nursery 
building on the school site. This provision will provide the school with the much 
needed additional space.

 
4.5 This additional space will ease pressure on existing classes and support the 

delivery of interventions and group work.  It is not anticipated that any additional 
classroom space will be required in the near future, as projected demographic 
growth is relatively low in this school’s catchment area.  There is therefore no 
proposal to increase the published admission number for the school as a result of 
this proposal.

4.6 This minimal enlargement does not require a statutory procedure as prescribed 
within the School Organisation Code.

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken. The assessment has
concluded that there is no negative impact on the duties of the Council towards 
protected groups.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment (appendix 1)

Page 44



provides a comprehensive summary of the outcomes expected from the 
implementation of the service.  

Long-
term      

Supports the improvement of standards and outcomes in schools.

Prevention    Provision of places at schools is reviewed on an annual basis to 
ensure there is a sufficient supply of places and suitable 
accommodation to deliver the curriculum effectively.  

Integration Providing sufficient places ensures that the curriculum can be 
delivered and meets the social, environmental and cultural 
objectives.  

Collaboration The local authority works effectively with schools, Estyn and with the 
Central South Consortium (CSC). 

Involvement This area of work involves all stakeholders within the school (staff 
and pupils) and nearby residents.   

8. Financial implications

8.1 The estimated cost of the project to provide a new-build classroom space to 
accommodate 20 pupils is £165,000.  

8.2 An earmarked reserve budget of £150,000 has been established for this scheme.

8.3 It has been agreed that the estimated shortfall of £15,000 will be funded on a 50:50 
shared basis between the school and the Education and Family Support 
Directorate. The Directorate’s contribution of £7,500 will be met from the school 
modernisation capital retention budget.

8.4 The school will receive an additional delegated revenue budget allocation for the 
increase in floor area through formula funding following completion/handover which 
will be met from the overall schools’ delegated budget.  

9. Recommendation

9.1 Council is recommended to give approval to amend the Capital Programme to 
include a budget of £165,000 to fund the new-build classroom space at Cwmfelin 
Primary School, to be met from earmarked reserves, the school and Education and 
Family Support Directorate budgets.

Lindsay Harvey and Gill Smith
Interim Corporate Director – Education and Family Support and Interim Head of 
Finance and Section 151 Officer 
19 June 2018

Contact officer: Nicola Echanis
Head of Education and Early Help

Telephone: (01656) 642611

Page 45



Email: helen.vaulters@bridgend.gov.uk 

Postal address: Education and Family Support
Civic Offices
Angel Street 
Bridgend
CF31 4WB

Background documents:

Cabinet Report 3 March 2015: “PRINCIPLES DOCUMENT”

Cabinet Report (1 September 2015): “STRATEGIC REVIEW INTO THE DEVELOPMENT 
AND RATIONALISATION OF THE CURRICULUM AND ESTATE PROVISION OF 
PRIMARY, SECONDARY AND POST-16 EDUCATION”

MTFS Report to Council – 28 February 2018

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

Page 46

mailto:helen.vaulters@bridgend.gov.uk


Appendix 1

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 ASSESSMENT

Project Description (key aims): Additional accommodation for Cwmfelin Primary School – Capital Project

Section 1 Complete the table below to assess how well you have applied the 5 ways of working.

1. How does your project / activity balance short-term need with the long-term and planning for 
the future?

Long-term

(The importance of 
balancing short 
term needs with 
the need to 
safeguard the 
ability to also meet 
long term needs)

The additional classroom space, which will provide an additional 20 places, will help ease overcrowding in 
existing teaching areas and meet a short term need.  In the long term, a review of educational places in the 
Llynfi valley will be undertaken to assess need for future places and to inform future bands of the School 
Modernisation programme.

2. How does your project / activity put resources into preventing problems occurring or getting 
worse?

Prevention

(How acting to 
prevent problems 
occurring or 
getting worse may 
help public bodies 
meet their 
objectives)

Provision of places at schools is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure there is a sufficient supply of places 
and suitable accommodation to deliver the curriculum effectively.  The additional classroom space will allow 
the school to reduce class sizes, therefore if pupil number increase, there would be space to accommodate 
additional children.  

3. How does your project / activity deliver economic, social, environmental & cultural outcomes 
together?

Integration

(Considering how 
the public body’s 
well-being 
objectives may 

Providing sufficient places ensures that the curriculum can be delivered and meets the social, environmental 
and cultural objectives.  The construction of the new classroom will be competitively tendered, thereby 
achieving best value for money, potentially providing opportunities for local SMEs to tender for the 
construction, which would support economic activity.

P
age 47



impact upon each 
of the wellbeing 
goals, on their 
objectives, or on 
the objectives of 
other public 
bodies)

4. How does your project / activity involve working together with partners (internal and 
external) to deliver well-being objectives?

Collaboration

(Acting in 
collaboration with 
any other person 
(or different parts 
of the body itself) 
that could help the 
body meet its well-
being objectives)

The local authority works effectively with schools, Estyn and with the Central South Consortium (CSC). 
Officers will work with technical colleagues developing the scheme to ensure that the building design is 
sustainable and energy efficient.

5. How does your project / activity involve stakeholders with an interest in achieving the well-being 
goals? How do those stakeholders reflect the diversity of the area?

Involvement

(The importance of 
involving people 
with an interest in 
achieving the well-
being goals, and 
ensuring that those 
people reflect the 
diversity of the 
area which the 
body serves)

This area of work involves all stakeholders within the school (governors, staff and pupils) and the local 
community.  

P
age 48



Section 2 Assess how well your project / activity will result in multiple benefits for our communities and contribute 
to the national well-being goals (use Appendix 1 to help you).

Description of the Well-being goals How will your project / activity deliver 
benefits to our communities under the 
national well-being goals?

Is there any way to maximise the 
benefits or minimise any negative 
impacts to our communities (and the 
contribution to the national well-being 
goals)?

A prosperous Wales
An innovative, productive and low carbon 
society which recognises the limits of the 
global environment and therefore uses 
resources efficiently and proportionately 
(including acting on climate change); and 
which develops a skilled and well-
educated population in an economy 
which generates wealth and provides 
employment opportunities, allowing 
people to take advantage of the wealth 
generated through securing decent work.

The construction company could 
potentially be a locally based organisation.  
This company has to adhere to 
sustainability strategies developed for 
construction and meet targets for recycling.  
They are also expected to provide 
community benefits on each project.  This 
could include providing employment and 
work experience work opportunities as 
appropriate.

We would maximise the benefits by 
ensuring that certain key aspects are 
detailed within the construction contract.

A resilient Wales
A nation which maintains and enhances 
a biodiverse natural environment with 
healthy functioning ecosystems that 
support social, economic and ecological 
resilience and the capacity to adapt to 
change (for example climate change).

The scheme will be developed to ensure 
that there is no adverse impact on the 
environment.

N/A

A healthier Wales
A society in which people’s physical and 
mental well-being is maximised and in 
which choices and behaviours that 
benefit future health are understood.

The improved school environment for 
pupils and staff encourages physical and 
mental well-being.  

Ensuring the building is designed to 
current regulations.

P
age 49



A more equal Wales
A society that enables people to fulfil 
their potential no matter what their 
background or circumstances (including 
their socio economic background and 
circumstances).

Cwmfelin Primary will continue to be an all-
inclusive school and promote opportunities 
to all pupils for them to learn, develop and 
reach their full potential.

Ensure the building design is fully 
inclusive.

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Attractive, viable, safe and well-
connected communities.

Cwmfelin Primary will continue to promote 
opportunities to engage the community in 
school life and promote the ethos that the 
school is the heart of the community. 

Improved facilities at the school presents 
opportunity for increased community use.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving 
Welsh language
A society that promotes and protects 
culture, heritage and the Welsh 
language, and which encourages people 
to participate in the arts, and sports and 
recreation.

Cwmfelin Primary will continue to promote 
the importance of the Welsh language, 
heritage and culture.

This facility enables the school to better 
deliver the full curriculum which would 
include Welsh, its culture and heritage.

A globally responsible Wales
A nation which, when doing anything to 
improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales, takes account of whether doing 
such a thing may make a positive 
contribution to global well-being.

Construction will require the use of locally 
sourced contractor, however, it is likely that 
materials specified may be sourced 
outside of Wales, thereby support the 
global economy.

In order to minimise any negative impact, 
we would seek to ensure that the majority 
of materials are available from Welsh 
suppliers. 

P
age 50



Section 3 Will your project / activity affect people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Explain what 
will be done to maximise any positive impacts or minimise any negative impacts

Protected characteristics Will your project / activity have 
any positive impacts on those 

with a protected characteristic?

Will your project / activity have 
any negative impacts on those 
with a protected characteristic?

Is there any way to maximise 
any positive impacts or 
minimise any negative 

impacts?
Age: Yes No Ensure improved school 

environment for pupils
Gender reassignment: No No N/A
Marriage or civil partnership: No No N/A
Pregnancy or maternity: No No N/A
Race: No No N/A
Religion or Belief: No No N/A
Race: No No N/A
Sex: No No N/A
Welsh Language: No No N/A

P
age 51



Section 4 Identify decision meeting for Project/activity e.g. Cabinet, Council or delegated decision taken by 
Executive Members and/or Chief Officers

Compiling Officers Name: Nicola Echanis

Compiling Officers Job Title: Head of Education and Early Help

Date completed: 12th June 2018

P
age 52



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

20 JUNE 2018

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES

BRIDGEND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (2013) REVIEW REPORT

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To report to Council the outcome of the consultation exercise on the Bridgend Local 
Plan (2013) draft Review Report and seek Council’s approval to submit the final 
Bridgend LDP Review Report (attached at Appendix 1) (in conjunction with the 
Replacement LDP Delivery Agreement (see separate item)) to Welsh Government 
before the end of June 2018.

1.2 The Review Report sets out the proposed extent of likely changes to the existing 
LDP (2006-2021) and seeks to confirm the revision procedure to be followed in 
preparing a replacement LDP.  It is proposed that the Replacement LDP will cover a 
plan period up to 2033, which is the end of a 15 year plan period that will 
commence in 2018.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 The Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) is a high level strategy which must be 
prepared by the Council. The LDP sets out in land-use terms the priorities and 
objectives of the Corporate Plan.  A future Replacement LDP will be required to 
express in land-use terms, the wellbeing objectives and priorities of the Bridgend 
Public Services Board’s Well-being Plan.

3. Introduction and Background

3.2 The Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted by Bridgend County 
Borough Council on 18th September 2013 and sets out the Council’s objectives for 
the development and use of land in Bridgend County Borough over the 15 year plan 
period 2006 to 2021, and its policies to implement them. 

3.3 An up-to-date LDP is an essential part of a plan-led planning system in Wales.  In 
order to ensure that there is a regular and comprehensive assessment of whether 
plans remain up-to-date the Council is statutorily required under Section 69 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to undertake a full review of the 
adopted LDP at intervals not longer than every 4 years from the date of adoption.  
As such, a full review of the adopted LDP was triggered in September 2017.

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



3.4 In accordance with statutory requirements, since its adoption, the LDP has been 
monitored on an annual basis with the publication of 3 Annual Monitoring Reports 
(AMRs).  The AMR assesses the extent to which the LDP’s strategy, policies and 
allocations are being delivered and how effective it has been in delivering the plan’s 
overall vision and objectives. 

3.5 Any revision to an LDP must be preceded by a Review Report which is a statutory 
part of the full LDP Review process, forming part of the documentation required at 
the future Pre-Deposit and Deposit stages of a revised LDP and will be submitted 
for consideration as part of the Replacement LDP’s Examination process.

3.6 The primary functions of a Review Report are to determine the appropriate 
procedural route and key issues to be considered when taking the existing LDP 
forward.

3.7 In terms of ‘procedural route’, in the case of Bridgend, the plan is already the 
subject to a statutory required 4 year full review, and as such all aspects of the plan 
will need to be assessed to consider if they remain sound and fit for purpose.  This 
will include the LDP vision, objectives, spatial strategy, policies and land-use 
allocations, broadly following the same preparation process and stages as the 
original plan.  

3.8 The Review Report also considers whether the process of producing a replacement 
LDP should be undertaken on an individual basis or jointly with neighbouring Local 
Planning Authorities.  

3.9 In terms of the role of the Review Report in identifying ‘key issues’ to be addressed 
in a replacement Plan, an integral part of this assessment are the findings of the 
preceding AMRs and consideration of the existing plans underlying evidence base 
(in terms of whether this needs to be replaced or updated).  The Review Report 
also identifies other significant contextual changes in circumstances and policy 
context at a national, regional and local level, as these issues are also likely to 
inform and influence any potential changes and future direction of a Replacement 
Plan.  

Public Consultation

3.10 Members will recall that a report was presented to Council on the 25th April 2018 
seeking authorisation to undertake targeted consultation on the draft Bridgend LDP 
Review Report between 30th April 2018 and 25th May 2018. The Consultation on 
the draft Review Report was undertaken in conjunction with the draft Delivery 
Agreement (see separate item) and it is proposed to submit both the final Review 
Report and Delivery Agreement to Welsh Government before the end of June 2018.

3.11 The consultation was advertised in the following ways:

Page 54



 The consultation documents were available for inspection with representation 
forms at the Civic Offices, Angel Street;

 Information on the consultation, including all the documentation, 
representation forms and the facility to make representations electronically 
was placed on the Council’s website; and

 E-mails and letters were sent to approximately 190 targeted consultees 
including Community Councils, planning consultants, house builders, 
housing associations and other relevant external organisations with details 
on how to respond. 

3.12 By the end of the consultation period 11 individuals and external organisations had 
submitted comments on the draft Review Report. In response, the Council has 
produced a Consultation Report (which is included as Appendix 7 in the final 
Review Report) that provides the Council’s response to the representations 
received. However, it has not been necessary to make any significant amendments 
to the document as a result of comments from the public consultation. Copies of the 
full representations can be viewed by Members at the Planning Department. 

4. Current Situation

The main findings of the final Review Report are as follows:-

4.1 Contextual Changes

The Replacement LDP will need to be updated to take account of a range of new 
Acts, Policy Frameworks, initiatives and evidence at a national, regional and local 
level. 

The most significant in land-use terms in determining the future direction of the 
Replacement LDP will be evidence base changes associated with Welsh 
Government Population and Household projections, the work emanating from the 
National Development Framework (NDF) and regional work associated with the 
Strategic Development Plan (SDP) and Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, whilst 
ensuring that any changes and opportunities that this contextual evidence presents 
is compatible with the objectives of Bridgend’s Wellbeing Plan.

4.2 Assessment of Likely Changes Required to the Current LDP

The Regeneration-Led Spatial Strategy that underpins the LDP has been broadly 
successful, especially in bringing forward a number of residential and mixed-use 
allocated sites (primarily on brownfield land) within the County Borough.  The 
delivery of sites has been especially successful within the Strategic Regeneration 
Growth Areas of Bridgend and the Valleys Gateway.  The implementation of the 
LDP Strategy has however been less successful in the Strategic Regeneration 
Growth Areas of Maesteg and the Llynfi Valley and Porthcawl.  This has largely 

Page 55



been attributed to land-ownership issues and assembly and viability issues 
especially within the upper areas of the Llynfi Valley.  

In terms of going forward with the LDP’s existing Strategy, given that the majority of 
existing brownfield regeneration sites have been delivered or are committed (and 
expected to come forward within the next few years especially within Bridgend and 
the Valley’s Gateway Growth Areas), it is likely that the existing Strategy will need 
to be reconsidered if it is to deliver future housing requirements for the County 
Borough up to 2033, especially given that the housing land supply within the County 
Borough has fallen below the 5 year minimum requirement.  The Review Report 
therefore recognises an urgent need to address a shortfall in the housing land 
supply by the identification of additional housing sites.

Notwithstanding the need to identify new housing sites to address an identified 
shortfall, many other policies are performing effectively and are likely to require only 
minor amendments to reflect contextual changes and updates to national policy. 

4.3 Review of the Evidence Base

LDPs have to be based on robust evidence to ensure that critical land-use issues 
are identified and properly addressed.  Some of the evidence base studies that 
underpin existing LDP policies are out-of-date and need to be updated and/or 
replaced in order to fully understand the land-use requirements of the County 
Borough up to 2033.

Some of the critical evidence base studies that will be required to support the 
Replacement plan are:-

 Population and household forecasts – to inform the LDP’s dwelling requirement 
up to 2033. 

 Local Housing Needs Assessment – to inform the housing requirement tenure 
type and size of dwelling to match future household type and age profile of the 
population.

 Employment Land Review Update – to assess the future need of employment 
land suitable for all employment sectors and regional employment aspirations.

 Retail Needs Assessment – to identify if there is a requirement for additional 
floorspace to help inform the Council’s approach to manage the vitality and 
viability of our town centres.  

 Renewable Energy – evidence to support carbon reduction targets and mitigate 
the effect of climate change.  

Page 56



4.4 LDP Review Options

The Review Report makes the recommendation that the Council undertakes a full 
review of the existing LDP on an individual Local Planning Authority (LPA) area 
basis, wherever possible working collaboratively with other LPAs to produce a joint 
evidence base and with the region to prepare a SDP.

5. Effect Upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and regulation 41 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulation 2005 requires 
that a Local Planning Authority must commence a full review of its LDP every 4 
years from the date of its initial adoption and that such a review must be preceded 
by a Review Report.  The LDP Manual (2015) also advises that the review process 
should involve engagement with key stakeholders to assist in clarifying the issues to 
be considered in the review process.  

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no direct implications associated with this report.  However the policies 
contained within any Replacement LDP will require an equalities impact 
assessment to be carried out.

7. Financial Implications

7.1 The cost of the LDP Review will be met from the Development Planning budget and 
carried out by development planning staff with expert advice and evidence procured 
from consultants and through collaboration with neighbouring authorities as 
required.  The financial implications and resources required to prepare a 
replacement LDP are set out in more detail in the separate Delivery Agreement.  

8. Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015

8.1 The LDP Review of Replacement Plan will be prepared in accordance with the 7 
Wellbeing goals and the 5 ways of working as identified in the Act.  

9. Recommendations

9.1 That Council approve the final Review Report and authorise the Group Manager 
Development, Communities Directorate to submit the final Bridgend LDP Review 
Report (attached at Appendix 1) (in conjunction with the Replacement LDP Delivery 
Agreement (see separate item)) to Welsh Government before the end of June 2018.

9.2 That Council give delegated authority to the Group Manager Development, 
Communities Directorate to make any factual corrections or minor amendments to 
the Review Report as considered necessary. 

Page 57



Mark Shephard
Corporate Director - Communities 

20th JUNE 2018

Contact Officer: Richard Matthams
Development Planning Team Leader

Susan Jones
Development Planning Manager

Telephone: (01656) 643162

E-mail: richard.matthams@bridgend.gov.uk
 
Postal Address Development Planning

Communities Directorate
Civic Offices, Angel Street
BRIDGEND   CF31 4WB

Background documents

NA

Page 58

mailto:richard.matthams@bridgend.gov.uk


1 | P a g e   

 

Page 59



2 | P a g e   

Contents 
 

             

 Page 

1 Introduction & Executive Summary 

 

3 

2 What issues have been considered in the LDP Review 

 

7 

2.1 LDP Annual Monitoring Report – Key Findings 

 

8 

2.2 Contextual Changes 

 

8 

2.3 Evidence base change – Welsh Government Population & Household 

Projections 

 

16 

3 Assessment of likely changes required in the current adopted LDP 

 

18 

3.1 Review of LDP Vision & Objectives 

 

19 

3.2 Review of LDP Strategy 

 

23 

3.3 Review of LDP Policies 

 

32 

4 Future evidence base requirements 

 

42 

5 The LDP Review options 

 

44 

6 LDP (2013) Draft Review Report: Public Consultation Report 

 

48 

7 Conclusions: What form of plan revision is required? 48 

 

APPENDICIES 

 

  Page 

1 Appendix 1: Summary of LDP Policy Review 

 

49 

2 Appendix 2: LDP Site Allocation Review 

 

55 

3&4 Appendix 3 & 4: Invitation to prepare Joint Local Development Plan and 

invitation to Local Planning Authorities to prepare a Strategic Development 

Plan. 

62 

5 Appendix 5: Cardiff Capital Region Joint Cabinet response to the Cabinet 

Secretary supporting the principle of a SDP for the Cardiff Capital Region. 

62 

6 Appendix 6: Bridgend County Borough Council’s formal response to the 

Cabinet Secretary in relation to preparing Joint Local Development Plans. 

 

62 

7 Appendix 7: LDP (2013) Draft Review Report: Public Consultation Report – 

Summary of Key Issues 

63 

 

Page 60



3 | P a g e   

1. Introduction 

Background 

 

1.1 The Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) is a high level strategy which must be 

prepared by the Council.  The current LDP (adopted on 18th September 2013) sets out in 

land-use terms the priorities and objectives of the Corporate Plan. A future Replacement 

LDP will be required to express in land-use terms, the wellbeing objectives and priorities of 

the Bridgend Public Services Board’s Well-being Plan. 

 

Purpose of this Report 

 

1.2 The Review Report sets out the proposed extent of likely changes to the existing LDP 

(2006-2021) and seeks to confirm the revision procedure to be followed in preparing a 

replacement LDP.  It is proposed that the Replacement LDP will cover a plan period up to 

2033, which is the end of a 15 year plan period that will commence in 2018. 

Executive Summary 

 

1.3 The Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted by Bridgend County Borough 

Council on 18th September 2013 and sets out the Council’s objectives for the development 

and use of land in Bridgend County Borough over the 15 year plan period 2006 to 2021, 

and its policies to implement them.  

 

1.4 An up-to-date LDP is an essential part of a plan-led planning system in Wales.  In order to 

ensure that there is a regular and comprehensive assessment of whether plans remain up-

to-date the Council is statutorily required under Section 69 of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004 to undertake a full review of the adopted LDP at intervals not longer 

than every 4 years from the date of adoption.  As such, a full review of the adopted LDP 

was triggered in September 2017. 

 

1.5 In accordance with statutory requirements, since its adoption, the LDP has been monitored 

on an annual basis with the publication of 3 Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs).  The AMR 

assesses the extent to which the LDP’s strategy, policies and allocations are being 

delivered and how effective it has been in delivering the plan’s overall vision and objectives.  

 

1.6 Any revision to an LDP must be preceded by a Review Report which is a statutory part of 

the full LDP Review process, forming part of the documentation required at the future Pre-

Deposit and Deposit stages of a revised LDP and will be submitted for consideration as part 

of the Replacement LDP’s Examination process. 

 

1.7 The primary functions of a Review Report are to determine the appropriate procedural route 

and key issues to be considered when taking the existing LDP forward. 

 

1.8 In terms of ‘procedural route’, in the case of Bridgend, the plan is already the subject to a 

statutory required 4 year full review, and as such all aspects of the plan will need to be 

assessed to consider if they remain sound and fit for purpose.  This will include the LDP 

vision, objectives, spatial strategy, policies and land-use allocations, broadly following the 

same preparation process and stages as the original plan.  

Page 61



4 | P a g e   

 

1.9 The Review Report also considers whether the process of producing a replacement LDP 

should be undertaken on an individual basis or jointly with neighbouring Local Planning 

Authorities.   

 

1.10 In terms of the role of the Review Report in identifying ‘key issues’ to be addressed in a 

replacement Plan, an integral part of this assessment are the findings of the preceding 

AMRs and consideration of the existing plans underlying evidence base (in terms of 

whether this needs to be replaced or updated).  The Review Report also identifies other 

significant contextual changes in circumstances and policy context at a national, regional 

and local level, as these issues are also likely to inform and influence any potential changes 

and future direction of a Replacement Plan.   

 

Contextual Changes 

 

1.11 The Replacement LDP will need to be updated to take account of a range of new Acts, 

Policy Frameworks, initiatives and evidence at a national, regional and local level.  

 

1.12 The most significant in land-use terms in determining the future direction of the 

Replacement LDP will be evidence base changes associated with Welsh Government 

Population and Household projections, the work emanating from the National Development 

Framework (NDF) and regional work associated with the Strategic Development Plan 

(SDP) and Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, whilst ensuring that any changes and 

opportunities that this contextual evidence presents is compatible with the objectives of 

Bridgend’s Wellbeing Plan. 

 

Assessment of Likely Changes Required to the Current LDP 

 

1.13 The Regeneration-Led Spatial Strategy that underpins the LDP has been broadly 

successful, especially in bringing forward a number of residential and mixed-use allocated 

sites (primarily on brownfield land) within the County Borough.  The delivery of sites has 

been especially successful within the Strategic Regeneration Growth Areas of Bridgend and 

the Valleys Gateway.  The implementation of the LDP Strategy has however been less 

successful in the Strategic Regeneration Growth Areas of Maesteg and the Llynfi Valley 

and Porthcawl.  This has largely been attributed to land-ownership issues and assembly 

and viability issues especially within the upper areas of the Llynfi Valley.   

 

1.14 In terms of going forward with the LDP’s existing Strategy, given that the majority of existing 

brownfield regeneration sites have been delivered or are committed (and expected to come 

forward within the next few years especially within Bridgend and the Valley’s Gateway 

Growth Areas), it is likely that the existing Strategy will need to be reconsidered if it is to 

deliver future housing requirements for the County Borough up to 2033, especially given 

that the housing land supply within the County Borough has fallen below the 5 year 

minimum requirement.  The Review Report therefore recognises an urgent need to address 

a shortfall in the housing land supply by the identification of additional housing sites. 

 

1.15 Notwithstanding the need to identify new housing sites to address an identified shortfall, 

many other policies are performing effectively and are likely to require only minor 

amendments to reflect contextual changes and updates to national policy.   

 

Page 62



5 | P a g e   

Review of the Evidence Base 

 

1.16 LDPs have to be based on robust evidence to ensure that critical land-use issues are 

identified and properly addressed.  Some of the evidence base studies that underpin 

existing LDP policies are out-of-date and need to be updated and/or replaced in order to 

fully understand the land-use requirements of the County Borough up to 2033. 

 

1.17 Some of the critical evidence base studies that will be required to support the Replacement 

plan are:- 

 

 Population and household forecasts – to inform the LDP’s dwelling requirement up to 

 2033.  

 

 Local Housing Needs Assessment – to inform the housing requirement tenure type and 

 size of dwelling to match future household type and age profile of the population. 

 

 Employment Land Review Update – to assess the future need of employment land 

 suitable for all employment sectors and regional employment aspirations. 

 

 Retail Needs Assessment – to identify if there is a requirement for additional floorspace 

 to help inform the Council’s approach to manage the vitality and viability of our town 

 centres.   

 

 Renewable Energy – evidence to support carbon reduction targets and mitigate the 

 effect of climate change.   

 

LDP Review Options 

 

1.18 The Review Report makes the recommendation that the Council undertakes a full review of 

the existing LDP on an individual Local Planning Authority (LPA) area basis, wherever 

possible working collaboratively with other LPAs to produce a joint evidence base and with 

the region to prepare a SDP. 

 

1.19 Stakeholders will make a valuable contribution in helping to identify and clarify what issues 

need to be considered, how effective the existing LDP has been in terms of delivery and the 

extent of likely changes required.   

 

1.20 On this basis, it is proposed to undertake a ‘targeted’ consultation of the draft Review 

Report with key stakeholders. To assist in this process the draft Review Report is 

accompanied by a short questionnaire (see Appendix 2).  It is proposed to undertake 

targeted consultation between 30th April 2018 and 25th May 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



6 | P a g e   

Structure of the Report 

 

1.21 The Review Report is structured as follows: 

 

1.22 Section 2 details the key legislative, national and local policy changes that have occurred 

since the adoption of the LDP in 2013 which are important considerations to inform the review 

of the LDP and a summary of the main findings of the 2017 Annual Monitoring Report, 

taking into account the previous 3 AMR’s and associated implications for review of the LDP. 

 

1.23 Section 3 provides an assessment of the current LDP and sets out the potential changes 

required in terms of the Vision and Objectives, Development Strategy, effectiveness of 

the current policy framework and the position on current allocations to inform the review 

process. 

 

1.24 Section 4 provides an analysis of the areas of evidence base that would need to be reviewed/ 

updated in preparing a revised LDP 

 

1.25 Section 5 considers the potential options for review of the LDP and opportunities for 

collaboration. 

 

1.26 Section 6 provides a conclusion on the appropriate form of plan revision.  

 

1.27 Section 7 sets out a summary of the key issues raised during the LDP (2013) Draft Review 

Report Public Consultation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



7 | P a g e   

2. What issues have been considered in the LDP Review? 

 
2.1 LDP Annual Monitoring Report – Key Findings 

2.1.1 In line with National Guidance set out in the Local Development Plan Manual the plan 

review should draw on, amongst other things, the findings of published AMR’s. An overview 

of the LDP Monitoring Data for the third AMR period provides an interesting insight into the 

implementation of the LDP over the past 12 months. The key findings are set out below: 

a) The 2017 JHLAS indicates that 406 new homes were completed during the monitoring 

period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 and that 5046 dwellings have been completed in 

total during the LDP period 2006 to 2017; 

b) The 2017 JHLAS indicates that the Council has a housing land supply, assessed 

against the housing requirement of the Bridgend LDP of 4.0 years; 

c) To date 1160 affordable dwellings have been provided; 

d) During the monitoring period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 1.40 hectares of vacant 

employment land was developed; 

e) Within Bridgend Town Centre of the 379 commercial properties surveyed 67were 

vacant – representing a vacancy rate of 17.68 %; 

f) Within Porthcawl Town Centre of the 204 commercial properties surveyed 10 were 

vacant – representing a vacancy rate of 4.90%; 

g) Within Maesteg Town Centre of the 167 commercial properties surveyed 10 were 

vacant – representing a vacancy rate of 5.99% ; 

h) The requirement as to whether the Council will need to identify a Gypsy and Traveller 

Site is now however determined by the new requirements of the Housing (Wales) Act 

2014. The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 requires each local authority in Wales to 

undertake a Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) to ensure that 

needs are properly assessed and planned for. In summary, the GTAA covers the 

period 2016-2031 and estimates the additional pitch provision needed for Gypsies and 

Travellers in Bridgend. For the first 5 years of the GTAA plan period, there is no 

requirement for additional pitches and for the remainder of the GTAA plan period, a 

further 1 additional pitch is required. This gives a total need for the whole GTAA plan 

period of 1 additional pitch; and 

i) The County Borough is making a significant contribution to national renewable energy 

targets. The generating capacity within an immediately adjacent the refined SSA 

(north of Evanstown) is 65 MW which is considerably higher than the estimated 

capacity within the SSA of 31 MW. 

2.1.2 The evidence collected as part of the AMR process indicates that the overall LDP strategy 

has been broadly successful, delivering many significant benefits for our communities. Most 

of the housing sites and associated infrastructure allocated in the LDP have been delivered 

on brownfield land with the exceptions of a few challenging brownfield sites that have 

stalled due to a combination of viability issues and, in some cases, land ownership issues. 

However, a number of key housing provision policy targets are not being met which 

Page 65



8 | P a g e   

indicates that these policies are not functioning as intended. The 2017 JHLAS shows that 

the County Borough has housing land supply, assessed against the housing requirement of 

the Bridgend LDP, of 4.0 years. It is imperative that the Local Planning Authority progresses 

with the statutory review of the LDP which will address the shortfall in the housing land 

supply and facilitate the identification/allocation of additional housing land. The replacement 

LDP will assist in seeking to avoid ‘planning by appeal’ and ad hoc development coming 

forward outside the development plan system and not in accordance with the Plan’s 

strategy. 

Contextual Changes 

 

2.2.1 As reported in the previous Annual Monitoring Reports there have been a number of new Acts 

in Wales, revisions to Planning Policy Wales, Technical Advice Notes and the publication of 

new or updated Welsh Government practice guidance that are relevant to the review of the 

LDP. The most significant of these to inform the review are set out below: 

 

National Legislation and Policy 

2.2.2 Planning (Wales) Act, 2015 - The Act gained Royal assent and became law on 6th July 2015. 

It sets out a series of legislative changes to deliver reform of the planning system in Wales, to 

ensure that it is fair, resilient and enables development. The Act addresses 5 key objectives 

including strengthening the plan led approach to planning with act introducing a legal basis for 

the preparation of a National Development Framework and Strategic Development Plan, 

discussed in further detail below. 

 

2.2.3 Welsh Government National Development Framework (NDF) - The NDF will be the national 

development plan for Wales and replace the current 20 year ‘Wales Spatial Plan - People, 

Places Futures’ 2004 / Updated 2008. The NDF will reflect the seven well-being goals and 

associated five governance principles of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

2015 and Planning Policy Wales (PPW) and draw on national policies covering areas such as 

natural resources and transport and will help to maximise the potential benefits from funding 

streams and support the delivery of infrastructure plans. It is expected to cover: the key areas 

of change for housing; economic development and sector growth and implications for places; 

renewable energy opportunities; areas of significant natural resources; electrification of rail 

lines, Cardiff Airport, road schemes and connectivity; infrastructure development of national 

significance; and the Welsh Language. The NDF will be a 20 year land use framework for 

Wales, which will:- 

 

 set out where nationally important growth and infrastructure is needed and how the 

planning system nationally, regionally and locally can deliver it; and 

 provide direction for SDPs and LDPs and support the determination of Developments of 

National Significance. 

 

2.2.4 WGs National Development Framework: Statement of Public Participation (June 2017) 

has set the following timetable for the production of the NDF:- 

 publish & consult  on the main issues,  options and preferred option, supported by 

environmental reports and assessments (12 weeks: April - June 2018); 

 Conduct a 12-week public consultation on the Draft NDF (July - Sept 2019); 

 Present a draft NDF to the Assembly for 60 days; 

Page 66



9 | P a g e   

 Have regard to Assembly resolutions / recommendations; and then 

 Publish the NDF (September 2020). 

 

2.2.5 The review of the LDP will have to be in conformity with the NDF. 

 

2.2.6 Welsh Government Regionalisation Proposals - The White Paper ‘Reforming Local 

Government: Resilient and Renewed’ (Jan 2017) is the Welsh Government’s statement of 

intent about the future of Local Government in Wales. The proposals in this White Paper set 

out arrangements for regional working; describe a strengthened role for councils and 

councillors; provide a framework for any future voluntary mergers; and sets out the role of 

community councils. 

 

2.2.7 Furthermore, on 13th December 2017, the Welsh Minister wrote to the relevant LPAs, inviting 

them to submit proposals for a Strategic Development Plan (SDP) for South East (Cardiff), 

Mid & West (Swansea) and North Wales, with no timescale specified (copy attached at 

Appendix 3). Similarly, the Minister wrote an additional letter to specific groups of LPA’s, 

including Bridgend, RCT and Caerphilly in “South East Wales - West”, inviting them to 

prepare a ’Joint LDP’; with a positive response requested by 28th February 2018 (attached 

at Appendix 4). This matter is considered in later on in this report.  

 

2.2.8 Well-being of Future Generations Act, 2015 - The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 - gained Royal Assent and became law on 29 April 2015. The Act strengthens 

existing governance arrangements for improving the well-being of Wales to ensure “that the 

needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet 

their own needs”, which is known as the “sustainable development principle”. It identifies 

Seven goals (i.e. a prosperous, resilient, healthier, more equal and globally responsible 

Wales; and a Wales of cohesive communities, vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language) to 

improve the well-being of Wales and introduces national indicators (which have not yet been 

produced), which will measure the difference being made to the well-being of Wales. It defines 

“sustainable development” as the process of improving the economic, social, environmental 

and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the ‘sustainable 

development principle’, aimed at achieving the above well-being goals. Five governance 

principles are also provided (i.e. long term; integration; collaboration; prevention; and 

involvement) to aid in the consideration of this work. The LDP was prepared iteratively with a 

Strategic Environmental Assessment / Sustainability Appraisal (SEA/SA) which accords with 

sustainable development principles. Therefore the LDP review and emerging Local Well Being 

Plans under the Act will need to be informed by sustainable development principles and there 

will be clear linkages between the aims and objectives of respective plans. The potential 

impact of the Act and Local Well Being Plans for any revised LDP are considered in this 

report.  

 

2.2.9 Environment (Wales) Act, 2016 - The Environment (Wales) Act received Royal Assent and 

became law on 21 March 2016. It puts in place the legislation needed to plan and manage 

Wales’ natural resources in a more proactive, sustainable and joined-up way; and requires 

Natural Resources Wales (NRW) to report on the principality's natural resources and detail 

their ability to respond to pressures and adapt to climate change. Therefore NRW published 

the State of Natural Resources Report (SoNaRR) in September 2016. 

 

Page 67



10 | P a g e   

 

2.2.10 Similarly, the Welsh Government published the National Natural Resources Policy (NNRP) 

in August 2017; the focus of which is the sustainable management of Wales natural 

resources, to maximise their contribution to achieving goals within the Well Being of Future 

Generations Act. The NRP sets out three National Priorities of delivering nature based 

solutions; increasing renewable energy and resource efficiency; and taking a place based 

approach. It will set the context for NRW to produce "Area Statements" to ensure that the 

national priorities for sustainable management of natural resources inform the approach to 

local delivery. The SoNaRR, NNRP and Area Statement (when produced) will be considered 

in the review of the LDP. 

 

2.2.11 Historic Environment (Wales) Act, 2016 - The Act received Royal Assent and became law 

on 21 March 2016 (with some provisions requiring secondary legislation) and makes important 

improvements to the existing systems for the protection and sustainable management of the 

Welsh historic environment. In broad terms, the Act aims to give more effective protection to 

listed buildings and scheduled monuments; enhance existing mechanisms for the sustainable 

management of the historic environment; and introduces greater transparency and 

accountability into decisions taken on the historic environment. It also: provides for a statutory 

register of Wales’ Historic Parks and Gardens; secures a more stable future for Wales’ 

Historic Environment Records (HER); establishes an independent ‘Advisory Panel for the 

Historic Environment in Wales’ to advise on historic environment policy and strategy at a 

national level in Wales; and contains provisions relating to a statutory list of historic place 

names. The implications of the Act will be considered through the LDP Review process.  

 

2.2.12 Housing (Wales) Act, 2014 - The Act received Royal Assent in September 2014 and aims to 

improve the supply, quality and standards of housing in Wales. One of the key provisions of 

the Act provides a duty on local authorities to provide sites for Gypsy and Travellers where a 

need has been identified. The Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment has now 

been formally approved by Bridgend County Borough Council Cabinet and Welsh 

Government. In summary, the GTAA covers the period 2016-2031and estimates the additional 

pitch provision needed for Gypsies and Travellers in Bridgend. For the first 5 years of the 

GTAA plan period, there is no requirement for additional pitches, and for the remainder of the 

GTAA plan period, a further 1 additional pitch is required. This gives a total need for the whole 

GTAA plan period of 1 additional pitch. It is also noted that the Welsh Government have also 

consulted upon a draft circular for ‘Planning of Gypsy, Traveller and Showpeople Sites’ 

(February 2017) to update several existing Circulars and a draft replacement national strategy 

‘Enabling Gypsies, Roma and Travellers (September 2017). Therefore, Gypsy and Traveller 

provision will be given further consideration through the LDP review process. 

 

2.2.13 Welsh Government ‘Prosperity for All: the national strategy’ - takes the commitments of 

their 5 year programme for government, ‘Taking Wales Forward: 2016 - 2021’, and places 

them in a long-term context, and sets out how they will be delivered by bringing together the 

efforts of the whole Welsh public sector. The four Key Themes of the strategy are the same 

as those in Taking Wales Forward, which are: ‘Prosperous & Secure’; ‘Healthy & Active’; 

‘Ambitious & Learning’; and ‘United & Connected’. There are five Priority Areas which have 

the greatest potential contribution to long-term prosperity and well-being and include: ‘Early 

Years’; ‘Housing’: ‘Social Care’; ‘Mental Health’; and ‘Skills & Employability’. It is considered 

that the Prosperity for All: the national strategy will influence the expected Cardiff Capital 

Region SDP and Bridgend LDP Review; although much will depend on if it changes WG 

investment / grant aid priorities. 

Page 68



11 | P a g e   

2.2.14 Welsh Government Valleys Task Force Our Valleys, Our Future (July 2017) - This 

Ministerial Taskforce for the South Wales Valleys has published a high-level action plan 

which outlines its priorities for the future. The key priorities in the Plan are: good quality jobs 

and the skills to do them; better public services; and my local community. The Taskforce 

want to discuss how these priorities can be further developed into more tangible actions and 

further refine the plan; and public events were also planned. It sets out a range of aims and 

actions in each of the three priority areas, including: closing the employment gap between 

the South Wales Valleys and the rest of Wales by getting an additional 7,000 people into work 

by 2021 and creating thousands of new, fair, secure and sustainable jobs; and exploring 

the development of a Valleys Landscape Park, which has the potential to help local 

communities use their natural and environmental resources for tourism, energy generation 

and health and wellbeing purposes. The Taskforce aims to “Explore all options to target 

investment and create new strategic hubs in specific areas across the Valleys. These will be 

areas where public money is focused to provide opportunities for the private sector to invest 

and create new jobs. The focus of each hub will reflect the opportunities and demand in a 

particular area and their aspirations for the future.” The hub locations are: 

 Pontypridd/Treforest, focusing on residential, office, industrial and retail 

development; 

 Caerphilly/Ystrad Mynach, focusing on residential, office and industrial development; 

 Cwmbran, focusing on office, industrial and residential development; 

 Merthyr Tydfil, focusing on office, industrial and residential development; 

 Neath, focusing on industrial, residential, digital and energy development. 

 Northern Bridgend, focusing on employments sites, energy projects, residential 

developments, tourism and culture. 

 Ebbw Vale, focusing on a new automotive technology business park, with the 

potential to support 1,500 new full-time equivalent jobs.   

 

Planning Policy Wales and Technical Advice Notes 

2.2.15 Since adoption of the LDP in 2013 the three AMR’s have reported on amendments to national 

planning policy in respect of Planning Policy Wales and associated Technical Advice Notes 

which have implications for and need to be considered as part of the LDP Review. The key 

changes since 2013 are set out below: 

PPW Amendments:- 

 Chapter 1:Introduction (November 2016) 

 Chapter 2: Local Development Plans (January 2016 & November 2016) 

 Chapter 3: Development Management (November 2016) 

 Chapter 4: Planning for Sustainability (July 2014, January 2016 & November 2016 

 Chapter 6: Historic Environment (November 2016) 

 Chapter 10: Retail and Commercial Development (November 2016) 

 Chapter 14: Minerals (January 2016) 

 

 

Page 69



12 | P a g e   

2.2.16 New / Amended Technical Advice Notes:- 

 TAN 1: Joint Housing land Availability Studies (January 2015) 

 TAN 4: Retail and Commercial Development (November 2016) 

 TAN12: Design (July 2014 & March 2016) 

 TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language (October 2017) 

 TAN 21: Waste (February 2014) 

 TAN 22: Planning and Sustainable Buildings - Deleted by WG in July 2014 

 New TAN 23:Economic Development (February 2014) 

 New TAN 24: The Historic Environment (May 2017) 

 

2.2.17 Draft Planning Policy Wales (10) is currently being consulted upon. The draft PPW has been 

re-drafted so that the seven well-being goals and five ways of working of the Well Being and 

Future Generations is fully integrated into policy. Any future amendments of PPW (10) will 

inform the review process. 

 

2.2.18 Welsh Language - Chapter 4 of PPW has been updated to reflect the requirements of the 

Planning (Wales) Act 2015 relating to the consideration of the Welsh language in the 

appraisal of development plans. PPW states that LPAs must consider the likely effects of 

their development plans on the use of the Welsh language in the Sustainability Appraisal of 

their plans, and should keep their evidence up to date. All local planning authorities should 

include in the reasoned justifications to their development plans a statement on how they 

have taken the needs and interests of the Welsh language into account in plan 

preparation, and how any policies relating to the Welsh language interact with other plan 

policies. TAN 20 ‘Planning and the Welsh Language’ (October 2017) provides more 

detailed advice; Part B of which contains ‘Practice Guidance’ to assist LPAs with the 

consideration of Welsh language issues during the preparation, monitoring and review of 

LDPs. This will be undertaken as part of the LDP review. 

 

2.2.19 The Strategy for Older People in Wales: Living Longer, Ageing Well (2013-2023) – The 

Strategy aims to address the barriers faced by older people in Wales today and to ensure that 

well-being is within the reach of all. This strategy identifies three main priority areas for action: 

social resources, environmental resources and financial resources. However it also 

recognises that good physical and mental health, lifestyle factors, access to information and 

advice, equality and diversity, language needs, and preparation for later life are important 

issues in each of these priority areas. 

 

2.2.20 Welsh Government Future Trends Report (2017) – The report identifies the key social, 

economic, environmental and cultural trends that could affect Wales in the future, as well as 

some of the factors that could influence the direction of those trends. The report encourages 

readers to consider these future trends in combination with each other, and to start to identify 

and discuss the potential opportunities and challenges they might present for us all. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



13 | P a g e   

2.2.21 The Active Travel (Wales) Act (2015) - places a requirement on local authorities to 

continuously improve facilities and routes for walkers and cyclists and to prepare maps 

identifying current and potential future routes for their use. The Act will also require new road 

schemes to consider the needs of pedestrians and cyclists at design stage. 

 

Regional Context 

 

2.2.22 Cardiff City Region Strategic Development Plan (SDP) - The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 

introduces powers for the Welsh Ministers to designate ‘strategic planning areas’ and for 

‘Strategic Planning Panels’ (SPP) to be established for these areas. An SPP, if established 

for an area, will then be responsible for preparing a 15-20 year Strategic Development Plan 

(SDP) that will form part of the formal ‘development plan’ for that area. These new sub- 

regional development plans will only apply to cohesive regions of greater than local 

significance (such as the Cardiff city region). An SDP is expected to cover cross boundary 

matters of more than local community importance; and could include the strategic elements 

of LDPs; such as larger housing / employment sites, major transport schemes, etc. 

Preparation of an SDP is expected to take at least 4 years from commencement and will 

generally mirror the current LDP process. SDP’s will address cross-boundary issues at a 

regional level and must be in conformity with the NDF. Before the SDP can be prepared the 

lead ‘responsible authority’ for the SDP has to submit a ‘Proposal’ (a map showing the 

boundaries of the proposed area and a statement of the reasons for proposing that area; with a 

consultation report) for a ‘strategic planning area’ to the Welsh Ministers who can then 

designate the strategic planning area and establish the Panel. 

 

2.2.23 On 13th December 2017 the Welsh Minister wrote to relevant Welsh LPAs inviting them to 

prepare proposals for three regional SDPs (Bridgend being part of the Cardiff City Region) 

(attached at Appendix 3). On 6th February 2018 the 10 Cardiff Capital Leaders responded to 

the Cabinet Secretary confirming support by all 10 Leader of the CCR to the principle of 

preparing a SDP for the South-East region. Their formal response is attached as Appendix 5. 

 

2.2.24 Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD) - The CCRCD was signed by the 10 constituent 

Local Authority Leaders (from Blaenau Gwent, Bridgend, Caerphilly, Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, 

Monmouthshire, Newport, Rhondda Cynon Taff, Torfaen and the Vale of Glamorgan), the 

Secretary of State for Wales, the Chief Secretary to the Treasury and the First Minister on 1st 

March 2017. The CCRCD is a 20 year / £1.28 billion investment programme which aims to 

achieve a 5% uplift in the Region’s GVA (‘Gross Value Added’ - a measure of the value of 

the goods produced and services delivered in the area) by delivering a range of programmes 

which will increase connectivity, improve physical and digital infrastructure, as well as 

regional business governance. Over its lifetime, local partners expect the CCRCD to deliver 

up to 25,000 new jobs and leverage an additional £4 billion of private sector investment by 

2036. The CCRCD has 6 Objectives:- 

1. Connecting the Cardiff Capital Region; 

2. Investing in innovation and the digital network; 

3. Developing a skilled workforce and tackling unemployment; 

4. Supporting enterprise and business growth; 

5. Housing development and regeneration; and 

6. Developing greater city-region governance across the Cardiff Capital Region. 

Page 71



14 | P a g e   

2.2.25 The Cardiff Capital Region Transition Plan will detail key activity to be undertaken, including 

establishing a Regional Office to drive the delivery of the Regional Cabinet’s work programme 

in anticipation of receiving proposals. This includes the creation of a bespoke impact 

assessment model for those proposals. The investment proposal as part of this key 

strategic program represents significant opportunity for the wider South East region. 

Capitalising on the opportunities presented by City Deal will be a key focus of the LDP 

Review. 

 

2.2.26 Cardiff Capital Region: Regional Housing Investment Fund – Regional Housing 

Investment Fund aims to support house building, ranging from larger builders and developers 

on stalled housing sites on former industrial sites, through to small builders, community 

builders, custom builders and regeneration specialists, on small sites across the region. The 

fund also aims to help stimulate the SME building sector across the region by providing loan 

development finance and launching a Custom Build Scheme, releasing smaller plots of public 

sector land with a full package of support for SMEs to deliver new homes in the communities. 

 

2.2.27 Cardiff Capital Region Sites and Premises Work – is focusing on identifying Strategic 

Employment Sites for inclusion in a Strategic Development Plan and also identify 

employment premises and sites that require public sector investment.  

 

Neighbouring LDPs 

 

2.2.28 The Vale of Glamorgan LDP was adopted by the Council on 28th June 2017 and provides the 

local planning policy framework up till 2026.  

 

2.2.29 Neath Port Talbot LDP was adopted by the Council on 27th January 2016 and provides the 

local planning policy framework up until 2026.  

 

2.2.30 Rhondda Cynon Taf LDP was adopted by the Council on 2nd March 2011 and provides the 

local planning policy framework up until 2021. Based on the statutory review dates of both 

RCT and Bridgend there is scope to work collaboratively where possible to prepare a shared 

joint evidence base.  

 

Local Context 

 

2.2.31 A number of local policy documents, strategies have been prepared or revised since adoption 

of the LDP.  

 

2.2.32 Bridgend Local Transport Plan In May 2015, the Welsh Government approved Bridgend 

County Borough Council’s Local Transport Plan (LTP) for adoption. The LTP covers the 

Bridgend County Borough geographical area and sets out the Council’s priorities for transport 

investment over the next 15 years. The primary focus of the LTP is to address issues relating 

to local transport and how it can facilitate economic growth and change travel behavior. 

 

2.2.33 Bridgend Draft Well Being Plan 2018-2023- From 1 April 2016, the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015 introduced statutory Public Services Boards (PSB) across each 

local authority area in Wales. PSBs will work together to improve the social, economic, cultural 

and environmental well-being of the board’s area.  The newly formed PSBs will consist of four 

Page 72



15 | P a g e   

statutory Members: 

 The relevant Local Authority 

 Health Board 

 Fire and Rescue Service 

 Natural Resources Wales 

 A range of other partners known as ‘Invited Participants’ 

 

2.2.34 In line with the Act, each PSB is required to assess the state of well-being across the area as 

a whole and within its communities to inform the PSB’s Well-being Plan.  The plan must be 

published by April 2018 and should set out a series of well-being objectives identifying the 

priorities the PSB has agreed for the area in order to contribute to achieving seven national 

well-being goals as set out by the Act. A Local Wellbeing Assessment was published by the 

Bridgend Public Service Board in May 2017. The final published plan (expected May 2018) 

and associated background evidence will be used to inform the review of the LDP. Further 

detail on the implications for the LDP is set out in later in this report. 

 

2.2.35 Bridgend Band B School Modernisation Programme – In December 2017 Welsh 

Government gave ‘approval in principle’ for a programme funding envelope of £68.2m. In 

January 2018 Cabinet and Council approved the financial commitment and also for the Band 

B programme to be included within the capital programme.  

 

2.2.36 Aging Well in Bridgend Plan - The ‘Ageing Well in Bridgend’ plan is aligned to the 

objectives of the Local Authority and Local Public Service Board and supports the targeted 

outcomes for older people in relation to the five priority areas of the National Strategy. 

BCBC’s integrated approach to working with health will support collaborative working within 

and across the prioritised themes and make progress towards joint ownership of the plan, its 

outcomes and investment needs. The five ‘Ageing Well in Wales’ priority themes are:  

 Age friendly communities  

 Dementia supportive communities  

 Falls prevention  

 Opportunities for employment and learning  

 Loneliness and isolation 

 

2.2.37 Bridgend Nature Recovery Plan / Local Biodiversity Action Plan (2014) - This LBAP 

(Local Biodiversity Action Plan) is an update of the Local Biodiversity Action Plan originally 

written in 2002. This LBAP considers the wider role that biodiversity plays in providing 

benefits to Bridgend County Borough. In particular the LBAP should be read alongside the 

Landscape Character Area (LCA) report by Land Use Consultants (LUC, 2013) which 

described the different parts of the county and what is unique and special about them. 

 

2.2.1 House Prices - Latest Bridgend Housing Market Overview - Information below (from the Land 

Registry UK House Price Index (HPI) information) shows that over the last 12 years, average 

house prices in Bridgend have risen from £119,008 in January 2006 to £148,951 in January 

2018 an increase of 25%.The graph below shows the average House Prices in Bridgend. 

 

Page 73



16 | P a g e   

130000
135000
140000
145000
150000

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

Year 

Comparison of Welsh 
Government's 2008, 2011 and 

2014 based Population Projections 
and Mid-year Estimates for 

Bridgend 

2008 Projection

2011 Projection

2014 Projection

 

2.2.2 The Land Registry data indicates house sale prices in Bridgend consistently below the 

national England and 

Wales sales prices. 

However, a continued 

economic recovery; as 

well as a national 

housing shortage; and 

continuing low mortgage 

rates; with the 

Government’s ‘Help to 

Buy’ (NewBuy Cymru) 

equity loan mortgage 

scheme are also helping 

to drive this market growth 

and house price growth. 

 

 

2.2.3 Welsh Government Population and Household Projections - The LDP is based on the 

Cambridge Econometrics (CE) Population Projections for Bridgend and Wales which 

estimated that Bridgend’s population would increase from 132,600 to 144,640 between 2006 

and 2021. The corresponding household projections indicated a need for an additional 9,690 

households to meet this growth in population.  

 

2.2.4 Since the LDP was adopted, 

the Welsh Government has 

released new population 

projections based on the 2011 

census (published 2013), 

population projections based 

on mid-year population 

estimates for 2014 (published 

2016) and mid-year population 

estimates (published annually). 

The key changes for Bridgend 

are as follows: 

 

 

 

 The 2011 based projections suggest that the population will increase from 139,410 in 

2011 to 146,242 by 2021. 

 The 2014 based projections indicate that population levels will continue to increase 

from 141,214 to 144,093 between 2014 and 2021. 

 The mid-year estimates for the period 2011 to 2016 identify a steady increase from 

139,410 to 143,408, which equates to an increase of 0.57% per year over the last five 

years. 

 

 

Page 74



17 | P a g e   

 

2.2.5 Corresponding household projections have also been released by the Welsh Government 

based on 2011 Census data (published 2014) and the 2014 population projections (published 

2017). The key changes for Bridgend are as follows: 

 The 2011 based projections estimate that the number of households will increase 

from 58,601 to 62,965 between 2011 and 2021. This suggests that approximately 436 

dwellings will need to be built per year. 

 The 2014 based projections estimate that the number of households will increase 

from 59,820 to 62,040 between 2014 and 2021. This suggests that approximately 317 

dwellings will need to be built per year. 

 

2.2.6 The latest Welsh Government household projections indicate a much lower increase in 

household numbers than the 2008 based projection which has informed the LDP’s Strategy 

of ‘Growth and Regeneration’ (see Figure 3 below). The LDP’s current housing requirement 

of delivering 646 dwellings per annum is higher than the 436 and 317 dwellings per annum 

required by the 2011 and 2014 based projections retrospectively. It is therefore considered 

appropriate to reconsider the housing requirement as part of the preparation of a revised 

LDP. 

 

 

52000

54000

56000

58000

60000

62000

64000

66000

68000

70000

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

Year 

Comparison of Welsh Government's 2008, 2011 and 
2014 based Household Projections for Bridgend 

2008 Projection

2011 Projection

2014 Projection

Page 75



18 | P a g e   

3. Assessment of likely changes required to the current adopted LDP 

 

3.1 Review of LDP Vision and Objectives 

LDP Vision 

3.1.1 In order to tackle key issues and guide and manage future development the LDP identified a 

 clear vision of what the County Borough should look like in 2021. Therefore as part of the 

 review of the LDP this needs to be revisited to ensure it remains relevant to local needs and 

 aspirations beyond the plan period. The LDP Vision was developed through stakeholder 

 engagement and informed by a range of key strategies including the Bridgend Community 

 Strategy. It states that: 

3.1.2 By 2021, Bridgend County Borough will be transformed to become a sustainable, safe, 

healthy and inclusive network of communities comprising strong, interdependent and 

connected settlements that can offer opportunities, an improved quality of life and 

environment for all people living, working, visiting and relaxing in the area. The 

catalysts for this transformation will be:  

 a successful regional employment, commercial and service centre in Bridgend; 

 a vibrant waterfront and tourist destination in Porthcawl; 

 a revitalised Maesteg; 

 a realisation of the strategic potential of the Valleys Gateway; and 

 thriving Valley communities 

3.1.3 In 2013 the Community Strategy was replaced by the Single Integrated Plan (SIP): ‘Bridgend 

County Together’ replacing four previous statutory plans: 

 Community Strategy; 

 Social Care and Well Being Plan; 

 Children and Young People’s Plan; and 

 Community Safety Plan. 

3.1.4 The SIP identified the following priority areas: 

 People in Bridgend County are healthier 

 People in Bridgend County are engaged and empowered to achieve their full potential; 

 People in in Bridgend County benefit from a stronger and more prosperous economy; 

and 

 Bridgend County is a great place to live, work and visit. 

 

 

Page 76



19 | P a g e   

3.1.5 The SIP is being replaced by a Local Well Being Plan (Draft currently out for consultation) 

which a requirement of the Well Being of Future Generations Act (2015). 

3.1.6 The Well Being and Future Generations Act established Public Service Board for each local 

authority area in Wales who must improve the economic, social environmental and cultural 

well-being of its area by working to achieve the well-being goals. The  Bridgend  PS 

(established in April 2016) are responsible for preparing and publishing a Local Well Being 

Plan (LWBP) which sets out its objectives and the steps it will take to meet them. The four 

statutory members of the PSB are the Local Authority, Local Health Board, Fire and Rescue 

Authority and Natural Resources Wales; other organisations are also invited. As part of its 

responsibility the PSB has produced a well-being assessment which assesses the state of 

economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being in Bridgend. The PSB Draft LWBP has 

recently been subject to consultation. The draft objectives are set out below and will inform the 

vision and objectives for the replacement LDP: 

 Objective 1 Best Start in Life; 

 Objective 2 Support Communities in Bridgend to be safe and cohesive; 

 Objective 3 Reduce Social and Economic Inequalities; and 

 Objective 4  Healthy Choices in a Healthy Environment. 

3.1.7 The Act places a duty on public bodies including local authorities to carry out sustainable 

development and to set objectives which maximise its contribution to achieving each of the 

seven wellbeing goals namely ‘a globally responsible Wales’, a prosperous Wales, a resilient 

Wales, a healthier Wales, a more equal Wales; a Wales of cohesive communities, and a 

Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language. 

3.1.8 Planning Policy Wales states that the Local Well Being Plan should provide the overarching 

strategic framework for all other plans and strategies for the local authority including the LDP. 

The LDP will need to complement the LWBP and ensure that it expresses in land use terms, 

those elements of the LWBP that relate to the development and use of land.  

LDP Objectives 

3.1.9 The LDP Vision is delivered through 4 Strategic Objectives (and 23 specific objectives) which 

seek to address the national, regional and local issues facing the County Borough. These four 

strategic objectives are at the centre of the LDP: They are: 

1. To produce high quality sustainable places; 

2. To protect and enhance the environment; 

3. To spread prosperity and opportunity through regeneration; and 

4. To create safe, healthy and inclusive communities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



20 | P a g e   

Assessment of the existing LDP Objectives against the Well Being Goals 

3.1.10 The assessment of compatibility between the 4 Strategic LDP Objectives (and 23 specific 

objectives) and the 7 Well Being Goals indicates that the current LDP Objectives contribute to 

achieving a range of Well Being goals and individual objectives delivering multiple goals. 

There is no obvious conflict between the Objectives and the Well Being Goals. However, 

ensuring the LDP and LWBP Objectives are compatible may require wording amendments to 

respective objectives going forward.  

3.1.11 The table below provides an assessment of LDP Objectives against Well Being Goals. 

 

 

 

 

LDP Objectives 

Well Being Goals 

P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s

 W
a

le
s
 

R
e

s
ilie

n
t W

a
le

s
 

H
e

a
lth

ie
r W

a
le

s
 

M
o

re
 E

q
u

a
l W

a
le

s
 

W
a

le
s

 
o

f 

c
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

itie
s
 

W
a

le
s

 
o

f 
v
ib

ra
n

t 

c
u

ltu
re

 
a
n

d
 

th
riv

in
g

 
W

e
ls

h
 

L
a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 

G
lo

b
a
lly

 

re
s

p
o

n
s
ib

le
 

W
a
le

s
 

1. To produce high quality sustainable 

places 

       

1a. To promote Bridgend as the key principal 

settlement of the County Borough where major 

employment, commercial and residential 

development is focused. 

       

1b. To revitalise Maesteg by recognising its role 

as the principal settlement serving the Llynfi 

Valley which has the potential capacity and 

infrastructure to accommodate future growth. 

       

1c. To realise the potential of Porthcawl as a 

premier seaside and tourist destination which 

capitalises on the regeneration of its waterfront. 

       

1d. To recognise the strategic potential of the 

Valleys Gateway to provide for future 

development and facilities serving the whole of 

the County Borough. 

       

1e. To promote sustainable and attractive valley 

settlements with improved access to jobs and 

services. 

       

1f. To reduce traffic growth, congestion and 

commuting levels whilst promoting the safe and 

efficient use of the transport network. 

       

Page 78



21 | P a g e   

1g. To support integrated transport solutions 

and measures that will encourage modal shift to 

more sustainable forms of transport for people 

and freight. 

       

2. To protect and enhance the environment        

2a. To promote, conserve and enhance the 

natural, historic and built environment of the 

County Borough. 

       

2b. To safeguard the quality of water, air and 

soil and tackle all sources of pollution. 

       

2c. To manage development in order to avoid or 

minimise the risk and fear of flooding and enable 

and improve the functionality of floodplains. 

       

2d. To meet the Council’s regional and local 

commitments for mineral resources, waste 

management and waste disposal. 

       

2e. To contribute towards the energy needs of 

Wales with a focus on the promotion of 

renewable energy. 

       

3. To spread prosperity through regeneration        

3a. To build a more diverse, dynamic and self 

reliant economy and business environment. 

       

3b. To provide a realistic level and variety of 

employment land to facilitate the delivery of high 

quality workspaces and job opportunities. 

       

3c. To bring the benefits of regeneration to the 

valley communities by directing new 

development to those areas at a scale which 

acknowledges their geographical constraints 

and infrastructure capacity. 

       

3d. To capitalise upon the environmental assets 

and tourism potential of Porthcawl to encourage 

people to visit and stay in the County Borough. 

       

3e. To enable Bridgend Town to become an 

attractive and successful regional retail and 

commercial destination which meets the needs 

of its catchment. 

       

Page 79



22 | P a g e   

3f. To support viable town and district centres in 

the County Borough which are attractive and 

economically successful. 

       

3g. To protect and promote the role of smaller 

shopping centres and freestanding local shops 

in the County Borough. 

       

4. To create safe, healthy and inclusive 

communities 

       

4a. To provide a land use framework that 

recognises the needs of deprived areas within 

the County Borough, which affords those 

communities the opportunities to tackle the 

sources of their deprivation. 

       

4b. To ensure that there is equality of access to 

community services for all sectors of the 

community, addressing the particular needs of 

children the young, older people and the less 

able.  

       

4c. To deliver the level and type of residential 

development to meet the identified needs of the 

County Borough ensuring that a significant 

proportion is affordable and accessible to all. 

       

4d. To provide for the required quantity and 

range of accessible leisure, recreational, health, 

social and community facilities throughout the 

County Borough. 

       

 

3.1.12 Overall, however, there is no fundamental conflict with purpose and objectives of the LWBP. 

Should any changes be made to the Plan, these would have to be devised in accordance with 

the well- being goals. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



23 | P a g e   

Review of LDP Regeneration-Led Sustainable Development Distribution Strategy 

3.2 ‘Regeneration’ in the context of the LDP’s Regeneration-Led Spatial Strategy, is defined as 

an overarching and balanced process that delivers investment and opportunity to areas and 

communities within the County Borough of previous or current decline, to improve their 

physical, economic and social fabric. 

3.2.1 In the context of the County Borough, regeneration needs and priorities relate to the 

development of specific sites that are key to the success of the County Borough, including 

those that are in need of redevelopment and investment, and sustaining wider communities 

that are in particular need of regeneration and growth to stem acknowledged and continuing 

decline. 

3.2.2 The Regeneration-Led Spatial Strategy puts in place a policy framework that can best deliver 

the regeneration needs of the County Borough in order for it to prosper and fully realise its 

potential. The LDP Strategy was developed to provide a land use framework, to help realise 

the regeneration aspirations and priorities of the Council, and make the most meaningful 

contribution with respect to securing social, environmental and economic benefits for the 

communities of the County Borough. 

Focused Regeneration 

3.2.3 Taking into account the spatial distribution of regeneration activities and needs, development 

is directed to settlements and parts of the County Borough which will benefit the most and 

where there are opportunities for securing the greatest positive impacts and benefits of 

growth. 

3.2.4 In line with the above, four Strategic Regeneration Growth Areas (SRGAs) at: 

 Bridgend; 

 Porthcawl; 

 Maesteg and the Llynfi Valley; and 

 The Valleys Gateway 

3.2.5 together with four Strategic Employment Sites at: 

 Brocastle, Waterton, Bridgend; 

 Island Farm, Bridgend; 

 Pencoed Technology Park, Pencoed; and 

 Ty Draw Farm, North Cornelly 

3.2.6 have been identified which, collectively, will deliver a range of mixed-use developments and 

facilities. The re-use of brownfield and under-utalised land in this way is viewed by national 

policy as a key way to creating a more sustainable pattern of development. Therefore the 

overall preference of the LDP Strategy is for the development of land within urban areas, 

especially on previously developed ‘brownfield’ sites, before considering the development of 

greenfield sites. The level of development and growth identified in the LDP has taken into 

account how much development would be required to have a significant regenerative effect, 

the availability of sites for development in that area, existing settlement patterns, having 

regard to the social and economic function and identity of settlements and to relevant 

environmental considerations.  

Strategic Development Distribution  

3.2.7 In order to Produce High Quality Sustainable Places, Strategic Policy SP1 aims to ensure 

that development is distributed according to the LDP’s Regeneration-Led Sustainable 

Development Strategy. To assess how effective the LDP has been is in implementing its 

Page 81



24 | P a g e   

overall Strategy a number of indicators and targets have been devised by the Council that 

measure the ‘spatial distribution’ of housing and employment development. Policy Target 1 

measures the spatial distribution of housing growth and requires that 85% or more of 

housing development, on allocated sites takes place within the Strategic Regeneration 

Growth Areas (SRGAs) by 2021.  

3.2.8 At a base date of 2009, Housing Policies COM1 and COM2 of the LDP allocated 7,894 

housing units across the County Borough. 6,358 of these allocated housing units are located 

within the 4 SRGAs of Bridgend, Maesteg and the Llynfi Valley, Porthcawl and the Valleys 

Gateway.  

3.2.9 At 2017, since the base date of 2009, a total of 2703 housing units have been completed on 

all allocated sites, 1773 of these units have been completed within the 4 SRGAs – which 

represents 65.6% of overall completions on allocated sites within the 4 SRGAs. This is below 

the 85% 2021 target but considerably greater than the 2016 Interim Target of 38%.  

3.2.10 In distribution terms ‘between’ the 4 SRGAs, Bridgend and the Valleys Gateway have over 

performed in terms of delivery, with 43% of completions taking place in Bridgend (compared 

with a distribution of allocations of 42%) and 17.5 % of completions, within the Valleys 

Gateway (compared with a distribution of 16% of allocations), Porthcawl (5%) and Maesteg 

and the Llynfi Valley (0.2%) have underperformed in terms of delivery, which is largely 

attributed to the delay in bringing forward the Porthcawl Waterfront Regeneration Area and 

within the Llynfi Valley, where there has been issues of housing market viability and the need 

to overcome various site constraints by land reclamation and land assembly. (A review of 

these sites is provided in Appendix 2).  

3.2.11 Policy Targets 2 and 3 measure the ‘distribution’ of employment development on allocated 

employment sites, and the readying of the 4 Strategic Employment Sites respectively. Policy 

Targets 2 and 3 requires that 80% or more of employment land is developed within 

employment allocations located within the 4 Strategic Regeneration Growth Areas (SRGAs) 

and that by 2016 all the Strategic Employment Sites are classified in the Annual Employment 

Land Review as immediately or short term available.  

3.2.12 For the monitoring period 1st April 2016 – 31 March 2017, 1.13 hectares of vacant 

employment land was taken up for development on allocated sites within the SRGAs. The 

total take up of employment land (including sites outside of SRGAs) totalled 1.40 hectares. 

This therefore represents 80.7% of overall take with the SRGAs, which meets the monitoring 

target of 80% and reveals that the spatial distribution is broadly on track, albeit it is accepted 

that the take up of vacant employment land is low.  

3.2.13 Policy Targets 1, 2 and 3 have been broadly successful, however the indicators suggest that 

LDP Policy SP1 is not being effective as it should. In terms of Policy Target 1 the 

underperformance of Porthcawl, Maesteg and the Llynfi Valley SGRAs in terms of housing 

delivery are largely attributed to the delay in bringing forward the Porthcawl Waterfront 

Regeneration Area and within the Llynfi Valley, where there has been issues of housing 

market viability and the need to overcome various site constraints by land reclamation and 

land assembly However, this issue will be the subject of rigorous testing during the review 

process. 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



25 | P a g e   

Housing  

3.2.14 Five Policy Targets monitor the performance of whether the LDP is meeting its housing 

needs by measuring the supply of housing land (Policy Target 25), housing completions, for 

both market and affordable dwellings (Policy Targets 26 and 29), housing numbers permitted 

on allocated sites (Policy Target 27), housing density (Policy Target 28) and whether there is 

a need for a permanent or transit Gypsy and Traveller site (Policy Target 30).  

Housing Land Availability 

3.2.15 Policy Target 25 aims to provide a 5 year supply of housing land for development throughout 

the plan period. The supply of land for housing is assessed as part of the annual Joint 

Housing Land Availability Study (JHLAS) which is a statutory document which local planning 

authorities are required to produce by Welsh Government in accordance with guidance set 

out in Planning Policy Wales (PPW) and Technical Advice Note (TAN) 1. Supply is assessed 

against the housing requirements of an adopted development plan.  

3.2.16 The 2017 JHLAS shows that the County Borough has housing land supply, assessed against 

the housing requirement of the Bridgend LDP of 4.0 years.  

 

Study Date Number of Years of Supply 

2007 8.1 

2008 6.6 

2009 6.2 

2010 5.2 

2011 5.5 

2012 5.1 

2013 5.7 

2014 6.0 

2015 5.4 

2016 5.1 

2017 4.0 

 

3.2.17 The table above demonstrates that this is the first year since the LDP adoption in 2013 that 

the land supply has fallen below the 5 year target. Where the land supply is less than 5 

years, TAN1 states that local planning authorities should consider the reasons for the 

shortfall and whether the LDP should be reviewed either in whole or in part.  

3.2.18 It is considered that the most effective way of rectifying this issue is through an early 

review/revision of the adopted LDP given the importance attached to the land supply issue. 

However, the statutory 4 year LDP review process will provide the impetus for the LPA to 

update its evidence base, review the LDP strategy, and rectify the land supply issues by 

identifying and allocating additional housing land. This would assist in seeking to avoid 

‘planning by appeal’ and ad hoc development coming forward outside the development plan 

system and not in accordance with the LDP’s strategy.  

 

Page 83



26 | P a g e   

3.2.19 A review of the AMR’s has shown that the Local Development Plan has performed well 

delivering many significant benefits for our communities. Most of the housing sites and 

associated infrastructure allocated in the LDP have been delivered. As expected Bridgend 

SRGA has delivered the highest proportion of residential units (reflecting the growth strategy 

of the LDP), in particular Parc Derwen which has delivered 999 residential units. However, it 

is acknowledged that in the Strategic Regeneration Growth Areas of Maesteg and the Llynfi 

Valley, Porthcawl and the Valleys Gateway. a number of challenging brownfield sites have 

stalled due to a combination of viability issues and in some cases land ownership issues 

albeit that progress is being made in bringing these sites forward. Whilst the LDP’s key 

housing provision policies have largely been successful, it must be acknowledged that as the 

plan enters the final stages of its ‘life-cycle’ it is inevitable there would be land supply issues. 

Nevertheless it is imperative that this issue is addressed as a matter of urgency in the 

interests of ensuring sustainable growth for the County Borough of Bridgend.  

Housing Completions  

3.2.20 The LDP (Policy Target 26) aims to provide 9,690 new dwellings by 2021, based on the 

three, 5 year tranches of delivery set out in Policy SP12 of the LDP. This equates to an 

average annual completion rate of 646 dwellings per annum which is an ambitious level of 

growth compared to the level of dwelling completions experienced within the County 

Borough prior to the start of the plan period in 2006. 

3.2.21 The graph below highlights the annual completions set out in the JHLAS studies from 2013-

2017 are consistently below the LDP average completion rate (646 dwellings per annum). 

The cumulative impact of not achieving the LDP average completion rate has resulted in 

failure to meet the interim monitoring target to deliver 4,973 residential units by 2016 (this 

was reported in last year’s AMR).  

Dwelling Completions between 2006/07 and 2016/17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2.22 Whilst it is disappointing that target 26 has not been met, the deficit is a reflection of the 

overall trend in the UK and Wales for housing completions. Last year’s AMR highlighted a 

deficit of 333 units in terms of the requirement to deliver 4,973 residential units by 2016. The 

2017 JHLAS indicates that 406 units were completed since the last study and that 4978 

dwellings have now been completed in total, during the LDP period 2006 to 2017. Current 

data highlights that the LDP has meet the 2016 interim target figure albeit a year late.  

Affordable Housing Delivery 

3.2.23 In terms of the delivery of affordable housing, Policy Target 29 requires the delivery of 1,370 

units by 2021 with the interim target to provide 703 affordable dwellings by 2016. Analysis of 

the housing data indicates that at 2016, 1014 affordable units had been delivered which met 

Page 84



27 | P a g e   

the interim target to provide 703 affordable dwellings by 2016. For the period 2016-2017 an 

additional 136 affordable housing units were delivered, which provides a total of 1150. As 

such, it is considered that affordable housing delivery has been relatively successful and the 

LDP is on track to deliver 1,370 units by 2021. 

Affordable Housing Policy 

3.2.24 Policy COM5 of the LDP sets differential affordable housing percentage rates which are 

sought across three housing sub-market areas within Bridgend: 

 Western Settlements, Ogmore Vale, Garw & Upper Llynfi (15%); 

 Bridgend, Pencoed and Hinterland (20%); and 

 Rural and Porthcawl (30%) 

3.2.25 The affordable housing strategy, housing sub-market areas and percentages sought will be 

reviewed as part of the overall strategy and aspirations of the revised LDP and updated 

viability evidence. 

Gypsy and Traveller Site Provision 

3.2.26 Policy Target 30 requires that the Local Planning Authority monitors the need for a Gypsy 

and Traveller Site by recording the annual number of authorised and unauthorised 

encampments in the County Borough. The interim target is that there is no increase in the 

average of 3 unauthorised Gypsy and Traveller Sites within 1 year, as recorded in the Gypsy 

and Traveller Caravan Count and/or the Council’s Gypsy and Traveller Protocol. An increase 

above 3 unauthorised encampments for 2 consecutive years would trigger the requirement to 

identify a site. 

3.2.27 The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 requires each local authority in Wales to undertake a Gypsy 

and Traveller Accommodation Assessment to ensure that needs are properly assessed and 

planned for. An assessment was required to be submitted to Welsh Government by February 

2016 with a statutory duty placed on local authorities to make provision for site(s) where an 

assessment identifies an unmet need.  

3.2.28 The Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment was formally approved by Bridgend 

County Borough Council Cabinet and Welsh Government in 2016. In summary, the GTAA 

covers the period 2016-2031and estimates the additional pitch provision needed for Gypsies 

and Travellers in Bridgend. For the first 5 years of the GTAA plan period, there is no 

requirement for additional pitches, and for the remainder of the GTAA plan period, a further 1 

additional pitch is required. This gives a total need for the whole GTAA plan period of 1 

additional pitch. 

3.2.29 Therefore, Gypsy and Traveller provision will be given further consideration through the LDP 

review process. In terms of transit sites, it is considered that these would best be considered 

on a regional basis, requiring collaboration with neighbouring local authorities through the 

LDP revision and SDP process. In terms of the existing policy framework, Policy COM6 – 

Gypsy and Sites - appears to be functioning effectively. However the policy may need to be 

revised to align with the latest legislation. This issue will be given further consideration in the 

LDP revision process. 

Employment Land Development 

3.2.30 The Local Development Plan’s employment land is safeguarded for employment purposes, 

by Policies SP9 and REG 1. The future prosperity of the local economy is facilitated by 

ensuring that the County Borough can offer a range and choice of employment sites and 

premises for employment uses.  

Page 85



28 | P a g e   

3.2.31 To achieve the objective of a prosperous local economy Policy Target 19 aims to develop 

72.5 ha of employment land during the Plan period up to 2021 and Policy Target 20 aims to 

ensure that the identified employment allocated by Policy SP9 and REG 1 is readily 

available. Policy Targets 19 and 20 are monitored by an annual employment land survey 

which monitors the take-up of vacant land on all of the County Borough’s allocated 

employment sites together with the land’s status in terms of availability.  

3.2.32 The monitoring target associated with Policy Target 19 is that 6.3 hectares of employment 

land is developed annually on allocated sites. During the monitoring period 01 April 2016 to 

31 March 2017 a total of 1.52 hectares of vacant employment land was developed. During 

the preceding year 0.45 ha of employment land was developed. The AMRs have highlighted 

that the LDP’s strategic aim of delivering 6.3 ha of employment land per annum allocated by 

Policies SP9 and REG1 per annum has not been partially met for 3 consecutive years with 

respect to Policy Target 21; therefore further analysis is required to determine why the LDP 

has not delivered 6.3ha of employment land.  

3.2.33 In this context it is important to note that the amount of land allocated for employment 

purposes in the LDP exceeded the need identified in the Employment Land Review 

(2010).This approach was adopted to reflect that national planning policy advocated at the 

time adopting a positive, flexible approach to employment land provision which would 

provide a simple policy framework for private sector enterprise to operate within, giving a 

range and choice of sites across the County Borough. This approach also supported the 

Local Planning Authority in implementing the regeneration-led spatial strategy of the LDP.  

3.2.34 Whilst the County Borough of Bridgend has one of highest rates of employment land in 

South East Wales it is important to recognise that the amount of employment land allocated 

has not frustrated the population and housing growth aspirations of the Plan. Employment 

land provision was aligned, to the strategic spatial distribution of this growth. In the context of 

a regeneration-led strategy, it was considered important that employment land provision 

should not be tied to, and limited by, population growth, but should reflect the economic 

regeneration objectives of the plan; helping to assist the Council and its partners in tackling 

some of the existing economic deprivation which currently exists in the County Borough in a 

positive, flexible manner.  

3.2.35 In recognition of the need for the borough to have a range and choice of employment sites 

which are attractive and flexible enough to potential investors, LDP Policy SP9 allocated 38 

hectares of strategic employment land at the following locations:  

 SP9(1) Brocastle, Waterton, Bridgend 20 Hectares  

 SP9(2) Island Farm, Bridgend 11 Hectares  

 SP9(3) Pencoed Technology Park 5 Hectares  

 SP9(4) Ty Draw Farm, North Cornelly 2 Hectares  

3.2.36 The strategic sites are distinguished from other employment sites on the basis of their 

physical and locational characteristics, particularly their prominent locations adjacent to 

areas of countryside, and their proximity to the strategic road network. They represent the 

greatest assets to Bridgend and the region in terms of their potential to generate high levels 

of jobs but it must be acknowledged that the allocation of these sites skew the figures in 

terms of the amount land allocated for employment purposes exceeding the need identified 

in the Employment Land Review (2010).  

3.2.37 Considerable progress is also being made with ‘readying’ the 4 Strategic Employment Sites 

for development, however it is important to recognise that these sites require substantial 

investment in infrastructure and will have long-lead in times but as the economy improves 

(albeit slowly) and market demand improves it is predicted that these strategic sites are likely 

Page 86



29 | P a g e   

to be delivered at the end of the plan period / post 2021. 

3.2.38 SP9(4) Ty Draw Farm – The site benefits from a planning consent, P/12/796/FUL – granted 

22/01/14, for 94 dwellings associated access, open space, with B1 employment use for the 

remainder of the site. On the basis that the residential part of the site is now complete, the 

B1 part of the site is considered to be available for development in the short term. The 

applicant is seeking to vary the S106 to extend the time limit for delivering the employment 

element of the scheme. The site is currently being marketed and it is anticipated that 

development will start in 2018. However, as a result of the LPA not maintaining its 5 year 

housing land supply it is expected that the LPA will come under pressure to release this site 

for new residential development. 

3.2.39 SP9(2) Land at Island Farm, Bridgend – The site benefits from an outline planning 

application, P/08/1114/OUT, granted for mixed-use sport, leisure, commercial and offices on 

14/03/12. P/14/824/RES – Highway infrastructure, green bridge and drainage infrastructure, 

was also granted on 12/06/15 at Island Farm. The infrastructure will enable the B1 part of 

this approved mixed-use, leisure led development to come forward. A further planning 

application, P/15/318/NMA has been approved for amendments to conditions relating to 

P/08/1114/OUT, to enable ecological mitigation to take place. HD limited has started work on 

site and are in the process of delivering the key infrastructure for the site including roads and 

drainage. The developer has provided a timescale of two years for the delivery of the Tennis 

Academy followed by the commercial part of the scheme.  

3.2.40 SP9(1) Brocastle, Waterton – Planning permission has been granted for a development of 

up to 71,441sq.m of B1, B2 and B8 employment floorspace, including access, car parking, 

diversion of public rights of way, site remediation, drainage, landscaping and associated 

engineering operations. The approved development complies with the Council's planning 

policies and will deliver national and local policy objectives of achieving a sustainable 

development by minimising impact on ecology and habitats, supporting existing green 

infrastructure and using the site’s natural features to provide a layout that responds to its 

semi-rural location thus creating a high quality development. The development will also 

support inclusive access and active travel and provide connectivity to Bridgend Town Centre 

and links to the Vale of Glamorgan. Furthermore, the development can be designed to 

minimise its potential visual impact and any impacts on the amenity of those residents that 

adjoin the site (Planning application reference P/16/549/OUT refers). It is hugely positive that 

planning permission is in place and it is considered that this site is available for employment 

development in the medium term.  

3.2.41 SP9(3) – Pencoed Technology Park is also owned by Welsh Government. The site 

straddles the eastern administrative boundary of Bridgend and RCT. The site is identified 

and the focus of High Quality Life Sciences and manufacturing and is already the home of a 

number of high profile investments. Welsh Government have extended their ownership at the 

site by acquiring the brownfield former Sony land holding and are also in the process of 

acquiring a small land parcel in the Councils ownership. Substantial infrastructure is in place, 

including ‘road stubs’ to undeveloped parcels, including the land within Bridgend’s 

administrative area, and the site is considered to be immediately available for development. 

In January 2017 planning permission was granted to NHS Wales for a change of use of the 

former Sanken Power Systems building to create a National Imaging Academy offering a 

state of the art facility to train Consultant Radiologists and ancillary office work space 

(planning application P/17/39/FUL refers). This site was chosen by the NHS for its strategic 

location in the heart of ‘South Wales’ and proximity to the strategic road network. The 

creation of National Academy is extremely positive as it demonstrates that the Technology 

Park is in the right location to attract new business but also has the potential to become a 

Page 87



30 | P a g e   

hub for office headquarters for both the public and private sectors.  

3.2.42 Also, in the context of ‘City Deal’ and a future Strategic Development Plan for SE Wales; 

Bridgend and RCT local planning authorities have had initial discussions regarding the 

potential of a wider Pencoed / Llanilid growth area that could deliver significant levels of high 

quality residential and employment land for the Cardiff Capital Region. This site could make 

a significant contribution to the employment element of such a growth area.  

3.2.43 The LDP recognises that if Bridgend is to retain its competitive industrial base it is imperative 

that the area is able to offer a broad portfolio of sites. In addition to those Strategic sites 

identified and safeguarded under Policy SP9, Policy REG1 also identifies a variety of 

employment sites suitable for all types of employment uses of varying size and type.  

3.2.44 In addition to identifying established employment sites, Policy REG1 also includes those 

employment areas which have vacant land for development for employment purposes and 

therefore have an important contribution to make in fulfilling the LDP Strategy. The remaining 

areas of vacant land on existing industrial estates collectively offer opportunities for 

investment for employment purposes whilst not frustrating the population and housing growth 

aspirations of the Plan. 

3.2.45 Many of the sites listed in the policy also form parts of much larger regeneration or mixed-

use sites additionally allocated by Policy PLA3. The development of these sites for 

employment purposes as part of much wider schemes containing other uses will help to 

create sustainable mixed use areas within existing communities, helping to facilitate the 

physical regeneration of the site and acting as enabling development to the delivery of the 

employment element, thereby improving the socio-economic regeneration of the wider area.  

3.2.46 The current low take-up of employment land on REG1 and PLA3 sites is attributed to the fact 

that because of the considerable loss of industrial and business capacity that took place 

during the recession, most new employment activity is actively being taken up within existing 

vacant buildings and/or extensions on allocated employment sites rather than on new sites. 

Effectively the lost capacity as a result of recession is being regained before new take-up 

accelerates as the economy improves.  

3.2.47 The failure of the LDP to meet Policy Target 19 for a third consecutive year is of concern to 

the LPA but is not a true reflection of what is happening in the real economy, where between 

2016 to 2017 the number of people in employment increased. Data indicates that the number 

of small to medium sized enterprises in Bridgend is increasing at a quicker rate than for 

Wales as a whole. Collectively, this demonstrates that the expansion in business stock in 

Bridgend is continuing to improve albeit at a slower pace than previously predicted.  

3.2.48 Contextual indicators and comparisons with other local authorities show that notwithstanding 

the low take up of employment land the ‘real’ economy is relatively buoyant and that the 

failure to meet this target is the result of the recent very deep recession and the regaining of 

previous lost capacity. The Council’s Economic Development Section has highlighted that 

few empty units remain on the boroughs industrial estates and there is pent up demand for 

small to medium sized units. Bridgend retains its locational advantages for business and can 

expect higher levels of employment land take-up in the latter part of the Plan period. A formal 

review of policy will be undertaken during the statutory LDP review process.  

3.2.49 It is reiterated that the amount of employment land allocated in the context of a regeneration-

led strategy has not frustrated the population and housing growth aspirations of the Plan. 

Whilst the LDP monitoring target has not been met, the effects of the recession on South-

east Wales and Bridgend must be given due consideration when determining the reasons as 

to why the development of vacant, allocated employment land has not occurred at the long-

Page 88



31 | P a g e   

term average rate of 6.33 hectares per annum. It is considered that the employment 

allocations and strategy in the LDP remain broadly sound but will be the subject of rigorous 

testing during the statutory LDP review.  

Reconsideration of the LDP Strategy 

3.2.50 The inability to meet the adopted LDP’s housing requirement and the resulting failure to 

maintain a 5 year housing land supply indicates that either additional housing sites are 

required or the level of housing growth required by the LDP’s strategy will need to be 

reconsidered as part of a revision of the LDP. In addition, all undelivered housing allocations 

will need to be re-assessed to ensure that they remain viable and deliverable. This could 

result in existing housing allocations being removed from the LDP and new sites allocated.  

3.2.51 In addition to considering the current proposed level of housing growth, the revision of the 

Plan will also need to consider the implications of an extended Plan period. The current 

Plan runs to 2021, any revised Plan is likely to extend to 2033. Extending the Plan period 

will result in a revised dwelling need and a requirement for new sites for both market and 

affordable dwellings. It will need to take account of the latest population and household 

projections and a revised Local Housing Market Assessment, as well as other updates to 

the evidence base. Consideration will also need to be given to the policy aspirations linked 

to the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, together wider contextual matters. 

3.2.52 These updates and issues will need to be thoroughly considered and addressed as part of 

the Plan revision process which cumulatively could result in a change to the Plan’s strategy.  

In view of this, it is considered that the spatial strategy will need to be reviewed as part of 

the LDP revision process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



32 | P a g e   

Review of Policies 

3.3 The LDP policies have been reviewed having regard to the following: 

 Findings of the three LDP Annual Monitoring Reports; 

 Significant contextual changes that have occurred since the Plan’s adoption, 

including changes in national policy and legislation; and 

 Internal consultation with development management officers and other specialist 

officers, including housing, green infrastructure, heritage and economic development 

officers. Topic based officer working groups were established to discuss policy 

implementation, with consideration given to how policies are functioning/being 

implemented.  

3.3.1 A summary of the policy review assessment is set out in Appendix 2. This gives an overview 

of whether a policy/allocation is functioning effectively, whether any amendments are likely to 

be needed and whether any policies should be removed as part of the Plan revision process. 

The policy assessment undertaken to date is not considered to be definitive and further 

consideration will be given to the need to revise the Plan’s policies as part of the revision 

process. 

3.3.2 The key policies that are considered likely to require amendment based on the policy review 

assessment are discussed in more detail below. 

Housing and Site Allocations 

3.3.3 As evidenced in the Annual Monitoring Reports, to date the adopted Bridgend LDP has not 

delivered the level of housing growth identified in the Plan which has resulted in a shortfall 

in the housing land supply. As part of the revision process consideration will, therefore, 

need to be given to the appropriate level of housing growth for the County over an extended 

Plan period. In addition, consideration will be given to adopted spatial strategy to determine 

whether it remains ‘fit for purpose’, having regard to wider policy aspirations associated with 

Cardiff Capital Region and Bridgend Well-Being Plan. Accordingly, it is anticipated that 

policies SP1 (Regeneration-Led Development – Spatial Distribution of Growth) will need to 

be revised to rectify the shortfall in housing land.  

3.3.4 In addition LDP Policy COM1 (Residential Allocations in the Strategic Regeneration Growth 

Areas) will need to be reviewed as part of the revision process. This will provide the 

opportunity for the LPA to assess and potentially reconsider undelivered housing allocations 

to ensure that they remain viable and deliverable which could result in existing allocations 

being removed from the replacement Plan. It will also be necessary to allocate additional 

deliverable and viable sites to meet the County’s housing requirement over an extended 

Plan period. 

3.3.5 A detailed review of LDP Housing Allocations is set out in Appendix 2. 

Open Space  

3.3.6 The existing open space and accessible natural green space policies contained in the LDP 

were informed by the Bridgend Outdoor Sports Audit (2010) and Children’s Playing Space 

Audit (2010) and Allotments Audit (2009).  

3.3.7 The evidence base identified deficiencies in the quantity and quality of existing provision in 

relation to the Fields in Trust Six Acre Standard adopted in the LDP. It is considered that 

in general the Plan’s recreation and open space policies are functioning effectively in 

safeguarding existing recreation facilities and public open space and in securing provision of 

Page 90



33 | P a g e   

new facilities in connection with new residential development in accordance with the adopted 

standards.  

3.3.8 Whilst there have been no contextual changes to national planning policy or TAN16: Sport, 

Recreation and Open Space (2009) since adoption of the Plan, Fields in Trust produced new 

guidance in 2017, ‘Guidance for Outdoor Sport and Play: Beyond the Six Acre Standard.’ 

This guidance, while retaining the same headline rates of provision as the original “Six Acre 

Standard”, draws out new recommendations for accessibility, for flexible application of 

standards and the minimum dimensions of formal outdoor space. The revision of the 

guidelines also introduces benchmarking for informal open space not involving organised 

sport and play and includes parks and gardens and natural and semi-natural habitats. The 

amendments to the guidance do not result in a requirement to make modifications to current 

LDP standards as the TAN promotes evidence based locally generated standards. However, 

the revised recommended benchmark guidelines for both formal and informal outdoor space 

will be considered as part of the LDP revision process.  

Retail 

3.3.9 The overall aim of Strategic Policy SP10 is to focus and direct new retail, commercial and 

leisure developments within the County Borough Retail and Commercial Centres in order to 

maintain and protect their vitality and viability. A key strand of the LDP’s Sustainable 

Regeneration-Led Spatial Strategy is to promote the County Borough’s 3 main town centres 

as part of the LDP Vision, which seeks to create a successful regional employment, 

commercial and service centre in Bridgend, a vibrant waterfront and tourism destination in 

Porthcawl and a revitalised Maesteg.  

3.3.10 The Adopted LDP was informed by a retail needs planning study and subsequent 

update (2010) prepared by CACI. This evidence will need to be updated as part of the 

LDP revision process.  

Town Centre Vacancy Rates  

3.3.11 In order to measure how successful Policy SP10 is in directing appropriate new retail and 

leisure development to the County Borough’s town and district centres to maintain their 

vitality and viability the monitoring framework looks at 3 Policy Targets relating to vacancy 

rates of commercial properties within town centres (Policy Target 21), the integrity of the 

Primary Shopping Streets within the town centres (Policy Target 22) and progress on the 

regeneration of key sites within the town centres (Policy Target 23).  

3.3.12 The annual monitoring target for Policy Target 21 is to ensure that the vacancy rates of 

commercial properties within the 3 town centres of Bridgend, Porthcawl and Maesteg remain 

below 15% throughout the plan period.  

3.3.13 The latest annual retailing and commercial centre survey indicates that:-  

 Within Bridgend Town Centre of the 379 commercial properties surveyed 67 were  

vacant – representing a vacancy rate of 17.68%;  

 Within Porthcawl Town Centre of the 204 commercial properties surveyed 10 were 

vacant – representing a vacancy rate of 4.90%; and  

 Within Maesteg Town Centre of the 167 commercial properties surveyed 10 were 

vacant – representing a vacancy rate of 5.99%.  

 

 

Page 91



34 | P a g e   

3.3.14 The LDP’s strategic aim of maintaining and protecting the vitality and viability of town centres 

has not been partially met for the monitoring period 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017 with 

respect to Policy Target 21. Whilst the monitoring target has only been marginally missed for 

Bridgend, further investigations are required. This issue will be scrutinised in detail during the 

statutory LDP review process where a comprehensive assessment of town centre policies 

combined with an updated ‘Retail Needs Assessment’ will provide clarity on the appropriate 

policy direction.  

3.3.15 The annual monitoring target relating to Policy Target 22, to maintain the integrity of the 

Primary Shopping Frontages of Bridgend, Porthcawl and Maesteg is to ensure that 60% or 

more units are in A1 (Retail) use. The latest annual retailing and commercial centre survey 

indicates that:-  

 Within Bridgend Town Centre of the 111 units within the Primary Shopping Frontages 

67 were in A1 use – representing 60.36%.  

 Within Porthcawl Town Centre of the 95 units within the Primary Shopping Frontages 

62 were in A1 use – representing 65.26%.  

 Within Maesteg Town Centre of the 85 units within the Primary Shopping Frontages 

52 were in A1 use – representing 61.18%.  

3.3.16 Data collected as part of last year’s retailing and commercial survey highlighted that the 

proportion of Maesteg town centres’ primary shopping frontages had fallen below the annual 

target for two consecutive years. However, the current data highlights a marginal improvement 

in the vacancy rates (61.18%) which means that the annual target has been met. Considering 

the current economic climate this data is very encouraging but will need to be considered in 

greater detail during the LDP Review to ensure this upwards trajectory.  

3.3.17 The proportion of units occupied by A1 uses in Porthcawl’s primary shopping frontages has 

increased from 63.16% to 65.26% which reflects the increasing number of tourists visiting 

Porthcawl. Conversely, whilst Monitoring Target 22 has been achieved, Bridgend town centre 

recorded a decrease in the number of units located in the Primary Shopping Frontage 

occupied by A1 uses for the third consecutive year. As such it is considered that further 

investigation is required to understand and action where further measures are required to 

limit further losses. This analysis will be combined with an update of the ‘Retail Needs 

Assessment’ (as part of the statutory LDP Review).  

3.3.18 To mitigate against the tough economic conditions currently being experienced and to ensure 

the vitality of the County Borough’s town centres, the Council has chosen to exercise 

sufficient flexibility when applying LDP Policy REG6 to allow changes of uses to non-A1 uses 

in Primary Shopping Frontages where an applicant can provide robust evidence to 

demonstrate that there is insufficient demand for A1 units and its loss would not materially 

dilute the continuity of the Primary Shopping Frontage. It is the view of this authority that 

permitting a small number of changes of uses is more conducive to sustaining the viability of 

the town centre rather than allowing empty units to stand idle.  

3.3.19 A number of contextual changes to national planning policy have occurred since the 

preparation and Adoption of the LDP. Welsh Government have published a revised version 

of Chapter 10 of PPW and TAN4 (Retail and Commercial Development) in November 

2016. These documents have been updated to reflect the Welsh Government’s revised 

national planning policy for retailing and commercial development. The main areas of change 

include revised objectives for retail planning policy, stronger emphasis on the need for retail 

policies to be framed by a retail strategy in LDPs (complemented by masterplans and place 

plans to assist in the delivery of the strategy), a requirement for LDPs to set out a locally 

Page 92



35 | P a g e   

derived hierarchy of centres and revised policies for dealing with new uses/centres 

undergoing change and a consistent approach to terminology. However, the policy 

requirement to consider retail and commercial centres first for retail and complementary uses 

remains, as do the requirements for retail need, sequential tests and impact assessments, 

where appropriate. The amendments to national policy do not result in a requirement to 

make modifications to current LDP policies; however, the revised guidance will be taken into 

account in the LDP revision process. 

3.3.20 A new Retail Study will be undertaken in order to inform the revised LDP. This study will 

provided an update of the retail expenditure forecasts for comparison and convenience retail 

for the County Borough. The purpose of a new retail study will be to provide comprehensive 

data and information on the current performance of the retailing and commercial centres and 

to provide an up‐to‐date assessment of retail expenditure capacity within the County Borough 

and identify capacity for comparison and convenience goods. This updated study will inform 

the Plan revision in terms of retail strategy, retail policies and LDP allocations.  

Planning Obligations 

3.3.21 LDP Strategic Policy S14 ‘Infrastructure’ seeks to ensure that new development is 

accompanied by an appropriate level of infrastructure to assist in providing for sustainable 

communities. The policy is being delivered through the development management process. 

Contributions are being secured through the use of planning obligations, as set out in Section 

106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Planning obligations seek contributions from 

developers to enhance the quality of a development, provide community benefits and 

infrastructure, and mitigate any negative impacts that may arise as a consequence of the 

development. 

3.3.22 The Council decided not to commence work on CIL following adoption of the LDP in 2013. 

Whilst this would have provided an alternative means of providing the necessary infrastructure 

to support development in the LDP, the view was taken that the LDP strategic sites could be 

delivered without the need for CIL as each site had specific infrastructure requirements that 

could be dealt with through a standard Section 106 legal agreement. 

3.3.23 The current policy is functioning effectively and contributions are being received (subject to 

viability considerations) to off-set the impacts of new development and help provide necessary 

infrastructure such as recreation and open space, community facilities, sustainable transport 

and education.  

3.3.24 Based on the dwellings that have been delivered by the Local Development Plan, since 

adoption, the following S106 contributions have been collected by the Council and used to 

help improve the lives of our residents: 

 Affordable Housing £1,818,858 

 Public Open Space £529,400 

 Transport Infrastructure £754,000 

 Education £1,924,934 

 Miscellaneous £671,037 

Total £5,698,229 

Financial Value of S106 Agreements completed since Oct 2013 (LDP adoption) 

 

 

Page 93



36 | P a g e   

3.3.25 The LDP Review Process, however, will need to consider the most effective method of 

providing infrastructure to support development in the LDP. 

Renewable Energy 

3.3.26 The monitoring aim of Strategic Policy SP8 is to ensure that development proposals within the 

County Borough contribute to meeting national renewable energy efficiency targets. The 

Monitoring Framework sets out 3 targets (16, 17 and 18) to measure how effective the Plan 

has been in achieving this aim.  

3.3.27 Policy Target 16 requires that all major planning applications assess the potential for on-site 

renewable/low carbon energy technologies and this is measured by analysing whether each 

major application is accompanied by a renewable/low carbon energy assessment – this is a 

requirement of Policy ENV17. Of the ‘qualifying’ developments no major planning applications 

submitted (and granted) for the monitoring period 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017 were 

accompanied by a ‘specific’ energy assessment. Successive AMRs demonstrate that the 

Council has failed to meet the requirements of monitoring target 16 however it must be 

recognised that energy efficiency in new development is achieved by strict adherence to 

Building Regulations. Nevertheless further investigation is required to understand and action 

where further measures are required to ensure compliance with the provisions of LDP Policy 

ENV17. This issue will be scrutinised in detail during the statutory LDP review process and 

consideration given as to whether the policy approach needs to be amended.  

3.3.28 Notwithstanding the fact that not all major planning applications have been accompanied by 

an Energy Assessment the Council has achieved its ‘interim target’ of producing an Energy 

Opportunities Plan SPG by 2014. The Council originally produced its Energy Opportunities 

Plan in November 2011 and this has been updated and subsequently been incorporated into 

the Sustainable Energy SPG adopted by Council on 2nd May 2014.  

3.3.29 The LPA is committed to ensuring that the County Borough contributes towards the country’s 

renewable energy requirements and is both disappointed and concerned that Policy Target 16 

has not been met. However, the issue of ‘renewable energy’ has had its profile raised 

following the selection of two demonstrator schemes:- the Bridgend Town Heat Network and 

the Upper Llynfi Valley Heat Network (Caerau Minewater) Projects. The Caerau Minewater 

Heat Project was recently announced in August 2017 as the third prize winner in the NEA and 

British Gas Energy Impact Awards 2017-18. Bridgend CBC is working with the Energy 

Technology Institute (ETI) who is developing an Energy Path Networks tool which will identify 

the most cost-effective local energy systems (heat and power) for Bridgend to a lower carbon 

energy system as part of a Low Carbon Transition Plan. Acting as a catalyst for energy project 

investment in the Bridgend borough, the heat network projects SSH Programme has attracted 

additional studies to be carried out such as an analysis of the Bridgend Gas Network by Wales 

and West Utilities to inform the future of the gas debate, identifying opportunities for 

Community Renewable Energy Schemes in Rural Bridgend.  

3.3.30 The aim of Policy Target 17 is to increase the amount of energy produced in the County 

Borough from Renewable Sources in the County Borough. Success is judged by monitoring 

whether there has been an annual increase in the permitted or installed capacity of renewable 

electricity and heat projects.  

3.3.31 During the Monitoring Period 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017 2.5 mw of renewable 

electricity capacity was permitted. The scheme approved relates to 1 Wind Turbine on land at 

Parc Stormy (planning application P/15/868/FUL refers) which represents an increase of 3.1% 

on last year’s figures. It is worth noting that during the Monitoring Period 1st April 2015 to 31st 

March 2016 78.4mw of renewable electricity capacity was permitted. The schemes approved 

Page 94



37 | P a g e   

comprised an Anaerobic digestion facility for 30yr period at Parc Stormey Down Airfield; 

Biomass Power Station of 25 mw electric output; 12 Wind Turbines and Pant-y-Wal Farm, 

East of Ogmore Valley; Solar Photovoltaic Farm at Stormy Down and Electric Energy Storage 

Facility also at Stormy Down.  

3.3.32 The LDP is therefore annually increasing the amount of energy produced from renewable 

source and is meeting Policy Target 17.  

3.3.33 Policy Target 18 aims to generate 35MW of renewable energy within the refined Strategic 

Search Areas (SSAs) by 2021. Parts of Bridgend County Borough lie within the Strategic 

Search Area (SSA) for large scale wind energy projects outlined in TAN8. As part of a 

consortium, Bridgend County Borough carried out a refinement exercise in these areas in 

2006. The refinement carried out by Ove Arup and partners, calculated the generation 

capacity of parcels of land, included in the SSA. For those ‘refined’ areas of the SSA in 

Bridgend County Borough the capacity was calculated as:-  

 Zone 20 North East of Maesteg 19MW  

 Zones 31-34 North of Evanstown 31MW  

3.3.34 During the Monitoring Period 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017 no applications have been 

approved within the refined Strategic Search Areas (SSAs). However, it is important to note 

that within zones 31-34 the Council has already consented planning applications at Pant Y 

Wal and Fforch Nest wind farms totalling 35MW – thereby exceeding this capacity. All of this 

capacity is already installed and operational. It should be noted that Zone 20 was excluded 

from the capacity assessment on the basis of the operational Ffynon Oer wind farm in Neath 

Port Talbot. The Plan has therefore met its target with respect of the generation of 35MW of 

renewable energy by the end of the Plan period.  

3.3.35 In addition the Pant Y Wal extension, comprising of an additional 10 wind turbines with a 

generating capacity of 3MW each was consented on 28/02/15. Although not located within the 

refined SSA boundary, the turbines are located immediately adjacent to it and within the wider 

SSA and will contribute an additional 30 MW of renewable energy capacity. As such the 

generating capacity from large-scale wind turbines (within and immediately adjacent to the 

refined SSA) is 65 MW. As such the County Borough is making a significant contribution to 

national renewable energy targets.  

3.3.36 Welsh Government produced a revised version of the Renewable Energy Toolkit for Planners 

in September 2015. The update includes an additional section relating to how local planning 

authorities assess the potential for solar farm developments. The revised toolkit provides a 

methodology to assist in the production of Renewable Energy Assessments (REAs) and 

additional advice on how to translate the results of the REAs into the LDP evidence base and 

resulting policies. Local authorities are expected to undertake a proactive approach to all 

forms of renewable and low carbon energy generation and the revised LDP will, nevertheless, 

need to consider the revised Toolkit and address the additional requirements set out within the 

toolkit. 

3.3.37 In addition the publication of the revised Toolkit, Welsh Government has provided further 

emphasis that Local Planning Authorities should utilise their REAs to inform policies, areas of 

search and allocations for local authority scale renewable energy schemes or, other low 

carbon technologies. Welsh Government suggest that the LDP consultation process should 

provide communities with the opportunity to identify suitable locations for renewable energy 

developments, meaning that such development can be guided to the most appropriate 

locations. Accordingly, the Plan’s renewable energy evidence base will need to be updated 

and areas of search for local authority scale renewable energy explored through the LDP 

revision process to support carbon reduction targets and to mitigate climate change.  

Page 95



38 | P a g e   

Waste 

3.3.38 The LDP Waste policies were prepared in the context of the South East Wales Regional 

Waste Plan (RWP) – First Review 2008 that identified an indicative capacity for Bridgend 

County Borough to be between 185,000 and 228,000 tones, equating to between 3 and 4 

new in-building sites on between 707 – 11.9 hectares.  

3.3.39 Strategic Policy SP7 aims to make provision for new waste treatment facilities to meet 

regional (and local) waste treatment needs. Strategic Policy SP7 identifies 5 sites where 

waste facilities will be favoured at Heol y Splott, South Cornelly, Brynmenyn Industrial Estate, 

Village Farm Industrial Estate, Brackla/Litchard Industrial Estate and Waterton Industrial 

Estate in order to satisfy regional and local demand. In addition, Waste proposals on other 

appropriate sites or land allocated for industrial purposes may also be permitted, provided the 

proposal meets the criteria set out in Policy ENV16 of the LDP.  

3.3.40 Target 15 requires the availability of 7.7 to 11.9 hectares of land (or land consented for that 

purpose), on the ‘favoured’ sites set out in SP7.  

3.3.41 At the monitoring date of 31st March 2017, the table below illustrates that 29.36 hectares of 

land remained available on SP7 sites. At the monitoring date of 31st March 2017, the table 

below illustrates that 29.36 hectares of land remained available on SP7 sites.  

 

LDP Policy Ref Site Available land remaining 

(ha) 

SP7 (1) Land at Heol-y-Splott, South 

Cornelly 

0.0 

SP7 (2) Brynmenyn Industrial Estate, 

Brynmenyn 

7.16 

SP7 (3) Village Farm Industrial Estate, 

Pyle 

2.83 

SP7 (4)  Brackla / Litchard Industrial 

Estate, Bridgend 

7.71 

SP7 (5) Waterton Industrial Estate, 

Bridgend 

11.66 

Total 29.36 

 

3.3.42 RWPs, however, no longer have effect and as such a re-write of national planning policy on 

waste was necessary to reflect the new waste policy context introduced through EU 

legislation.  

3.3.43 Directive on Waste (2008/98/EC), the Waste Strategy for Wales, ‘Towards Zero Waste, June 

2010 and the underpinning suite of waste sector plans, in particular the Collections, 

Infrastructure and Markets Sector (CIMS) Plan, June 2012. PPW, therefore, was amended in 

February 2014 (Edition 6) and a revised TAN21 issued. The revised PPW and TAN21 no 

longer require the preparation of RWPs. The general approach of the CIMS Plan has been to 

move away from land-take based calculations to an approach where the need for waste 

management facilities is expressed by future capacity in tonnes. As stated in Welsh 

Government Policy Clarification Letter CL-01-12, technology development has led to the 

potential for smaller, more dispersed facilities to be developed (more flexible, able to take 

advantage of niche opportunities). It has also led to the possibility of larger facilities being 

Page 96



39 | P a g e   

developed to reflect economies of scale and reduce expenditure by businesses and local 

authorities on the management of their residual waste. The end result of this is that it is now 

more difficult to ascribe a value to an ‘average facility’ – and as such, area-based land-take 

calculations have become less applicable. 

3.3.44 The CIMS Plan describes the waste management framework considered to provide the best 

solutions to meet environmental, social and economic needs in Wales to 2050. Waste 

assessments contained within the CIMS Plan do not have to be repeated by local planning 

authorities at a regional or local level. However, monitoring needs to be carried out through 

voluntary co-operation at a regional level to inform decision making in future LDPs and in 

dealing with planning applications for waste. The regional monitoring work has resulted in the 

first Waste Planning Monitoring Report (WPMR) for South East Wales (April 2016). This 

concluded that the regional position was: 

 There is no further need for landfill capacity within the South East region. 

 Any  proposals  for  further  residual  waste  treatment  should  be  carefully 

assessed to ensure that the facility would not result in overprovision. 

Therefore, there is no current need for residual waste facilities in County Borough of 

Bridgend, although PPW (edition 6, paragraph 12.6.2) requires that the identification of 

suitable locations for sustainable waste management facilities should be considered as part 

of LDP preparation. PPW (paragraph 12.6.1) also requires that development plans should 

demonstrate how national waste policy, and in particular the CIMS Plan,  along with any 

updated position adopted in the waste planning monitoring reports and any other form of 

waste management priorities relevant to its local area have been taken into account. 

3.3.45 Given the findings of the LDP AMRs and the South East Wales WPMR it is considered that 

there is no pressing need to revise the LDP strategic and site allocation waste policies. Any 

LDP Revision, however, should reconsider these policies to take account of current 

government guidance and the change of approach to waste planning away from area-based 

land-take calculations. 

Minerals 

3.3.46 The LDP Minerals policies were prepared in the context of the Regional Technical Statement 

(RTS) of the South Wales Regional Aggregates Working Party (SWRAWP) (October 2008).  

3.3.47 Strategic Policy SP6 aims to provide a contribution to national, regional and local demand for 

a continuous supply of minerals. LDP Policy Targets 13 and 14 have a particular focus on 

monitoring whether the LDP maintains a minimum landbank for aggregates (Policy Target 13) 

and also safeguarding against permanent sterilising development within mineral buffer zones 

and mineral safeguarding areas (Policy Target 14). 

3.3.48 Policy Target 13 specifically requires the maintenance of a minimum 10 year aggregate 

landbank throughout the plan period within the County Borough. The latest SWRAWP Annual 

Report calculates the 10 year aggregate landbank as 70 years. As such the LDP is meeting 

its target of providing a minimum 10 year supply. 

3.3.49 There is no pressing need, therefore, to revise Policy SP6, however, any future LDP revision 

should reconsider this policy to take account of changes in government guidance and any 

updated regional position. 

 

 

 

Page 97



40 | P a g e   

Transport 

3.3.50 Policy Target 8 monitors the schemes set out by Policy PLA7 against the delivery timetable of 

the Regional Transport Plan (RTP). However, since the LDP was adopted in September 

2013, the Regional Transport Plan (RTP) has been replaced by Bridgend’s Local Transport 

Plan (LTP) 2015-2030, and the various schemes included within Policy PLA7 have been ‘re-

set’ accordingly.  

3.3.51 A number of ‘rail’ proposals included within Policy PLA7, relating to improvements to the 

capacity of the Maesteg – Bridgend Railway line and a new railway station at Brackla, are 

now investment proposals reserved for the Welsh Government, and not the LTP. Welsh 

Government are now the coordinating body for investment in all railway related matters, 

including all new rail services, rail infrastructure and railway stations.  

3.3.52 Walking and Cycling Schemes included within the new Phase 1 LTP programme, up to 2021 

are:-  

 PLA7(2) – Improved links to the National Cycle Network in the Vale of Glamorgan;  

 PLA7(4) – Bridgend and Pencoed (which is financed and programmed for 

implementation before the end of 2016);  

 PLA7(7) – Bridgend and Designer Outlet at Junction 36 of the M4 (the middle section of 

which could be secured by S106 funding); and  

3.3.53 In terms of highway schemes:-  

 PLA7(25) – Improvements to A4063 between Sarn and Maesteg is programmed for 

delivery up to 2021 in the LTP.  

3.3.54 All remaining proposals included within Policy PLA7 have been re-scheduled within the LTP, 

and fall for delivery beyond the LDP Plan period. Notwithstanding this, all of the proposals 

remain valid and could be implemented earlier should there be further changes to investment 

decisions or assisted by Section 106 infrastructure 

3.3.55 Further consideration will be given to the policy/land use implications of the transport 

schemes identified in the LTP, as well as any updates to the LTP, as part of the LDP revision 

process.  

3.3.56 Consideration will also be given to the policy/land use implications of the Cardiff Capital City 

Region South East Wales Metro proposals in the Plan revision process. The Metro proposals 

seek to improve transport connectivity across the region which is integral to achieving wider 

economic and social outcomes for South East Wales. 

3.3.57 The Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 requires local authorities in Wales to produce active 

travel maps and deliver year on year improvements in active travel routes and facilities. The 

LTP identifies Active Travel Network schemes for each of the County’s towns which propose 

the development and implementation of active travel plans for these areas. In terms of 

implications for the revised LDP, any new or amended proposals for active travel routes and 

facilities, especially for walking and cycling, may be considered for safeguarding through the 

LDP revision process where they are within a programme, supported by funding and likely to 

be delivered in the Plan period. 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



41 | P a g e   

Supplementary Planning Guidance 

3.3.58 Following the LDP’s adoption a number of supplementary planning guidance documents have 

been prepared to support existing LDP policies: 

 SPG 12 – Sustainable Energy (May 2014) 

 SPG 13 – Affordable Housing (October 2015) 

 SPG 19 – Biodiversity and Development (July 2014) 

 SPG 20 – Renewables in the Landscape  

 SPG21 – Safeguarding Employment Sites (June 2015) 

3.3.59 A review of the existing SPG including ones recently amended and adopted will be 

undertaken as part of the LDP Revision process with amendments to a number of these 

likely to be required. 

Proposals Map and Constraints Map 

3.3.60 The form and content of the LDP Proposals Map will require changes as part of the LDP 

Review to reflect any changes to the plan. 

3.3.61 The LDP Constraints Map contains designations that are not directly proposals of the LDP 

but are constraints to development created by legislation or other mechanisms outside of the 

LDP process such as Flood Risk Areas, Conservation Areas, SSSI’s, etc. The printed 

Constraints Map for the LDP represents a point in time and includes a number of designations 

particularly flood risk areas that have been updated since adoption of the LDP and therefore it 

is out of date. Going forward it is likely that the Constraints Map will be produced in an 

electronic form with public access that will allow for it be updated as necessary. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99



42 | P a g e   

4.0 Future LDP Evidence Base Requirements 

4.1 To inform the review of the LDP there will be a need to update various elements of the 

 evidence base that informed the current Local Development Plan which expires in 2021 as 

 well as taking into account any contextual or policy changes that have occurred since 

 adoption of the plan. A sample of the evidence base studies required to inform the LDP are 

 provided below: 

 Population & household forecasts – to provide estimates of the future numbers of 

households and of the numbers of people who live in them, which will inform the 

LDP’s dwelling requirement. 

 Local Housing Needs Assessment - to identify how many homes are required of 

each tenure: open market housing and ‘affordable housing’ (e.g. shared ownership or 

social rented housing). 

 Sustainable Settlement Hierarchy –to provide analysis on the role and function of 

settlements in Bridgend County Borough 

 Settlement Boundary Review – to define clear, defensible boundaries around 

settlements in the form of ‘settlement boundaries’. 

 Employment Land Review Update – to identify the county borough’s employment 

land requirements for the LDP period and to assess the quality of the main 

employment areas for continued use, and identify potential new land to meet future 

requirements for all employment sectors. 

 Affordable Housing Viability Assessment – to provide advice on achievable and 

viable targets and thresholds for affordable housing. 

 Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment – to identify local need. 

 Bridgend Town Centre Flood Risk Assessment – to identify areas at risk of 

flooding. 

 Retail Study Update –to identify the requirements of retail need, including the need 

for more land and floorspace. 

 Public Open Space Audit – to identify local needs for a range of open spaces 

including for sport and play. 

 Landscape Character Assessment - to describe the characteristics of the local 

landscape and which may include guidelines for development.  

 Renewable Energy Assessment – to provide a robust Renewable Energy evidence 

base; and 

 Transport Assessment – to assess the impact of the scale and distribution of 

development detailed in the emerging Local Development Plan. 

4.2 The above is not a definitive list and additional evidence base update requirements may 

emerge as plan revision progresses. There are number authorities in South-east Wales who 

are currently in the process of considering reviewing their Local Development Plans on the 

basis that their current plans expire at the end of 2021. This presents an opportunity for 

collaboration including the preparation of a shared evidence base.  

 

 

Page 100



43 | P a g e   

 Sustainability Appraisal including Strategic Environment Assessment 

4.3 A requirement of the LDP process is that Sustainability Appraisal (SA) incorporating Strategic 

Environmental Assessment (SEA) informs preparation of the LDP. The SA/SEA process is 

integral to the development of the LDP to ensure the policies in the LDP promote Sustainable 

Development through integration of the key economic, environmental, social and cultural 

objectives in the development of the LDP policies and proposals and take account of any 

significant effects on the Environment. The SA/SEA has been an iterative process throughout 

preparation of the LDP and policies and proposals in the LDP reflect this. 

4.4 SA monitoring of the Sustainability Appraisal Objectives is undertaken on an annual basis 

and reported through the LDP Annual Monitoring Report. This enables the Council to assess 

the extent to which the LDP is contributing to the achievement of sustainable development 

and to identify any concerns. To inform the review of the LDP it will be necessary to revisit 

and update the environmental, social and economic baseline information, along with the 

review of relevant plans policies and program. The SA Monitoring Framework including the 

SA Objectives will need to reviewed to ensure this remains up to date, and this will include 

considering whether the methodologies need revising due to changes in legislation.  

 

 Habitats Regulations Assessment 

4.5 The LDP was informed by Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), the purpose of which is 

to assess the impacts of a land use plan, in combination with the effects of other plans and 

projects, against the conservation objectives of internationally important European sites of 

nature conservation importance such as Special Areas of Conservation and Special 

Protection Areas (designated for their ecological status) and to ascertain following screening 

what needs Appropriate Assessment (AA). As part of the review of the LDP the HRA will 

need to be reviewed. 

 

 Opportunities for Collaboration 

4.6 As part of the review process, consideration will be given to opportunities to work 

collaboratively with neighbouring authorities on updating key areas of the evidence base. The 

regional planning group SEWSPG is already facilitating joint work to develop a regional 

evidence base in the form of Task and Finish Groups. This includes: Retail, Housing and 

population, Sustainable settlement appraisals, Employment and Candidate Sites 

Assessment. Bridgend is contributing to this work and will inform the LDP preparation 

process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



44 | P a g e   

 

5.0 The LDP Review Options 
 

Joint LDPs and Joint Working 

 

5.1 The Welsh Government’s recent White Paper11 sets out its commitment to reforming local 

government in Wales. The paper proposes regional working in many areas of local 

government, including land use planning. A Local Government Bill is expected to be 

introduced into the Assembly in 2018 to give effect to these proposals, including a mandate 

for  Strategic Development Plans (SDP). 

 

5.2 On 13 December 2017 the Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs wrote to 

the Leader and Chief Executive inviting this Council to give serious consideration to 

preparing a Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) with other Local Planning Authorities 

within the South East Wales – West Area (comprising Bridgend, RCT and Caerphilly).  

 

5.3 Bridgend County Council supports cross boundary working and is committed to exploiting 

these opportunities in collaboration with the region in a positive fashion, however, the ‘size’ 

and complexity of such a large and diverse Joint LDP area, encompassing RCT, Caerphilly 

and Bridgend presents many challenges and could overly complicate and hinder continuous 

plan coverage proceeding in a timely manner and reduce the ability of the planning system to 

deliver ‘effective planning outcomes’. 

 

5.4 Therefore, in order to determine the most appropriate way forward for this Council to 

maintain up-to-date development plan coverage, a number of ‘realistic options’ have been 

tested, to determine their impact on a range of planning outcomes. The planning outcomes 

considered relate to: 

 Continuous plan coverage; 

 Housing delivery (including affordable housing delivery); 

 S106 contributions; 

 Dealing with strategic infrastructure issues; 

 Dealing effectively with cross-boundary issues; 

 Impact on a future SDP; 

 Preparing a sound evidence base; 

 Spatial coherence; and 

 Planning certainty & investor confidence 

 

5.5 With respect to these planning outcomes, the following ‘realistic’ options were considered:- 

 

 Option 1: Local Planning Authorities in the region prepare a SDP only and forego individual 

reviews of their respective LDPs until the SDP is adopted; 

 Option 2: An individual review of Bridgend’s LDP whilst simultaneously working 

collaboratively with the region to prepare a SDP; 

 Option 3: Collaboration ‘Plus’ (an individual review of Bridgend’s LDP whilst simultaneously 

working collaboratively with RCT (& other LPAs) to prepare a joint evidence base and with 

the region to prepare a SDP; 

 Option 4: Joint Local Plan (incorporating Caerphilly, RCT & Bridgend) whilst simultaneously 

working collaboratively with the region to prepare a SDP; and 

 Option 5: Joint Local Plan (Incorporating RCT & Bridgend) whilst simultaneously working 

Page 102



45 | P a g e   

collaboratively with the region to prepare an SDP. 

 

5.6 The following section summarises Bridgend County Borough Council’s formal response 

(attached as Appendix 6) to the Cabinet Secretary, which was sent on 28th February 2018.  

 

5.7 Option 1: Local Planning Authorities in the region prepare a SDP and forgo individual 

reviews of their respective LDPs. Bridgend County Borough Council supports the 

preparation of a SDP to provide a regional spatial framework for the future development and 

use of land. However, from a Bridgend perspective, Option 1 presents a significant ‘risk’ of a 

‘policy vacuum’ for this Authority. Whilst it has been suggested that an SDP could be 

adopted as soon as 2022, in reality, given that this is a new and untested process, building 

and maintaining a political consensus and establishing fair and effective governance is likely 

to delay the adoption of the SDP until at least 2023 and in a worst case scenario 2024. This 

would leave a period of 2-3 years where Bridgend LPA has a policy vacuum. Furthermore, a 

relaxation of the plan’s end-date (which is also being presented as a solution to avoid a 

potential policy vacuum by LPAs in the region) beyond 2021 would not provide a temporary 

solution for Bridgend until such time as a SDP is adopted. Bridgend’s LDP has been very 

successful in delivering a substantial element of its allocated sites and there is an imperative 

to produce a new plan as soon as possible to replenish housing and investment 

opportunities and maintain housing delivery, which is an objective of the Welsh Government.  

 

5.8 Option 2: An individual review of Bridgend’s LDP whilst simultaneously working 

collaboratively with the region to prepare an SDP; and 

 

5.9 Option 3: Collaboration ‘Plus’ An individual review of Bridgend’s LDP whilst 

simultaneously working collaboratively with RCT (& other LPAs) to prepare a joint 

evidence base and with the region to prepare a SDP. Options 2 and 3 would be a 

relatively simple and ‘quick-fix’ solution to avoid a policy vacuum in Bridgend post 2021. In 

essence both options would involve a relatively straight forward refresh of the existing 

evidence base and identification of new allocations. In the case of ‘Collaboration Plus’ there 

would be the opportunity to share evidence base studies with RCT and other LPAs as part of 

the wider collaboration agenda, substantially reducing the duplication of work and in theory 

resulting in financial savings. 

 

5.10 In the scenario that a SDP is progressed more expediently than expected, work being 

undertaken to review the Bridgend LDP, could be utilised to prepare a LDP ‘Lite’. This would 

be achievable as the evidence base used to prepare the SDP will be the predominantly the 

same as the Bridgend LDP Review. 

 

5.11 Option 4: Joint Local Plan (Incorporating Caerphilly, RCT & Bridgend) whilst 

simultaneously working collaboratively with the region to prepare a SDP and 

 

5.12 Option 5: Joint Local Plan (Incorporating RCT & Bridgend) whilst simultaneously 

working collaboratively with the region to prepare a SDP. Option 4 requires Bridgend 

(CBC) to prepare a joint LDP with Caerphilly and RCT and Option 5 with RCT (CBC) only.  In 

theory, both options are achievable. However, the practicalities and potentially lengthy 

timescales involved in setting up and preparing such a large LDP requires further 

consideration. Although there are planning merits to working at such a scale, there are 

undoubtedly practical and logistical issues that could take a considerable time to resolve. For 

example, establishing a Joint Planning Board or determining alternative suitable governance 

Page 103



46 | P a g e   

arrangements, aligning political differences and Officer working practices. It is the view of 

Bridgend County Borough Council that the benefits of a larger scale footprint to resolve 

cross-boundary issues should be fully exploited at the SDP regional scale and not at a sub-

regional level of Bridgend/RCT and Caerphilly only. Option 5 would face similar issues as 

Option 4 however, by virtue of only having one partner the logistical practicalities and political 

differences would, in theory, be easier to align and manage.  

 

5.13 In view of the concerns raised above it is unlikely that a joint LDP on the footprint proposed 

could be adopted by 2021, therefore, undermining full plan coverage and subsequently 

resulting in a policy vacuum for Bridgend with all the associated negative planning outcomes 

that such a situation would result in. Neither would a relaxation of the plan’s end date beyond 

2021 be an acceptable temporary solution for Bridgend until such time as a new joint LDP is 

in place. 

 

Why would a relaxation of the plan’s end date beyond 2021 be problematic? 

 

5.14 Firstly, the evidence that underpins the strategy and policies would also be out of date and 

could easily be challenged by developers resulting in a situation of ‘planning by appeal’. 

Secondly, the recently published 2017 JHLAS shows that the County Borough has a housing 

land supply, assessed against the housing requirement of the Bridgend LDP, of 4.0 years. 

Where the land supply is less than 5 years, TAN1 states that local planning authorities 

should consider the reasons for the shortfall and whether the LDP should be reviewed either 

in whole or in part. It is considered that the most effective way of rectifying this issue is 

through an early review/revision of the adopted LDP given the importance attached to the 

land supply issue. 

 

Why is the ‘land supply’ issue so important for Bridgend? 

 

5.15 In respect of Bridgend, the Annual Monitoring Report evidences that the LDP has been 

successful in terms of the implementation of the plan’s regeneration-led spatial strategy and 

bringing forward and delivering development sites and opportunities, especially for housing. 

The housing land supply has only recently fallen below the TAN1 5 year requirement and the 

current 4 year supply, set against the fact that there is less than 4 years remaining in the plan 

period is a reasonable position that emphasises that the existing LDP has been successful 

but also highlights the need to replace the LDP as expediently as possible. 

 

What happens if we don’t identify new sites? 

 

5.16 The absence of an early LDP Review (which puts in place a replacement plan by 2021) 

resulting in a policy vacuum, up until either a new joint LDP or SDP is adopted, combined 

with the lack of 5 years housing land supply based on the fact the majority of LDP housing 

allocations have been delivered (rather than viability issues) would be ruthlessly exploited by 

the development industry. There would be significant pressure to release greenfield sites in 

unsustainable locations and the potential situation of ‘Planning by Appeal’. Such a position 

will result in highly negative planning outcomes which will needlessly divert staff resources 

and have the potential to undermine a future underlying strategy associated with the SDP. 

 

5.17 With a consensus from the region to prepare an SDP, the need for a joint LDP requiring a 

new evidence base, vision and land-use strategy (a sub-regional approach to planning) is 

considered unnecessary, unlikely to achieve better planning outcomes and would be a 

Page 104



47 | P a g e   

significant distraction from the agreed goal of establishing joint regional working 

arrangements and governance to facilitate preparation of the SDP. Also, in the context of the 

wider Local Government Re-organisation agenda a joint plan area incorporating Caerphilly, 

RCT and Bridgend would also encompass 3 separate Health Boards – ABM, Cwm Taff and 

Aneurin Bevan, which is not logical and could present difficulties in alignment and 

engagement in the joint LDP preparation process. 

 

5.18 A scenario where a policy vacuum exists when the current LDP expires in 2021 presents the 

most significant threat to Bridgend. A relaxation of the plan’s end date beyond 2021 would 

not be a temporary solution for Bridgend until such time as a new ‘joint LDP’ or the ‘SDP’ is 

in place. This authority has always had ‘Development Plan’ coverage and, as per the Cabinet 

Secretary’s requirements, it is imperative that this is not compromised.  

 

5.19 The most appropriate way forward that responds to local issues, maintains plan coverage 

and delivers the best planning outcomes, is to proceed immediately with a review and 

replacement of Bridgend’s existing LDP (whilst simultaneously working collaboratively with 

our neighbours and with the region on the SDP), wherever possible sharing a joint evidence 

base. 

 

5.20 On the 29th March 2018 the Cabinet Secretary wrote to the Leader of Bridgend County 

Borough Council permitting the LPA to submit its Delivery Agreement to Welsh Government 

for approval.  

 

5.21 The benefits of working much closer with our neighbouring Councils is accepted and 

meetings have already been held at officer level to identify areas where we can work jointly 

to better manage resources, ensure a consistent evidence base, remove duplication and 

waste, share data, and utilise common methodologies. Significant work is already 

progressing via the South East Wales Strategic Planning Group (SEWSPG) to agree 

common methodologies for use across the Cardiff Capital Region. To this end, and in 

addition to the current SEWSPG collaboration, we will be proposing closer 

liaison/collaboration with those authorities who wish to review their LDP at the current time, 

including a shared evidence base for key topics. However, each Council will need to 

ultimately maintain control over timing and governance to responsibly manage the risk of no 

Plan coverage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



48 | P a g e   

6.0 LDP (2013) Draft Review Report: Public Consultation 

6.1 A statutory review of the Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) commenced in 2017, the 

 first stage being the publication of the Draft Review Report which was subject to a four 

 week stakeholder consultation period commencing Monday 30 April 2018 until 5pm Friday 

 25 May 2018. 

6.2 The Draft Review Report was accompanied by an official comments form that included the 

 following five questions and an opportunity to provide additional comments if required: 

 

 Q1. Does the Review Report identify all the key contextual issues to be considered 

in the review of the LDP? 

 Q2. Does the existing LDP Vision & Objectives remain appropriate for a Revised 

Plan? 

 Q3. Do you agree that the existing LDP Regeneration-Led Spatial Strategy needs to 

be reviewed? 

 Q4. Does the Review Report identify the policies that are likely to need changing in 

the Revised Plan? 

 Q5. Does the Review Report identify the most appropriate revision procedure to 

prepare a Revised Plan and whether the Review should be undertaken individually 

or jointly? 

6.3 The LPA received 11 consultation responses. A summary of the key issues raised in 

 relation to the questions on the Draft Review Report and the LPA’s response is attached at 

 Appendix 7. 

 

 

7.0 Conclusions: What Form of Plan Revision is Required? 
 

7.1 Recommendation 

 
7.2 The primary functions of a Review Report are to determine the appropriate procedural route 

and key issues to be considered when taking the existing LDP forward. 

 
7.3 In terms of ‘procedural route’, in the case of Bridgend, the plan is already the subject to a 

statutory required 4 year full review, and as such all aspects of the plan will need to be 

assessed to consider if they remain sound and fit for purpose.  This will include the LDP vision, 

objectives, spatial strategy, policies and land-use allocations, broadly following the same 

preparation process and stages as the original plan.   

Page 106



49 | P a g e   

Appendix 1: Summary of LDP Policy Review 

The following section details the initial findings of the review of the LDP Policies in order to identify 

if they are functioning effectively, whether any changes are likely to be required and if relevant 

should be considered for removal as part of the plan review process. The assessment is outlined in 

the table below.  

Strategic Policies Commentary 

SP1 Regeneration-Led Development Revise as necessary to reflect reconsideration of the 

spatial strategy over extended plan period. Amendments 

are likely to be required in response to the Officer / 

Member Groups, evidence and public consultation. 

These will be considered as part of the LDP revision 

process.  

SP2 Design and Sustainable Place 

Making 

Functioning effectively – amendments may be required to 

reflect contextual changes, updated legislation and 

national planning policy.  

SP3 Strategic Transport Planning 

Principles 

Functioning effectively – amendments may be required to 

reflect contextual changes, updated legislation (such as 

the Active Travel Act 2015) and national planning policy. 

SP4 Conservation and Enhancement 

of the Natural Environment 

Functioning effectively – amendments may be required to 

reflect contextual changes, evidence, updated legislation 

and national planning policy. 

SP5 Conservation of the Built and 

Historic Environment 

Functioning effectively – amendments may be required to 

reflect contextual changes, evidence, updated legislation 

and national planning policy. 

SP6 Minerals Functioning effectively – amendments may be required to 

reflect contextual changes, evidence, updated legislation 

and national planning policy. 

SP7 Waste Management Functioning effectively – amendments may be required to 

reflect contextual changes, evidence, updated legislation 

and national planning policy. 

SP8 Renewable Energy Amend to reflect changes in national renewable energy 

policy and to support carbon reduction targets to mitigate 

climate change.  

SP9 Employment and the Economy Revise to reflect the findings of the Employment Land 

Review update, emerging CCR evidence, overall 

development strategy and changes in national policy. 

SP10 Retail and Commercial 

Hierarchy 

Revise to reflect any change in approach to town centres 

and updated retail requirements over an extended plan 

period and changes in shopping patterns and habits.  In 

addition any revision to the policy will need consider 

emerging CCR evidence.  

SP11 Tourism Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

SP12 Housing Revise as necessary to reflect reassessment of the 

spatial strategy over the revised plan period. 

Amendments are likely to be required in response to the 

Officer / Member Groups, evidence and public 

Page 107



50 | P a g e   

 

Development Management Policies Commentary 

PLA1 Settlement Hierarchy and 

Urban Management 

Revise as necessary to reflect reconsideration of the 

spatial strategy over an extended plan period. 

Amendments likely to be required in response to the 

Officer / Member Groups, latest evidence and public 

consultation. These will be considered as part of the LDP 

revision process. 

PLA2 Implementation of 

Regeneration Strategies 

Functioning effectively – however, this policy will need to 

be reconsidered to reflect the revised spatial strategy.  

PLA3 Regeneration and Mixed Use 

Development Schemes 

Revise as necessary to reflect reconsideration of the 

spatial strategy over an extended plan period. 

Amendments are likely to be required in response to The 

Officer / Member Groups, latest evidence and public 

consultation. These will be considered as part of the LDP 

revision process. 

PLA4 Climate Change and Peak Oil Functioning effectively –revise to reflect contextual 

changes and updated national planning policy.  

PLA5 Development in Transport 

Corridors 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy.  

PLA6 Development West of the 

Railway Line, Pencoed 

Functioning effectively.  

 

PLA7 Transportation Proposals Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy.  

PLA8 Development Led 

Improvements to the 

Transportation Network 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

 

PLA9 Development affecting Public 

Rights of Way 

Functioning effectively.  

 

PLA10 Safeguarding of Disused 

Railway Infrastructure 

Functioning effectively.  

 

PLA11 Parking Standards Functioning effectively.  

ENV1 Development in the 

Countryside 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation 

updated national planning policy and to accommodate 

any future changes to the spatial strategy.   

ENV2 Development in Green 

Wedges 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation 

consultation. These will be considered as part of the LDP 

revision process. 

SP13 Social and Community Facilities Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

SP14 Infrastructure Functioning effectively –amendments may be required to 

reflect the latest viability evidence, contextual changes 

and updated national planning policy.  

Page 108



51 | P a g e   

updated national planning policy and to accommodate 

any future changes to the spatial strategy.   

ENV3 Special Landscape Areas Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation 

updated national planning policy and to accommodate 

any future changes to the spatial strategy.   

ENV4 Local/Regional Nature 

Conservation Sites 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation 

updated national planning policy and to accommodate 

any future changes to the spatial strategy.   

ENV5 Green Infrastructure Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy.  

ENV6 Nature Conservation Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV7 Natural Resource Protection 

and Public Health 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV8 Heritage Assets and 

Regeneration 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV9 Development in Mineral 

Safeguarding Areas 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV10 Development within Mineral 

Buffer Zones 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV11 Mineral Development Revise to reflect most up-to-date Regional Technical 

Statement.  
 

ENV12 Coal Extraction Operations Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV13 Unstable Land Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV14 Inert Waste Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV15 Waste Management in New 

Development 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV16 Commercial and Industrial 

Waste 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy. 

ENV17 Renewable Energy and 

Low/Zero Carbon Technology 

This is the third consecutive year that the Council has 

failed to meet the requirements of monitoring target 16. 

Therefore, further investigation is required to understand 

and action where further measures are required to 

Page 109



52 | P a g e   

ensure compliance with the provisions of LDP Policy 

EN17. In this respect consideration will need to be given 

to promote the requirement to submit Energy 

Assessments with planning applications and to promote 

this requirement as part of the planning application 

validation process. This issue will be the subject of 

rigorous testing during the statutory LDP review that will 

commence in early 2018.  

 

Amend to reflect changes in national renewable energy 

policy and to support carbon reduction targets to mitigate 

climate change.  

ENV18 Renewable Energy 

Developments 

Amend to reflect changes in national renewable energy 

policy and to support carbon reduction targets to mitigate 

climate change. 

REG1 Employment and the 

Economy 

Revise as necessary to reflect findings of Employment 

Land Review, emerging evidence from the CCR 

Employment Group and overall development strategy. 

Amendments may be required to reflect changes in 

national policy. 

REG2 Employment Sites Revise as necessary to reflect findings of Employment 

Land Review, emerging evidence from the CCR 

Employment Group and overall development strategy. 

Amendments may be required to reflect changes in 

national policy. 

REG3 Protection of Identified 

Employment Sites 

Functioning effectively – Revise as necessary to reflect 

findings of Employment Land Review, emerging 

evidence from the CCR Employment Group and overall 

development strategy. Amendments may be required to 

reflect changes in national policy. 

REG4 D2 Class Uses on 

Employment Sites 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes, legislation and 

updated national planning policy (subject to monitoring) 

REG5 Local Retailing and 

Commercial Development 

Amend and revise as necessary to reflect revised retail 

strategy and capacity figures for the town centres. 

REG6 Primary Shopping Frontages Revise to reflect any change in approach to town 

centres and updated retail requirements over an 

extended plan period. 
 

REG7 Non A1, A2 and A3 Uses 

Outside of Primary Shopping 

Frontages 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

REG8 Control and Exclusion of Uses 

in Retailing and Commercial 

Centres 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

REG9 Development Sites in Retail 

and Commercial Centres 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

REG10 Existing Retail Development 

Outside of Retailing and 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

Page 110



53 | P a g e   

Commercial Centres national planning policy.  

REG11 New Bulky Goods Retail 

Development Out of Centre 

Retail Development Sites 

Functioning effectively – revise subject to updated 

evidence base.  

 

REG12 New or Extended Tourist 

Facilities, Accommodation 

and Attractions 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

REG13 Protection of Existing Tourist 

Accommodation 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM1 Residential Allocations in the 

Strategic Regeneration 

Growth Areas 

Revise as necessary to reflect reconsideration of the 

spatial strategy over extended plan period. Amendments 

are likely to be required in response to the Officer / 

Member Groups, evidence and public consultation. 

These will be considered as part of the LDP revision 

process. 

COM2 Residential Allocations 

Outside the Strategic 

Regeneration Growth Areas 

Revise as necessary to reflect reconsideration of the 

spatial strategy over extended plan period. Amendments 

are likely to be required in response to the Officer / 

Member Groups, evidence and public consultation. 

These will be considered as part of the LDP revision 

process. 

COM3 Residential Re-Use of a 

Building or Land 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM4 Residential Density Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM5 Affordable Housing  Revise as necessary to reflect reconsideration of 

strategy, updated viability evidence and affordable 

housing requirements.  

COM6 Gypsy and Traveller Sites Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect legislation, contextual changes and 

updated national planning policy.  

COM7 Protection of Social and 

Community Facilities  

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM8 Provision of Health and Well-

Being Facilities 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect, legislation, contextual changes and 

updated national planning policy.  

COM9 Provision of Community 

Buildings 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM10 Provision of Educational and 

Training Facilities 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM11 Provision of Outdoor 

Recreation Facilities 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

Page 111



54 | P a g e   

COM12 Provision of Playing Fields Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM13 Provision of Accessible 

Natural Greenspace (including 

public open space) 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM14 Provision of Allotments and 

Community Food Networks 

Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

COM15 Provision of Cemeteries Functioning effectively – minor amendments may be 

required to reflect contextual changes and updated 

national planning policy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 112



55 | P a g e   

 Appendix 2: LDP Site Allocation Review 

1.1 The following provides an assessment of each of the individual site allocations in 

respect of their implementation to be considered as part of a review of the LDP. 

1.2 North East Bridgend (Parc Derwen) COM1(1) This site is located 1.5 km to the north of 

Bridgend town centre and south of Junction 36 of the M4 and is allocated in the LDP for 

1,515 residential units, a new school, local retailing and associated community facilities. 

Development is ongoing on this strategic allocation (Persimmon Homes and Taylor 

Wimpey). Whilst considerable progress has been made on this site with 1185 units 

delivered to date, progress has been slower than anticipated largely attributable to the slow 

housing market and wider economic conditions. The remaining 330 units will be built out by 

2021 which is broadly consistent with the phasing of development schedule set out in the 

LDP.  

1.3 North East Brackla Regeneration Area COM 1(2) The Site forms part of the North East 

Brackla Regeneration Area which is allocated as a mixed-use regeneration scheme 

accommodating an estimated 550 new dwellings together with commercial and recreation 

facilities to serve the new community, the industrial estate, the village of Coity and the wider 

residential community of Brackla to the south. A Development Brief has been approved to 

provide a planning policy document to guide a phased development of the land. Lync 

Cymru has already completed 99 affordable housing units on the eastern part of the site. 

The western portion of the site benefits from a recent consent for 220 units, 12 of which will 

be affordable being developed by Persimmon. The eastern part of the site also benefits 

from consents for 239 dwellings being developed by Taylor Wimpey. It is accepted that 

progress has been slow than expected largely due to market conditions. The agreed 

JHLAS (2017) forecasts the site to deliver the remaining 459 units from 2017 to 2021 which 

is broadly consistent with the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.4 Parc Afon Ewenni COM 1(3) Parc Afon Ewenni is a significant brownfield and 

underutilised employment site which stretches along the A473 corridor from the residential 

area of Waterton in the east to Waterton Roundabout in the west. The proposed mixed-use 

development of the Parc Afon Ewenni Site represents an opportunity to build a viable and 

more sustainable community at Waterton, which is currently isolated, by accommodating 

additional residential development served by a commercial hub, community and recreation 

facilities. The site is subject to a flexible development framework that will deliver future 

residential, commercial and business space. A planning application was approved for the 

construction of up to 240 residential units, 1123 sq m of A1/A2/A3/D1/D2 development, 

public open space and highway works in 2015 (application P/15/368/OUT refers). There 

have been a number of landowner and S106 issues that have now been resolved and the 

application was considered by Development Control Committee in September 2017 where 

planning permission was granted and the Section 106 Agreement was signed 2nd March 

2018. Access arrangements have now been clarified for the site and the Council is 

finalising a development brief to bring forward a development for up to 200 dwellings in the 

eastern most part of the site. A recent meeting with South Wales Police has provided a new 

time-line for the release of their Waterton Site in phases from now until 2019. The new 

strategy entails early disposal of Waterton to fund rationalisation relocation of existing 

facilities and new facilities of their existing Headquarter site on Cowbridge Road. The 

agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts the site to deliver the remaining units from 2018 to 2021 

which is slower than anticipated in the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP. 

  

Page 113



56 | P a g e   

1.5 Coity Road Sidings COM 1(4) This 6.4 hectare brownfield site, in private ownership, is 

located less than 1 km north of Bridgend Town Centre. The site is substantially vacant 

despite its prime location, close to the town centre. The site offers the opportunity for a mix 

of uses including residential, a retained area of employment, recreation (including the 

possible expansion of adjacent allotment facilities) and a proposed park & ride facility, in 

connection with the existing Wildmill Railway Halt. This site, formerly owned by the British 

Railways Residuary Board, is now in private ownership with temporary consent for a limited 

storage facility. However the Council is still seeking to achieve residential development on 

the site. The site is in a highly sustainable location, close to the town centre and also 

benefits from a railway station. A small part of this mixed-use site has planning consent for 

a self-storage facility. The residential element and implementation of the proposed park & 

ride facility is likely to come forward during the latter part of the five year period. Uncertainty 

regarding the site in terms of whether the part landowner Dainton may expand their 

commercial operations on the site has recently been clarified by an appeal decision which 

upheld the Council’s decision to refuse an incompatible energy use and underlined the 

site’s suitability for housing purposes, within the medium term (application P/15/279/FUL 

refers). However, there has been no positive dialogue with the landowners to bring the site 

forward for residential development and it has been agreed (as part of the JHLAS 2018 

process to be submitted to WAG) that the site should not form part of the 5 year land 

supply, with a view to reconsidering the landowner’s intentions as part of the replacement 

LDP review of existing sites. 

1.6 Land at Waterton Lane COM 1(7) The site is approximately 1.2 hectares in area and lies 

directly south of the A473, one of the principle highway arteries into Bridgend which links 

the town with M4 Junction 35 at Pencoed. Bridgend Town Centre lies approximately 2.6 

kilometres to the west. The site lies between the A473 and Waterton Lane. Waterton Lane 

is accessed via a ‘left in, left out’ junction as the A473 is a dual carriageway road. The 

junction currently serves the Council Maintenance Depot immediately to the south and 

west, and the Wicks Van Rental and Lee and Turner sites. In addition, it also serves 

approximately 25 dwellings at the recent Barratt development – Clos Waterton. Pre-

application meetings and design parameter advice have taken place with Development 

Control Officers and agents representing the land-owner, on the basis of developer interest 

in the site from a volume house builder. The land has recently changed hands and is now in 

the ownership of Phillip Jenkins (Wick Van Hire). Discussions indicate that the landowner 

would be willing to discuss offers and proposals going forward. The agreed JHLAS (2017) 

forecasts that development of the 42 remaining units proposed by COM1(7) will take place 

during 2020.  

1.7 Jubilee Crescent COM 1(8) This site represents an underutilised greenfield site within the 

existing urban area of Bridgend and forms part of the Bridgend SRGA with good public 

transport links and access to local services. Planning permission for 48 dwellings was 

approved by Development Control Committee on the 7th January 2016. The S106 

agreement has been signed and 39 units are under construction.  

1.8 Brocastle Estate COM 1(10) the site is located to the east of Brocastle House and A48, 

some 1.8 Km to the south east of Bridgend Town Centre. The site is at an extremity of the 

Bridgend County Borough on the boundary with the Vale of Glamorgan Borough. The site is 

being developed by Hafod Care Association for assisted living units for the elderly in 

conjunction with the 78 bed nursing home. The remaining 30 units represent the second 

phase of the development project and involves the construction of an articulated row of 

units located to the east of the existing new buildings. No issues have been raised in 

respect of the proposed architecture, ecological matters or other technical matters. Hafod 

Page 114



57 | P a g e   

Care Association has advised that they are going to bring forward the remaining 30 units for 

assisted living accommodation with start on site programmed within the five year period. 

The agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts that this site will be built out between 2020 – 2021 

which is slower than anticipated in the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.9 South Wales Police COM 1(5) The site lies to the north of the A473, Cowbridge Road, 

which is a principal route into Bridgend Town Centre, approximately 1.2 kilometres to the 

North West. The junction of the A48 (Bridgend By-Pass) and A473 Waterton Road, at 

Waterton Cross roundabout, lies 500 metres to the south east of the site. The site 

effectively comprises the north-western part of the current Police Headquarters complex, 

which is accessed via a traffic light controlled junction which also serves Bridgend Retail 

Park and the Tesco superstore opposite. This site is brownfield, in the Bridgend SRGA 

located close to the main transport routes and within reasonable walking distance of 

Bridgend town centre with access to a range of social and community facilities. Recent 

discussions with the Police has revealed that the site now forms a critical part of their 

rationalisation programme and will be retained for Police operations and as such will not be 

released for residential purposes.  

1.10 Land at Waterton Manor And Waterton Lane COM 1(11) & COM 1(14) The most recent 

planning application for 39 dwellings was approved at development control committee of 

3rd September 2015. The permission combines housing allocations. The Section 106 

agreement was signed on the 9 November 2016 and discussions with the landowner 

indicates that work on site is expected to commence later this year. The agreed JHLAS 

(2017) forecasts that this site will be built out between 2019 – 2020 which is slower than 

anticipated in the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.11 Parc Farm COM 1(13) The site is located in the Bridgend SRGA and is a predominantly 

brownfield in the grounds of the former Parc Farm agricultural buildings. The site benefits 

from outline consent and a prior notification submission for demolition of the existing 

buildings. The site has been acquired by Wales and West Housing Association and an 

application for 24 affordable dwellings is pending. The agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts that 

this site will be built out between 2018 – 2019 which is broadly consistent with the phasing 

of development schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.12 Land at Llangewydd Road COM 2(6) This site lies on the western edge of the wider Cefn 

Glas area of Bridgend. Greenfield in nature, this site has good access to a variety of 

services locally and public transport links. The site was promoted by Redrow Homes at the 

LDP Examination which included the submission of a conceptual masterplan for the site. 

Outline planning application for 165 units has been granted, subject to resolution of a S106 

agreement (planning application P/15/358/OUT refers). The agreed JHLAS (2017) 

forecasts that this site will be built out between 2018–20222 which is broadly consistent 

with the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.13 Ysgol Bryn Castell COM 2(7) The release of this site is as a result of the school 

modernisation programme. The existing school and grounds will become surplus to 

requirements and provides the opportunity for its comprehensive redevelopment for 

residential purposes. This site is within the urban area of Bridgend, within walking distance 

of public transport hubs and social and community facilities. A Master Plan has been 

prepared to guide the future development of the site. Planning application from Barratt 

Homes for Phase 1 of the site for 67 dwellings, accessed off Cefn Glas Road was approved 

in September 2015 and development has commenced (planning application P/15/25/FUL 

refers). GVA Grimley has recently completed a Development and Planning Brief for Phase 

2 of the site and has identified capacity for 130 dwellings supported by an access appraisal 

Page 115



58 | P a g e   

undertaken by Vectos. The site is scheduled for disposal in early 2018. The agreed JHLAS 

(2017) forecasts that this site will be built out between 2018 – 2020 which is broadly 

consistent with the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.14 Former Washery Site, Maesteg COM 1(16) The site is located immediately north-east of 

the town centre and comprises of mixed-use development including educational, residential 

and recreational uses. Part remediation of the wider Washery site has resulted in the 

construction of the new Maesteg Comprehensive School and three development plateaux 

are earmarked for residential development. Two of these areas (as well as land at 

Llwynderw off Bridgend Road) already benefit from access arrangements but require an 

element of additional remediation to make them suitable for development. Welsh 

Government Land Reclamation monies of £2.5m have been approved and drawn down to 

enable the required remediation and development, (as well as land at Llwynderw off 

Bridgend Road) with marketing and implementation of the land envisaged within 3 years. 

ARUP have been engaged to design a detailed scheme for remediation and will oversee 

the SI works which are scheduled to take place in 2017/18. The remediation scheme will 

provide an ‘development-ready’ site and marketing will be undertaken in parallel. The 

agreed JHLAS forecasts that development will start in 2020-2021 reflecting that challenging 

nature of this site.  

1.15 Ewenny Road COM 1(17) This 7.7 hectare site, which was formerly occupied by Cooper 

Standard and Budelpak Cosi now represents one of the most strategically sited 

development opportunities in the Llynfi Valley. Located within the urban area of Maesteg 

adjacent to the Oakwood Estate, which is a renewal priority for V2C Housing. The site is 

owned, in part, by the County Borough Council, and has been identified as suitable for 

funding from the Western Valleys Strategic Regeneration Area (WVSRA). The strategic and 

sustainable location of the site, adjacent to a rail halt on the Maesteg to Bridgend line, 

means that this regeneration opportunity could have benefits for the whole of the Llynfi 

Valley. The significance of this opportunity has been recognised by the Llynfi Valleys Area 

Regeneration Plan (VARP) which earmarks the future development of the area as a 

Strategic Project. The LDP strategy promotes the site as a flexible regeneration opportunity 

to create a new mixed-use neighbourhood that can deliver much needed development 

space for small businesses, new market and affordable housing, and related commercial 

and social facilities set within a pleasant environment that can capitalise on its riverside 

setting. Outline planning application P/13/808/OUT for a mixed use development, including 

115 dwellings and a 50 unit residential extra-care facility (165 units total) was presented to 

Development Control Committee in June 2014. This has been amended to 138 dwellings. 

This revision of the Masterplan and the Heads of Terms of the Section 106 Agreement was 

presented to Committee in May 2016 and the S106 is soon to be finalised with just minor 

issues to be resolved. The Council have agreed to dispose of their interest to Clowes 

(Pontardawe Coal and Metals Co. Ltd) at such time that the decision notice is issued. 

Clowes intend to dispose of the housing element immediately but retain the commercial 

element and build this out themselves. Volume builders are showing active interest in 

acquiring the site. The agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts that this site will be built out 

between 2018 – 2021 which is broadly consistent with the phasing of development 

schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.16 Coegnant Reclamation Scheme COM 1(18) This is a large development site in the upper 

Llynfi Valley comprising of a linear site of approximately 15 hectares of brownfield land, 

located immediately to the east of the communities of Caerau and Nantyffyllon. Previously 

allocated solely for employment and recreational uses it is now recognised that the 

comprehensive development of the whole area represents a significant opportunity to 

Page 116



59 | P a g e   

enhance the environment, improve access to the countryside for the benefit of tourism and 

deliver a mixture of uses, including new market and affordable housing, open-space, more 

formal recreation facilities and local employment opportunities and social enterprises. At its 

northern end the site integrates well with the new primary school in Caerau and is currently 

the focus of recreation facilities and a new leisure park, including a BMX track. At its 

southern extremity, the site has the potential to link via a dedicated walking and cycling 

route to the Maesteg Washery Site and the newly opened Maesteg Comprehensive School, 

which is located less than 1.5km to the south. The site is seen as having scope for a mixed-

use scheme for residential / employment and leisure uses. The agreed JHLAS (2017) 

forecasts that this site will be built out in the latter part of the plan period between 2020 – 

2022 in recognition that market conditions and land values will slowly improve in the upper 

valley areas. This forecast is broadly consistent with the phasing of development schedule 

set out in the LDP.  

1.17 Crown Road, Maesteg COM 1(19) This is a brownfield site within the urban area of 

Maesteg with good public transport links and access to local services. This site is located in 

close proximity to the Former Maesteg Washery Site and part of the Maesteg & Llynfi 

Valley SRGA and provides an opportunity for the development of additional housing close 

to local amenities. Whilst there is not any planning consent for site at present, discussions 

have taken place with landowners where they indicated that they intend to either develop 

the site themselves on a plot by plot basis but are also considering releasing the site to a 

local developer. There are no significant known site constraints that would prevent this site 

from coming forward. The agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts that 10 units are anticipated to 

be delivered in 2019 and 2020 with the remaining units post 2020 which is broadly 

consistent with the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP. In addition, the 

adjacent Bryneithin Home site has been sold to a developer and the Prior Notification of the 

demolition of the former care home was approved in July 2015 and demolition has been 

carried out, which provides an additional incentive for development.  

1.18 Y Parc COM 1(21) This residential allocation is a brownfield (but partly regenerated) site 

within the existing urban area of Maesteg with good public transport links and access to 

local services. Highways issues constrain the development of the site to an area capable of 

accommodating only 51 units which the allocation reflects. The site is sustainably located 

within walking distance of Maesteg Town Centre. The site is relatively flat and there are not 

any known significant site constraints. Slow market conditions has contributed to this site 

not be brought forward for development, however it is encouraging that the site is being 

marketed by Cooke & Arkwright who confirm that there is considerable interest from 

developers in the site. The agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts that 20 units are anticipated to 

be delivered in 2019 and 2020 with the remaining 31 units post 2020 which is broadly 

consistent with the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP and reflective of 

the slow market conditions in Maesteg & Llynfi Valley SRGA. However, as part of the 2018 

JHLAS process (yet to be finalised) it has been agreed that the site should not contribute to 

the 5 year land supply because there is as yet no developer on board.  

1.19 Porthcawl Regeneration Area COM 1(25) The Porthcawl Waterfront Regeneration site 

(48 ha) is the main focus of existing and future development opportunities in Porthcawl in 

the adopted LPD and provides a unique opportunity to create a vibrant new focus that will 

bring social, economic and environmental benefits including flood protection measures to 

the Town itself and the wider area. This 48 hectare brownfield waterfront site provides a 

significant opportunity through comprehensive regeneration to transform Porthcawl into a 

premier seaside resort. The entire Waterfront area has the benefit of an existing Masterplan 

(the Seven Bays Project Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)) which was adopted by 

Page 117



60 | P a g e   

the Council in November 2007. The Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) adopted in 

2013 reaffirmed the general planning policy outlined in the SPG by allocating the site as a 

Mixed-Use Regeneration Scheme under Policy PLA3(8). The LDP proposes 1050 new 

dwellings for the whole of the Porthcawl Waterfront up to 2021, with an additional 300 

dwellings anticipated to be delivered beyond the plan period. New retail, leisure and 

commercial development are also proposed, although the scale of this is not prescribed or 

confirmed in the plan. In addition, there was an outline planning consent obtained on the 

Harbourside site on 13th May 2013 (which has now expired). Since 2008 there have been 

several attempts by the owners to deliver development on the site. The first round was 

thwarted by the financial crises and subsequent moves to deliver a superstore and smaller 

retail units reached positions whereby Tesco, Morrison’s and Sainsbury’s were at advanced 

stages in negotiation but all subsequently withdrew. These retail operators have concluded 

that the large superstore which was originally to be the main driver of the scheme is 

undeliverable. However, evidence accumulated as part of this process suggests that a 

smaller scale food store should be achievable, alongside various other commercial, leisure 

and community uses. The residential market has continued to improve and the unique 

qualities of this site make it a valuable residential commodity. In recognition on the need to 

deliver this key regeneration scheme, Nathaniel Lichfield and Partners were appointed in 

September 2015 by the landowning partnership (Bridgend County Borough Council and the 

Evans Family, represented by Cooke and Arkwright) to prepare a new Masterplan and 

supporting guidance to be a catalyst for delivery of the first phase of the Seven Bays 

Project. The new Porthcawl Harbourside Masterplan (2016) only considers the first phase 

of the Seven Bays Project SPG (2007) and is known as Porthcawl Harbourside which 

covers the area between the town centre and the Eastern Promenade. The site has a gross 

area of approximately 17 acres. The purpose of the new Masterplan (2016) was to revise 

the land-use section of the ‘Western Development Area’. The reason for this was to reflect 

the changing market conditions particularly in the retail sector which is now significantly 

different than was anticipated in 2007. There is also a need to reconsider the infrastructure 

requirements in order to ensure that these do not present a financial barrier to 

development. The Masterplan proposes 559 residential units in a number of discrete 

commercial and residential parcels, suitable for take-up by a range of developers.  

1.20 Bridgend County Borough Council have purchased the phase 1 site from the Evans Family 

and the and the landowners agreement (that has been one of the main barriers to the site’s 

delivery) is now null and void. Looking forward, the regeneration of the site and Phase 2 

may also benefit from a potentially successful bid to the Welsh Government Coastal Risk 

Management Programme funding of major flood defence works across Wales, where 

£125m is allocated for spend between 2018 – 2021.   

1.21 The LPA recognises that the site is unlikely to be delivered in its entirety during the existing 

plan period. The agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts that 50 units are anticipated to be 

delivered in 2018 and 2019 and 500 units delivered between 2019 and 2022 which is 

slower than anticipated in the phasing of development schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.22 Albert Edwards Prince of Wales Court COM 1(28) This site is a committed brownfield 

site within the urban area of Porthcawl, close to the town centre with good access to public 

transport and local services. RMBI have invested in the existing care home and have 

brought back a rear wing into use, part of which, serves an increasing need to provide for 

people with Dementia. Therefore they are no longer looking to re-develop the existing care 

home. The most recent communication with the RMBI’S Development Team Manager is 

that there are no programmed plans to release part of the site for alternative residential 

development.  

Page 118



61 | P a g e   

1.23 Land off Maesteg Road COM 1(31) Land off Maesteg Road COM 1(31) is a mixed-use 

Regeneration Area in Tondu measuring approximately 43 hectares of land, which has 

already delivered the Tondu Ironworks Heritage Centre and a new Waste Transfer Station, 

serving the whole of the County Borough. Llanmoor Homes are developing the southern 

part of the site and to date 226 units have been delivered on this site which is hugely 

positive in tough market conditions, however, delivery rates have been slower than 

expected. Merthyr Mawr Estates proposes to market the remainder of the site with the 

benefit of an outline planning consent, and introduce other developers on site. There is 

positive interest from other volume builders and planning application P/16/366/OUT is 

expected to be presented to Development Control Committee in November 2017. Planning 

permission has also been granted for additional retail / commercial development within the 

designated commercial hub in the southern part of the site (planning application 

P/15/322/FUL refers). The agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts the site to deliver the remaining 

474 units over the next six years.  

1.24 Parc Tyn Y Coed COM 1(32) to date Barratt South Wales have developed 264 residential 

units on site with development ongoing. The eastern part of site is in alternative ownership 

and access from Parc Tyn y Coed development exists together with developer interest. A 

recent planning application (P/16/251/OUT refers) has been submitted to the LPA with a 

resolution to grant planning permission subject to a S106 agreement for 16 dwellings with 

public open space and associated infrastructure on land accessed via Heol Leyshon. The 

agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts that 16 units are anticipated to be delivered in 2018-2019 

with the remaining 106 units in 2019-2020 which is broadly consistent with the phasing of 

development schedule set out in the LDP.  

1.25 Gateway to the Valleys COM 1 (34) The comprehensive school is now operational and the 

new primary school is under construction. Linc Cymru have been granted planning 

permission for the development of 15 bedspace care unit & 25 apartment extra care 

combined with communal ancillary facilities, 15 No. 2 bed 4 person and 4 No. 3 bed 5 

person served by adopted access road (P/16/600/FUL refers). Linc Cymru are expected to 

start development imminently. A pre-requisite of the new school and the Linc Cymru 

development is for an access road to be built to adoptable standards delivered up to the 

boundary of the private land to the east which is currently land locked. This new road will 

able this 7 acre site to be released for development. The Private landowners are in contact 

with Bridgend Council’s Property Department and are keen to progress when the necessary 

infrastructure is in place. Housing delivery is anticipated from 2018 onwards on this part of 

the site to dovetail with primary school completion. The build programme for the 25 extra-

care apartments by Linc Cymru is scheduled for completion by October 2017 and Linc 

Cymru’s additional housing element of 20 units will follow on immediately. Given that the 

school is also programmed to open in 2018 it is reasonable to assume the whole site will be 

delivered in the five year period. The landowner is in discussion with the Council and a pre-

application meeting recently took place and there is active interest from volume builders. 

1.26 The agreed JHLAS (2017) forecasts that housing delivery is anticipated from 2018 onwards 

to dovetail with primary school completion.  

 

 

 

 

Page 119



62 | P a g e   

Summary 

1.27 It is recognised that there are a few challenging allocations that have progressed slower 

than anticipated but significant progress has been made in bringing these sites forward with 

Masterplans and Development Briefs in place. In addition, planning applications relating too 

many of these sites are substantially advanced demonstrating private sector interest and 

that the LDP strategy has broadly been successful. It must be recognised that many of 

these sites have only not come forward due to viability and market conditions. The delays in 

them coming forward, however, have implications for other monitoring targets and triggers 

and the need for any further action is being considered in connection with those particular 

indicators. Given the importance of delivering COM1 and COM2 sites, particularly in terms 

of their contribution to the 5 year land supply, the Local Planning Authority recognises the 

need to address this issue immediately through the statutory LDP Review process and will 

continue to monitor their progress closely.  

 

Appendix 3 & 4: Invitation to prepare Joint Local Development Plan and invitation to 

Local Planning Authorities to prepare a Strategic Development Plan. 

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14761/Appendix%204 

%20Invitation%20to%20prepare%20Joint%20Local%20Development%20Plan%20and%20in

vitation%20to%20Local%20Planning%20Auth.pdf 

 

Appendix 5: Cardiff Capital Region Joint Cabinet response to the Cabinet Secretary 

supporting the principle of a SDP for the Cardiff Capital Region. 

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14759/Appendix%202%20-

%20Cardiff%20Capital%20Region%20Joint%20Cabinet%20response%20to%20the%20Cabi

net%20Secretary.pdf 

 

Appendix 6: Bridgend County Borough Council’s formal response to the Cabinet 

Secretary in relation to preparing Joint Local Development Plans and Report to Council 

(28th February 2018). 

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14758/Appendix%201%20-

%20BCBC%20response%20to%20Lesley%20Griffiths%20AM.pdf 

 

Report to Council: 28th February 2018 

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14757/FULL%20COUNCIL%2028%20FEB%

202018%20-%20JOINT%20LDPs%20SDP%20BCBC%20RESPONSE.pdf 

 

Accompanying Options Appraisal 

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14762/Appendix%205%20-

%20Options%20Appraisal.pdf

Page 120

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14761/Appendix%204%20%20Invitation%20to%20prepare%20Joint%20Local%20Development%20Plan%20and%20invitation%20to%20Local%20Planning%20Auth.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14761/Appendix%204%20%20Invitation%20to%20prepare%20Joint%20Local%20Development%20Plan%20and%20invitation%20to%20Local%20Planning%20Auth.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14761/Appendix%204%20%20Invitation%20to%20prepare%20Joint%20Local%20Development%20Plan%20and%20invitation%20to%20Local%20Planning%20Auth.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14759/Appendix%202%20-%20Cardiff%20Capital%20Region%20Joint%20Cabinet%20response%20to%20the%20Cabinet%20Secretary.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14759/Appendix%202%20-%20Cardiff%20Capital%20Region%20Joint%20Cabinet%20response%20to%20the%20Cabinet%20Secretary.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14759/Appendix%202%20-%20Cardiff%20Capital%20Region%20Joint%20Cabinet%20response%20to%20the%20Cabinet%20Secretary.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14758/Appendix%201%20-%20BCBC%20response%20to%20Lesley%20Griffiths%20AM.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14758/Appendix%201%20-%20BCBC%20response%20to%20Lesley%20Griffiths%20AM.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14757/FULL%20COUNCIL%2028%20FEB%202018%20-%20JOINT%20LDPs%20SDP%20BCBC%20RESPONSE.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14757/FULL%20COUNCIL%2028%20FEB%202018%20-%20JOINT%20LDPs%20SDP%20BCBC%20RESPONSE.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14762/Appendix%205%20-%20Options%20Appraisal.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14762/Appendix%205%20-%20Options%20Appraisal.pdf


63 | P a g e   

 

 Appendix 7 – LDP (2013) Draft Review Report: Public Consultation Report – 

 Summary of Key Issues Raised 

1.1 A statutory review of the Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) commenced in 2017, the 

 first stage being the publication of the Draft Review Report which was subject to a four 

 week stakeholder consultation period commencing Monday 30 April 2018 until 5pm Friday 

 25 May 2018. 

1.2 The Draft Review Report was accompanied by an official comments form that included the 

following five questions and an opportunity to provide additional comments if required: 

 

 Q1. Does the Review Report identify all the key contextual issues to be 
considered in the review of the LDP? 
 

 Q2. Does the existing LDP Vision & Objectives remain appropriate for a Revised 
Plan? 

 

 Q3. Do you agree that the existing LDP Regeneration-Led Spatial Strategy 
needs to be reviewed? 

 

 Q4. Does the Review Report identify the policies that are likely to need 
changing in the Revised Plan? 

 

 Q5. Does the Review Report identify the most appropriate revision procedure to 
prepare a Revised Plan and whether the Review should be undertaken 
individually or jointly? 

 
1.3 The LPA received 11 consultation responses. A summary of the key issues raised in relation to 
 the questions on the Draft Review Report is provided in the table below: 
 
 

Page 121



64 | P a g e   

 

Consultation 

Question 

Representor  Comment LPA Response Recommendation 

     

Q1. Does the Review 

Report identify all the 

key contextual issues 

to be considered in the 

review of the LDP? 

 

The Glamorgan 

Gwent 

Archaeological 

Trust Ltd 

None. None. No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

 

Natural 

Resources Wales 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources 
Wales on the above LDP draft review report, which we received on 24 
April 2018. 
 

We welcome the consultation, and we agree that a full revision appears 
logical. We would like to take the opportunity to offer our support, 
including informal engagement throughout the LDP review process. 
 
The review document appears to highlight all relevant policy and 
legislative changes that require consideration in the context of the review. 
From a Biodiversity perspective, the new Section 6 duty introduced by the 
Environment Act and the wellbeing goals set out in the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations Act must be key considerations of the revised LDP in 
delivering sustainable development. 
 
With regard specifically to paragraph 2.2.8 ‘The Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act 2015’, we feel it is important to raise and emphasise that 
a ‘resilient’ Wales refers to the ‘resilience of ecosystems’. This links 
directly with the newly enhanced duty of public authorities to ‘maintain and 
enhance biodiversity wherever possible within the proper exercise of their 
functions.’ This enhanced duty should be a core issue as part of the 
review. 

Comments noted. No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

 

National Grid None. None. No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

Merthyr Mawr 

Community 

Council 

None. None. No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

 

South Wales 

Police, Designing 

Out Crime Officer 

None. None. No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

P
age 122



65 | P a g e   

 

The Coal 

Authority 

None. None. No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

Mrs M C Wilkins 

 

Bridgend County Borough Council has gone against Policy ENV2, 

development of Green Wedge.  Development which causes or contributes 

to the (coalescence) of settlements or reduces openness (the openness) 

of land between settlements will not be permitted. 

The comments received from 

Mrs M C Wilkins are noted. 

This matter will be 

considered as part of the 

Replacement LDP process. 

No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

 

. 

 Cllr Dr Venables Yes. None. No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

 Home Builders 
Federation 

Yes. None. No change required 
to the Review 
Report. 

 Barratt Homes 

(BDW Trading 

Ltd) 

It is agreed that the review report captures all of the key contextual issues 

to be considered as part of the LDP review. 

 

 

Whilst the report documents the potential changes in Welsh Government 

Population and Household Projections, there is a need to ensure that, 

going forward, any changes in projections are considered in the round 

with other factors which will influence land use requirements and 

aspirations. Population and household projection figures should only be 

considered as starting points in setting housing land requirements and 

allocations within LDP's. 

 

Whilst the current LDP strategy for growth and regeneration currently 

allows for a higher level of allocations than the latest population 

projections suggest might be necessary, any global figure for housing 

allocations will need to factor in the fact that Bridgend CBC is signed up to 

the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal and; the need to make an allowance 

for flexibility and the current backlog in housing land supply. 

 

The Council has recently confirmed its support for the City Deal in 

agreeing to sign up to the proposed budget for the next 5 years (April 

2018). The LDP review report correctly identifies the City Deal as a key 

The comments received from 

Barratt Homes (BDW Trading 

Ltd) are noted.  

 

The level of housing growth 

required will be a matter 

considered as part of the 

Replacement LDP process. 

 

 

 

 

Officers of BCBC will be 

working simultaneously with 

other LPAs to prepare an 

SDP (subject to political 

approval) thus ensuring 

coherence and a regional 

approach.  This would 

ensure that Bridgend LDP 

does not prejudice or 

compromise a future SDP 

No change required 

to the Review 

Report. 

 

P
age 123



66 | P a g e   

factor in the LDP review, which will need to capitalise on the opportunities 

that will be presented and the implications this will have on the need to 

deliver new housing. 

 

Bridgend CBC includes land in strategically important locations to make 

the best opportunity to capture growth to come out of the city deal and this 

should be recognised and capitalised on through a growth strategy. 

 

To summarise, the report does identify all of the contextual issues, but it is 

important in future stages to give each of the contextual issues 

appropriate weight, whilst maintaining a growth strategy for the borough.  

strategy whilst maintaining 

up-to-date development plan 

coverage. 

 Edenstone 
Homes Ltd (DPP 
Planning) 

Yes. None. No change required 
to the Review 
Report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 124



67 | P a g e   

Consultation 

Question 

Representor  Comment LPA Response Recommendation 

     

Q2. Does the existing 

LDP Vision & 

Objectives remain 

appropriate for a 

Revised Plan? 

The Glamorgan 

Gwent 

Archaeological 

Trust Ltd 

 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 National Grid None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Natural 
Resources Wales 

We feel that nature based solutions should be embedded as a cross 

cutting objective within both the LDP and the local Wellbeing Plan and 

form part of the vision for the revised plan. Appropriate mechanisms are 

also required to secure delivery of green infrastructure within development 

and consider habitat connectivity on a landscape scale. 

 

Undelivered allocated sites should be re-assessed using up to date 
environmental constraints e.g. revised flood map information. We can 
provide advice on existing constraints. 

Comments noted. No change required to 
the Review Report. 

 Merthyr Mawr 

Community 

Council 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 South Wales 

Police, Designing 

Out Crime Officer 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Welsh Water 

(dwrcymru) 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 The Coal 

Authority 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Mrs M C Wilkins 

 

The LDP vision has already been (overturned) with large scale over 

development of land for houses by Bridgend County Borough Council 

Planning Committee giving permission.  

The comments received from 

Mrs M C Wilkins are noted. 

The LDP Vision will be 

reviewed as part of the 

Replacement LDP process. 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Cllr Dr Venables Yes. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

P
age 125



68 | P a g e   

 Home Builders 
Federation 

In terms of the Vision this may need to be amended to take account of the 

proposed regional working including, SDP and City Deal. The direction of 

travel these are setting would suggest the role of the LPA in the wider 

context has to be given greater consideration. In terms of the 4 Strategic 

Objectives the HBF would note that no.2 is clearly protective, whilst the 

other three do not as clearly support development. The HBF suggests that 

the wording should be re- considered for at least one of the Strategic 

Objectives so that it talks about the wider benefits of development both in 

terms of meeting housing need but also supporting economic growth and 

prosperity. 

The comments received from 

the HBF are noted. The LDP 

Vision and Objectives will be 

reviewed as part of the 

Replacement LDP process. 

 

No change required to 
the Review Report. 

 Barratt Homes 

(BDW Trading 

Ltd) 

It is considered that the existing LDP Vision and Objectives remain 

appropriate for the revised plan, however, there is a need to introduce 

additional objectives as follows: 

 

To recognise the need to rectify the current shortage in housing land 

supply and provide for a more flexible and robust supply throughout the 

new plan period. This could be included by adding an objective to ‘deliver 

a range and choice of housing sites in order to maintain a flexible and 

robust housing land supply.’ To recognise the role that Bridgend CBC will 

need to play in capturing the benefits of the City Deal by adding an 

objective to ‘support the objective of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 

by adopting a growth strategy for employment and housing land’. 

 

This would accord with the well-being goals of creating a prosperous, 

resilient and more equal Wales, without compromising any of the other 

goals. 

The comments received from 

Barratt Homes (BDW Trading 

Ltd) are noted. The LDP 

Vision and Objectives will be 

reviewed as part of the 

Replacement LDP process. 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Edenstone 
Homes Ltd (DPP 
Planning) 

In general terms, it is considered that the overall LDP Vision and 

Objectives remain appropriate for the revised Plan, however, it is 

considered that some tweaking is necessary and appropriate to ensure 

the Authority continue to try and meet their housing delivery targets. 

Bridgend’s location relative to the Cardiff Capital Region is a key factor, 

and it is considered that BCBC should place more weight on the role it has 

in delivering much needed housing across this region, rather than 

assessing the requirements within the confines of its own boundary. The 

use of population growth figures alone in determining housing targets 

should not be slavishly adhered to, and whilst it is acknowledged that 

some reduction in the number of homes the Authority need to deliver over 

The comments received from 

Edenstone Homes Ltd are 

noted. The LDP Vision and 

Objectives will be reviewed 

as part of the Replacement 

LDP process. 

 

No change required to 
the Review Report. 

P
age 126



69 | P a g e   

the plan period is likely to occur, given its wider role the Authority should 

seek to be aspirational in its target. 

 

The Authority should take full advantage of its location and view this as 

being a key economic opportunity to bring jobs and wealth to the area 

from other parts of the region, where it would otherwise not have 

benefitted. 

 

The four overall Strategic Objectives should also reflect a more positive 

attitude towards development. Further comment is made below in respect 

of the regeneration led spatial strategy, however, in our view this hasn’t 

worked to its fullest, and therefore Strategic Objective 3 should be 

amended to not only refer to ‘regeneration’, but also include ‘development’ 

more generally as a tool to spread prosperity and opportunity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 127



70 | P a g e   

Consultation 

Question 

Representor  Comment LPA Response Recommendation 

     

Q3. Do you agree that 

the existing LDP 

Regeneration-Led 

Spatial Strategy needs 

to be reviewed? 

The Glamorgan 

Gwent 

Archaeological 

Trust Ltd 

 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Natural 
Resources Wales 

Yes, we would suggest that this should be reviewed in line with the 
principles of Sustainable Management of Natural Resources as set out in 
the Environment Act. We would raise the opportunities for collaboration on 
green infrastructure projects with neighbouring authorities as species and 
habitats connectivity should be considered on a landscape scale. 
 

We also wish to emphasise the opportunities within the review to consider 
priorities for habitat connectivity for key species at a landscape scale. In 
particular, the county of Bridgend is a key area for dormouse, with 
established populations in a number of areas, including two of the listed 
strategic employments sites (Island Farm and Brocastle). 

Comments noted. No change required to 
the Review Report. 

 National Grid None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Merthyr Mawr 

Community 

Council 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Welsh Water 

(dwrcymru) 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 The Coal 

Authority 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Mrs M C Wilkins 

 

No. 

 

None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Cllr Dr Venables Yes. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Home Builders 
Federation  

Yes. None. No change required to 
the Review Report. 

 Barratt Homes 

(BDW Trading 

Ltd) 

The review report acknowledges that the LDP regeneration led spatial 

strategy needs to be reviewed. It is evident that the reliance upon 

regeneration sites has, in part, led to the current difficulties in housing land 

supply, albeit there are other external factors for this including market 

The comments received 

from Barratt Homes (BDW 

Trading Ltd) are noted. The 

Spatial Strategy will be 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

 

P
age 128



71 | P a g e   

difficulties. To address such issues, the Council should seek to allow 

substantial greenfield developments to sustain existing communities 

throughout the county. It is essential that the LDP delivers a range and 

choice of housing sites to maintain flexibility in housing land supply and to 

provide a robust LDP strategy for delivering them. Porthcawl is recognised 

as a strategic centre and this should be maintained within the new 

strategy. 

 

As well as the shortfall in housing land supply across the entirety of 

BCBC, it is evident that there is a localised acute shortfall in supply in the 

Porthcawl Strategic Regeneration Growth Area. The 2016 JHLAS 

confirmed that only 91 units (of those sites listed in the JHLAS) have been 

built in Porthcawl to date, with only 38 of these having been built since the 

2015 JHLAS. Those units that have been built have come forward across 

a number of smaller residential LDP allocations and windfalls from sites 

within settlement boundaries. No units have been delivered at the 

Waterfront Regeneration Area allocation, which accounts for 87% of 

allocated units within the Porthcawl Strategic Regeneration Growth Area. 

There is a need to reduce the reliance in meeting Porthcawl’s housing 

need on the Waterfront Regeneration Area through sustainable housing 

allocations, which will also be necessary to provide for a choice of family 

homes as well as the (likely) supply of flatted development within the 

waterfront regeneration. Alternatively, as advocated in paragraph 3.35 of 

the draft PPW 10, such sites should be allocated but not count towards 

the overall LDP housing supply. Porthcawl and Pyle are ideally located 

close to junction 37 of the M4 in order to capture benefits from the City 

Deal, whilst building upon existing available infrastructure.  

reviewed as part of the 

Replacement LDP process. 

 

 Edenstone 
Homes Ltd (DPP 
Planning) 

Yes – particularly in the Porthcawl regeneration area. The reliance BCBC 

have placed on the Seven Bays project in delivering housing and 

regeneration in this area has been challenged on several occasions, and 

whilst it is acknowledged that steps have been taken by BCBC to now 

bring the site(s) forward for development, there remains doubt that the 

allocation will deliver the necessary benefits, and more importantly 

housing to meet the housing targets. 

 

Accordingly, it is considered that the regeneration led strategy for the 

Porthcawl Area needs to be reviewed more closely to ensure that over the 

The comments received 

from Edenstone Homes Ltd 

are noted. The Spatial 

Strategy will be reviewed 

as part of the Replacement 

LDP process. 

No change required to 
the Review Report. 

P
age 129



72 | P a g e   

next plan period the housing needed to achieve the regeneration 

objectives in this area are met. Accordingly, BCBC should seriously 

consider the allocation of other land in this area that could come forward 

without delay and have less obstacles to its delivery – thereby enabling 

BCBC to meet their regeneration aspirations for this area. 

 

The focus for these allocations should be around the M4 corridor – around 

Kenfig Hill / North Cornelly / Pyle. Such allocations would also support the 

employment allocations in the area, which have been more successful in 

this location. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 130



73 | P a g e   

Consultation 

Question 

Representor  Comment LPA Response Recommendation 

     

Q4. Does the Review 

Report identify the 

policies that are likely 

to need changing in 

the Revised Plan? 

The Glamorgan 

Gwent 

Archaeological 

Trust Ltd 

 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 National Grid None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Natural 
Resources Wales 

We note the summary of the proposed LDP policy review which refers 

to possible amendments to policy SP4 – Conservation and 

Enhancement of the Natural Environment. We would support this and 

would suggest that this Policy could be strengthened to provide further 

consideration to opportunities for green infrastructure and 

improvements to habitat connectivity on a landscape scale. 

 

We would wish to reiterate the fundamental change to maintain and 

enhance under Section 6 of the Environment Act which needs to be 

considered in the LDP review.  In addition, we wish to reiterate the 

focus towards ecosystem resilience which is a key goal of the 

Principles of Sustainability within the Wellbeing of Future Generations 

Act 2015 which also needs to be given consideration as part of the 

LDP review. 

 

Agreed. No change required to 
the Review Report. 

 Merthyr Mawr 

Community 

Council 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Welsh Water 

(dwrcymru) 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 The Coal 

Authority 

I have reviewed the Draft Review Report and note that most of the 

policies which are of interest to the Coal Authority are noted as being 

functioning effectively  with only minor amendments required to reflect 

contextual changes, legislation and updated national planning policy. It 

is noted however that changes are proposed to Policy ENV11 to reflect 

the most up to date Technical Guidance.   

 

None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

P
age 131



74 | P a g e   

On the basis of the changes proposed in the Draft Review Report the 

Coal Authority has no specific comments to make at this early stage.   

 Mrs M C Wilkins 

 

“Policy ENV3 - No change.  Except more conservation areas and 

Special Landscape Areas Court Colman Farm.  This includes Penyfai 

Common that must be protected from encroachment.  

 

 

The comments received from 

Mrs M C Wilkins are noted. 

This matter will be 

considered as part of the 

Replacement LDP process. 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Cllr Dr Venables Yes. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Home Builders 
Federation 

Yes subject to the comments below. 
 
The HBF suggests that under Housing and Site Allocations more 

weight needs to be given to the review of previously undeveloped 

allocated sites. Also the importance of giving greater consideration to 

the viability of sites needs to be identified in line with both the recent 

Arcadis report for WG and the draft PPW10. 

All existing undeveloped 
‘brownfield’ allocations in the 
existing LDP will be reviewed 
as part of the Replacement 
LDP process. 
 
 

No change required to 
the Review Report. 

 Barratt Homes 

(BDW Trading 

Ltd) 

Appendix 1 documents each of the policies within the LDP and makes 

a comment on whether there is a need to revise each of the policies 

depending on how effectively they are functioning present. The 

appendix identifies that the vast majority of the policies are functioning 

effectively but minor amendments may be required to reflect contextual 

changes and updated national planning policy. 

 

BDW supports a recognition that the policies SP1, PLA1 COM1 and 

COM2 require revision to address the housing land supply shortage 

and to ensure a more robust and flexible housing land supply going 

forward. 

None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

 Edenstone 
Homes Ltd (DPP 
Planning) 

Yes, however, it is evident from the Review Report that ownership and 

viability of sites remain a key obstacle in delivery of housing sites. This 

is, we believe, a direct result of the regeneration based strategy that 

relies too heavily on either previously developed land, or sites with 

complicated ownership structures. 

 

Accordingly, such sites should be accompanied by ‘simpler’ or ‘cleaner’ 

sites, i.e. greenfield, that are generally free from such restrictions and 

are likely to come forward quickly. 

 

All existing undeveloped 
‘brownfield’ allocations in the 
existing LDP will be reviewed 
as part of the Replacement 
LDP process. 
 
 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

P
age 132



75 | P a g e   

In addition, we believe greater scrutiny should be made of previously 

undeveloped allocated sites, and in particular their viability prior to their 

allocation/re-allocation in any revised plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 133



76 | P a g e   

Consultation 

Question 

Representor  Comment LPA Response Recommendation 

     

Q5. Does the Review 

Report identify the 

most appropriate 

revision procedure to 

prepare a Revised 

Plan and whether the 

Review should be 

undertaken individually 

or jointly? 

The Glamorgan 

Gwent 

Archaeological 

Trust Ltd 

 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Natural 
Resources Wales 

It would be beneficial if a joint LDP was undertaken with neighbouring 
authorities. Many of our strategic planning interests are better considered 
on a cross boundary level. This will also fit in with the Area Statements. 
 

However, we appreciate the difficulties you may have undertaking a joint 
LDP. 

NRW are referred to 
sections 5.1 – 5.21 of the 
Review Report which sets 
out the justification for 
BCBC preparing a 
replacement of its existing 
LDP. 

No change required to 
the Review Report. 

 National Grid None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Welsh Water 

(dwrcymru) 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 South Wales 

Police, Designing 

Out Crime Officer 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 The Coal 

Authority 

None. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Mrs M C Wilkins 

 

No review should take place or revised plan.  Bridgend and communities 

have had enough of large scale over development of land for houses and 

small scale development taking the green wedge land between 

settlements (Policy ENV2) 

 

An up-to-date LDP is an 

essential part of a plan-

led planning system in 

Wales.  In order to ensure 

that there is a regular and 

comprehensive 

assessment of whether 

plans remain up-to-date 

the Council is statutorily 

required under Section 69 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

P
age 134



77 | P a g e   

of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 to undertake a full 

review of the adopted 

LDP at intervals not 

longer than every 4 years 

from the date of adoption.  

As such, a full review of 

the adopted LDP was 

triggered in September 

2017. 

 Cllr Dr Venables Yes. None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 Home Builders 
Federation 

Yes the HBF considers a full review as recommended by the report the 
most appropriate revision procedure. 
 
The HBF has no preference on whether or not the review is undertaken 

individually or jointly. 

None. No change required to 
the Review Report. 

 Barratt Homes 

(BDW Trading 

Ltd) 

Full support is given to the preferred option of an individual review of the 

Bridgend LDP, whilst simultaneously working collaboratively with the 

region to prepare an SDP. 

 

This is considered to be the quickest and most reliable way forward to 

achieve new allocations to address the housing land supply shortage, as 

well as addressing identified issues with the employment allocations within 

the LDP. The complexity of engaging in a joint local plan would most likely 

lead to substantial delays in producing an adopted plan and a potential 

policy vacuum going forward. 

 

Relying upon an SDP and foregoing an individual LDP would also carry 

the same risk, i.e. the high potential for significant delays in producing and 

SDP (which has yet to be attempted anywhere in Wales) will inevitably 

lead to a policy vacuum in the short term. BDW therefore support option 2, 

which is to proceed immediately with an individual review of the Bridgend 

LDP. 

None. No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

 Edenstone 
Homes Ltd (DPP 
Planning) 

Yes, a full review as recommended by the report i.e. Option 2 or 3, is the 
most appropriate revision procedure given the need to look at the delivery 
of housing more widely. 

None.  No change required to 
the Review Report. 

P
age 135



78 | P a g e   

 
Further Comments 
 

Representor Comment  LPA Response Recommendation 

The Glamorgan Gwent 

Archaeological Trust 

Ltd 

 

The historic environment is an important part of Bridgend CBC's area, and includes 

statutorily designated historic assets of both areas and structures, as well as non-

designated historic assets.  The range of these includes areas such as the Mesolithic 

flint scatters at Merthyr Mawr Warren, shrunken Medieval villages, and the historic core 

of Bridgend, with its Medieval bridge, castle and church, industrial minerals extractive 

and transporting landscapes, RAF Stormy Down, as well as information on isolated finds 

of all periods, all of which contribute to the distinctive heritage and current form of the 

area.  We are also able to provide information on the policies and procedures that have 

been adopted for development in other local authorities: for Bridgend, eleven areas have 

been delineated as Archaeologically Sensitive Areas in an Archaeology and 

Archaeologically Sensitive Areas SPG which has been supplied to you in draft in 2017 

and is awaiting approval.  The historic environment should not be seen as any constraint 

to development, but viewed with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act, 

contribute substantially to the well-being goals relating to culture and community, and by 

understanding and enhancement to the remaining goals. The Draft Review Report notes 

in 2.2.11 that the Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016 has become law, giving more 

effective protection to the historic environment in Wales.  There is a suite of relevant 

supporting policy (Planning Policy Wales 9, 2016 Chapter 6: The Historic Environment, 

technical advice notes (TAN24: The Historic Environment) and best practice guidance, 

some of which is still emerging.  Inclusion of these in a revised Plan would acknowledge 

current legislation and support current professional standards. 

The comments received from 

the Glamorgan Gwent 

Archaeological Trust Ltd are 

noted.  

 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

National Grid 

 

National Grid has appointed Amec Foster Wheeler to review and respond to 

development plan consultations on its behalf.  We have reviewed the above consultation 

document and can confirm that National Grid has no comments to make in response to 

this consultation. 

The comments received from 

National Grid are noted.  

 

No change required to the 

Review Report. 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

Merthyr Mawr 

Community Council 

 

Thank you for providing the information regarding Bridgend Local Development Plan 

(2013) - Consultation on Draft Review Report & Draft Replacement Local Development 

Plan Delivery Agreement.  This was noted by Merthyr Mawr Community Council during 

their meeting on Monday 14th May 2018.  Merthyr Mawr Community Council are 

satisfied with the way the review is being undertaken at present.  

The comments received from 

Merthyr Mawr Community 

Council are noted.  

 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

Welsh Water Thank you for consulting Welsh Water on the Draft Review Report.  

We have no specific comments to make on the content but are keen to be involved in the 

The comments received from 

Welsh Water are noted. The 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

P
age 136



79 | P a g e   

early stages of the Replacement LDP. 

 

LPA will liaise with Welsh Water 

as part of the Replacement LDP 

process.   

South Wales Police, 

Designing Out Crime 

Officer 

 

In respect of the above, I would like to pass comment at the appropriate time, as the 

Designing out Crime Officer for the Bridgend County Borough Council Area, to 

strengthen the subject topic of Community Safety within the Local Development Plan. 

 

The comments received from 

South Wales Police (Designing 

Out Crime Officer) are noted. 

The LPA will liaise with South 

Wales Police on this issue as 

part of the Replacement LDP 

process.   

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

Mrs M C Wilkins 

 

Bridgend County Borough is suffering from over intensification of large housing 

developments; this is putting a strain on our communities and causing the highway 

structure to become grid locked.  The LDP is against over intensification of houses and 

this is adopted by Bridgend County Borough Council.  

The comments received from 

Mrs M C Wilkins are noted. The 

Spatial Strategy will be reviewed 

as part of the Replacement LDP 

process. 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

Cllr Dr Venables   

 

 

1. On page 24 it discusses how Brocastle is a strategic employment site and refers to 

brownfield site. However I would presume that Brocastle, although identified for this 

purpose is a greenfield site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. On page 27 it discusses the affordable housing policy and how there are different 

rates in different areas. However there is no explanation of why these are different 

and how they were determined. 

 

 

 

The comments received from 

Cllr Dr Venables are noted.  

 

In response to comment 1, it is 

accepted that Brocastle is a 

‘greenfield’ site. However, 

paragraph 3.2.6 of the Review 

Report merely reflects the 

supporting text in the current 

LDP that states that the overall 

preference of the LDP Strategy 

is for the development of land 

within urban areas, especially 

on previously development 

‘brownfield’ land. 

 

In response to comment 2, Cllr 

Venables is referred to 

Background Paper 8: Affordable 

Housing that was prepared to 

inform the Bridgend LDP 

(2013). This background paper 

 

 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 137



80 | P a g e   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. On page 39 there is a discussion of waste policies. In particular it states that several 

areas will be favoured including Waterton Industrial Estate. However this area is very 

near to residential properties in the village of Treoes, Vale of Glamorgan and 

Waterton and Parc Afon Ewenni, I would need reassurance that this was not going to 

impact on residential properties or quality of life for the area. 

 

 

 

4. On page 57 there is a discussion of Parc Afon Ewenni. My understanding was that 

PAE was from the council depot to the South Wales Police. However on page 58 

there is a discussion of Land at Waterton Lane. This seems to include the council 

depot and seems to be a sub section of PAE and not a separate section. It refers to 

666 units, but surely these are part of Parc Afon Ewenni and it should be discussed 

as so. 

 

 

 

sets out the evidential basis 

from which the affordable 

housing policies contained in 

the LDP have been developed. 

For information purposes, the 

critical evidence base studies 

that will be required to support 

the Replacement LDP will 

include a Local Housing 

Needs Assessment – to 

identify how many homes are 

required of each tenure: open 

market housing and affordable 

housing and a Affordable 

Housing Viability Assessment 

– to provide advice on 

achievable and viable targets 

and thresholds for affordable 

housing.  

 

In response to comment 3, any 

potential or future waste facility 

would require a formal planning 

application to be submitted 

where issues such impact upon 

residential amenity would be 

fully considered.  

 

In response to comment 4, the 

land allocated as COM1(3) Parc 

Afon Ewenni in the Bridgend 

LDP (2013) includes the BCBC 

Highway Depot in the East and 

extends to the Waterton 

Roundabout in the West, 

incorporating the South Wales 

Police site. Land at Waterton 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Typographical error: 

Review Report  

amended to refer to 42 

units allocated under 

LDP Policy COM1(7). 

 

 

 

 

P
age 138



81 | P a g e   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Also in this section there is inclusion of a current residential area, Clos Waterton, but 

there is no inclusion of the residential area of Waterton Lane. It would seem that the 

hamlet of Waterton should now be included in this discussion and the development 

of community facilities and other infrastructure. 

 

Lane is a separate site and is  

allocated for 42 units COM1(7). 

The reference to 666 units on 

page 58 is a typographical error 

and should refer to the 42 units 

allocated under COM1(7). 

 

In response to comment 5, the 

reference to Clos Waterton is 

made in the context of 

development served off the ‘left 

in, left out’ junction from the 

A473. The residential area of 

Waterton Lane is accessed from 

Brocastle Avenue, as is the land 

allocated as COM1(11) & 

COM1(14). The policies of the 

existing Bridgend LDP ensure 

that the need for additional or 

improved community services 

and facilities created by new 

development is addressed 

through the planning application 

process.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

Home Builders 
Federation 

The HBF suggests that some additional commentary is added with regard to cross 
boundary issues with the three neighbouring Authorities, particularly as two of them have 
recently adopted their LDP’s. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 5.19 states that the 
most appropriate way forward 
that responds to local issues, 
maintains plan coverage and 
delivers the best planning 
outcomes, is to proceed 
immediately with a review and 
replacement of Bridgend’s 
existing LDP whilst 
simultaneously working 
collaboratively neighbouring 
authorities and the region on 
the SDP, wherever possible 
sharing a joint evidence base. 
In addition the Delivery 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 139



82 | P a g e   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Although not explicit the plan at para. 2.2.3 – 2.2.6 contains a lot of data relating to 
population projections, this suggests that Bridgend Council see this as the main driver 
behind housing need. This section should include additional wording relating to the 
potential economic aspirations of the plan and the wider region which may be used to 
support the proposed housing requirement within the plan. 
 

Agreement consultee list now 
includes all of the LPAs in the 
Cardiff Capital Region to reflect 
the importance of collaborative 
working and the importance of 
strategic cross-boundary issues.     
 
It is not considered necessary 
to insert additional text as 
requested by the HBF because 
the new development strategy 
will be informed and developed 
using a refreshed evidence 
base. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No change required to 

the Review Report. 

 

P
age 140



83 | P a g e   

 

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

20 JUNE 2018

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR – COMMUNITIES

BRIDGEND REPLACEMENT LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (LDP) DELIVERY 
AGREEMENT

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To report to Council the outcome of the consultation exercise on the Bridgend 
Replacement LDP Delivery Agreement and seek Council’s approval to submit the 
final Delivery Agreement (attached at Appendix 1) (in conjunction with the Bridgend 
Local Development Plan (2013) Review Report) to Welsh Government before the 
end of June 2018. 

1.2 The Delivery Agreement sets out how and when the local community and other 
stakeholders can contribute to the preparation of the Replacement Plan and a 
timetable for its preparation.  It is proposed that the Replacement LDP will cover a 
plan period up to 2033.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate Priorities 

2.1 The Bridgend Replacement Local Development Plan (LDP) is a high level strategy 
document which must be prepared by the Council. The LDP sets out in land-use 
terms the priorities and objectives of the Corporate Plan. The future Replacement 
LDP will be required to express in land-use terms the wellbeing objectives and 
priorities of the Bridgend Public Services Board’s Well-being Plan. 

3. Introduction and Background  

3.1 Members will recall that a report was presented to Council on the 28th February 
2018 outlining the letter and request from the Welsh Government Cabinet Secretary 
for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs for Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to give 
positive consideration to producing joint LDPs until such time no individual LPA was 
allowed to progress with their own plan.  Council resolved to advise the Cabinet 
Secretary that given the urgent need for Bridgend to review its Plan that it be 
allowed to do so unilaterally.

3.2 The Cabinet Secretary has now responded, and has allowed Bridgend to proceed 
with its review, subject to receiving receipt of a Delivery Agreement associated with 
the Replacement Plan within 3 months of receipt of her letter.  The Delivery 
Agreement also needs to demonstrate that plan preparation can be achieved within 
3½ years from the formal commencement of the processes, with a single additional 
slippage of 3 months. 

3.3 The preparation of the Delivery Agreement and the overall timetable for the 
preparation of the replacement LDP is therefore set within this overall time 
framework.

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 9



Replacement LDP Draft Delivery Agreement - Public Consultation 3 

3.4 Members will also recall that a report was presented to Council on the 25th April 
2018, which outlined the Cabinet Secretary’s response, which allowed Bridgend to 
proceed with its LDP subject to a very strict deadline requiring submission of the 
Delivery Agreement before the end of June 2018.  The report also sought 
authorisation to undertake targeted consultation on the draft Replacement Bridgend 
LDP Delivery Agreement between 30th April 2018 and 25th May 2018. The 
Consultation on the draft Delivery Agreement was undertaken in conjunction with 
the draft Bridgend Local Development Plan (2013) Review Report. It is proposed to 
submit both the final Delivery Agreement and Review Report to Welsh Government 
before the end of June 2018.

3.5 The consultation was advertised in the following ways:

 The consultation documents were available for inspection at the Civic 
Offices, Angel Street;

 Information on the consultation was placed on the Council’s website; and
 E-mails and letters were sent to approximately 190 consultees including 

Community Councils, planning consultants, house builders, housing 
associations and other relevant external organisations with details on how to 
respond. 

3.6 By the end of the consultation period 8 external organisations had submitted 
comments on the draft Delivery Agreement. In response, the Council has produced 
a Consultation Report which is included as Appendix 3 in the final Delivery 
Agreement that provides the Council’s response to the representations received. 
Copies of the full representations can be viewed by Members at the Planning 
Department.
The main changes to the Delivery Agreement recommended by Officers include:

 Updates to the list of Consultation Bodies (attached as Appendix 1 in the 
Delivery Agreement):
o It was considered prudent to include all the LPAs in the Cardiff Capital 

Region rather than just the neighbouring LPAs (Vale of Glamorgan, RCT 
and Neath Port Talbot) to reflect the importance of collaborative / 
regional working and Strategic Development Plan preparation. 

o Bridgend Local Health and Bridgend Partnership Board have been 
deleted as both have been replaced by the Public Service Board.

o Action on hearing loss has been replaced by RNI Deaf & Hard of Hearing 
People.

o The Commission for Racial Equality, Disability Rights Commission and 
Disability Rights Commission have been replaced by The Equality and 
Human Rights Commission.  

o Fields in Trust – replaces National Playing Fields Association Wales.
o Royal National Institute for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing People has 

been replaced by ‘Action on Hearing Loss’.
o Wales Council for the Disabled has been replaced by Disability Wales.

 An amendment to the timetable (attached at Appendix 2) to the Delivery 
Agreement) to reflect that Sustainability Appraisal (SA) scoping should be 
undertaken before substantive LDP proposals are publicly consulted on. All 
sites submitted in response to a future ‘call for sites’ will need to be subject to 

Page 144



SA in due course, so it would be best to define the LDP SA framework, 
methodology and information requirements through the SA Scoping Report 
prior to issuing the call for sites (and any associated site pro-formas). This 
should help to ensure that site promoters submit sufficient sustainability and 
environmental information to enable the SA to be undertaken efficiently. 

 Paragraph 1.6.2 has been amended to show a degree of linkage between 
the SA (SEA), the Bridgend Well-being Plan (in accordance with the Well-
Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act and Habitats Regulations 
Assessment (HRA).

 Paragraph 1.6.3 has been expanded to reference the statutory requirement 
to undertake SEA screening.

 Paragraph 1.6.3 the second and third bullet-points have been combined into 
a single bullet for clarity purposes.

 Paragraph 1.6.3 the final bullet point has been amended to make clear that 
the SA Adoption Statement will be published after the adoption of the 
replacement LDP.

4. Current Situation

4.1 The draft Delivery Agreement consists of 2 parts:-

 A timetable for preparation of the Replacement LDP, and
 A Community Involvement Scheme. 

4.2 The timetable sets out the key dates including statutory consultation periods, for 
each of the different stages of Plan preparation and publication.  It also includes key 
stages for the Sustainability Appraisal, which is an iterative process undertaken as 
an integral part of the Plan preparation process. 

KEY STAGE TIMESCALE

DEFINITIVE FROM TO

STAGE 1 Update Evidence Base 
& SA/SEA Baseline 
Framework & 
Assessments

April 2018 July 2020

STAGE 2 Delivery Agreement 

 Submission to Welsh 
Government – June 
2018

 Response to LPA to 
be received within 4 
weeks

April 2018 July 2018

STAGE 3 Pre-Deposit 
Participation & 
Consultation

 6 week statutory 
consultation

July 2018 June 2020

Page 145



STAGE 4 Deposit LDP 

 6 week statutory 
consultation

July 2020 December 2020

INDICATIVE From To

STAGE 5 Submission Winter 2021 
(January) 

-

STAGE 6 Examination Spring 2021 
(March) 

Spring 2021 
(April) 

STAGE 7 Inspectors Report & 
Adoption 

Summer 2021 
(June)

Autumn 2021 
(July) 

STAGE 8 Adoption Summer / Autumn 2021 (August / 
September 2021)

4.3 The timetable of Plan preparation has Definitive and Indicative stages.  Definitive 
stages are up to the Deposit of the Plan and is under the control of the Council.  
The Council has less control over the progress of the Plan after the statutory 
Deposit stage, as subsequent stages associated with Examination, Receipt of the 
Inspector’s Report and Adoption is more dependent on external factors from Welsh 
Government and the Planning Inspectorate (PINS).  As such these stages are 
indicative only. 

4.4 The Community Involvement Scheme outlines the LPAs principles of community 
engagement, its approach in relation to who, how and when it intends to engage 
with the community and stakeholders; how it will respond to representations and 
how these representations will inform later stages of plan preparation. 

4.5 The Delivery Agreement also sets out the resources that will be required to prepare 
the Replacement LDP together with a Risk Assessment identifying areas of 
uncertainly that may impact on the timetable for Plan preparation and mitigation 
measures required to keep the Plan on track.  

4.6 The Delivery Agreement must be approved by Welsh Government and they have 1 
month to consider and agree its contents or notify the LPA that it requires more time 
to consider the document.  

4.7 Subsequent to its agreement by Welsh Government the Delivery Agreement will be 
published, with the Replacement LDP prepared in accordance with its contents. 

5. Effect Upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and regulations of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales Regulations 2005) requires that 
a Local Planning Authority must commence a full Review of its LDP every 4 years.

5.2 The LDP Manual (2005) states that for the preparation of an LDP Revision, a 
revised Delivery Agreement is necessary, with the LPA undertaking engagement 
and/or consultation as it considers appropriate. 

Page 146



6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 There are no direct implications associated with this report.  However the policies 
contained within any Replacement LDP will require an equalities impact 
assessment to be carried out. 

7. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

7.1 The Replacement LDP will be prepared in accordance with the 7 Wellbeing goals 
and the 5 ways of working as identified in the Act.  

8. Financial Implications

8.1 The cost of the LDP Review will be met from the Development Planning budget and 
carried out by development planning staff with expert advice and evidence procured 
from consultants and through collaboration with neighbouring authorities as 
required.  The resources required to prepare the replacement LDP are set out in 
detail in section 2.2.4 in the Delivery Agreement attached at Appendix 1.

9. Recommendations 

9.1 That Council approve the final Delivery Agreement for the Replacement LDP and 
authorise the Group Manager Development, Communities Directorate to submit the 
final Delivery Agreement (attached at Appendix 1) (in conjunction with the Bridgend 
LDP (2013) Review Report (see separate item)) to Welsh Government before the 
end of June 2018; and

9.2 That Council give delegated authority to the Group Manager Development, 
Communities Directorate to make any factual corrections or minor amendments to 
the Delivery Agreement as considered necessary.

Mark Shephard
Corporate Director - Communities 
20th JUNE 2018
Contact Officer: Susan Jones

Development Plan Manager

Richard Matthams
Development Planning Team Leader

Telephone: (01656) 643162
E-mail: richard.matthams@bridgend.gov.uk
Postal Address Development Planning

Communities Directorate
Civic Offices, Angel Street
BRIDGEND   CF31 4WB

Background documents
NA

Page 147

mailto:richard.matthams@bridgend.gov.uk


Page 148



1 | P a g e  
 

 

Page 149



2 | P a g e  
 

 

CONTENTS 

 Page 

1 Introduction 

 

3 

2 Timetable – for preparing the Replacement LDP 

  

10 

3 Community Involvement Scheme  

 

14 

 

APPENDICES 

 Page 

1 List of Consultation Bodies 

 

40 

2 Detailed Timetable for the Replacement LDP 

 

45 

3 Draft Delivery Agreement Consultation Report – Summary of Key 

Issues Raised 

47 

4 Risk Assessment 

 

51 

5 Glossary of Terms 

 

54 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 150



3 | P a g e  
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 Purpose of a Delivery Agreement 

 

1.1.1 The Replacement LDP will cover the period 2018-2033. Preparation of a Delivery 

Agreement1 is a key requirement in preparing a Replacement LDP. This document 

provides details of the various stages involved in the Plan-making process and the time 

each part of the process is likely to take, as well as the resources that the Council will 

commit to Plan preparation. It also sets out the way in which the Council proposes to 

involve the local community and other stakeholders in the preparation of the 

Replacement LDP. The Replacement LDP will be examined by an independent Inspector 

to test whether the Plan is sound and has been prepared in accordance with its Delivery 

Agreement. 

 

1.1.2 The Delivery Agreement is divided into two key sections: 

 

 The Timetable for producing the revised LDP. This provides a clear indication of 

when each of the different stages of plan preparation will take place. Definitive dates are 

provided up to the deposit stage and indicative dates for later stages. This is an 

example of a project management approach to ensure that the plan is adequately 

resourced and delivered on time. The timetable is included in ‘Section 2’ of this 

Delivery Agreement; and 

 

 The Community Involvement Scheme – this outlines the Authority’s principles of 

community engagement; its approach in relation to who, how and when it intends to 

engage with the community and stakeholders, how it will respond to 

representations and how these representations will inform later stages of plan  

preparation. This is included in ‘Section 3’ of this Delivery Agreement. 

 
1.1.3 A glossary of terms can be found in Appendix 5. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Section 62 (9) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended Planning (Wales) Act 2015) & Section 63 (1) Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 & Regulations 5 – 10 LDP (Wales) Regulations (as amended 2015) 

Page 151



4 | P a g e  
 

1.2 Delivery Agreement Preparation and Consultation 

 

1.2.1 A number of key steps in the preparation of the Delivery Agreement have been 

undertaken to date. This Delivery Agreement (DA) has been consulted upon with specific 

consultation bodies to seek views on the timetable and community involvement scheme2. 

The consultation responses are summerised in Appendix 3. The next steps include:  

 

 Report the updated DA to Council for approval; 

 Submit DA to Welsh Government for agreement; 

 Publish DA on Council website and place in Planning Reception and Community 

Hubs/Libraries across the County; and 

 Review DA on a regular basis (quarterly). 

 

1.3 Preparation of the Replacement LDP 

 

1.3.1 In preparing the revised LDP the Council will aim to achieve the following key objectives: 

 

 Facilitate Sustainable Development by fully integrating a Sustainability Appraisal 

(incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment) into the plan making 

process. A Well-being Assessment and Health Impact Assessment will also be 

produced; 

 Ensure early and effective community involvement in order to consider a wide 

range of views, with the aim of building a broad consensus on the strategy and 

policies for the revised LDP; 

 Enable policy integration by producing a revised LDP that is internally consistent 

with other corporate priorities and other policies and strategies at the national, 

regional and local level, appreciating the need to avoid unnecessary repetition; 

 Deliver a fast and responsive approach to plan-making; 

 Produce a revised LDP that is strategic, concise and distinctive in setting out how 

Bridgend will develop and change, with particular regard to the well-being of 

future generations whilst also addressing key issues collaboratively with adjacent 

local planning authorities; and 

 Deliver sustainable development, with full consideration of infrastructure 

requirements, availability of resources, viability and market factors. 

 

1.3.2 The revised LDP will be prepared with regard to a wide range of legislation, policies and 

other initiatives at the European, national, regional and local level. The emerging Local 

Well-Being Plan (LWBP) will be critical during the replacement LDP process. The LWBP 

relates to the economic, social, environmental and cultural well- being of Bridgend and 

will have clear links with the LDP where it relates to land use planning. 

 

 

 

 

2 Welsh Government LDP Manual (Edition 2, 2015) 

Page 152



5 | P a g e  
 

1.4 Sustainability Appraisal incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment 

(SA/SEA) 

 

1.4.1 A Sustainability Appraisal, (SA) incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment3 

(SEA) is a statutory requirement of LDP preparation, in order to assess the 

environmental, social and economic implications of the plans strategy and policies. The 

SA/SEA process is utilised to ensure that policies in the LDP reflect sustainable 

development principles and take into account the significant effects of the plan on the 

environment. SA, incorporating SEA, was an iterative process throughout the preparation 

of the adopted LDP and is reflected in the Plan’s proposals and policies. 

 

1.4.2 The Council will continue to adopt an integrated approach to the SA/SEA of the revised 

LDP, ensuring that the revised plan is internally consistent, with economic and social 

issues considered alongside other matters. The appraisal process will run concurrently 

with the plan making process and forms an iterative part of plan preparation. The SA, 

incorporating SEA, will therefore draw upon the Bridgend Local Well-being Plan 

(produced in accordance with the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act – refer to 

Section 1.9) and will integrate where possible with a Wellbeing Assessment, Health 

Impact Assessment (HIA) and Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) that will also be 

prepared to support the Bridgend LDP Review.  

 

1.4.3 The SA, incorporating the SEA will be undertaken as follows: 

 

 A Sustainability Appraisal, incorporating Strategic Environmental 

Assessment, Scoping Report. This report will identify the need to undertake a 

SA, incorporating SEA, of the LDP Review and set out the proposed SA 

methodology and consultation arrangements. In doing so it will provide an 

overview of sustainability baseline data conditions and issues relevant to the 

Bridgend area, together with a review of other plans, policies, programmes and 

strategies which are likely to influence the LDP Review. The existing SA 

Framework adopted for the first Bridgend LDP will also be reviewed and updated 

as necessary to provide a robust mechanism for undertaking the SA, 

incorporating SEA, of new LDP proposals and policy options as they emerge. This 

report will be subject to consultation with the SEA Consultation Bodies before any 

substantive proposals or policy options are subject to consultation; 

 

 The Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Report: All substantive proposals and policy 

options for a replacement LDP will be subject to a proportionate level of SA, 

incorporating SEA. This will include assessment reasonable alternatives to 

preferred options and the SA will be carried out in accordance with the SA 

Framework and methodology defined through SA/SEA Screening and Scoping.  

 

 
 

 

 
3 

European Union Directive 2001/42/EC & Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes (Wales) Regulations 2004 

Page 153



6 | P a g e  
 

 

 The SA process will be reported within iterative SA Reports which will accompany 

the Preferred Strategy (LDP Pre-Deposit) and Pre-Deposit Documents, with the 

SA Report updated between these stages to reflect changes to the emerging 

LDP: 

o The SA Report for the Preferred Strategy will focus on assessing likely 

significant effects from the proposed LDP options, spatial strategy and 

strategic policies; and 

o The SA Report for the LDP Pre-Deposit Document will assess likely 

significant effects from all substantive components of the LDP Deposit 

Document, including all proposed site allocations and policies. 

o Following the completion of an Examination regarding the LDP, all binding 

recommendations made by the Examination Inspector will be subject to 

SA, incorporating SEA, Screening, to determine whether they would give 

rise to any new or different likely significant effects not previously reported 

within the SA Report for the LDP Deposit Document. This SEA Screening 

will be documented within an SA Addendum. 

 

 A Sustainability Appraisal Post Adoption Statement will be published after the 

revised LDP is adopted. This will explain how sustainability considerations and 

the Sustainability Assessment, incorporating Strategic Environmental 

Assessment, have been taken into consideration in the production of the revised 

LDP.    

 

1.5 Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 

 

1.5.1 The requirement for Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) comes from the Habitats 

Directive4, specifically Article 6(3), which requires that land use plans, including LDPs, 

are subject to a HRA Screening to determine whether any plan [or project] is likely to 

have a significant effect upon a European site, either alone, or in combination with other 

projects. In Wales, requirements for HRA, including for proposed modifications to existing 

plans, are set out within Part 6 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 

2017 and Part 2 of the Conservation of Offshore Marine Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017.  

 

1.5.2 The HRA process follows a series of Stages; these will be undertaken for the LDP 

Review, as necessary, to meet with the requirements of the Regulations: 

 

 Stage 1 - HRA Screening: to determine whether the LDP Review is likely to have 

significant effects on European Sites;  

 Stage 2 – Appropriate Assessment: If the HRA Screening indicates that the 

LDP Review is likely to have significant effects, a further level of assessment is 

needed to consider whether the LDP Review could adversely affect the integrity of 

one or more European site(s), either alone or in combination with other plans or 

projects, in view of their established conservation objectives and conservation 

status. If the potential for adverse effects on site integrity are identified, the 

Appropriate Assessment should also consider mitigation measures to control the 

Page 154



7 | P a g e  
 

identified impacts, to avoid adverse effects on site integrity; and 

 

 Stage 3 and 4 – Consideration of Alternatives and Imperative Reasons of 

Overriding Public Interest: Only where significant effects remain at the end of 

Stage 2 in the HRA process is there a need to consider alternatives and 

Imperative Reasons of Overriding Public Interest.  

 

1.5.3 The HRA process will be undertaken in conjunction with the SA (incorporating SEA) to 

ensure an integrated approach to assessment. It is intended that the process will run 

concurrently with the plan making process and form an iterative part of the LDP Review, 

involving the consideration of all emerging policy and site options. Natural Resources 

Wales will be consulted throughout the HRA process. 
 

1.6 Evidence Base Assessments 

 

1.6.1 To inform the review of the LDP there will be a need to update various elements of the 

 evidence base that informed the current Local Development Plan which expires in 2021 

as well as taking into account any contextual or policy changes that have occurred since 

 adoption of the plan. A sample of the evidence base studies required to inform the LDP 

are provided below: 

 

 Population & household forecasts – to provide estimates of the future numbers 

of households and of the numbers of people who live in them, which will inform 

the LDP’s dwelling requirement; 

 Local Housing Needs Assessment - to identify how many homes are required 

of each tenure: open market housing and ‘affordable housing’ (e.g. shared 

ownership or social rented housing); 

 Sustainable Settlement Hierarchy –to provide analysis on the role and function 

of settlements in Bridgend County Borough; 

 Settlement Boundary Review – to define clear, defensible boundaries around 

settlements in the form of ‘settlement boundaries’; 

 Employment Land Review Update – to identify the county borough’s 

employment land requirements for the LDP period and to assess the quality of the 

main employment areas for continued use, and identify potential new land to meet 

future requirements for all employment sectors; 

 Affordable Housing Viability Assessment – to provide advice on achievable 

and viable targets and thresholds for affordable housing; 

 Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment – to identify local 

need; 

 Bridgend Town Centre Flood Risk Assessment – to identify areas at risk of 

flooding; 

 Retail Study Update –to identify the requirements of retail need, including the 

need for more land and floorspace; 

 Public Open Space Audit – to identify local needs for a range of open spaces 

including for sport and play; 
 

4
Council Directive 92/43/EEC of 21 May 1992 on the conservation of natural habitats and of wild fauna and flora 

Page 155



8 | P a g e  
 

 

 Landscape Character Assessment - to describe the characteristics of the local 

landscape and which may include guidelines for development;  

 Renewable Energy Assessment – to provide a robust Renewable Energy 

evidence base; and 

 Transport Assessment – to assess the impact of the scale and distribution of 

development detailed in the emerging Local Development Plan. 

 

1.6.2 The above is not a definitive list and additional evidence base update requirements may 

emerge as plan revision progresses. There are number authorities in South-East Wales 

that are currently in the process of considering reviewing their Local Development Plans 

on the basis that their current plans expire at the end of 2021. This presents an 

opportunity for collaboration including the preparation of a shared evidence base.  

 

1.7 Well-being of Future Generations Act 

 

1.7.1 The Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act (WBFG) gained Royal Assent in April 

2015. The Act aims to make a difference to lives of people in Wales in relation to seven 

well-being goals and also sets out five ways of working. The seven well-being goals 

relate to: 

 

 a prosperous Wales; 

 a resilient Wales;  

 a healthier Wales; 

 a more equal Wales; 

 a Wales of cohesive communities; 

 a Wales of vibrant culture and Welsh language; and 

 a globally responsible Wales.  

 

1.7.2 The five ways of working are long-term, integration, involvement, collaboration and 

prevention. Given that sustainable development is the core underlying principle of the 

LDP (and SEA); there are clear associations between both the LDP and the WBFG Act. 

As a requirement of the Act a Local Well-being Plan (LWBP) must be produced 

(Bridgend’s LWBP is currently in the process of being finalised). This plan will look at the 

economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of the county and will have clear 

links with the LDP. Both the WBFG Act and the LWBP will be considered fully throughout 

the preparation of the revised LDP, which will follow the five ways of working. 

 

1.8 Tests of Soundness 

 

1.8.1 ‘Soundness’ is an integral part of the LDP system and is an important principle by which it 

may be demonstrated as to whether the LDP shows good judgement and is able to be 

trusted. If the revised LDP is found not to be sound then the Welsh Government could 

require the Council to take necessary action to remedy the situation. This may involve 

returning to the very early stages of plan preparation thereby causing considerable delay 

in the preparation of the plan. 

Page 156



9 | P a g e  
 

 

1.8.2 The Council must submit the replacement LDP to the Welsh Government for 

examination. An independent Inspector is appointed by the WG to undertake this 

examination to determine whether the LDP is fundamentally sound. The Inspector will 

assess whether the preparation of the plan has been undertaken in accordance with legal 

and regulatory procedural requirements, and, complies with the Community Involvement 

Scheme. The Inspector must also determine whether the Plan meets the three 

soundness tests5: 

 

 Test 1 – Does the plan fit? (i.e. is it clear that the LDP is consistent with other 

plans?); 

 Test 2 – Is the plan appropriate? (i.e. is the plan appropriate for the area in the 

light of the evidence?); 

 Test 3 – Will the plan deliver? (i.e. is it likely to be effective?). 

 
1.8.3 The conclusions reached by the Inspector will be binding and, unless the Welsh 

Government intervenes, the Council must accept the changes required by the Inspector 

and adopt the revised LDP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 Welsh Government LDP Manual (Edition 2, August 2015) 

Page 157



10 | P a g e  
 

2.0 Timetable  

 
2.1 The Council has prepared a timetable summarising the key stages in plan preparation 

(Table 1), which while challenging, provides a realistic timeframe for preparation of the 

replacement LDP having regard to the resources available. In preparing the timetable, 

regard has been given to the WG’s expectation that a revised plan can be prepared in 

considerably less than 4 years, taking into account the resources available and the extent 

of changes required (Planning Policy Wales Edition 9, November 2016). Furthermore, it 

has regard to the fact that the current LDP expires in December 2021 and it is imperative 

to maintain Development Plan coverage. 

 

2.1.1 Table 1 is divided into definitive and indicative stages: 

 Definitive Stages – This part of the timetable provides information up to and 

inclusive of the statutory Deposit stage. The progress of the Plan over this period 

is under the direct control of the Council and therefore target dates, are 

considered realistic and every effort will be made to adhere to these dates. 

 Indicative Stages – This part of the timetable provides for the stages of plan 

preparation beyond the statutory Deposit stage. These stages are increasingly 

dependent on a wide range of external factors (e.g. the number of 

representations received, number of examination hearing sessions, time taken to 

receive Inspector’s Report) over which the Council has far less control. Those 

dates will be reconsidered after reaching the Deposit stage when definitive 

timings for the remaining stages will be prepared and submitted to the Welsh 

Government for agreement and publication. 

 Table 1 - Key stages in the Replacement LDP Process  

 

KEY STAGE TIMESCALE 

DEFINITIVE FROM  TO 

STAGE 1 Update Evidence Base & 

SA/SEA Baseline Framework & 

Assessments 

April 2018 July 2020 

STAGE 2 Delivery Agreement  

 Submission to Welsh 

Government – June 2018 

 Response to LPA to be 

received within 4 weeks 

April 2018 July 2018 

STAGE 3 Pre-Deposit Participation & 

Consultation 

 6 week statutory consultation 

August 2018 June 2020 

STAGE 4 Deposit LDP  July 2020 December 2020 

Page 158



11 | P a g e  
 

 6 week statutory consultation 

INDICATIVE From  To 

STAGE 5 Submission Winter 2021 

(January)  

- 

STAGE 6 Examination Spring 2021 (March)  Spring 2021 (April)  

STAGE 7 Inspectors Report & Adoption  Summer 2021 (June) Autumn 2021 (July)  

STAGE 8 Adoption Summer / Autumn 2021 (August / September 

2021) 

 

2.1.2 A detailed project timetable outlining the timescale for each of the stages of plan 

preparation is included in Appendix 2. 

 

2.2 Resources 

 

2.2.1 The Head of Regeneration, Development and Property Services, and the Group Manager 

of Development will be responsible for the overall delivery of the revised LDP, with the 

Development Planning Manager responsible for the day- to-day project management. 

The Development Planning Team will lead in the preparation and delivery of the revised 

LDP with Member engagement and political reporting at appropriate stages. The existing 

staff resources are set out in Table 2 below, approximately 80% of officer time will be 

dedicated to the LDP to account for day to day involvement in liaison with colleagues in 

development management and also to account for regional working. Additional time will 

be dedicated by the Group Manager of Development to the efficient delivery of the 

replacement LDP. It will also be necessary to call upon staff resources from other internal 

departments to assist in undertaking various evidence base updates/assessments. This 

is likely to include officer support from; Development Management, Heritage, Housing, 

Highways, Economic Development, Property, Countryside Management, Education, 

Democratic Services and Legal Services. (The structure as set out below is in the 

process of being implemented by BCBC). 

 Table 2 – Development Planning Staff Resources 

Officer Job Title Number of posts 

Development Planning Manager 1 

Development Planning Team Leader 1 

LDP Project Officer   1 

Senior Planning Officer 1 

Planning Officer 1 

Technical Officers 2 

 

 

 

Page 159



12 | P a g e  
 

2.2.2 While it is anticipated that a considerable amount of evidence base work will be 

undertaken by Bridgend County Borough Council officers, predominately Development 

Planning (Planning  Policy), the use of external consultants is likely to be necessary, 

particularly in relation to highly technical/specialist elements of the evidence base. An 

initial assessment has been carried out of the elements of plan preparation that are likely 

to require external consultant input and financial resources have been secured 

accordingly. 

 

2.2.3 The Delivery Agreement has been prepared on the basis of a revised Bridgend Local 

Development Plan only. However, it is important to recognise that work is being 

undertaken on a regional basis that will require future resourcing. It is considered that 

collaboration with neighbouring authorities will be fundamental to the preparation of the 

revised LDP, particularly with regard to a joint evidence base, where appropriate. The 

South East Wales Strategic Planning Group (SEWSPG) is working towards a set of 

regionally agreed methodologies for key topic areas to ensure a consistent evidence 

base throughout the Cardiff Capital Region. In addition, Bridgend and RCT LPAs have 

identified a number of topic areas where an evidence base could be prepared jointly; 

however, this is dependent upon RCT reviewing their LDP.  

 
2.2.4 A sufficient budget is available to progress the revised LDP to adoption within the 

prescribed timetable. It is anticipated that this will cover expenditure relating to all 

elements of preparation of the revised LDP and the Independent Examination.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.3 Risk Management and Analysis 

 

2.3.1 Having regard to the resources which it is putting into the LDP process, the Council 

considers that the proposed timetable is realistic, robust, and achievable. Notwithstanding 

this conviction, the Council has identified certain areas of risk that could result in some 

departures from the proposed timetable. Any deviations from the approved timetable will, 

therefore, be monitored for slippage and/or other impacts arising from the risks identified 

below or other causes. 

 

 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Earmarked Reserve 

opening balance 

233,366.28 288,716.28 344,066.28 

Annual LDP revenue 

budget 

55,350 55,350 55,350 

Projected Earmarked 

Reserve closing balance 

288,716.28 344,066.28 399,416.28 

Page 160



13 | P a g e  
 

2.3.2 In this respect, the Council considers it is reasonable to make allowance for slippage of 

up to 3 months in the timetable without formally amending the Delivery Agreement. If 

there is a slippage of more than 3 months in the definitive part of the timetable, the 

Council will seek the agreement of the Welsh Government in amending the timetable 

following approval of such an amendment by the Authority. 

 
2.3.3 The possible risk areas are identified in Appendix 4. 

 

2.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 

 

2.4.1 The replacement LDP will contain sufficient policies to provide the basis for determining 

planning applications. However, SPG has an important supporting role in providing more 

detailed or site specific guidance on the way in which LDP policies will be applied. While 

SPG does not form part of a development plan it should be derived from and be 

consistent with the relevant LDP. The SPG should also be clearly cross referenced to the 

policies and proposals it supplements. 

 

2.4.2 Following the LDP’s adoption a number of supplementary planning guidance documents 

have been prepared to support existing LDP policies: 

 

 SPG 12 – Sustainable Energy (May 2014); 

 SPG 13 – Affordable Housing (October 2015); 

 SPG 19 – Biodiversity and Development (July 2014); 

 SPG 20 – Renewables in the Landscape (2014); and 

 SPG21 – Safeguarding Employment Sites (June 2015) 

 
2.4.3 A review of the existing SPG including ones recently amended and adopted will be 

undertaken as part of the LDP Revision process with amendments to a number of these 

likely to be required. 

 

2.5 Monitoring and Review 

 

2.5.1 The Council will monitor and regularly review progress of the replacement LDP against 

the requirements of the Delivery Agreement to ensure the timetable is being kept to and 

the public engagement as set out in the CIS is being met. The timetable allows for a 

marginal degree of flexibility, however, any amendments to the DA will require approval 

by the Council prior to Welsh Government agreement.  The DA may need to be amended 

if the following circumstances, which are beyond the LPA’s control, occur during the 

preparation of the revised LDP: 

 

 Significant change to the resources available to undertake preparation of the 

 revised LDP; 

 Preparation of the revised LDP falls behind schedule i.e. more than 3 months; 

 Significant changes to European, UK or Welsh legislation directly affecting the 

 revised LDP preparation process; 

 Any other change in circumstances that will materially affect the delivery of the 

 revised LDP in accordance with the DA; and 

Page 161



14 | P a g e  
 

 Significant changes to the Community Involvement Scheme. 

 

2.5.2 An updated timetable will be submitted to the Welsh Government following the Deposit 

stage. This will provide certainty of the timescales for the remaining stages (i.e. replacing 

indicative stages with definitive stages). The indicative timetable will be redefined within 3 

months of the close of the formal Deposit period and submitted to the Welsh Government 

for agreement. 

 

3.0 Part 3 –Community Involvement Scheme 

 

3.1 The Community Involvement Scheme sets out how the Council proposes to proactively 

involve the community and stakeholders in the preparation of the replacement LDP.  

 

3.1.1 Bridgend County Borough Council is committed to improving the quality of stakeholder 

and community involvement in plan-making. Early and continued community involvement 

should help in addressing contentious issues, and assist in resolving conflicts throughout 

plan preparation. It can also help in identifying common ground, and shared goals. 

 

3.1.2 By engaging people and organisations in planning the future of Bridgend, the CIS will, 

therefore, seek to: 

 

 detail how the LDP will be prepared, developed, monitored and reviewed in 

partnership with the community and other stakeholders in a structured, effective, 

and inclusive way; 

 improve the process of plan preparation by engaging with the public, involving 

them fully, effectively and inclusively in the preparation of the LDP; 

 seek to establish a consensus between stakeholders on the Plan’s aims and 

objectives and in its options and preferred strategy; 

 provide a transparent and structured process of engagement with the community, 

at all stages of the LDP; 

 incorporate into the process best practice regarding sustainable development, and 

the requirements of the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Directive; and  

 use these processes to produce a ‘sound’ plan. 

 
3.1.3 While ultimately it is the Council that is responsible for the content of the LDP should it 

not be possible to achieve consensus, one of the aims of the LDP system is that plan 

production is based on effective community involvement in order that a range of views 

can be considered as part of a process of building a wide consensus on the plan’s 

strategy and policies.  

 

3.1.4 The five ways of working specified by the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

are integral to the CIS, namely long-term, integration, involvement, collaboration and 

prevention. The CIS describes the ways in which the community can influence the LDP at 

the different stages of the plan preparation process. The Council has also prepared a 

timetable for the production of the LDP (Appendix 2), which should be read in connection 

with the CIS. 

Page 162



15 | P a g e  
 

 
3.1.5 The Council is a caring and customer focused organisation. The overall aim of the Council 

is to “to deliver the best local services in Wales” which is underpinned by our core FACE 

values: 

 

 Fair: taking everyone’s needs into account;  

 Ambitious: always trying to improve what we do and aiming for excellence;  

 Customer Focused: remembering that we’re here to serve our local 

communities, and 

 Efficient: delivering services that are value for money.  

 

3.1.6 Therefore, it will seek to understand and respond to customer needs through the 

consultation process on the LDP; the objective being to forge and maintain effective links 

and structures with all stakeholders. 

 

3.1.7 The CIS will provide the framework for everyone with an interest in the future planning of 

Bridgend County Borough, and consequently the LDP process, to have an opportunity to 

become actively involved in plan preparation. 

 
3.1.8 To ensure the process is inclusive, an important part of the CIS is to establish measures 

and procedures that will enable every person or group, regardless of their background, to 

realise that opportunity in the plan process and the decisions which will affect them. To 

enable full community involvement the Council will: 

 

 Encourage, support and empower disadvantaged and hard-to-reach groups and 

individuals to fully participate through forums, focus groups, and local partnerships 

in line with the Council’s agreed Equalities Agenda; and 

 Encourage and support other organisations that work in partnership with the 

Council, or receive funding from the Council, to pursue similar policies on equality 

of opportunity; and Target resources accordingly. 

 
3.1.9 Bridgend County Borough Council is also committed to utalising the ten national principles 

for public engagement in Wales. Public engagement in the preparation of the LDP will take 

place in accordance with the guidelines set out in the CIS. The Council recognise that 

engagement must be designed to make a difference, the main objectives for involving the 

community in the LDP preparation process can be identified as: 

 

 To involve people at the earliest opportunity, in time to shape plan preparation 

work; 

 That consultation takes place before decisions are made and that such decisions 

are made in an open and transparent manner; 

 To provide an accessible consultation process and adapt this as necessary to 

account for individual needs; 

 To encourage and enable everyone with the opportunity to be involved, if they 

so choose; 

 Adopt alternative approaches to ensure hard to reach groups are involved from 

Page 163



16 | P a g e  
 

the outset (this will involve liaising with BAVO); 

 Draw  on  local  knowledge  to  improve  decision  making  and  help  the  

realistic implementation of decisions; 

 That the planning system should help implement the community’s vision for 

the area; 

 To seek consensus and strengthen community involvement; 

 To engage as full a spectrum of the community as possible in strategic issues; 

and 

 To provide two way dialogue by responding to comments received and 

publishing responses in a report of consultation. 

 

3.2 Welsh Language and Bilingual engagement 

 

3.2.1 The Welsh Language Standards place a legal duty on Councils to make it easier for 

people to use services through the medium of Welsh. The Council has published a Welsh 

Language Strategy for 2017 – 2022, the requirements of both the corporate strategy and 

Welsh Language Standards will be maintained at each stage of the revised LDP. 

Bilingual engagement will be carried out in the following ways: 

 

 We welcome correspondence in both Welsh and English. Where correspondence 

is received in Welsh and a reply is necessary, this will be sent in Welsh; 

 All consultation letters, comments forms, public notices (including site notices) and 

newsletters will be bilingual; 

 Any pages on the Local Development Plan website and social media posts 

published on twitter will be bilingual; 

 Any public meetings will be conducted bilingually where a request has been made 

ahead of time. Prior notification is required in order to provide a translation service; 

and 

 Draft LDP documents can be made available in Welsh if requested. The revised 

LDP once adopted will be available in both Welsh and English Format.  

 

3.3 How will we involve our communities and key stakeholders 

 

3.3.1 We will seek to publicise the LDP revision process at every stage and reach as much of 

the community as possible, as well as other stakeholders to advise people about the 

revised LDP and how they can get involved. This will be achieved by: 

 

 Direct contact (i.e. by letter or e-mail, the preference of which as indicated by the 

stakeholder through consultation); 

 Through use of Twitter, by utilising the corporate Bridgend Council Twitter 

account @BridgendCBC) to advertise the LDP webpage; 

 Via Facebook on the Bridgend County Borough Council page; 

 Engagement with Members and Community Councils through specific workshops, 

Member drop-in sessions and in reports to appropriate Council meetings; 

 Making use of Bridgend’s Citizens Panel; 

Page 164



17 | P a g e  
 

 All LDP information and documents will be made available on the Council’s 

website, which will be updated regularly; 

 Deposit of documents at the Council’s Civic Offices, libraries, Life Centres and 

Community Hubs; 

 Press releases for the local media, where appropriate; 

 Producing a regular newsletter that describes progress on the revised LDP; 

 Public information exhibitions, drop in sessions and or meetings in accessible 

locations; and 

 Advertising each stage of participation/consultation on Bridgend Council’s 

magazine ‘Bridgenders’.  

 

3.4 Methods of Engaging the Community 

 

3.4.1 A range of methods to facilitate community involvement will be used throughout the Plan 

preparation process, and these will be designed to ensure efficient and effective 

consultation and participation, tailored when necessary to focus upon particular issues. 

The methods of engaging the community at each stage of plan preparation are set out in 

the ‘Replacement LDP Preparation Process’ table. 

 

3.4.2 Council officers will also be utilised to run structured community involvement mechanisms 

such as targeted discussions, workshops, and focus groups. Also, the extensive past 

expertise of planning officers in the more traditional consultation methods for Plan 

preparation will be used to facilitate greater joined up engagement in the wider 

consultation process necessary for LDP preparation. 

 
Citizen’s Panel 

 
3.4.3 The Council has established a Citizens Panel of 1,700 residents of the County Borough, 

selected to be statistically representative of the population, who help to inform decision-

making on a wide range of issues. The results of previous and future surveys may be 

used to inform the evidence base of the LDP. 

 

Individuals who have registered an interest through the Revised LDP Database 

 
3.4.4 An ‘LDP Consultee Database’ has been maintained to include members of the 

public, interested persons and any individual organisations who have requested to 

be kept informed at each stage of the LDP revision process. The primary purpose 

of this database is to allow for those who are not included on the Welsh 

Government list of consultees for Local Development Plans to be involved and 

informed throughout the LDP revision process. However, on 25th May 2018, the 

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) came into force, placing new 

restrictions on how organisations can hold and use your personal data and 

defining your rights with regard to that data. The GDPR will apply to our ‘LDP 

Consultee Database’ and as such members of the public will be required to give 

their consent in writing if they wish to remain or be added to the LDP database.  

 

 

Page 165



18 | P a g e  
 

3.4.5 If you wish for your details to be added to the revised LDP database, please contact the 

Development Section by email, phone or in writing. 

 

Bridgend County Borough Councillors 

 
3.4.6 It is recognised that the involvement of elected Members of Bridgend County Borough 

Council throughout the LDP review will be extremely important to the process. Elected 

Members have a unique position as not only do they represent the communities within 

their individual ward, they also represent public interest and are involved in decisions for 

the wider benefit of the County Borough as a whole. Accordingly, Elected Members will 

play an essential role in the revised LDP process by providing information to local 

residents, informing us of issues/opportunities within their local area and more 

fundamentally making decisions on matters affecting the County Borough area as a 

whole. 

 

3.4.7 The Cabinet Member for ‘Communities’ has responsibility for ‘Development Planning’ 

(Planning Policy), including the revised LDP. Liaison with the Cabinet Member and all 

other elected Members is essential throughout the process. All Member liaison’s will 

consequently be undertaken as and when deemed necessary, particularly at key stages 

of the revised LDP including but not limited to; the Preferred Strategy, Deposit LDP and 

at Adoption. Members will be fully informed throughout the process and notified prior to 

every participation/consultation stage. 

 
LDP Steering Group 

 
3.4.8 It is imperative that there is political input into the production of the replacement Bridgend 

Local Development Plan. As such Development Control Committee will also take on the 

role of ‘LDP Steering Group’ to oversee the review of the Local Development Plan 

through from start to completion. The Steering Committee’s main role will be to act as a 

‘critical friend’ providing advice, scrutinising and making decisions on key aspects and 

stage of the LDP as it develops. 

 

Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) Cabinet 

 
3.4.9 The Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet, comprising the ten Leaders of Blaenau Gwent; 

Bridgend; Caerphilly; Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Monmouthshire, Newport, Rhondda Cynon 

Taff; Torfaen; and Vale of Glamorgan was established in 2017 to oversee the delivery of 

the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal. The City Deal provides local partners with the 

powers and the resources to unlock significant economic growth across the Cardiff 

Capital Region. The City Deal also provides an opportunity to continue tackling the area’s 

barriers to economic growth by: improving transport connectivity; increasing skill levels; 

supporting people into work; and giving businesses the support they need to innovate 

and grow. The deal will also develop stronger and more effective leadership across the 

Cardiff Capital Region.  

 

 

 

 

Page 166



19 | P a g e  
 

Town and Community Councils 

 

3.4.10 Town and Community Councils also play a key role in disseminating information to the 

residents  within  their  area  on  matters  of  local  importance  and  will  be  a  key  link  

to communities across Bridgend’s. Town and Community Councils will be consulted at 

every stage of the LDP revision process. 

Town and Community Council’s Forum 

 
3.4.11 The Development Planning Team will engage with the Town and Community Council’s 

Forum. The forum will provide an additional opportunity for Town and Community 

Councils to voice their views on the revised LDP. 

 

Partnership Groups 

 
3.4.12 Existing partnership groups are seen as an important means of engaging the wider 

community in the preparation of the revised LDP, particularly in the early stages of public 

participation when structured discussion is desirable. Liaison with the Bridgend’s Public 

Service Board and partners will be of particular importance to ensure the revised LDP 

aligns. 

 

Members of the Public, Businesses, Land Owners, Developers and Agents 

 
3.4.13 The Development Planning Section will engage with the business community at an early 

stage which could be achieved through liaison with the individual chambers’ of commerce 

across the County Borough. We will also engage with planning agents who are regular 

customers of Bridgend County Borough Council’s planning service. Members of the public, 

Landowners, agents and prospective developers who wish to put land forward to be 

considered for development will therefore also be included on the LDP revision database. 

 

3.4.14 The Candidate Site process will provide the opportunity for those who have an interest 

in land to submit sites to be considered for development. A common methodology is 

being established across the South East Wales region for local planning authorities to 

utilise for their respective revised LDPs (where appropriate). A Call for Candidate Sites 

will be undertaken and all candidate sites will need to be submitted via a standardised 

form. The form will contain the criteria required to assist in the assessment of the 

suitability of sites for inclusion as potential allocations in the revised LDP. A 

threshold for accepting candidate sites will be set in order to ensure the plan remains 

strategically focused. This threshold will be provided up front in order to provide clarity of 

the process and avoid unnecessary work being undertaken for sites that will be 

immediately rejected.  

 

Bridgend Business Forum 

 
3.4.15 The Development Planning Team will engage with the Bridgend Business Forum. 

Membership is made up of established and new start businesses within a wide variety of 

business sectors. Sole traders, micro, small and medium sized businesses as well as 

large international companies are all present within the membership. The forum will 

provide an opportunity for the business community to voice their views on the revised 

Page 167



20 | P a g e  
 

LDP. Awareness of the LDP process will be promoted through the Business Forum 

newsletter which is produced on a monthly basis.  

 

Business in Focus 

 
3.4.16 The Development Planning Team will liaise with ‘Business in Focus’. This organisation 

focuses on business start-ups and assisting existing businesses to grow.  

 

Additional Consultation Bodies 

 
3.4.17 Appendix 1 provides a list of the specific and general consultation bodies along with UK 

Government departments and other consultees. The specific consultees8 comprise of the 

Welsh Government and those bodies with specific functions that apply to the revised Plan 

area, for example the Health Board who cover the Bridgend area and Dŵr Cymru Welsh 

Water, the local water undertaker. The Authority must also consult UK Government 

Departments where aspects of the plan appear to affect their interests. These 

consultation bodies will be engaged throughout the LDP revision process at each of the 

formal stages and informally, as appropriate. 

 

Hard to Reach Groups 

 
3.4.18 Efforts will be made to engage with ‘hard to reach’ groups which are rarely heard and 

who have not taken part traditionally in the plan preparation process. A flexible approach 

will need to be undertaken in relation to engagement with these groups, albeit within the 

parameters of the specified participation/consultation periods. Engagement with these 

groups may be achieved by using existing partnerships and the voluntary organisation 

BAVO may be able to assist in this process. The following groups identified below will be 

actively encouraged to participate in the LDP revision process: 

 

 Young People – the established Bridgend’s Youth Council will be invited to 

participate as appropriate in the LDP revision process. This will ensure the voices 

of young people are heard and enable young people to share their views on a wide 

range of issues that they consider important to them and their local area. This may 

also extend to engagement and consultation events at various schools in the 

County Borough where appropriate;  

 Disabled People – engagement with Bridgned’s ‘Coalition of Disabled People’ will 

be of importance in order to gain the views of those living with disabilities in 

the County Borough; and 

 Gypsy and Travellers –the Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 

Stakeholder Group will be utilised at relevant stages to ensure the gypsy and 

travelling community are appropriately engaged.  

 

3.4.19 In addition to the above hard to reach groups there are other seldom heard voices who 

are considered to have been under-represented previously in LDP preparation. This 

includes (but is not exclusive to) those seeking affordable housing in the County Borough, 

small house-builders and small and medium-sized enterprises. Accordingly, we will 

endeavor to reach out to these groups by utilising existing mutual points of contact 

wherever possible. 

Page 168



21 | P a g e  
 

3.5 What we expect from you 

 

3.5.1 In order to ensure any comments and representations on the revised LDP are 

considered, they must be submitted within the prescribed timescales. The Delivery 

Agreement sets out the timetable of relevant stages and provides a guideline of when we 

will seek your involvement. This will ensure that individual views are considered and 

taken into account throughout the LDP revision preparation process. 

 

3.5.2 It is also of importance that you notify the Development Planning Section should your 

contact details change during the LDP revision process in order for us to keep you fully 

informed of progress. With regard to Candidate Sites it is noted that land ownership 

changes may also occur during the process and it is imperative that these are 

communicated to the Development Planning Section in order to ensure progress is not 

delayed. 

 

3.6 Building Consensus 

 

3.6.1 The Council will seek to build consensus through the various engagement and 

consultation methods set out within the CIS. Consensus building can only be achieved if 

the community and other interested parties are kept fully informed and effectively 

engaged throughout the preparation of the revised LDP, which will be of particular 

importance in the early stages of plan preparation. It is nevertheless recognised that 

there will be occasions where consensus cannot be achieved and a difference in opinion 

between certain parties occurs. A clear audit trail of decisions will be maintained in order 

to ensure that there is transparency in the decision making process, and, to provide 

assurances to those that disagree that the decisions have been made in an informed and 

balanced way. However, decisions made will not be revisited via subsequent consultation 

opportunities, so participants are requested to focus their input on the matter being 

considered at that stage. 

 

3.7 Late representations 

 

3.7.1 Consultation responses are required by the specified deadline of the specific consultation 

period in order for them to be considered. Any late comments/representations will not be 

logged as ‘duly made’ as they were not made in accordance with the published 

timescales. There may be exceptional circumstances where a representation is submitted 

late, it will be at the Council’s discretion as to whether such late representations can be 

accepted. Evidence will be required to highlight why the representation was delayed and 

that a genuine attempt was made to submit within the prescribed deadline. The timescale 

to produce the revised LDP is already challenging, the acceptance of late representations 

could result in further delay which would not be acceptable. 

 

3.8 Document Availability and Deposit Locations  

 

3.8.1 At various stages of Plan preparation, documentation must be made available for public 

inspection and comment. All such documentation will also be made available 

electronically on the Council’s web site at www.bridgend.gov.uk  

Page 169

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


22 | P a g e  
 

3.8.2 In addition, hard copies will be made available for inspection at the Council’s Civic Offices 

in Bridgend, and at the Authority’s public libraries: 

 

 BCBC, Reception, Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB Mobile 

Library – (2 copies); 

 Aberkenfig Library, Heol y Llyfrau, Aberkenfig, CF32 9PT; 

 Betws Library, Betws Life Centre, Betws Road, Betws, CF32 8PT; 

 Bridgend Library, Bridgend Life Centre, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4AH 

Maesteg Library, North’s Lane, Maesteg, CF34 9AA; 

 Ogmore Vale Library, Ogmore Valley Life Centre, Aber Road, Ogmore Vale, 

CF32 7AJ Pencoed Library, Penybont Road, Pencoed, CF35 5RA; 

 Pontycymmer Library, Garw Valley Life Centre, Old Station Yard, Pontycymmer, 

CF32 8ES; 

 Porthcawl Library, Church Place, Porthcawl, CF36 3AG; 

 Pyle Library, Pyle Life Centre, Helig Fan, Pyle, CF33 6BS; 

 Sarn Library, Sarn Life Long Learning Centre, Merfield Close, Sarn, CF32 9SW; 

 Ty’r Ardd Library, Local and Family History Centre, Ty’r Ardd, Sunnyside, CF31 

4AR; and 

 Y Llynfi Library, Maesteg Sports Centre, Old Forge Site, Nant-y-Crynwyd, 

Maesteg, CF34 9EB 

 

3.8.3 All documentation will be available to view on the Council’s web site where appropriate. 

 

3.8.4 Electronic representation forms will also be made available during periods of consultation.  

 
3.8.5 Paper copies of documents will not be sent out during the LDP process as they will be 

made publicly available in the locations listed above, as well as being made available 

electronically. In exceptional circumstances paper copies may be offered, however this 

will be assessed on a case by case basis depending on the specific needs of the relevant 

individual. 

Page 170



23 | P a g e  
 

3.9 Replacement Local Development Plan Preparation Process 

 

3.9.1 The following table sets out the detailed timetable for community engagement and the proposed engagement methods for the key stages 

in the LDP preparation process. The list is not exhaustive and may need to be adapted to ensure the community and stakeholders are 

suitably involved at each stage. The proposed methods of engagement will vary dependent on the stage of plan preparation, subject 

matter, preference of those involved and the resources available at the time, recognising that the proposed timetable and methods should 

not hinder plan preparation. 

 

Definitive Stage 

Stage 1: Update Evidence Base & SA/SEA Baseline Framework & Assessments 

The Council has a statutory obligation under Section 61 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to keep all matters under review that are expected to 

affect the development of its area.  

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Update Evidence Base 

& SA/SEA Baseline 

Framework & 

Assessments 

The Council is required to 

prepare and maintain an up-

to date information base on 

all aspects of the social, 

economic and environmental 

characteristics of the 

Borough, to enable the 

preparation of a ‘sound’ 

development plan. This will 

be ongoing up until the 

submission of the Deposit 

Plan. To scope the SA/SEA 

process of the preparation of 

the LDP incorporating the 

legal requirements of the 

SA/SEA. 

April 2018 – 

July 2020 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Other Council 

Officers 

 

Independent 

Appraisers for 

SA(SEA) 

 

External 

Consultants 

where 

necessary 

LDP Monitoring 

 

Specialist Surveys / Date 

Collection Analysis 

 

LDP Officers / Members 

Group 

 

LDP Steering Group / 

PSB 

 

 

LDP Monitoring Reports 

 

Publish findings on 

Council Website where 

appropriate. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Other Council Staff 

Independent 

 

Appraisers for 

SA(SEA) 

 

External Consultants 

if necessary 

 

ICT Support 

Printing Costs 

 

P
age 171



24 | P a g e  
 

Stage 2: Delivery Agreement (DA) 

Regulations: The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 9 & 10 (2004) and Regulation 2(5) (2015) 

 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Preparation of Draft 

DA 

 

To inform stakeholders 

that the Council is 

preparing a LDP and seek 

community involvement. 

 

April 2018 

 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Other Council 

Officers 

 

 

Report to: 

 

LDP Steering Group  

 

Council 

 

 

A realistic timeframe 

for the preparation of 

the revised LDP.  

 

Details of risk 

management 

 

Community 

Involvement 

proposals specified 

 

Collaborative working 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Other Council 

Staff 

 

ICT Support 

 

 

Political Reporting - 

Draft DA 

 

To seek authorisation from 

Council to undertake 

targeted consultation on 

the Draft DA. 

April 2018 Development 

Planning Team 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

 

 

Council 

Consultation with 

Members  

 

Consultation with 

Members via Council 

meeting  

Authorisation from 

Council to undertake 

targeted consultation 

on the Draft DA. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

 

 

 

P
age 172



25 | P a g e  
 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Targeted 

Consultation on 

Draft DA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To seek views of 

stakeholders and 

consultees on the content 

of the Draft Delivery 

Agreement. 

April 2018 

– May 

2018 

 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Other Council 

Officers 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

 

Council 

 

All Specific 

consultation 

Bodies 

 

UK Government 

Departments 

 

General 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

Other 

Consultees 

Bodies (Including 

General Public 

and consult 

Planning 

Inspectorate 

(PINS) 

Consultation with 

Members via LDP 

Steering Group / PSB 

members. 

 

Consultation with 

Members via Council 

meeting. 

 

Targeted consultation 

with specific 

consultation bodies 

via direct 

correspondence. 

 

Information by letter or 

e-mail. 

 

Website 

Any comments will be 

considered and Draft 

Delivery Agreement 

amended if required. 

 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Printing Costs 

 

Postage Costs 

 

Press / 

Advertisement 

Costs 

P
age 173



26 | P a g e  
 

 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Political Reporting 

following 

consultation on DA 

(agreement to 

submit to WG) 

 

To inform LDP Steering 

Committee and Council. 

To report views of 

stakeholders and 

consultees on the content 

of the Draft Delivery 

Agreement to the LDP 

Steering Group and 

Council. 

 

Council resolution will be 

requested to approve the 

(revised) Delivery 

Agreement for submission 

to Welsh Government. 

June 2018 Development 

Planning Team 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

members 

 

Council 

 

Committee Reports A summary of 

comments received 

with Delivery 

Agreement presented 

to LDP Steering 

Group. 

 

A summary of 

comments received 

with Delivery 

Agreement presented 

to Council. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Printing Costs 

 

Submission to 

Welsh Government 

following Council 

approval. 

 

 

To seek formal agreement 

of the Delivery Agreement. 

June 2018 Development 

Planning Team 

 

Welsh 

Government 

 Council resolution will 

be requested to 

approve the Delivery 

Agreement for 

submission to Welsh 

Government. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Printing Costs 

DA agreed by Welsh 

Government. 

 

Formal commencement of 
Replacement LDP 

July 2018 Welsh 

Government 

 Formal agreement 

from Welsh 

Government & Report 

to Council advising of 

Welsh Governments 

approval. 

 

Publish Delivery 

Agreement. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

P
age 174



27 | P a g e  
 

 

Stage 3: Pre-Deposit Participation & Consultation 

The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulation 14 (2004) and Regulation 2 (10) (2015); Regulations 15 & 16 

(2004) and Regulation 16a (2015) 

 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Consultation on Draft 

SA/SEA Scoping 

Report (5 weeks 

consultation) 

 

*statutory 5 week 
consultation to be 
undertaken at an 
appropriate juncture 
between July –
September 2018 
 

To seek views of 
consultees on the 
content of the SA/SEA 
Scoping Report. 

July 2018 – 

Sept 2018 

 

 

Development 

Planning 

Team 

 

Appropriate 

SA/SEA 

consultation 

bodies 

 

 

Written Information 

dissemination via post 

and email 

 

Notices, 

 

Website 

 

Press 

 

Facebook & Twitter 

Officer consideration 
of comments on 
SA/SEA Scoping 
Report and 
recommendation of 
amendments if 
required.  
 
A summary of 
comments received 
with SA/SEA Scoping 
Report presented to 
LDP Steering Group. 
 
A summary of 
comments received 
with SA/SEA Scoping 
Report presented to 
Council. 
 
 

Development 
Planning Team 

 

 

 

P
age 175



28 | P a g e  
 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Call for Candidate 

Sites (8 week 

consultation) 

 
**statutory 8 week 

consultation to be 

undertaken at an 

appropriate juncture 

between September – 

December 2018. 

 
 

As part of developing the 

evidence base, the 

Council will engage with 

stakeholders and the 

public in identifying 

candidate sites to 

produce a Site Register. 

 

Sept 2018 – 

Dec 2018 

Development 

Planning 

Team 

 

All Specific 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

UK 

Government 

Departments 

 

General 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

Other 

Consultees 

(Including 

general 

public) 

Written Information 

dissemination via post 

and email 

 

Notices, 

 

Website 

 

Press 

 

Facebook & Twitter 

 

Bridgenders Magazine 

Develop and produce 

a site register to 

inform the Visioning 

and Strategic Options 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

ICT Support 

 

Printing Costs 

 

Postage Costs 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 176



29 | P a g e  
 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Candidate Sites 

Assessments 

 

 

 

 

 

Identify candidate sites. 

 

Assessment criteria will 

be provided to facilitate 

this. The Site Register 

will be used to inform the 

Visioning and Strategic 

Options. 

Sept 2018 – 

Dec 2020 

Development 

Planning 

Team 

 

 See above. See above. 

 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Identification & 

assessment of 

options (growth levels 

and spatial 

distribution) with SA / 

SEA input 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To engage with 

consultees to develop 

consensus on options,  

including, growth levels 

and  spatial distribution 

 

Nov 2018 – 

Feb 2019 

Development 

Planning 

Team 

 

LDP Officers / 

Members 

Group, 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

Members 

 

Council 

 

Independent 

Appraisers for 

SA(SEA) 

Meetings 

 

Workshops 

 

Written Information 

dissemination via post 

and e-mail. 

Seek consensus on 

options, including, 

growth levels and 

distribution 

 

All Documentation 

placed on the Council 

Website and at 

Deposit locations. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

P
age 177



30 | P a g e  
 

 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Preparation of 

Preferred Strategy, 

SA/SEA Report & HRA 

 

To agree a Preferred 

Strategy for the LDP and 

express its Spatial 

implications in the Pre-

Deposit Proposals. 

May 2019 – 

Sep 2019 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

LDP Officers / 

Members Group 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

Members 

 

Council 

 

Independent 

Appraisers for 

SA(SEA) 

 

All Specific 

consultation 

Bodies 

 

UK Government 

Departments 

 

General 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

Other 

Consultees 

(Including 

General Public) 

Meetings 

 

Workshops 

 

Written Information 

dissemination via post 

and e-mail. 

Obtain Council 

approval for Preferred 

Strategy consultation. 

 

Council to approve 

Pre-Deposit Proposals 

and place on the 

Council Website and 

at all Deposit locations 

for at least 6 weeks. 

 

Deposit SA / SEA 

Report simultaneously 

with Pre-Deposit 

Proposals. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

P
age 178



31 | P a g e  
 

 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Consultation on 

Preferred Strategy & 

Initial SA/SEA Report 

(6 Weeks 

Consultation) 

 

To provide Consultees, 

stakeholders and others, 

with an opportunity to 

view and propose 

changes to the Pre-

Deposit Proposals. 

Oct 2019 – 

Nov 2019 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

LDP Officers / 

Members Group 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

Members 

 

Council 

 

Independent 

Appraisers for 

SA(SEA) 

 

All Specific 

consultation 

Bodies 

 

UK Government 

Departments 

 

General 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

Other 

Consultees 

(Including 

General 

Public) 

Meetings 

 

Exhibitions 

 

Workshops 

 

Written Information 

dissemination via post 

and e-mail. 

 

Letters and Pre- 

Deposit Proposals 

sent to Specific 

Consultation Bodies. 

 

Letters sent to all 

other consultees. 

 

Copies of Pre-Deposit 

Proposals and 

associated documents 

published on Council 

Web Site and placed 

at Deposit locations. 

 

Local Advertisement. 

Facebook & Twitter 

 

Bridgenders Magazine 

Council to approve 

Pre-Deposit Proposals 

and place on the 

Council 

Website and at all 

Deposit locations for 

at least 6 weeks. 

 

Deposit SA / SEA 

Report simultaneously 

with Pre-Deposit 

Proposals. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

P
age 179



32 | P a g e  
 

 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Analyse consultation 

responses and prepare 

Initial Consultation 

Report  

 

Enable the Council to 

consider the response to 

the Pre-Deposit Proposals 

and amend if appropriate. 

 

SA/SEA of amended Pre-

Deposit Proposals ready for 

Deposit. 

Dec 2019 – 

Jan 2020 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

Members 

 

Council 

 

Other Council 

Officers 

Written Information 

dissemination via post 

and e-mail 

 

Meetings 

 

Workshops 

 

Copies of relevant 

documentation placed 

on Council Web Site and 

at all Deposit locations. 

Local Advertisement. 

Assess Responses 

received and produce 

‘Initial Consultation 

Report’. 

 

Approval of Initial 

Consultation Report 

by Council 

 

Advise all Stakeholders 

of availability of Initial 

Consultation report. 

 

Initial Consultation 

Report published on 

Council Web Site and 

placed at Deposit 

Locations. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Other Council Staff 

 

Independent 

Appraisers for 

SA(SEA) 

 

ICT support 

Printing Costs 

 

Postage Costs 

 

Advertisement 

Costs 

Prepare Deposit Plan, 

update SA/SEA/HRA 

 

The Deposit Plan will have 
developed out of the 
preceding stages of the 
LDP process. 

Feb 2020 – 

Jun 2020 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

LDP Officers / 

Members 

Working 

Group 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

Members 

 

Council 

Formal Reports 

 

Meetings 

 

Workshops 

Obtain Council approval 
to formally consult on the  
Deposit LDP. 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

 

P
age 180



33 | P a g e  
 

Stage 4: Deposit LDP 

The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 17, 18 & 19 (2004) 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 

involved 

Methods of 

involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 

Reporting 

Mechanisms 

Resources 

Consultation on Deposit 

Plan, SA/SEA Report 

and HRA 

 

(6 week statutory 

consultation) 

This stage of the process 

will enable all stakeholders 

to make representations on 

the Deposit Plan and 

associated documents. 

 

 

July 2020 – 

August 2020 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

LDP Officers / 

Member 

Working Group 

 

LDP Steering 

Group  / PSB 

Members 

 

Council 

 

Members 

 

All Specific 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

UK Government 

Departments 

 

General 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

Other 

Consultees 

(Including 

General 

Public) 

Formal Reports 

 

Meetings 

 

Workshops 

 

Copies of Deposit Plan 

and associated 

documents placed on 

Council Website and at 

all Deposit locations. 

 

All Deposited 

documentation & Deposit 

LDP sent to Specific 

Consultation Bodies. 

 

Letters sent to all other 

consultees. Local 

Advertisement. 

 

Public Exhibitions.  

 

Submission of ’Duly 

made’ Representations. 

 

Facebook & Twitter 

 

Bridgenders Magazine 

Acknowledge receipt of 

duly made 

representations in writing 

or by email. 

 

Publish representations 

on Council Website 

where practicable and 

copies made available 

for inspection at Council 

Offices. 

 

 

 

 

 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Other Council Staff 

 

External 

Consultants 

where necessary 

 

ICT support 

 

Independent 

Appraisers for 

SA(SEA) 

 

Printing Costs 

 

Postage Costs 

 

Advertisement 

Costs 

P
age 181



34 | P a g e  
 

 

Stage in the LDP  

preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 
involved 

Methods of 
involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 
Reporting 
Mechanisms 

Resources 

Analyse consultation 

responses and prepare 

Consultation Report & 

update Deposit Plan and 

Report accordingly. * 

This will provide the 

opportunity to consider all 

Representations received to 

the Deposit Plan, collate the 

responses and produce a 

feedback report. 

September 

2020-

December 

2020 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

LDP Officers / 

Members Group 

 

LDP Steering 

Group / PSB 

 

Council 

 

All Specific 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

UK Government 

Departments 

 

General 

Consultation 

Bodies 

 

Other 

Consultees 

(Including 

General 

Public) 

Meetings 

 

Workshops  

 

Information 

dissemination via post 

and e-mail. 

 

Facebook & Twitter 

Produce a Feedback 

report to Council on 

Representations received 

during Deposit of the 

LDP. 

 

Publish on Council Web-

Site and place at Deposit 

Locations. 

 

Advise Stakeholders of 

Availability of 

Stakeholders Report  

 

Submission of Deposit 

LDP & supporting 

documents to Welsh 

Government for formal 

examination 

 

Development 

Planning Team 

 

Other Council Staff 

External 

Consultants 

where necessary 

 

ICT support 

 

Independent 

Appraisers for 

SA(SEA) 

 

Printing Costs 

 

Postage Costs 

 

*A ‘Focused change’ consultation stage may be required to be built into the timetable as a result of evidence and consultation responses received etc.  

 

 

P
age 182



35 | P a g e  
 

Indicative Stage  

 

Stage 5: Submission  

The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulation 22(2004) and Regulation 2 (17) (2015) 

Stage in the LDP  
preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 
involved 

Methods of 
involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 
Reporting 
Mechanisms 

Resources 

Submission of LDP 
and associated 
Documents to Welsh 
Government  and 
Planning Inspectorate 
which includes: 

 

 Deposit LDP 

 Final Sustainability 
Appraisal Report 

 Supporting Evidence-
base Material 

 Copy of the CIS  

 Consultation Report 

 Copy of all 
representations 
made to the deposit 
Plan 

 A statement of 
suggested main 
issues for 
consideration at 
examination 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To submit LDP and 
Associated documents to 
Welsh Government and 
Planning Inspectorate for 
Examination. 

Jan 2021 Development 
Planning Team 
 
Programme 
Officer 
 
Welsh 
Government 
 
Planning 
Inspectorate 

Formal Submission of 
LDP and Associated 
documents. 

Service Level Agreement 
with Planning 
Inspectorate for conduct 
of the Examination. 

Development 
Planning Team 
 
 
Appointment of 
Programme Officer 
for Independent 
Examination 
 
ICT Support 
 
Printing Costs 
 
Postage Costs 
 
Advertisement 
Costs 

 

P
age 183



36 | P a g e  
 

Stage 6 Examination 

The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulation 23(2004) 

Stage in the LDP  
preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 
involved 

Methods of 
involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 
Reporting 
Mechanisms 

Resources 

Pre-examination 
meeting 

The Independent Planning 
Inspector will advise on 
examination procedures and 
format. 

Mar 2021 – 
Apr 2021 

Planning 
Inspectorate 
 
Development 
Planning Team 
 
Programme 
Officer 
 
All Representors 
 
All Stakeholders 

Direct Contact with 
Representors at Pre- 
Examination Meeting 
 
Press Release 
 
Information on Council 
Web Site and at 
Deposit Locations 
 
Facebook & Twitter 

Unknown Development 
Planning Team 
 
Other Council Staff 
 
Programme Officer 
 
ICT Support 
 
Printing Costs 
 
Postage Costs 
 
Advertisement 
Costs 

Notification of 
Independent 
Examination 

To ensure that stakeholders 
and representors are 
advised that an Independent 
Examination into the LDP will 
be taking place. 

Mar 2021 – 
Apr 2021 

Planning 
Inspectorate 
 
Development 
Planning Team 
 
Programme 
Officer 
 
All Representors 
 
All Stakeholders 

Written dissemination via 
post and e-mail regarding 
Examination 
 
Facebook & Twitter 

Unknown See above 

Independent 
Examination 

The examination will 
determine whether the LDP 
is “sound” and consider the 
representations made in 
respect of it. 

Mar 2021 – 
Apr 2021 

Planning 
Inspectorate 
 
All Representors 
Other  
 
Consultees and 
Stakeholders 
(including the 
general 

 Unknown Service Level 
Agreement with 
Planning 
Inspectorate. 
 
Development 
Planning Team 
 
Other Council Staff 
 

P
age 184



37 | P a g e  
 

public) 
 
Development 
Planning Team 
 
Other Council 
Staff 
 
Programme 
Officer 
 
Independent 
Appraisers for 
SA(SEA) 
 
External 
Consultants 
/ Legal 
Representation 
appointed if 
necessary 
 

Independent 
Appraisers for 
SA(SEA) as 
advisors 
 
External 
Consultants / 
Legal 
Representation 
if necessary 
 
ICT Support 
 
Printing Costs 
 
Postage Costs 
 
Advertisement 
Costs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 185



38 | P a g e  
 

Stage 7 Inspectors Report 

The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulation 24 (2004) 

Stage in the LDP  
preparation process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 
involved 

Methods of 
involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 
Reporting 
Mechanisms 

Resources 

Receive Inspectors 
Report 

After the examination, the 
Inspector will produce a 
binding report identifying 
proposed changes to the 
LDP. The authority will have 
the opportunity before the 
Inspectors report is finalised, 
to request the correction of 
factual errors. 

Jun 2021 – Jul 
2021 

 

Development 
Planning Team 
 
LDP Officers / 
Members Group 
 
LDP Steering 
Group / PSB 
 
Council 

Written dissemination 
via post and e-mail. 
 
Meetings 

Advise Council of receipt 
of Inspectors Report. 
 
Council is required to 
adopt the final LDP 
incorporating the 
Inspector’s 
recommendations within 
8 weeks and agree its 
‘Adoption Statement’. 

Service Level 
Agreement with 
Planning 
Inspectorate. 
 
Development 
Planning Team 
 
Other Council Staff 
 
ICT Support 
 
Printing Costs 

Publication of Final 
Inspectors Report 

The authority will make 
copies of the Inspector report 
and its suggested changes 
available for public 
inspection within 4 weeks of 
its receipt. 

Jun 2021 – Jul 
2021 
 

Development 
Planning Team 
 
Council 

Letters sent to all 
consultees advising 
availability of Inspectors 
Report. 
 
Copies of Inspectors 
Report placed on Council 
Web Site and at all 
deposit locations. 
 
Facebook & Twitter 
 
Bridgenders Magazine 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council to notify its 
intention to adopt the 
LDP as soon as possible 
(or in any event within a 
further 4 weeks). 

Development 
Planning Team 
 
ICT Support 
 
Printing Costs 
 
Postage Costs 
 
Advertisement 
Costs 

 

P
age 186



39 | P a g e  
 

Stage 8 Adoption 

The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulation 25 (2004) and 2(19) (2015) 

Stage in the LDP  
preparation 
process 

Purpose Timescale Who will be 
involved 

Methods of 
involvement 

Likely Outcomes & 
Reporting 
Mechanisms 

Resources 

Formal adoption of the 
Bridgend LDP as the 
Development Plan for 
Bridgend County 
Borough. 

To advise of the adoption of 
the Bridgend Local 
Development Plan. 

Aug 2021 – 
Sep 2021 

Development 
Planning Team 
 
LDP Steering 
Group / PSB 
 
Council 
 
All Stakeholders 

Send copy of adoption 
statement to all 
stakeholders. 
 
Bridgend LDP published 
on Council Web and 
placed at original Deposit 
locations. 
 
Send 4no. copies of the 
adopted LDP and 
adoption statement to 
Welsh Government. 
 
As soon as practicably 
possible after adoption, 
final LDP sent to Specific 
Consultation Bodies & 
letters sent to all other 
consultees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LDP adopted by 
resolution of Council. 
 
Publish Adoption 
Statement and Final SA 
Report 

Development 
Planning Team 
 
ICT Support 
 
Printing Costs 
 
Postage Costs 
 
Advertisement 
Costs 

P
age 187



40 | P a g e  
 

Contact details 

You can contact the Development Planning Team using any of the following methods: 

Email: ldp@bridgend.gov.uk  

Telephone: 01656 643162 

Post: Development Planning Team, Bridgend County Borough Council, Civic Offices, Angel 

Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 188

mailto:ldp@bridgend.gov.uk


41 | P a g e  
 

Appendix 1 – List of Consultation Bodies 
 
The  Council  will  consult  the  following  consultation  bodies  at  all  stages  in  the 
preparation of the LDP. 
 
Specific Consultation Bodies (including UK Government Departments) 

 

 Welsh Government (including Planning division) 

 Natural Resources Wales 

 Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board 

 Cwm Taf University Health Board 

 British Telecom 

 CADW 

 Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust 

 Telecommunication Operators - O2 Airwave Service, Arqiva, O2 Plc, Three 
(Hutchinson), EE, T Mobile, Vodafone, NTL Communications, Virgin Media 

 Gas and Electricity – Transco, Western Power Distribution, National Grid Wireless, 
National Grid Company Plc 

 Sewerage of Water undertakers - Welsh Water Dwr Cymru 

 Network Rail 

 Secretary of State for Wales 

 Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy  

 Department for Transport 

 Home Office 

 Ministry of Defence 

 Awen Cultural Trust 
 

 
Neighbouring Local Authorities  
 

 Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 

 Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council 

 Vale of Glamorgan Council 
 
Cardiff Capital Region Joint Cabinet and Other Local Authorities in the Cardiff Capital 
Region 
 

 Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet  

 Newport City Council 

 City of Cardiff Council  

 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

 Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council 

 Torfaen County Borough Council 

 Monmouthshire County Council 

 Caerphilly County Borough Council 
 
Town and Community Councils in the Bridgend County Area (including neighbouring 
Town and Community Councils) 
 

 Brackla Community Council 

 Bridgend Town Council 

 Cefn Cribwr Community Council 

Page 189



42 | P a g e  
 

 Coity Higher Community Council 

 Cornelly Community Council 

 Coychurch Higher Community Council 

 Coychurch Lower Community Council 

 Garw Valley Community Council 

 Laleston Community Council 

 Llangynwyd Lower Community Council 

 Llangynwyd Middle Community Council 

 Maesteg Town Council 

 Merthyr Mawr Community Council 

 Newcastle Higher Community Council 

 Ogmore Valley Community Council 

 Pencoed Town Council 

 Porthcawl Town Council 

 Pyle Community Council 

 St Brides Minor Community Council 

 Ynysawdre Community Council 

 Colwinston Community Council 

 Ewenny Community Council 

 Llangan Community Council 

 St Brides Major Community Council 

 Llanharan Community Council 

 Gilfach Goch Community Council 
 
 
Other Consultees 
 

 Action on Hearing Loss  

 Active Travel Cymru 

 Barratt David Wilson Homes 

 Bellway 

 Bovis Homes 

 Bridgend and District YMCA 

 Bridgend Civic Trust 

 Bridgend Coalition of Disabled People 

 Bridgend College 

 Bridgend County Allotment Association 

 Bridgend County Borough Councillors 

 Bridgend Designer Outlet 

 Bridgend District Local History and Museum Society 

 Bridgend Equality Forum 

 Bridgend Friends of the Earth 

 Bridgend Public Services Board – Bridgend County Borough Council, ABMU 
Health Board, South Wales Fire & Rescue, Natural Resources Wales, Public 
Health Wales, South Wales Police, National Probation Service, Community 
Rehabilitation Company, Bridgend Association of Voluntary Organisations, 
Valleys to Coast, Housing Welsh Government, South Wales Police & Crime 
Commissioner’s Office, Bridgend College, Awen, Bridgend Business Forum 

 Bridgend Women’s Aid 

 Bridgend Youth Council & Forum 

 British Aggregates Association 

 British Astronomical Association (Campaign for Dark Skies) 

Page 190



43 | P a g e  
 

 British Gas Wales 

 British Geological Society 

 Business in Focus 

 Cardiff International Airport 

 CBI 

 Celtic Energy 

 Chartered Institute of Housing Cymru 

 Citizens Advice Bureau 

 Civil Aviation Authority 

 Coal Authority 

 Coastal Housing Group 

 Coed Cymru (Welsh Woodland Organisation)  

 Coity Walia Commoners Association 

 Compute (Bridgend) Ltd 

 Crown Estates Commissioners 

 Davies Bros 

 Design Commission for Wales 

 Disability Wales 

 Federation of Master Builders 

 Federation of Small Businesses 

 Fields in Trust  

 Ford Motor Company 

 Freight Transport Association 

 Glamorgan Muslim Community Association 

 Gofal Housing Trust 

 Groundwork Bridgend 

 Gypsy and Travellers Wales 

 Hafod Housing Association 

 Hale Homes 

 Hanson Aggregates 

 Health and Safety Executive 

 Hendre Housing Association 

 Home Builders Federation 

 Jehovah’s Witnesses 

 Jehu 

 Kier Living 

 Linc – Cymru Housing Association 

 Llamau Ltd  

 Llanmoor Homes 

 Llynfi Valley Forum 

 Local and Regional Assembly Members representing Bridgend County 
Borough  

 Local Members of European Parliament 

 Local Members of Parliament 

 Lovells 

 Merthyr Mawr Estate Office 

 National Air Traffic Services Ltd (NSL) 

 National Federation of Gypsy Liaison Groups 

 Network Rail 

 NFU Cymru 

 Ogmore Angling Association 

Page 191



44 | P a g e  
 

 Ogwr DASH 

 Persimmon Homes 

 Planning Aid Wales 

 Planning Inspectorate Wales 

 Play Wales 

 Porthcawl Civic Trust Society 

 Quarry Products Association 

 Ramblers 

 Redrow Homes 

 Religious Society of Friends – Quakers 

 Representative Body of the Church in Wales (The)  

 Riparian Owners of River Ogmore 

 Road Safety Wales 

 Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Wales 

 Royal Mail Property Holding 

 Royal National Institute for the Blind 

 Royal Society of Architects in Wales 

 RSPB Cymru 

 RTPI Wales 

 Shelter Cymru 

 Showmen’s Guild of Great Britain South Wales and Northern Ireland 

 Sports Wales 

 Sustrans Cymru 

 Tarmac 

 Taylor Wimpey 

 The Equality & Human Rights Commission  

 The Wildlife Trust of South & West Wales 

 United Welsh Housing Association 

 Wales and West Housing Association  

 Wallich (The)  

 Welsh Ambulance Service 

 Welsh Health Estates 

 Welsh Local Government Association 

 Yellow Wales  
 

 Chambers of Trade:- 

 CF31 Bid 

 Maesteg Chamber of Trade 

 Porthcawl Chamber of Trade 
 

 Local Transport Operators: - 

 Arriva Trains Wales 

 First Cymru 

 Great Western Trains Company Ltd 
 
 
 

Page 192



45 | P a g e   

Appendix 2 – Timetable for Revised LDP 

  
2018 2019 2020 2021 

Key Stage - Definitive A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D 

Stage 1 - Update 

Evidence Base                                                                                           

Review Evidence Base 

(including review of 

SA/SEA Framework)                                                                                           

Stage 2 - Delivery 

Agreement (DA)                                                                                           

Preparation of Draft DA                                                                                           

Political Reporting - Draft 

DA                                                                                           

Targeted Consultation 

on Draft DA                                                                                           

Political Reporting 

following consultation on 

DA (agreement to submit 

to WG)                                                                                           

Submission to Welsh 

Government                                                                                           

DA agreed by Welsh 

Government                                                                                           

Stage 3  - Pre-Deposit 

Participation & 

Consultation                                                                                           

Consultation on Draft SA 

Scoping Report (5 

weeks)*                                              

Call for Candidate Sites 

(8 week consultation)**                                                                                           

Candidate Sites 

Assessments                                                                                           

Identification & 

assessment of vision, 

issues and objectives                                                                                           

Identification & 

assessment of options 

(growth levels and 

spatial distribution) & 

SA/SEA                                                                                           

Preparation of Preferred 

Strategy, SA Report & 

HRA                                                                                           

*statutory 5 week consultation to be undertaken between July –September 2018 
**statutory 8 week consultation to be undertaken between September – December 2018 

 

P
age 193



46 | P a g e   

 

  
2018 2019 2020 2021 

Key Stage - 

Definitive 
A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D 

Stage 3 - Pre-Deposit 

Participation & 

Consultation 

(Continued)                                                                                           

Consultation on Preferred 

Strategy                                                                                           

Consultation on Initial 

SA/SEA Report                                                                                           

Analyse consultation 

responses and prepare 

Initial Consultation Report                                                                                           

Prepare Deposit Plan, 

update SA/HRA                                                                                           

Stage 4 - Deposit LDP 
                                                                                          

Consultation on Deposit 

Plan, SA/SEA Report and 

HRA                                                                                           

Analyse consultation 

responses and prepare 

Consultation Report                                                                                           

Key Stage - Indicative A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D 

Stage 5 - Submission of 

LDP to Welsh 

Government                                                                                           

Stage 6 - Examination                                                                                           

Inspector's Report - 

Preparation                                                                                           

Stage 7 - Inspector's 

Report - Publication                                                                                           

Stage 8 - Adoption                                                                                           

 

 

 

P
age 194



47 | P a g e   

Appendix 3 – Bridgend Replacement LDP: Draft Delivery Agreement Consultation Report – Summary of Key Issues Raised 

A statutory review of the Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) commenced in 2017, an important stage being the publication of the Draft Review Report 

which was subject to a four week stakeholder consultation period commencing Monday 30 April 2018 until 5pm Friday 25 May 2018. The Delivery Agreement 

sets out how and when the local community and other stakeholders can contribute to the preparation of the Replacement Plan and a timetable for its 

preparation.  It is proposed that the Replacement LDP will cover a plan period up to 2033.  

  

The LPA received 8 consultation responses. A summary of the key issues raised in relation to the questions on the Draft Delivery Agreement is provided in the 

table below: 

 

Representor Comment  LPA Response Recommendation 

The Glamorgan 

Gwent 

Archaeological 

Trust Ltd 

 

The historic environment is an important part of Bridgend CBC's area, and includes 

statutorily designated historic assets of both areas and structures, as well as non-

designated historic assets.  The range of these includes areas such as the Mesolithic 

flint scatters at Merthyr Mawr Warren, shrunken Medieval villages, and the historic core 

of Bridgend, with its Medieval bridge, castle and church, industrial minerals extractive 

and transporting landscapes, RAF Stormy Down, as well as information on isolated 

finds of all periods, all of which contribute to the distinctive heritage and current form of 

the area.  We are also able to provide information on the policies and procedures that 

have been adopted for development in other local authorities: for Bridgend, eleven 

areas have been delineated as Archaeologically Sensitive Areas in an Archaeology 

and Archaeologically Sensitive Areas SPG which has been supplied to you in draft in 

2017 and is awaiting approval.  The historic environment should not be seen as any 

constraint to development, but viewed with the Well-being of Future Generations 

(Wales) Act, contribute substantially to the well-being goals relating to culture and 

community, and by understanding and enhancement to the remaining goals. The Draft 

Review Report notes in 2.2.11 that the Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016 has 

become law, giving more effective protection to the historic environment in Wales.  

There is a suite of relevant supporting policy (Planning Policy Wales 9, 2016 Chapter 

6: The Historic Environment, technical advice notes (TAN24: The Historic Environment) 

and best practice guidance, some of which is still emerging.  Inclusion of these in a 

revised Plan would acknowledge current legislation and support current professional 

standards. 

The comments received from 

the Glamorgan Gwent 

Archaeological Trust Ltd are 

noted.  

 

 

No change required to 

the Delivery Agreement. 

Natural Resources 
Wales 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales on the 
above LDP draft deliver agreement, which we received on 24 April 2018. 
 

The comments received from 
Natural Resources Wales are 
noted.  

No change required to 
the Delivery Agreement. 

P
age 195



48 | P a g e   

We welcome the consultation, and we acknowledge the delivery agreement 
timescales. We would like to take the opportunity to offer our support, including 
informal engagement throughout the LDP review process. 
 

National Grid 

 

National Grid has appointed Amec Foster Wheeler to review and respond to 

development plan consultations on its behalf.  We have reviewed the above 

consultation document and can confirm that National Grid has no comments to make in 

response to this consultation. 

The comments received from 

National Grid are noted.  

 

 

No change required to 

the Delivery Agreement. 

Merthyr Mawr 

Community 

Council 

 

Thank you for providing the information regarding Bridgend Local Development Plan 

(2013) - Consultation on Draft Review Report & Draft Replacement Local Development 

Plan Delivery Agreement.  This was noted by Merthyr Mawr Community Council during 

their meeting on Monday 14th May 2018.  Merthyr Mawr Community Council are 

satisfied with the way the review is being undertaken at present.  

The comments received from 

Merthyr Mawr Community 

Council are noted.  

 

 

No change required to 

the Delivery Agreement. 

Welsh Water Thank you for consulting Welsh Water on the Draft Review Report.  
We have no specific comments to make on the content but are keen to be involved in 
the early stages of the Replacement LDP. 

The comments received from 

Welsh Water are noted. The 

LPA will liaise with Welsh Water 

as part of the Replacement LDP 

process.   

No change required to 
the Delivery Agreement. 

South Wales 

Police, Designing 

Out Crime Officer 

 

In respect of the above, I would like to pass comment at the appropriate time, as the 

Designing out Crime Officer for the Bridgend County Borough Council Area, to 

strengthen the subject topic of Community Safety within the Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 

 

The comments received from 

South Wales Police (Designing 

Out Crime Officer) are noted. 

The LPA will liaise with South 

Wales Police on this issue as 

part of the Replacement LDP 

process.   

No change required to 

the Delivery Agreement. 

Mrs M C Wilkins 

 

Bridgend County Borough is suffering from over intensification of large housing 

developments; this is putting a strain on our communities and causing the highway 

structure to become grid locked.  The LDP is against over intensification of houses and 

this is adopted by Bridgend County Borough Council.  

The comments received from 

Mrs M C Wilkins are noted. The 

Spatial Strategy will be reviewed 

as part of the Replacement LDP 

process. 

No change required to 

the Delivery Agreement. 

 Land Promotion   

Mr Stephen 
Blackwell 

Possible inclusion of land at Pentre Beili Farm. The draft DA consultation is not 
the appropriate stage in the 
Replacement LDP process for 
the submission of land for 
inclusion in the LDP.  
 

No change required to 
the Delivery Agreement. 

P
age 196



49 | P a g e   

There will be a formal ‘Call for 
Candidate Sites’ consultation (8 
weeks) during Stage 3 (Prep-
Deposit Participation & 
Consultation) of the 
Replacement LDP Process. 

 

 Officer Amendments    

1. Paragraph 1.4.2 has been amended to show a degree of linkage between the SA (SEA), the Bridgend Well-being Plan (in accordance with the Well-
Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act and Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA).  
 
The SA, incorporating SEA, will therefore draw upon the Bridgend Local Well-being Plan (produced in accordance with the Well Being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act – refer to Section 1.9) and will integrate where possible with a Wellbeing Assessment, Health Impact Assessment (HIA) and 
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) that will also be prepared to support the Bridgend LDP Review.  
 

2. Paragraph 1.4.3 amended to read: 
 
a)    The first bullet point regarding SA Scoping has been expanded to reference the statutory requirement to undertake SEA screening (as this is an 

LDP Review rather than a first LDP). The following amendment has been be made so that  this bullet point reads: 
 
A Sustainability Appraisal, incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment, Scoping Report. This report will identify the need to undertake a 
SA, incorporating SEA, of the LDP Review and set out the proposed SA methodology and consultation arrangements. In doing so it will provide an 
overview of sustainability baseline data conditions and issues relevant to the Bridgend area, together with a review of other plans, policies, 
programmes and strategies which are likely to influence the LDP Review. The existing SA Framework adopted for the first Bridgend LDP will also be 
reviewed and updated as necessary to provide a robust mechanism for undertaking the SA, incorporating SEA, of new LDP proposals and policy 
options as they emerge. This report will be subject to consultation with the SEA Consultation Bodies before any substantive proposals or policy options 
are subject to consultation. 
 
b)    For clarity the second and third has been combined into a single bullet point as follows: 
 
The Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Report: All substantive proposals and policy options for a replacement LDP will be subject to a proportionate level 
of SA, incorporating SEA. This will include assessment reasonable alternatives to preferred options and the SA will be carried out in accordance with 
the SA Framework and methodology defined through SA/SEA Screening and Scoping. The SA process will be reported within iterative SA Reports 
which will accompany the Preferred Strategy (LDP Pre-Deposit) and Pre-Deposit Documents, with the SA Report updated between these stages to 
reflect changes to the emerging LDP: 
o    The SA Report for the Preferred Strategy will focus on assessing likely significant effects from the proposed LDP options, spatial strategy and 
strategic policies; and, 
o    The SA Report for the LDP Pre-Deposit Document will assess likely significant effects from all substantive components of the LDP Deposit 
Document, including all proposed site allocations and policies. 
o    Following the completion of an Examination regarding the LDP, all binding recommendations made by the Examination Inspector will be subject to 

P
age 197



50 | P a g e   

SA, incorporating SEA, Screening, to determine whether they would give rise to any new or different likely significant effects not previously reported 
within the SA Report for the LDP Deposit Document. This SEA Screening will be documented within an SA Addendum. 

 
c)     The final bullet point has been amended to make clear that the SA Adoption Statement will be published after the adoption of the revised LDP: 
 
A Sustainability Appraisal Post Adoption Statement will be published after the revised LDP is adopted. This will explain how sustainability 
considerations and the Sustainability Assessment, incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment, have been taken into consideration in the 
production of the revised LDP.    
 

3. Amendment to Section 1.5 - the recommended changes outline the requirement for HRA with reference to the relevant EU Directive and the relevant 
Regulations for Wales. The Stages for HRA are set out in full but make it clear that there are particular circumstances for progression through the 
Stages for the LDP Review. In addition the revised text draws together the SA/SEA and HRA elements to state that these will take place concurrently.  
 
The requirement for Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) comes from the Habitats Directive, specifically Article 6(3), which requires that land use 
plans, including LDPs, are subject to a HRA Screening to determine whether any plan [or project] is likely to have a significant effect upon a European 
site, either alone, or in combination with other projects. In Wales, requirements for HRA, including for proposed modifications to existing plans, are set 
out within Part 6 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and Part 2 of the Conservation of Offshore Marine Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017.  
 
The HRA process follows a series of Stages; these will be undertaken for the LDP Review, as necessary, to meet with the requirements of the 
Regulations: 
 

 Stage 1 - HRA Screening: to determine whether the LDP Review is likely to have significant effects on European Sites;  

 Stage 2 – Appropriate Assessment: If the HRA Screening indicates that the LDP Review is likely to have significant effects, a further level of 
assessment is needed to consider whether the LDP Review could adversely affect the integrity of one or more European site(s), either alone or 
in combination with other plans or projects, in view of their established conservation objectives and conservation status. If the potential for 
adverse effects on site integrity are identified, the Appropriate Assessment should also consider mitigation measures to control the identified 
impacts, to avoid adverse effects on site integrity; and 

 Stage 3 and 4 – Consideration of Alternatives and Imperative Reasons of Overriding Public Interest: Only where significant effects 
remain at the end of Stage 2 in the HRA process, is there a need to consider alternatives and Imperative Reasons of Overriding Public Interest.  

 
The HRA process will be undertaken in conjunction with the SA (incorporating SEA) to ensure an integrated approach to assessment. It is intended that 
the process will run concurrently with the plan making process and form an iterative part of the LDP Review, involving the consideration of all emerging 
policy and site options. Natural Resources Wales will be consulted throughout the HRA process. 

P
age 198



51 | P a g e   

Appendix 4 – Risk Assessment 

 

Risk Potential Impact Probability Mitigation Measures 

Change in staff resources 

available to undertake 

revised LDP preparation. 

 

Programme slippage Medium Consider additional 

resources (including 

support from other 

sections within the 

Council) and ensure robust 

structure. Ensure that the 

replacement LDP remains 

a top corporate priority.  

Timetable proves too 

ambitious due to greater 

than anticipated workload. 

Programme Slippage. Medium/High Consider additional 

resources. 

Reduction and lack of 

financial resources. 

Programme slippage. 

Delay in securing 

information required to 

progress plan. 

Medium Sufficient funds are 

allocated in the LDP 

budget in addition to a 

contingency budget to 

address unforeseen costs. 

Corporate reorganisation 

of structures. 

Programme slippage Medium Ensure that the 

replacement LDP remains 

a top corporate priority.  

 

Delays caused by Welsh 

translation and/or the 

printing process. 

Programme slippage Low/Medium Consider additional 

resources. 

Significant levels of 

objections from statutory 

consultation bodies. 

LDP cannot be submitted 

for examination without 

significant additional 

work. 

Low/Medium Ensure close liaison with, 

and early involvement of 

statutory bodies as 

stakeholders in the 

process. 

Large volume and /or 

highly significant levels of 

objection to proposals 

e.g. site allocations. 

Programme slippage. 

Plan cannot be submitted 

for examination without 

significant work. 

Medium Ensure close liaison and 

early/continued 

involvement of the 

community, statutory 

bodies 

& stakeholders throughout 

the plan preparation 

process. 

Lack of consensus 

throughout the 

organisation and/ or lack 

of support from 

officers/other departments 

in production of the 

Programme slippage Low/Medium Ensure close liaison with, 

and early involvement of 

key Members and Officers. 

Page 199



52 | P a g e   

evidence base. 

Challenging timetable to 

prepare revised LDP 

within 3.5 years due to 

greater than anticipated 

workload (e.g. greater 

number of 

representations received 

or SA/SEA/HRA 

requirements). 

Programme slippage Medium Realistic timetabling for 

each stage of plan 

preparation, adequate 

resources and careful 

project management       

with adequate 

contingencies/flexibility. 

Planning Inspectorate fail 

to meet their timescales 

per the Service Level 

Agreement 

Examination delayed. Low/Medium Maintain close liaison with 

the PI to ensure that early 

warning of any problems, 

e.g. 

consultation on the LDP.  

LDP fails ‘test of 

soundness’ 

LDP cannot be adopted 

without considerable 

additional work. 

Low Ensure LDP is sound, 

founded on a robust 

evidence base. 

Additional requirements 

arising from the issue of 

new legislation and/or 

national guidance.e.g. 

revised LDP alignment 

with revised Planning 

Policy Wales and LDP 

Manual. 

Programme slippage Medium/High Monitor emerging 

legislation/guidance; report 

and respond early to 

changes as necessary. 

Involvement in 

preparation of Strategic 

Development Plan (SDP) 

Programme slippage. 

Resource implications, 

extent of input to the SDP 

currently unknown. 

Medium/High Ensure sufficient 

resources are available 

and corporate support of 

SDP process and 

timetable from outset. 

Review of revised Plan 

resulting from a 

requirement to align with 

a Strategic Development 

Plan. 

Programme slippage Low Ensure involvement in  

progress of regional work.  

Continued liaison with 

Welsh Government 

Direction from Welsh 

Government Cabinet 

Secretary to prepare a 

Joint Plan. 

Work on individual LDP to 

date would be abortive. 

Low Ensure close liaison with 

Welsh Government. 

Insufficient information to 

undertake SA/SEA. 

Programme 

slippage. 

Low/Medium Identify expectations 

of consultation bodies 

in DA. 

Consider additional 

Page 200



53 | P a g e   

resources. 

Legal challenge. Adopted LDP may 

be quashed in 

whole or in part by 

the Courts. 

Medium Ensure procedures, 

Act, Regulations etc. 

are complied with. 

Page 201



54 | P a g e   

Appendix 5 – Glossary of terms 

Adopted Plan The final version of the Local Development Plan. 

Adoption The final stage of Local Development Plan preparation where 

the LDP becomes the statutory development plan for the 

area it covers. 

Annual Monitoring Report 

(AMR) 

A yearly report to monitor the effectiveness of the LDP and 

ultimately determines whether any revisions to the Plan are 

necessary. It assesses the extent to which the LDP strategy 

and objectives are being achieved and whether the LDP 

policies are functioning effectively. 

Candidate Site A site nominated by an individual with an interest in land (i.e. 

landowner, developer, agent or member of the public) to be 

considered for inclusion in the LDP. All Candidate Sites will 

be assessed for suitability for inclusion as potential 

allocations. 

Community People living in a defined geographical area, or who share 

other interests and therefore form communities of interest. 

Community Involvement 

Scheme (CIS) 

The Community Involvement Scheme forms part of the 

Delivery Agreement. It outlines the principles of engagement 

and provides detail on how the Local Planning Authority will 

involve communities and stakeholders (including businesses 

and developers) in the preparation of the Local Development 

Plan. 

Consensus Building A process of dialogue with the community and other 

interested parties to understand relevant viewpoints and to 

seek agreement where possible. 

Consultation A formal process in which comments are invited on a 

particular topic or draft document usually within a defined 

time period. 

Council Bridgend County Borough Council 

Delivery Agreement (DA) A document comprising the local planning authority's 

timetable for the preparation of a Local Development Plan, 

together with its Community Involvement Scheme, submitted 

to the Welsh Government for agreement. 

Deposit A formal six week stage in which individuals and 

organisations can make representations on the Local 

Development Plan. Representations that relate to whether 

the plan is ‘sound’ can then be examined by an Inspector. 

Deposit Plan This is a full draft of the LDP which undergoes a formal 

consultation period prior to it being submitted to the Welsh 

Government for public examination. 

Duly Made Representations to the development plan which are made in 

the correct manner and within the specified consultation time 

period. 

Page 202



55 | P a g e   

Engagement A proactive process that seeks to encourage the 

involvement and participation of the community and other 

groups in the decision making process. 

Evidence Base Information and data that provides the basis for the 

preparation of the LDP vision, objectives, policies and 

proposals and justifies the soundness of the policy approach 

of the LDP. 

Examination The examination involves public examination of the Deposit 

LDP, the Deposit representations, the report of consultation, 

evidence base/background documents and the Sustainability 

Appraisal Report. This is carried out by the Planning 

Inspectorate on behalf of the Welsh Government. 

Habitat Regulations 

Assessment (HRA) 

Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) relates to the 

assessment of the impacts of a plan (or project) against the 

nature conservation objectives of European designated sites 

for any likely significant effects. HRA also ascertains whether 

the proposed plan would adversely affect the integrity of the 

site. 

Indicator A measure of variables over time, often used to measure 

progress in the achievement of objectives, targets and 

policies. 

Inspector’s Report The Report prepared by an independent Inspector who 

examines the LDP. The Inspector’s Report contains 

recommendations on the content of the final LDP and is 

binding upon the Council. The Council must adopt the LDP 

in the manner directed by the Inspector. 

Involvement Generic term relating to community involvement that   

includes both participation and consultation techniques. 

Local Development Plan (LDP) A land use plan which includes a vision, strategy, area 

wide policies for development types, land allocations, and 

policies and proposals for key areas of change and 

protection. Allocations and certain policies are shown 

geographically on the Proposals Map forming part of the 

Plan. The LDP is a statutory development plan that each 

local planning authority area is required to produce in Wales. 

LDP Officer / Member Group A group of officers and Members of BCBC established to 

consider issues relating to the LDP which reports to the LDP 

Steering Group. 

LDP Steering Group The LDP Steering Group is a group of Members whose 

purpose is to oversee the preparation of the LDP. The 

Council’s Development Control Committee will undertake 

this role. 

Local Planning Authority (LPA) In the case of Bridgend County Borough, this is Bridgend 

County Borough Council. 

Objective A statement of what is intended, specifying the desired 

direction of change in trends. 

Page 203



56 | P a g e   

Participation A process rather than a single event that provides 

opportunity for direct engagement with the community and 

stakeholders to input into decision making. 

Planning Inspectorate The Wales branch of the Planning Inspectorate is an 

independent body that will be responsible for the formal 

examination of the LDP. 

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Planning policy guidance for Wales produced by the Welsh 

Government is set out in this document 

Pre-Deposit Stages of preparation and consultation of the LDP before the 

Deposit Plan is finalised and approved by the Council. 

Preferred Strategy This sets out the broad strategic direction for the LDP. This 

includes the preferred level of growth along with the spatial 

strategy for distributing the growth. It also includes the vision, 

issues and objectives of the plan. 

Press Releases Sent to Welsh media, including newspapers, radio and 

television news stations as appropriate. Media may choose 

not to print or broadcast an item. 

Regulation Regulations are set out in Welsh Statutory Instruments. They 

provide the framework for the preparation of the LDP. 

Report of Consultation A Consultation Report is one of the documents required to 

be submitted for independent examination. An initial 

consultation report is also required for the pre-deposit stage. 

Representations Comments received in relation to the LDP, either in support 

of, or in opposition to. 

Review Report The Review Report provides an overview of the issues that 

have been considered as part of the full review process and 

identifies changes that are likely to be needed to the LDP, 

based on evidence. It also sets out the type of revision 

procedure to be followed in revising the LDP. 

Scoping The process of deciding the scope and level of detail of a 

sustainability appraisal (SA), including the sustainability 

effects and options which need to be considered, the 

assessment methods to be used and the structure and 

contents of the SA Report. 

Soundness Tests In order to adopt a LDP it must be determined to be ‘sound’ 

by the Planning Inspector. The Tests of Soundness are set 

out in PPW. There are three tests to make that judgement in 

relation to the plan as a whole. A framework for assessing 

the soundness of LDPs has been developed by the Planning 

Inspectorate. 

Stakeholders People whose interests are directly affected by a LDP (and/ 

or Sustainability Appraisal/ Strategic Environmental 

Assessment) and whose involvement is generally through 

representative bodies. 

  

Page 204



57 | P a g e   

Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) 

Generic term used internationally to describe environmental 

assessment as applied to policies, plans and programmes. 

The European Strategic Environmental Assessment 

Directive (2001/42/EC) requires a formal “environmental 

assessment of certain plans and programmes, including 

those in the field of planning and land use”. 

Strategic Development Plan 

(SDP) 

A Strategic Development Plan is a tool for regional planning 

to cover cross- boundary issues such as housing and 

transport. It will be prepared by a Strategic Planning Panel 

across a region. LPA’s must have regard to the SDP when 

developing their LDPs. 

Submission When the LDP, SAR and HRA are formally submitted to the 

Welsh Government for independent examination by a Welsh 

Government appointed Inspector. 

Supplementary Planning 

Guidance (SPG) 

Provide more detailed or site specific guidance on the 

application of LDP Policies. They provide supplementary 

information in respect of the policies in a LDP. SPG does not 

form part of the LDP and is not subject to independent 

examination. 

Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Tool for appraising policies, including LDPs, to ensure they 

reflect sustainable development objectives (i.e. social, 

environmental and economic factors). Each LPA is required 

by Section 62(6) of the Act to undertake SA of their Local 

Development Plan. This form of sustainability appraisal fully 

incorporates the requirements of the Strategic Environmental 

Assessment Directive. 

Sustainability Appraisal Report 

(SAR) 

A document required to be produced as part of the 

Sustainability Appraisal process to describe and appraise 

the likely significant effects on sustainability of implementing 

a LDP, which meets the requirements for the Environmental 

Report under the SEA Directive. Section 62(6) of the Act 

requires each LPA to prepare a report of the findings of the 

SA of the LDP. It is an integral part of the development plan 

making process. 

Timetable Sets out the dates by which key stages and processes of 

LDP preparation are expected to be completed. These are 

definitive for stages up to the deposit of the LDP and 

indicative for the remaining stages after. 

Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act (2015) 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is 

legislation that requires public bodies, such as local 

authorities, to put long term sustainability at the forefront of 

their thinking to make a difference to lives of people in 

Wales. Local authorities must work towards the seven well-

being goals and enact the five ways of working set out in the 

Act. 

  

Page 205



58 | P a g e   

Workshop Where members of the public have the opportunity to 

engage in group debates and practical exercises with a 

written or drawn ‘output’. 

Page 206



59 | P a g e   

Page 207



60 | P a g e   

 

P
age 208



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

20 JUNE 2018

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION

1. Purpose of Report.

1.1 The purpose of the report is to seek Council’s approval of proposed amendments to 
the Constitution.  

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Plan / Other Corporate Priority.

2.1 The Constitution governs the operation of the Authority and thereby connects to the 
Corporate Improvement Plan and all Corporate Priorities:

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the County a 
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and 
ambitions of all people in the county. 

2. Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and 
its services.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background.

3.1 A desktop review of the Constitution has been undertaken to ensure that it is up to 
date and fit for purpose.   

4. Current situation / proposal.

4.1 The recent changes to the structure and personnel within the Operational and 
Partnership Services Directorate require changes to the Constitution.  It is 
recommended that all references within the Constitution to the Corporate Director – 
Operational and Partnership Services are deleted and replaced with Solicitor to the 
Council.  

Audit Committee

4.2 Effective Audit Committees bring many benefits to an organisation and to ensure 
that the Council continues to provide an effective Audit Committee, the Audit 
Committee’s Terms of Reference are considered and approved as appropriate by 

Page 209

Agenda Item 10



members on an annual basis.  Attached as Appendix 1 are proposed amendments 
to the Terms of Reference for approval by Council.  The amendments are 
highlighted via tracked changes.  

Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

4.3 It is recommended that the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules are 
amended at paragraph 2(d) as highlighted via tracked changes attached as 
Appendix 2. 

Voting 

4.4 It is recommended that Part 4 Rules of Procedure be amended at paragraph 17 in 
relation to the Mayor casting vote as highlighted via tracked changes attached as 
Appendix 3.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules.

5.1 The Constitution governs the operation of the Authority and thereby has an effect 
upon the operation of the Policy Framework.

5.2 The Constitution will require amendment as a result of this report. 

6. Equality Impact Assessment.

6.1 Although there are no direct impacts, the Constitution as the key governance 
framework document for the Authority is critical in demonstrating commitment to the 
Authority’s duties under the Equality Act 2010.  

7. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications 

7.1 The report supports all the wellbeing objectives.  

8. Financial Implications.

8.1 None.  

9. Recommendations.

9.1 Council is recommended to approve the amendments to the Constitution as set out 
in the report and attached appendices.  

P A Jolley 
Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services 
June 2018 

Contact Officers: Laura Griffiths, Principal Lawyer 

Telephone: (01656) 643135

E-mail: laura.griffiths@bridgend.gov.uk 

Page 210

mailto:laura.griffiths@bridgend.gov.uk


Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, 
Civic Offices, 
Angel Street, 
Bridgend. 
CF31 4WB

Background documents:  Council’s Constitution

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Membership 
 
 
 

12 
County Borough 
Councillors and 

Lay Members 
(as set out in 

Article 8) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Functions 
 
 
 

 Review, scrutinise and issues 
reports and recommendations in 
relation the CouncilAuthority’s 
financial affairs, 

 Review, scrutinise and issues 
reports and recommendations 
on the appropriateness of the 
Authority’s Council’s risk 
management, internal control, 
arrangements to secure value 
for money and corporate 
governance arrangements. 

 To consider the report on the 
annual risk assessment, any 
interim reports and the 
Corporate Risk Management 
Policy. 

 Oversee the Authority’s 
Council’s internal and external 
audit arrangements (including 
the performance of external 
providers of Internal Audit) and 
review its financial statements. 

 To approve the Internal Audit 
Charter. 

 To approve the risk-based 
internal audit plan and to 
approve significant interim 
changes to the risk-based 
internal audit plan. 

 To contribute to the Quality 
Assurance and Improvement 
Programme and in particular, to 
the external quality assessment 
of internal audit that takes place 
at least once every five years. 

 To consider and approve the 
Head of Internal Audit’s annual 
report and opinion, a summary 
of internal audit activity (actual 
and proposed) and the level of 
assurance it can give over the 
Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements. 

 To consider and approve reports 
from Internal Audit on the 
adequacy of internal control. 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Delegation 
of 

Functions 
 

 
 

None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 To consider and approve reports 
dealing with the management 
and performance of the 
providers of internal audit 
services. 

 To consider reports from 
Internal Audit on agreed 
recommendations not 
implemented within a reasonable 
timescale and approve 
necessary remedial action. 

 To identify issues from the 
Aannual Improvement Report by 
the Wales Audit Office. 

 To receive the Regulatory 
Programme. 

 To identify areas for examination 
by Internal and External Audit. 

 To be responsible for ensuring 
effective scrutiny of the Treasury 
Management Strategy and 
policies, in accordance with the 
Treasury Policy Statement and 
Treasury Management 
Prudential Indicators. 

 To maintain an overview of the 
Council’s Constitution in respect 
of Contract and Finance 
Procedure Rules. 

 To review any issue referred to it 
by the Chief Executive Officer, 
the Monitoring Officer and the 
Section 151 Officer. 

 To monitor Council’s Anti-Fraud 
and Bribery Strategy, 
Whistleblowing Policy and Anti-
Money Laundering Policy. 
policies on anti-fraud and anti-
corruption arrangements. 

 To review and approveconsider 
the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement and Code 
of Corporate Governance. 

 To assess the Council’s 
compliance with its own and 
other published standards and 
controls. 

 To review and approve the 
Annual Statement of Accounts.  
Specifically, to consider whether 
appropriate accounting policies 
have been followed and whether 
there are concerns arising from 
the financial statements or from 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 214



the audit that need to be brought 
to the attention of the Council. 

 To consider and approve the 
External Auditor’s report in 
relation to those charged with 
governance on issues arising 
from the audit of the accounts. 

 To review and consider reports 
from the External Auditor on the 
Council’s performance, financial 
probity and corporate 
governance and providing the 
opportunity for direct discussion 
with the auditor on these.   

 To receive reports from the 
External Regulators as 
appropriate. 

 To attend relevant training 
sessions in accordance with the 
Members Training programme 
eg. Treasury management 

 

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank



Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules

1. The Framework for Cabinet Decisions
The Council will be responsible for the adoption of its Budget and of its Policy 
Framework as set out in Article 4. The Budget and the Policy Framework adopted by 
the Council will be based on that proposed by the Cabinet. Once a Budget or a Policy 
Framework is in place, it will be the responsibility of the Cabinet to operate within it.

2. Process for obtaining Approval of the Budget
   The process by which the Budget shall be approved is as follows:

(a) The Cabinet will publicise by including it in the forward work programme a 
timetable for making proposals to the Council for the approval of the Budget, 
and its arrangements for consultation upon its initial Budget proposals. The 
Chairpersons of Overview and Scrutiny Committees will also be notified of the 
initial Budget proposals. The consultation period shall be not less than 4 weeks.  
If an Overview and Scrutiny Committee wishes to respond to the Cabinet in that 
consultation process then it may do so.

(b) At the end of the consultation period and in accordance with the published 
timetable, the Cabinet will draw up firm proposals having regard to the 
responses to that consultation.  The Cabinet will take any response from an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and other consultees into account in drawing 
up firm Budget proposals for submission to the Council, and its report to the 
Council will reflect the comments made by consultees and the Cabinet’s 
response;

(c) Once the Cabinet has approved the firm Budget proposals, the proper officer 
will refer them at the earliest opportunity to the Council for decision;

(d) In reaching a decision, the Council may adopt the Cabinet’s proposals, amend 
them, refer them back to the Cabinet for further consideration, or in principle, 
substitute its own proposals in their place. Any alternative budget proposals 
must be submitted in sufficient time for officers to fully consider them and 
advise the Council on the implications thereof. Any proposed amendment must 
be submitted in the form of a written report to the Chief Executive and the 
Section 151 Officer at least three working days before the date on which the 
annual budget is to be adopted by the Council. Any amendment will only be 
acceptable if it proposes a budget which balances overall income with 
expenditure for the year. The source of funding any proposals must be robust 
and defined and accepted as such by the Section 151 officer.

(e)

(f) If Council accepts the Cabinet’s proposals without amendment, the Council 
may make a decision which is final. Otherwise, it may only make an in-principle 
decision. In either case, the decision will be made on the basis of a simple 
majority of votes cast at the meeting;

(g) The decision will be publicised and a copy shall be given to the Leader;

(h) An in-principle decision will automatically become effective 5 working days from 
the date of the Council’s decision, unless the Leader informs the proper officer 

Page 217



in writing before the end of that period that he/she objects to the decision 
becoming effective and provides reasons why;

(i) In that case, the proper officer will call a Council meeting within a further 5 
working days. The Council will be required to re-consider its decision and the 
Leader’s written submission. The Council may:

i) approve the Cabinet’s proposals by a simple majority of votes cast at the 
meeting; 

or
(ii) approve a different decision which does not accord with the Cabinet’s 

proposals by a simple majority;

The decision shall then be made public, and shall be final.

3. Process for Developing the Policy Framework
The process by which the Policy Framework shall be developed is as follows:

(a) The Cabinet will publicise by including it in the forward work programme a 
timetable in accordance with which it will make proposals to the Council for the 
adoption or modification of any plan, policy or strategy that forms part of the 
Policy Framework. 

(b) Overview and Scrutiny Committees will publicise by including it in the forward 
work programme a timetable in accordance with which it will make proposals to 
the Council for the adoption or modification of any plan, policy or strategy that 
forms part of the Policy Framework but prior to doing so will consult Cabinet.

(c) Any Chief Officer may make proposals to the Council for the adoption or 
modification of any plan, policy or strategy that forms part of the Policy 
Framework, but prior to doing so will consult the relevant Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet;

The Council will consider the proposals of the Cabinet, Chief Officer and 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and may adopt them, amend them, refer 
them back to the Cabinet, Chief Officer and Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
for further consideration, or substitute its own proposals in their place;

If the Council accepts the proposals of the Cabinet, Chief Officer and Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee without amendment their decision is effective 
immediately.  The Council’s decision will be publicised 

(d) If the proposals of the Cabinet, Chief Officer and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are not accepted without amendment, the decision will be 
provisional.  The decision will become effective on the expiry of 10 working 
days after the publication of the decision, unless the Leader formally objects to 
it in that period.

(e) If the Leader objects to the decision of the Council, then the Leader shall give 
written notice to the proper officer to that effect prior to the date upon which the 
decision is to become effective. The written notification must state the reasons 
for the objection. Where such notification is received, the proper officer shall 
convene a further meeting of the Council to re-consider its decision and the 
decision shall not be effective pending that meeting;

Page 218



(f) The Council must take place within 10 working days of the receipt of the 
Leader’s written objection. At that Council meeting, the previous decision of the 
Council shall be re-considered in the light of the objection, which shall be 
available in writing for the Council;

(g) The Council’s decision, if not in accordance with the recommendation of the 
Cabinet, shall require a simple majority of those voting at the meeting;

(h) The decision shall then be made public, and shall be implemented immediately;

(i) In approving the Policy Framework the Council will also specify the degree of 
in-year changes to the Policy Framework which may be undertaken by the 
Cabinet in accordance with paragraph 6 of these Rules (In-year changes to the 
Policy Framework). Any other changes to the Policy Framework are reserved to 
the Council.   

4. Decisions outside the Budget and/or Policy Framework
(a) Subject to the provisions of the Financial Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this 

Constitution relating to virement and to the provisions of paragraph 5 of these 
Rules (Urgent decisions outside the Budget and/or Policy Framework) the 
Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an individual member of the Cabinet and 
any officers, area committees or joint arrangements discharging executive 
functions may only take decisions in line with the Budget and the Policy 
Framework. If any of these bodies or persons wishes to make a decision which 
is contrary to the Policy Framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance 
with the Budget approved by the full Council, then that decision may only be 
taken by the Council, subject to paragraph 5 of these Rules and the Schemes 
of Delegation of Functions.

(b) If the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an individual member of the Cabinet 
and any officers, area committees or joint arrangements discharging executive 
functions want to make such a decision, they shall take advice from the 
Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer as to whether the decision 
they want to make would be contrary to the Policy Framework, or contrary to or 
not wholly in accordance with the Budget. If the advice of either of those 
officers is that the decision would not be in line with the existing Budget and/or 
Policy Framework, then the decision must be referred by that body or person to 
the Council for decision, unless the decision is a matter of urgency, in which 
case the provisions of paragraph 5 of these Rules shall apply.

5. Urgent decisions outside the Budget and/or Policy Framework
(a) The Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an individual member of the Cabinet 

and any officers, area committees or joint arrangements discharging executive 
functions may take a decision which is contrary to the Policy Framework or 
contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Budget approved by the full 
Council if the decision is a matter of urgency. However, the decision may only 
be taken:

i) if it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the full Council; and

ii) if the Chairperson of a relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
agrees that the decision is a matter of urgency;

Page 219



(b) The reasons why it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the full 
Council and the chairperson of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 
consent to the decision being taken as a matter of urgency must be noted on 
the record of the decision. In the absence of the chairperson of a relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee the consent of the Mayor, and in the 
absence of the Mayor the Deputy Mayor, will be sufficient;

(c) Following the decision the decision taker will provide a full report to the next 
available Council meeting explaining the decision, the reasons for it and why 
the decision was treated as a matter of urgency.

6. In-year Changes to the Policy Framework
The responsibility for agreeing the Policy Framework lies with the Council, and 
decisions by the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an individual member of the 
Cabinet and any officers, area committees or joint arrangements discharging 
executive functions must be in line with it. No changes to any plan, policy or strategy 
may be made by those bodies or individuals except those changes:

(a) which will result in the closure or discontinuance of a service or part of a 
service to meet a budgetary constraint;

(b) necessary to ensure compliance with the law, a direction issued by a 
government minister or by the National Assembly for Wales or government 
guidance;

(c) in relation to the Policy Framework in respect of a plan, policy or strategy which 
would normally be agreed annually by the Council following consultation, but 
where the existing policy document is silent on the matter under consideration.

7. Call-in of Decisions outside the Budget and/ or the Policy Framework
(a) Where an Overview and Scrutiny Committee is of the opinion that a decision is, 

or if made would be, contrary to the Policy Framework, or contrary to or not 
wholly in accordance with the Council’s Budget, then it may call in that decision 
and having determined to call in that decision shall seek advice from the 
Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer;

(b) Having determined that a proposed or actual decision is outside the budget or 
policy framework the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may refer the matter to 
Cabinet or Council in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny procedure 
rules;

(c) Should the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance Officer be of the view that a 
proposed or actual decision is outside the budget or policy framework   each 
may report to Council.  

(d) Regardless of whether the decision is delegated or not, the Cabinet must meet 
to decide what action to take in respect of the Monitoring Officer’s report and/or 
the Chief Finance Officer’s report and  prepare a report to the Council in the 
event that the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance Officer conclude that the 
decision was a departure, and to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee if the 
Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance Officer conclude that the decision was 
not a departure;

Page 220



(e) If the decision has yet to be made, or has been made but not yet implemented, 
and the advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer is 
that the decision is or would be contrary to the Policy Framework or contrary to 
or not wholly in accordance with the Budget, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee may refer the matter to the Council. In such cases, no further action 
will be taken in respect of the decision or its implementation until the Council 
has met and considered the matter. The Council shall meet within 10 working 
days of the request by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. At the meeting it 
will receive a report of the decision or proposals and the advice of the 
Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer. The Council may either:

i) endorse a decision or proposal as falling within the existing Budget and/or 
the Policy Framework. In this case no further action is required, save that 
the decision of the Council be minuted and circulated to all councillors in 
the normal way;

Or 

ii) amend the Council’s Budget or the plan, policy or strategy concerned to 
encompass the decision or proposal of the body or individual responsible 
for that executive function and agree to the decision with immediate 
effect. In this case, no further action is required save that the decision of 
the Council be minuted and circulated to all councillors in the normal way;

Or

iii) where the Council accepts that the decision or proposal is contrary to    
the Policy Framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the 
Budget, and does not amend the existing Budget or the plan, policy or 
strategy concerned to accommodate it, require the Cabinet to re-consider 
the matter in accordance with the advice of the Monitoring Officer and/or 
the Chief Finance Officer.

Page 221



This page is intentionally left blank



15.2 Subject of debate
The Leader will liaise with the Leaders of the political groups to agree where possible 
the topic of the debate. Where agreement cannot be reached the topic will be put to 
the vote at the Council meeting prior to the quarterly debate.

15.3 Chairing of debate
The debate will be chaired by the Mayor.

15.4 Results of debate

The results of the debate will be:
(i) disseminated as widely as possible within the community and to agencies and 

organisations in the area;  and
(ii) considered by the Leader in proposing the budget and policy framework to 

the Council for the coming year.

16. Previous Decisions and Motions
16.1 Motion to rescind a previous decision

Except in the case of a motion moved in pursuance of a recommendation by the 
executive or by a Committee a motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a 
meeting of Council within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice of 
motion is signed by at least five members.

16.2 Motion similar to one previously rejected
Except in the case of a motion moved in pursuance of a recommendation by the 
executive or by a Committee a motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has 
been rejected at a meeting of Council in the past six months cannot be moved unless 
the notice of motion or amendment is signed by at least five members.  Once the 
motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can propose a similar motion or 
amendment for six months.

17. Voting
17.1 Majority

Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided by a simple 
majority of those members voting and present in the room at the time the question 
was put.  

17.2 Mayor casting vote
If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Mayor will have a second or 
casting vote.  There will be no restriction on how the Mayor chooses to exercise a 
casting vote notwithstanding Rule 17.6.

17.3 Methods of voting
Unless a  recorded vote is demanded under Rule 17.4 the vote will be taken by any 
one of the following means:

(a) by utilising an electronic voting system; or

(b) by show of hands; or

(c) if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting.

Page 223



17.4 Recorded vote
If not less than one-fifth of the members present and entitled to vote at the meeting 
demand it, the names for and against the motion or amendment or abstaining from 
voting shall be recorded and entered into the minutes.  The method of undertaking 
the recoded vote will be by use of the electronic voting system unless unavailable in 
which case the vote will be recorded manually.   

17.5 Right to require individual vote to be recorded
Where any member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, their vote will be 
so recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against the motion or 
abstained from voting.

17.6 Voting on appointments
The vote will be taken in respect of each candidate for appointment separately.  
Members will vote for only one of the candidate(s).  When the electronic voting 
system is used voting will be by means of pressing the yes button.  A gross error 
check will be undertaken to ensure that only 1 vote has been registered by each 
Member. 

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled and there is 
not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then the name(s) of the 
person(s) with the least number of votes will be taken off the list and a new vote 
taken.  The process will continue until there is a majority of votes for one person.

The Mayor’s casting vote will not apply.  

Page 224



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

20 JUNE 2018

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

RE-ALLOCATION OF THE COUNCIL’S SCHEME OF DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 
RELATING TO THE OPERATIONAL AND PARTNERSHIP SERVICES DIRECTORATE

1. Purpose of Report.

1.1 The purpose of the report is to seek Council’s approval for the transfer of Council 
functions within the Scheme of Delegation of Functions currently allocated to the 
Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services.    

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Plan / Other Corporate Priority.

2.1 The effective operation of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation of Functions 
supports the achievement of all Corporate Priorities.  

3. Background.

3.1 Members will be aware that the Corporate Director Operational and Partnership 
Services and Solicitor to the Council has left the Authority as part of the ongoing 
senior management restructure.  The Group Manager Legal and Democratic 
Services/Deputy Monitoring Officer has been appointed by Council to undertake the 
functions of Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer.   The Authority is 
required to appoint to the role of Monitoring Officer by virtue of Section 5 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  

3.2 The Determining Member Committee has approved the deletion of the post of 
Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services.  

4. Current situation / proposal.

4.1 In order to maintain effective decision making processes, it is proposed that all 
Council Functions in Schemes B1 and B2 of the Scheme of Delegation of Functions 
allocated to the Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services be re-
allocated to the Monitoring Officer.  

4.2 From an operational perspective, existing procedures for the use of delegated 
powers i.e. continue to use the RES designation for the decision referencing system 
would be maintained.  

4.3 A report will be presented to Cabinet proposing similar changes to the Scheme of 
Delegation of Functions for the Executive decisions within Schemes B1 and B2.  

Page 225

Agenda Item 11



5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules.

5.1 The provisions and recommendations of the report accord with the Council’s 
Constitution.   

6. Equality Impact Assessment.

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report.  

7. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications 

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial Implications.

8.1 None.  

9. Recommendations.

Council is recommended to:

9.1 Approve the transfer of Council functions within the Scheme of Delegation of 
Functions from the Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services to the 
Monitoring Officer;

9.2 Note that a report will be presented to Cabinet proposing a similar change to the 
Scheme of Delegation of Functions for Executive functions.

K Watson 
Group Manager – Legal and Democratic Services 
June 2018 

Contact Officers: Andrew Rees & Mark Galvin
Senior Democratic Services Officers - Committees

Telephone: (01656) 643147 / 643148

E-mail: Andrew.rees@bridgend.gov.uk
Mark.galvin@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, 
Civic Offices, 
Angel Street, 
Bridgend. 
CF31 4WB

Background documents:  None

Page 226

mailto:Andrew.rees@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Mark.galvin@bridgend.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 227

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol

	7 Prosiect Cyfalaf Ysgol Gynradd Cwmfelin
	8 Adolygiad Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr
	BCBC LDP 2013 REVIEW REPORT

	9 Adolygiad Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr - Cytundeb Cyflawni
	BCBC REPLACEMENT LDP 2018-2033 LDP DELIVERY AGREEMENT

	10 Diwygiad i'r Cyfansoddiad
	Appendix 1 - Audit Committee Terms of Reference Council
	Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules (3)
	Mayor casting vote

	11 Ail-ddyrannu Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau'r Cyngor yn Ymwneud â'r Gyfarwyddiaeth Weithredol a Gwasanaethau Partneriaeth
	14 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion wedi’u Eithrio

